STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER - CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
. for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for October 20, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

4. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 09/29/15 for $67,359.82, date 09/29/15 for
$119,844.68 and date 10/09/15 for $467,474.12. Accounts Payable Checks date 10/02/15 for
$421,098.75 and $10,566.07.

5. For possible action approval of Treasurer Report for September 2015

1




6. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report

7. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A.

B.

e

&

<

o 2

0

RED-D-ARC, INC. - Contractor / 685A Lee Industrial Boulevard ~ Austell, GA (ind.
equipment sales)

PANASONIC ENERGY OF N.A. - General / Electric Avenue (lithium-ion battery
manufact) TRI

SUMMIT CONTRACTING, LLC - Contractor / 120 North Lime St ~ Lancaster, PA
(insulation contractor)

SYSTEMS CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 701 South Carson Street ~ Carson City
(steel erectors)

HIGH DESERT SURFACE PREP -- Contractor / 1885 Temple Hill Rd ~ Reno (concrete
prep contractor)

SANKYO USA, INC. - Contractor / 1555 Mittel Blvd ~ Wood Dale, IL (cargo handling
SVes.)

STEP BY STEP - Home Business / 2321 Cartwright Road ~ VCH (foot care nurse - no
public traffic)

. OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 352 East Monterey ~ Pomona, CA (epoxy

coatings)

SOLUM CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 10105 Indian Ridge ~ Reno (contractor)
VERITAS MANAGED SOLUTIONS, INC. - General / 5302 Greenside Drive ~ San Jose,
CA(IT) ' : : :

CMC STEEL FABRICATORS, INC. - Contractor / 2990 East Annadale ~ Fresno, CA (rebar
cont)

INDUSTRIAL LOGISTICS - Contractor / 3868 Goni Road ~ Carson City (machinery
transport, sales)

. MESA FIRE SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 7442 Tahoe Basin Drive ~ Las Vegas (fire

protection)

. CARR ELECTRICAL TECH, INC. - Contractor / 2929 Quality Dr ~ Petersburg, VA (elect

cont)

DESERT COMMERCIAL SWEEPING - Contractor / 5620 Madras St ~ Carson City
(indust. sweeping)

JC ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 10580 N McCarran ~ Reno (roofing contractor)

C & M CLEANING - Home Business / 137 D Street ~ Virginia City (cleaning service —no
public traffic)

RYAN'’S ROCK & HOE - Contractor / 274 North A Street ~ Virginia City (dirt hauling)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

10. DISCUSSION ONLY: Provide an overview of the State of Nevada Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) program for the upcoming 2016 grant application cycle.




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

11.

12.

13.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: SECOND READING Ordinance No. 15-269: Application
No. 2014-020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code
Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding chapter 17.39 IC Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent
of the proposed IC Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and commercial uses
where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the planning commission.
Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft zone text may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: SECOND READING Ordinance No. 15-268 (Zone Text
Amendments). An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to update the
procedures and requirements of the title by amending the following chapters: Ordinance title
page; Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions; 17.06 Nonconforming Uses; 17.08 Zones
Generally; 17.10 Definitions; Chapter 17.12 General Provisions; 17.15 P Public Zone; 17.16 R-1
Single-Family Residential Zone; 17.20 R-2 Multi-Family Residential Zone; 17.24 A Agriculture
Zone; 17.28 C Commercial Zone; 17.30 C-R Commercial-Residential Zone; 17.32 F Forestry Zone;
17.34 1-1 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.36 1-3 Heavy Industrial Zone;
17.38 I-S Special Industrial Zone; 17.40 E Estate Zone; 17.44 SPR Special Planning Review Zone;
17.48 Historic Overlay District; 17.56 PUD Planned Unit Development; 17.76 N-R Natural
Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards; 17.92 Mineral Exploration Mining and Extraction;
and other properly related matters. Public participation is encouraged. Copies of the text
amendments * may be obtained: from the Planning Department website at
www.storeycounty.org/521/updates, at 775.847.1144 or from planning@storeycounty.org.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. ROCK RAT ADVENTURES, LLC -- General /160 South A Street (guided UTV tours)VC
B. MAVERICK TECHNOLOGIES, LLC - Contractor / 265 Admiral Trost Drive ~ Columbia,
IL (eng)

C. PAPA FRED’S FOOD (DBA) - General / 1575 Linda Way ~ Sparks (mobile food truck)
PRECISION CONCRETE - Contractor / 1640 West Brooks Avenue ~ N. Las Vegas
(concrete cont.)

JET.COM - General / 2777 USA Parkway (fulfillment center) TRI

RELIABLE PLUMBING - Contractor / 4075 Desatoya ~ Reno (plumbing contractor)

DUKE’'S PLUMBING - Contractor / 1424 Industrial Way ~ Gardnerville (plumbing

contractor)

. FAMILY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 330 River Road ~ Dayton

NEVADA COMMERCIAL COATINGS, LLC - Contractor / 4890 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno

(painting cont.)

J]. FARWEST INSULATION - Contractor / 1220 South Sherman St.,, ~ Anaheim, CA
(insulation contractor)

K. MIDWEST RECYCLEING SERVICE & SALES, INC. - Contractor / 855 Rowland Springs
Rd ~ Cartersville, GA (install recycling equipment)

L. TILE ALLIANCE, INC. - Contractor / 4615 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno (tile contractor)

M. PETRO SOLUTIONS - General / 2511 Edgerock Road ~ Reno (truck storage @ 3033
Waltham)

N. PLATINUM SCAFFOLDING SERVICES - Contractor / 14950 Heathrow Forest ~ Houston
(scaffolding)

)

=g QT




O. M G & H CONSULTING, LTD - Home Business / 21570 Dortort Drive ~ VC Highlands
(consultant)

P. BINUTRACEUTICALS, INC. - General / 625 Waltham Way #101 (milling botanicals) TRI

Q. A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.)TRI

R. RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

14. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

15. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

L ]

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this.comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before October 13, 2015; Virginia
City Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: October 20, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 09/29/15 for $67,359.82, date
09/29/15 for $119,844.68 and date 10/09/15 for $467,474.12. Accounts Payable
Checks date 10/02/15 for $421,098.75 and $10,566.07.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA ~ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
\ Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
Approved

[ ] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

=
(R S|

Agenda Item No. 4



HIENSVEEL

YITTOULAWOD

HINOISSIWWOD HANCISSIWMWCD NYWAIVHD

EISUOTSSTUWWOD JO parvog Ajunced Asiols syl Aq pasoaddy

2B 6SC'LY 1EY08YD I030NpPad Te3IOL
00" 184143 I0OJ AaJsuell Iss) Tel0L
Junowy ashked # paq # aa
/# dwdg  /Ao8YyD
S1/62/60 :93ed }28Ud zo3ompag :adAy rroxded
xa3sthbay Yesyd ST:PS:PT ST/62/60 uny

WELSAS TTOHAYd ALNOOD AZHOLS Y0TS0ud ;aday



TYNIA
T

abeg

28 69E'LY

Junowy

ST/6Z/60 233eg }23UD

1938169y ¥03ud
WALSAS TIOHWAYd ALNNOD AHdOLS

0Z€ AONIOV/SH¥Ed AZN 050 ESPER

safegd # peaqg # aa
/# dwg  /3o8UD

zo3onpag :9dAl Troxked

ST*¥S:%T ST/6Z/60 uny
¥oT1S0dd :3dsy



YTAENSVIEL

HITIOHLAWOD

HINOISSIKWOD HANOISSIWWOD NYWHIVHD

8IJUOTSSTWWOD JO parodg Ajunoly Aaxols syl Aq pasoxddy

89°¥¥8 611 18¥08YD Xo3lonpag Te3I0L
oo 154143 203 Iajsueal Iasn TelI0L
JUNoWY asfed # psg # aa
/# dug  /yoayd
S1/62/60 :93ed YoaYd aojonpag :eodAl 1r1oaded
TYNTd x93851b9y ¥o8ud TT:8¥:PT ST/6T/60 :umy

G abegd WILSAS TIOUAYd ALNNOD AFHOLS ¥0150¥d :adey
A .



TYNIJA
1

abeg

BO PPEETT

Iunowy

ST/62/60 @3B ADIYD

Ia3s1bay Yoaud
WELSAS TTIO¥AYd ALNNOD AZHOLS

0Z€ XADNEOV/S¥3d AEN 050 (A3 24: ]

aaled # pag # aa
/# dwg  /3o8yd

Io3onpag :adAl T103ded
TI!8V:¥T ST1/62/60 ‘uny
Y0TS0¥d :3dayg



YIENSYIUL

HITIOHLAWOD

HANOISSIWWOD HANOISSINWWOD NYWAIYHD

ST/¥0/0T

AUYNIWITIES

g

abeg

iSIJUCTSSTWWOD 3FO paeoy Ajuno) Aaxols ayas Aq pasocaddy

ZT PLP'LOY ipasIngstg TEIOL
26°850's 11032npag ©31 I9Fsuea] ISsn (230l
9 LBL'L :871Td dasg 27Q uo pI8IX spag osAordwm Telol
TE'608'LLE :31sodag 32911 ssdordwz Te3ol
E¥ ZTOT isyoayy safordum Te3ol
9ETTITTIT iS¥o8YD x030NMpad TeIOL
59'EB5'09 i8dld¥ 103 Isjsuel] Ias [EIOL
Junowy saded ¢ pag # ag
/# duz  /yo8ud
6 8 L 9 § ¥ £ z T :sdnoap rroxdeq
i®3eg pua-potasad ST/60/01 :@3eg o8yl Jeinbey :adAl T1oadeg
as3s1bay yosud 6Ei8S:60 ST/LO/OT ‘uny

WALSAS TTOMAYWd ALNNOD AZYOLS YO0TS0ud :3dey



dIHSHANIEYd 0071730 ZLYER

BILBO'Y zg'sse’'t 6IP¥L ST/20/01 TS50 ¥ INN-Md
9£"T1E2Z 2 6TPBL  ST/Z0/0T 1Sa % INOD-Md
ONI 0D TIO AETIVA NOSHYD TLYES
052 0s'2 2BP¥L  ST/20/0T s0040
g0¥d ATINIANLD ALID NOSHYD OLPES
20081 80758 8TPPL  ST/20/0OT HSOH ¥ATIId-¥S0TZMd
BT"€E 8TI¥VL ST/Z0/01 dWYT-¥50TZMd
SE'ER 8Iv¥L  ST/20/0T LI¥ HELIII-£¥8TSHd
61°F 81%bL  ST/20/0T HALTII-PT9G95SASSY
£L°8 8I¥PL  GT/20/0T gINE-¥YIAYOT I¥D
6V°5 8IVPL ST/20/01 dv¥D ¥aTIId TI0 -58205918€
-8¥ ve 8I¥PL sT/20/0T 110840 AD0LS
8F°¥Z BIFVL ST/Z0/01 SHILTII-ZLHIONYE ¥d
SL¥¥d OLOY ALID TYLIAWD 69VER
0070971 00°05T STh¥PL ST/20/01 07 ¥00d HIWE SNAW-NAYd M1
H4YS % SSYID ‘MO0T M % D 89VES
ZP STL T 0L ¥6T 88FYL  ST/20/0T QESUNESIA INIWHSINHYD
6691V BBYVL ST/Z0/01 agsdNdgsIaq INIWHSINJYO
L6 69E BBFFL ST/Z0/01 das¥nNgsIaqa ILNIWHSINEYD
SL EWL LZSYL ST/20/01 ad A8 D38 SIWAd
IYNOISSEA0Ed % SSANISNg L9VES
05" 682 00°'LE LEYPPL  ST/zO/0T
0s°25¢2 LEVYL sT/Z0/0T ST0Z '€2-01 l43s
SIMIT LLODS ‘T113¥¥ng 99%€8
00°09 0009 S0S¥L  ST/20/0T
a 17ESSNY T NOANWNE S9VESR
LL"BST LL'BST 00S¥L  ST/20/0T QOdWVYHS ' SEHLOTD HLYWNI
ONI ANWAWOD ¥aN¥vd €08 PIVER
0O 0N0'S 00°000°S ZI¥PL  ST/20/0T d00D 1¥0d4dns ¥ILIYND anz
(LAWOD) SINZDIY 40 AUYOH £9VER
09 BES 09885 86%¥L  ST/Z0/0T dSIQ NOILVTIVISNI HTIEOW
SEHSINAMALNG A¥dA" z9vee
00°005's 00°00S'S Z0%PL  ST/20/01 NOISHEd %03
NIJYNNVH dED¥dd 19vE8
00 08BE 00°02E 9E¥yL  ST/E0/0T TMYHD €0d dno¥o
00°0€ SEVHL ST/20/0T §T02 '€Z-01 IL4ES
00 0€ IEVTL ST/Z0/01
HY¥OE3a ‘d3anNds 09%EB
S6 a8 5668 LTREL ST/Z0/01 A¥ELILYE avnd
(ONa¥) SN1d SEIYALLIYE 6SPER
00°00% 00 00F L9VPL ST/20/0T NOILVHLSIDEY 4ANOD WILY
ITLIL ¥0d NOILWIDOSSY BSPES
666 666 SEPYL sT/20/01
d7 ENVd0¥d SYOI¥ENY LSYES
16°991 0E"LE ATvvL ST/20/01 HD
6L°05 9IVPL ST/20/0T dOHS
69°SY 9TI¥¥L S1/20/01 dOHS
50T SESTL ST1/20/01 AEQNNYT SL NOILYLS
LL'B 9zskL  S1/Z0/01 A¥ANOWT 2L NOILYLS
¥8 €T 9TSVL 51/20/01 AMANNYT TL NOIIYLS
ONI 0DS5TY 95vE8
66 6EY'T 66°6ZF'1 ZESHL  ST/20/0T 140d4dNS FYYMLIIOS SAIWASI
ONI SWALSAS WY1¥Q QIINYAQY G5PE8
00°280'S 00°280'S £PSPL  ST/Z0/0T SL LS TIYMANA
D17 ED¥N0S FMALXIL TWOW PShER
IYLOL INNOWY #SNVHL aiva # o/d NOILAI¥OS3Ed FDIOANI HOANIA YEEWON
AOEHD ADFHD
ST/Z0/0T ¥3LSISAY ADHHD ST/0E/60 ¢ @3eQ uny

abeg AINNOD AFNOLS STETEd :ON 1x0day



-90"95¢ 1Z%bL ST/Z0/0T AYILIVE-LYD Md

z9'eet 1ZUYL ST/Z0/0T QHLEAPTIq-LYD Md
B9 vEY 1ZheL ST/20/0T TE THA-£ZTBY-POLMA
A TEohL ST/20/01 YIS -50¥95d0HS
ONI A1d4d40N5 OLOAY 1IOIT1E 98¥%£8
B9 €8Y'9 0V BLE'D IPSHL sT/20/01 FAVHA - TLdd
8E'50S8°'T 9vSPL ST/Zo/oT aAV¥a - HONF
T NOSIWL ‘@dvud s8veEs
00°ZL 00" 2L PIRPL sT/20/01 YALNED gMMOT ALITIALYS
NOILYNO0d¥0D S€d HSIA vevee
TZ21€ T2 TE 68EVL §1/20/01 95-5F0-€00 NdY
ANYL aNVY NY3S ‘1113a £BVES
S5 LOE 56" 52 69VHL S1/20/01 MIELTIIS H3LYM ATHLNOW
5828 E6RPL §1/Z0/01 IYINEY ¥3T00D ¥ALYM
56" G2 LB¥YL ST/Z20/0T
§6°0€ 6ZS¥L st/z0/01 YILYM SL LS
56'9¢ 6TSVL st/zo/ot HALYM L 1S
56" €L 6EZSTL sT/Z0/0T HEIYM ZL 1§
G6°0€ EZTSPL s1/zZ0/01 HIILYM TL IS
ONI ¥Sn SHOIYA zBvee
05201 0§ 20T T8FPL §1/20/01 YITINVASYEYS SASYD §
ONI SEDVHEAZE NMOMD 189E8
Zr TLY 6%° 9T 8IS¥L st/zo/ot HILYM XEANZITH
9Z" €L BISPL §1/20/01
£LTEE S0b¥L 51/20/01 HONFUTINDD DHAD ¥O4 WAIWM
¥6 ' LSE PLEVL ST/E0/01 DOSSY SS535SY A9 EWIZH
SNOILNTOS SN’ JESH 0JLS0D 08ree
05226 05° 226 LySvL sT/zo/o1 SATEVATYA/HSYEL
NEATIV NI¥WM ‘¥IS0D 6LVES
0008 00" 08 96BFL S1/20/01 YIV4EY ENOHd FSNOH 1¥N0D
SNOILVOINAWWOD AWMNOD gLYES
007052 00082 TZSPL S1/20/01 48 I¥A 'SNOILYOIOT WIId
17 SOIANLS FIAOW HJIOLSWOD LLYES
00 ¥0T 06036 OvBYL st/zo/ot
00°B 0PPFL S1/20/01 8102 “ET-0T 1das
07T TIIN 4T0D HOOLSWOD 9LPES
BE' 68 BE 68 SIGHL ST/Z0/0T avy ONILSOd
(2A) FTOINOYHD ADOLSWOD SLYES
ZT €6E T LS P68 T 906YL §1/20/01 INYED T540LS NSA
ZOTLS'T S0GHL ST/20/01 INYED T540LS 0SA
ESLLY'T S0SPL ST/20/01 LNV¥D T1SdOLS NSA
00°00S'L 90t YL st/zo/ot 1¥0d4dNS WY¥D0dd ST0Z 120
0o0*osL's 90¥%¥hL ST/Z0/0T HOddNS XYWHEIT YEL¥VNOANZ
ONI ISHHD ALINOWWOD PLYES
8 ISt 06611 BEVVL ST/Z0/0T ST/12/6 FESTEZH# ¥AQHUO
LESTT T0SPL ST/20/0T ¥3dvd IETIOL TIVD
L6 STIT TOSPL ST/Z0/0T H3dvd 1FTIOL TIYL
A7ddNS AMYIINVS TVHINED ELPES
66 E£8E g8 LZhYL S1/20/01 QYYOHIY TO00-5600252L6
10" 0% TISWL ST/Z0/0T GNOHd SHONH
2008 9BBEL s1/zo/o1 SHINW Z ¥YIvd avdl
10°0% E9FTL S1/2Z0/01 NALLIHM I¥d Z0BS-£%¥ SLL
zo'oz 0ZPYL ST/E0/0T INYTId
T0°0¥% ELPEL st/zo/fot Ld3S IJIM BIZTEZBISLEH ANI
€0 02T BZSHL S1/20/01 Savdl 04 LPELITZSLE ANI
10 0% BZEWL ST/Z0/01 av¥dl 44 9T1959T12ZSLE ANI
TYLOL INOOWY #SNYHL qLvVa # 0/d NOILATHISEQ EDIOANI HOANIA HIEWAN
AIFHD ADIHD
ST/20/0T ¥EALSIDIAY MDFIHD ST/0€/60 * @3Bg uny

abed ALNNOD AZHOLS STETHd :ON 3xoday



£

8B WLE

05 BLR'ET

€9°LY
DLTeTE
ogrseg

86" 89E

aot09s

0sLZP

PETLEY

99"8TT T

00°0sT
PeLE
9L 66

v0 09

08'L99'2

(05508 £+
02°FLIE
BE"SOL'ET

ET"0EL

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

83789
L6'61
88" ¥
¥6°891
Y6 ¥v6
L¥LT
008
gs gL
00" 0SL'ET
0oL
L9 L9
SL"S51E
00" SZ

Q0" 0¥
B6 "BCE

007088

00 oLe
0S"LST

PE°LEY

1Z"¥L8
P VSE

00°0sT
P66 LE
9L'66

¥s'vs
05°S8S

28’602
LE" 956
L2 E20'T
vE' 8L
ov " ve
09°PIE
BE'SOL'ZZ
ZL BET
96" EL
66°C
00°98Z

LNOOWY

6EVFL
SZSYL
SESTL
SZSPL
LS¥PL
SZTSPL
PPPL
TePPL
OTREbL
185475
T¥SEL
LOSHL
BLPFL

SBYRL
SBPbL

S¥S¥L

ZISPhL
2IsS¥L

TEWVL

ETVFL
EEZRERL

SESPL
Z0S¥L
T6v¥L

6FSYL
e¥ShL

ZEVVL
ZEVEL
CTYVL
EThPL
TESHL
BOS¥L
TSS¥L
TEZvPL
1Tl
TEvPL
TZv¥L

H#SNYHEL

ST/20/01
ST1/20/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/Z0/01
s1/20/01
ST/Z0/0T
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/EZ0/0T
ST/Z0/0T
ST/Zo/0T
ST/20/0T

ST/EZ0/0T
st/z0/01

ST/Z0/0T

s1/zo/o01
ST/20/0T

ST/20/01

ST/20/0T
S1/20/0T

ST/Z0/01
ST/Zo/0T
ST/Z0/0T

ST/Z0/01
s1/20/01

ST/20/0T
ST/20/01
ST/ED/OT
S§1/20/01
ST/Z0/01
ST/Z0/01
S1/20/0T
ST/z0/0T
ST/E0/0T
sT/20/01
ST/20/0T

R (o]

# o/a

SEAVLSYEVAIY ~SAEYN LS
HOVHOLS d¥¥M HOLEYLS
S4INS NIL

TIYLSNI 0Wd TTI¥d dIWWYH
WOOY¥ 4NCOD I¥L ¥0d SNYD
TIYLSHI MOW¥Y LId TT1I¥d

¥OddNS WYYD0Ud ¥ILYYNOANZ
S10T “€2-0T LddS

58174405 SW3
STYOIWIHD HOWH
HANI dWWlS 3TId

SAILITILO
INIY ¥4 aNod

W¥d NYITIZVH"E LOON

3 X s¥
5YE Kok

JISENESIA INIWHSINGWD

S3ITd4dNS DNINYITD
d789%¥0 -5d¥ AId

INIVH OLOY
S¥YEd4dITD TIWL
21-980-100

S3ITddNs 321440
SWOCYH FONZYIINOD

NGO ¥ DEY M1

80 ¥ OFY -M1

1S ¥ DEY M1

FPEPIEXE NYA AOOMADOT
ONINIVYL O HLYON T¥%I1
JdL 914

LAVOXE ¥ OVEH NOILVOILSWKW
908 NED-E¥8TSHI
ainid JL-d00LS
S3AYIE -01£9508
A¥ELIVE-LIYD Md

NOILdI¥DOSEd FOI0ANI

ST/Z0/0T HALSIDEE MDIHD

ALNOOD AEY¥OLS

ONI ONYEJYOdd LOdS LOH

FOIA¥ES L1IAE¥D 10d3d HWOH

OHOS J¥¥M HI¥NOd DIUOLSIH
NIZHOS AMNEH
QLT INIVW TIDOY3 XTddNS dH

SENIHOVW SSANISNE S, X¥AVH

OTT SINIWLSHANI 41D

OF¥S ' LNVHD

WOL ‘' AHIHSNVHD

L ADNWN ‘NV¥E9

HIONIYHD
ONI JELIWITNA SOI4V¥ED
AONY¥E ‘YONIAWD

SAWYL ‘AYMOTIVO

III HONH ‘¥EHOVTIVO

OTT ADYEANE SHYHATS
a7 SYDTTIYHES
ONI SHST¥4¥ILINI NOSNDUII

ONI ‘NODHJ

JOaNaA

ST/0E/60 ¢

S0S¢e8

voses

£0SE8

zoses

105¢€8

ooses

66TER

BEVES

LEVER

96VES

Se6veESd

vEVES

£E6VER

ZEVES

T6¥%ES

06vES

68¥ES

88VES

LBYES

HHEWON
ADEHD

23eq uny

STETEd ‘oN 3xoday



4

00" s9
009991

00"£0971E

00 €86 'Y
8L7602
SE'STT
LTTTT

88606 ¥

0098y

LS REE
I07ERT
g oow
0000s

£1"258'0¢2

00"SET
0S 9TV ET

6% 19

00" 0Zt

TYLOL
AJEHD

abeg

92°121
0L LYE

S9°'18
ZT'PE

00753
00°999'1
0o'oo00’2
00 000°2
00°STL"S
00'888"'11
00" €86V
8L 609
SE'SIT
LG
00°668°'1
00" ZEZ
00" ¥PP9'C
TT0L
LLEvL
00°6

00" 89%
006

LS ¥ET
T0°ERT
00"Qo¥
00’008
¥9'8ESE
68 TILT'E
50°T9L'0T
BZ'TZ0'E
v Tl
CELIT
00°SET

0§ 9TV ET

0L TS
6L'8B

00" 0ZT

LNNOWY

60S¥L sT/E0/0T SH¥IL -HWH SL¥4d

60SHL  S1/Z0/0T SENIL-FWH-SLHA
POVVL  S1/20/01 STION3d ‘S¥IATOL
LLwwL  ST/T0/0T S3I11440S
£0%¥L  ST/20/01 ST0Z ATONL S4ITD
60%FL  ST/20/01 1¥0ddns WY¥O0¥d ST0ZID0
SEFEL ST/E0/0T ANYE NIEMOTIVH
9%pvL  ST/20/01 ANYE ZOWM HSNOHLINO
9vRIL ST/Z0/0T LlE39dang NIEIMOTIVH
SEbhL ST/z0/0T 135ang FOvE dSNOHLNO
SPREL St/z0/0T AUOM ¥NIUY
BESWTL  ST/2TO/0T SHI1144NS SWE
06%FL  ST/20/0T QEs¥NEsIa INTWHSINYWD

QZswL ST/Z20/0T

LESFL ST/20/0T SHYIH LNY¥D dddYS 3dd
LESEL s1/g0/0t ddd
LESWL ERVRAIIRS SHYIH LNYHD d34YS ddd
LESYL sT/e0/0T VIVdEd I0avd
LESEL ST/Z0/0T 4Ivddd Foavd

EPTFL sST/E0/0T
£PYFL  ST/20/0T ST0Z ‘£2-01 143s
£PPPL  ST/20/0T
YEPPL  ST/Z0/0T

6ISTL s1/zo/ot

SLbYL ST/Z0/0T YNIAY/ONOOUDHIYd "d¥XT d¥D
BO¥PL  ST/20/0T ST0Z 10 ¥EDIAJ0 HLIVIH
PESEL ST/E0/0T AVddY FOWHOLS OUdZISNOEHL
YESHL sT/zo/fot HOLIMS €501 HaVTd dH
PESHL  ST/20/0T YIAYIS FHOD TAYMMWA
PESPL ST/z0/0T IAIHT QHYH ANV ¥IIdYaY €9
PESPL  ST/20/01 82T SHAING gWNHL NOLSONIN
PESPL  ST/20/0T STIVY FAI¥A ¥FAMIS dH
9ES¥L  ST/Z0/01 EOLLETRY HAGWIAW
9TS¥L  ST/20/0T ASN0H ¥IAOCH
PEVPL ST/E0/0T SATddIN -dOHS
PEVEL ST/E0/01 DONILLIA -SL3
Zeb¥L  S1/Z0/01 ST0Z/10/T11-S102/20/01
HENVHL ALYA # 0/d NOILAI¥OSAd HOI0ANI

ST/Z0/0T ¥3L1SIDAE HDEHD
ALNOOD XFHOLS

OLNEWWEOVS 40 FHIL NYORRNOW

NI SNOILNTOS 3251440 OdLIW
N NHOL 'SEWODOW

¥LD ALINOWWOD NIVWML MWW

277 SLN3AZ 3nT8 a1ndit
2717 SINEAZ ENTE qIndIT
ONI LSISSY-HJIT

aTYNOd SAWYL “E371

NI SEJIA¥ES ENIT HOWNONWT

SNOS % SIldnd N 1

¥ NYILSI¥YHD '¥ETHOHEIX
ONI SETIVS A8H

NOSNHOL ¥ dd¥Mad Ioanc
LLOJS ‘¥EAQDTIOL

OdaW NYNNETOW O SEWYL

OTT F2¥N0s TLI
TIDNACDHEA0D TYNOILYNIELNI

ONI TYLNIWNOJIIANZ OZH

A¥ES "IVIMLSOANI OITAVEAAH

HOONEA

ST/0E/60

vEstes

£ZSEE

ZZSEs

TZ5E8

0zZses®

6TSER

BISER

L1sE®

91sE®

s1st8

PIsSES

£1sces

zisee

T1s€8

01ses

60SE®

BOSE®

LOSES

90sE8

HAGHAN
HADEHO
a3eg uny

STETEd :oN 33oday



g

B9 8ZE
00°ST

SLE98T g

00" 5L
00"osL

EB'6TIC

(4"l
8t "BY

DD ETIT

008991
TL TS G

SRTLEE

B8R PEL

B TITT

0S8 12T

00" 00L'E

0S°0¥0°T

¢ ¥IC
EF FET'H
¥1 2696
096
z2"858'%
TYLOL
HIAHD

abeg

89" 8ZE
00°ST
SLYEIT'T
LDVREVE 4 4
00 esk
00°SL
00°0sL
26 681
LE' 6T
Cv’9Z1
BEBY
007011
go-z
00°899"1
TLY9ES 'L
66 %€
¥s's

Py bE

66 6ZE
FZTELE
¥eTlE
88 9V

0% %39
0S"TEZT
00°002°1
00" 005'2
0S'06L
00" 0sz
1548 487
6F PET'8
Y1 2696
08°6
9Zgot’'y
oo’ tTE
LNOOWY

0E¥PFL
0vSvL
TESYL
€TSPL
VESYL
£ISEL
6ESTL

GEVFL
ETYVL

S6V¥L

ZLYYL

LYPTL
LYPEL

PEPRL
BS¥FL
TLY¥L
19%vL
19%%L
19%bL

FoskL
FoskL

9Th¥L
SZRPL

66VEL

STYFL
8EVEFL

SobbL
S9vTL

£8bPPL

FEVFL

EEVPVL

SZYPL

60S¥L
60SkL

H#ENVHEL

ST/20/0T
5T/E0/01
ST/E0/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/20/01
st/zo/foT
ST/E0/0T

ST/20/01
ST/E0/0T

st/zo/fot
ST/20/01

St/E0/oT
SL/E0/f0T

ST/E0/0T
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/E0/01
ST/20/01

ST/Z0/01
sT/20/01

ST/20/01
StT/zo/01

ST/20/01

ST/E0/0T
ST/z0/01

§1/20/01
ST/E0/0T

ST/20/01
sT/zo/ot
ST/20/0T
st/zo/ot

ST/E0/0T
ST/20/0T

3L¥a

NOILOEdSNI-dOHS SO0%9SL
SESSYTO ¥dD

¥EIJ00 TYOIJIW AUIL
LIFHELS D WWOO-¥EIL0D
LIFEALS O WWOD-¥dId00
ONIYOLINOW

SEOIAYES INVED

NI4 ‘NId HOLIH-IVOMd
WHY "SNId ' SONIHdS-d3avEond

TYLNIY ENIHOWW FOWISOd

an¥NEyd LNIWESHNEWIZd

$102 '£2-01 l1das
dd¥ HANOHd OHLYdSIOE
S1/8 - S1/6 LOWAINCD
S$¥dAT104 4ns
SHINELLYE

SEAIM

WONO¥A L1INYA

MOL 9L9-S1 3SWD
MOL 9L9-S1 dSWD

FONND dWAL HALYM
d78¥0 SL-d ¥4

SAWYLS MIN

3 3dAL ZVeLECO#YL OF%€
E66TSEZHYA 5a¥0od

LING3d WILSAS dHELYM
LIWN¥Ed INWTd LNWLYL

NOILDNAC¥d Isd
9T10ZAd GNY 20V
FSYHIUNG ¥ELYM S10Z 9NV
JTANYH -£¥9SMd

SHAIL-£0LMA
¥I¥d3d IWT1d -009%908

NOILAI¥DSEA FDIOANI

S1/20/0T ¥ALSIOFH HOHHD

ALNNOD AZHEOLS

RY0OLI¥YEL HOHYL ONdIH
21T d00O¥D dIHSHITVIET ONIH

1dEd NOILWONdd WSWId

(¥2) ONI 0D NVDUOW Avd
ONI SHOIAEd NOILDELOH¥d

ONI dNo¥Dd NYIdOLIVdd

NYTd43M0d
ONI SEMOE XENLIG

IONAT ‘ONVNEY-ILLI¥IId

a OTIONY 'INIHLAd
RI SNOILWOINOWWOD NINONId

ANVAWOD JOLVATTE SILO

ONI LOd3d FOIA40

d¥ELNE NIYTHFEWNYHD NYWION

QIA¥ES ¥HLEW0OJEIEdS WOYAEN

NI 0D dWVLS ¥3ddN¥ WAVAEN

NOISIAIQ ONISWHOENd AIN

HLT¥AH J40 AIQ AN
AL3A¥S DITdNd 40 Iddd AN
SEOUNOSEY NVWNH 143d AEN
SANNOYD ¥ 2d7Td NIWAY AN

SLAYd MON¥L % OLOY WYdWN

dOoaNan

ST/0€/60

apsesg
Svseg

¥rsce

E¥SES
Zrses

irscs

orsee
6ESER

BESES

LESES
9eEStE8

SESES

vESES

teseEe

zEses

TESER

0EsEs

6ZSES
BTSES
LZSER
9Z5¢e8

S52Z5€E8

HHIGWNN
HMDEHD
s3eg uny

STETEd :ON 3xodsy



9

05752

00001

SZEST

00°000°01
00° 05T

TYLOL
AJEHD

abeg

¥0°9S¢E
e T
Z¥ 88T
91'Z¥
€6 E¥
86°CE
TE"EE
SLTEL
SE"¥IT
80°858
I¥"0¢
08°0¥0'T
L0 LT
Z0°ve
LZ 66
9y oege
2y 81l
TE" LY
S0"5%
B6 001
¥y ERZ
LSTLET
98 ¥¥C
0Z"LTT
6E°106

00 €
0s zz

00001

€2
6%’
65"
Z0-
134
€5°
wE
oo”
L4
£E”
gy
68"
0% L
€8T
T LY
S6°T
0576
cL’
00°s
6L 2
18’

AN NN AD WY O
-

it

00'000°0T
00" 08T

LNOOWY

ZERRL S1/Z0/01 SHE¥IA IS I N
ZERRL S1/20/01 AUY4TIVE LS NOSHWD
ZERPRL ST/20/01 OA LIND LS O S

TERRL sT/2Z0/0T
CTEVRL St/zo/o1

LHOIT V¥4 /4004100 L5 O §
1S D EZLE/OA LINA 1S D S

ZERFL ST/Z0/0T IS NOLIns
ZEVDL S1/20/01 d¥vd oA 18 3 N 502
ZEPFL ST/EZ0/01 afiu 0¥ ENIAVH TYINVAS 00S

OWISYD 1S D § TZ
INTd ¥LM LS HLOOS MOOT

ZERVL st/zo/o1
ZEVVL sT/Z0/01

ZEWVL stT/zo/o1 d¥Y¥d  SNEWETD WYS 06%
ZEPLL ST/Z0/01 TIYD TPE AMH S0 116
ZEVYL ST/20/01 0s 1S O § s02
ZEVEL ST/Z0/01 08 18 O s €02
ZE¥PPL  ST/20/0T ¥a IS 0 § 102
ZE¥YL  ST/20/0T Z/1 dOHS Q¥ TI0L 00T
ZEYPL  ST/20/0T 5a1e a¥ 7101 0TI
ZERFL ST/E0/01 D07 a¥ TI0L 0ET
ZEVPL  ST/20/O0T dOLS1SEY LS O N 18E
ZERPPL  ST/Z0/0T LINQ 1S D N S¥I

ZEVPL ST/Z0/01
ZEVPL  ST/20/01
ZERPPL  ST/20/0T
ZEPVL ST/Z0/01
ZEPYL  ST/20/0T

5HEEId LHOTIUMLYYO 0192
Sd¥ (J¥ LHOI¥MLIYMWD Z1%2

¥ 1S AWM NOANWD TE¥

LHOIT LS SHANOISSIWWOD OS5
SLHDIT IS ALID WINIDIIA

BYYYL  ST/Z0/0T SIDZ ‘6 1ddAS-LZ SNV
8PBHL  ST/20/0T ST0T ‘€2-01 143S
TEFFL ST/Z0/01T 02 1435 'ATIWYE SNOOH¥d
PISPL  ST/20/0T 21DA
PISYL  ST/20/0T ONINNY1d
PISPL  ST/Z0/0T LI
PISYPL  S1/20/0T (DA) F¥IA
pISVL  ST/20/01 YANOISSIHWWOD
PISHL ST/EZ0/01 wa
PISYL ST/E0/01 HOIWdSIA TYYLNED
pIS¥L  ST/20/0T dOSSISSY
PISEL ST/20/01 INAWAOTAAZA ALINOWWOD
PISHL ST/Z0/01 (oA} FdI4
FISHL ST/20/0T qOOMAD0T/341I4
PISHL ST/20/01 NIWAY/¥ITTOELAW0D
PISHL ST/20/01 AJTHFHS
FISPL ST/20/01 ar
PISHL ST/20/01 A4THHAHS
PISHL 5T/20/01 SHEOM DITEnd
¥ISPL  ST/20/01 (on) 3¥Id
PISPL  ST/20/0T Eiclett{ollct!
PISEL 51/z0/0T HIETO
¥ISHPL  ST/20/0T I¥L/3dI4

PISPL ST/EZ0/01 INWAOTIAEA AINWOD

TI%bL ST/Z0/01T H0ddNS WYYDOdd HILAVNDANZ
oB¥¥L ST/Z0/01 dIHSYIENEW TYANNY DLOA
#SNVHL aiva # 0/d NOILJI¥OS3EA FDIOANI

S1/20/0T ¥MALSIDAY AJIHD
ALNNOD AJHOLS

0D ¥3MO4 D2I4IOVd YWHHdIS

NITIVY NYI¥d" ‘dYOHS

ADDdd 'WAES

dT NI SEDIA¥ES TVHOTS 28§

ONI dELNIDLYY SAYYW INIVS

HOANEA

ST/0E/60

155¢€8

0sseEg

6¥SESB

BPSES

LPSER

HAFWOAN

ADEHD
a3jeq uny

STETEd :oN 3xoday



L

000062
N
80°"9ZL €
00881
ST 6FE
D8 LY
00°0¢
00°2Z86
00°TEQ'T
00 EEE'ET
poge
GELTLEE
00 0LE"6FT
¥6'01C
00 0ST
00" s¢
990166
NLOL
HDEHD
abeg

00" 00z

25" LE
00T
PO

£0"9ZLE

00" ¥e
00" %6

ST 6¥%E
08 LY
00" o€

go-oe
00 LS
00" 508

00°01T
00°00e
oo-1e

00"EEB"ET
oo ze
0E"TLE

00" 0LE6"'6FT
6012

00" 0ST

00° 5S¢

[ 40t 4
¥e 00T
£8°29
¥EUEE
I18°€£1E
£87EST
£8° LS
158
20" vl
ZELTIT
LETOOT
0E"TIL
0ErZES
EZUATE T
16" 2%
0Z LEE

LNOOWY

¥arvLl

eLVVL
eLYYL
eLbPL

EESFL

99V ¥L
99% VL

ZPShL

DLYPL

£ShbL

Z5FhL
Zek¥vL
ZovkL

1Sv¥L
TSREL
IsvPL

LORRL

0S¥EL

9wl

0SS¥hL

LebRL

09%bL

ebvbL

ZERPL
ZebvL
ZEVVL
TERYL
ZEVRL
ZERVL
CERVL
ZTERVL
CERRL
CEVFRL
CTEPVL
ZERRL
CERRL
CEVVL
CERRL
ZERPFL

#SNVHEL

ST/20/01

ST/20/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/20/01

ST/Z0/01

ST1/20/01
st/zofot

ST/E0/0T
§1/20/01
ST/20/01

s1/z0/01
§1/20/01
ST/Z0/01T

ST/2T0/0T
ST/Z0/0T
S1/E0/01

ST/20/01
S1/20/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/2Z0/0T
st/zo/ot
ST/20/01
ST/Z0/01

ST/EZ0/0T
ST/E0/0T
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/01
ST/20/0T
ST/20/01
ST/Z0/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/Z0/0T
ST/Z0/0T
S1/Z0/0T
ST/20/0T
ST/20/0T

aiva

S1/91/6 EIVA RIFAITHA

ASNEAXE YNIUY/SANACYDHIVL
SIATEOLS JOWY TIWYO
YALT OL

66%ZFB-LO0W HSYET HEIJOD

WOCHLSEY-HEYd HDA
WOOMLSIY -HMdYd LW

LNIVW d3I¥M ZL 18
NYEdNENs 4IN08 ALIIVS
S10Z "£€2-0T I4ES

610 “£e-0T L4Es

ST0Z "£2-0T 14ES

L¥0ddNs WW¥DO¥d STOZIDO
§102Z “€£2-0T IL4AS

ADYSN ¥ELYM LOT 934
HOLYAYOXE

SNOILAI¥OSTYd HAIWWNI
NOIS WOdDIN4g

SI0Z '£E2-0T 1lads

asy LINO TI0L 00T
SIHOIT ¥LIS HY J0 NMOL
¥ 40 € /15 NOINN 09T
MUY  a¥ HONYY I¥Ed 000T
¥ LINO AM NOANYD 0Z%
g LINQ AWM NOANYD 02%
1S J N S8BT

¥a N¥dd S0LT

a¥ HONYY I¥Ed 008
SLHOIT IS 2 S 1gS
SLHOIT LS 2 § 2Z¥e
SLHOIT IS O N 9LI
ASNOHLYN0D 1§ & § 92
NOANYD FTIW XIS 0Z2Z2Z
10430 HD LINA 1S NIWW
(ONINIVYL) 1S O N 19T

NOILAI¥OSHA FDIOANI

ST/20/0T ¥ELSIDIY HIFHD

ALNNOD AZHOLS

0D ¥Y FEMONH¥L ¥ WINIDHIA

ALIDOTIA OFAIA

2L2A

YNIJd INIWJINOE dY0ONVE S

N 40 5d0IA¥ES HLIS dILINO
SAS ¥ILYM SMOAVIW FIHONUL
ONI'ATddNS ¥ISNOD NVLIL

ONI 20D HEYHL

SACHMOOD ENOLSEWOL FHL

SHSTEJUILNT AVId NOS

(OA) HZILNED dHOINIS 02 1S
LOT¥LSIA TOOHDS QD IS
SH¥OoM DIT8Nd OO0 LS

D77 'AMENIHOWW AWSNOS
YEINED ON¥d ¥ d004 SHLIWS
¥ad 2717 SETALSNANI MOITS

¥ad TYNOILUYN ZIVLS HIATIS

HOONIA

ST/0E/60

B9SER

L9SER

995€E8

S9see.

rases
£95€8
Z9SES

125€E8

0gseg

6GSED
BSSER
LSSE8
985¢€8
SGSE8
vsseg
£ESSESR

Z5SE8

HIEWNON
ADFEHO

a3eg uny

STETEd :oN 3Jxodsy



8

SL 8601V
6E"986'E
SS'6E

TS"290°T

00529

00" ¥2T €

05'998°2

TYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

TYLOL SMDEHD
6E° 986 ¢
S5 6E
09
LY 950°'T
00-sz9
00 9¢
00°ZES'T
00° 9
00°0SE'T
00° 002
00°€9L'2
00"tz

00" 8T
0588

LNOOWY

bePERL
gLEVL

B9vVL
0ES¥L

Pev¥L

I5F¥L
95PvL
9SF¥L
9SkVL
9S¥PL

SSPVL
SSPVL
SSPVL
SShhL

#SNVHL

ST/20/01
ST/E0/01

ST/20/0T
§1/20/01

ST/20/01

§1/20/01
ST/E0/0T
ST/E0 /0T
S1/20/01
ST/Z0/0T

st/z0/01
ST/Z0/0T
ST/Z0/0T
ST/20/01

q1va

# 0/d

NYHYW-0S2S /384
SYEHOVAL SSYTID ¥0d 1dID

SYEAOD-DATE ANV
a78vyd 91v¥D I¥L

HENQHOD

ST0Z 'EZ-0T ILaas

S10Z ¥IEWILJES - LSNonv
ST0Z ‘¥ YHAWELIES

§10Z ‘€Z-01 143S

NOIL4dI¥DSEd FOICANI

ST/Z0/0T ¥3LSIDAE MDEHD

ALNNOD AZY¥OLS

A¥uvE ‘OYYOONIM

Ig0L 'NELLIHM

ONI ODaHEM

HWINCEOD 00 HOHSWM

ONI S¥N0L ALID WINIDVIA

HOaNEA

ST/0E/60
STETEd

ELSES

[ARA:

TisEs

oLses

695¢8

HIEWON
AJEHD
@3eq uny
oN 3zodsy

i}



T

TYLOL
adavo

sbeg

00 0ze
00" ¥L
66 %1
et
SL 86
DE ELT
9g 6L
95" ST
66" F1
00 8%6
v 9z
LL'ZEZ
81 LST
99°0LeE
00" 0%
00 '®¥0T
¥B'6E
00°9
00°SLe
00 oL
0% 665
00’8
oo°ooe
00709
00-Q0e
cotgoz
LS 0€
£971E
eooe
ob6LT
66 LT
00°s9
00" 4L
BL'BT
00°s2
08°16
S6°LLE
8668
BL ZL
DS 65T
£ET°19
08" €82
00° 059
86 '6EV
00°83T
00°9
€T S¥E
21 €91
oo-osy
1129
oo-od
LE" LY
60°'96
¥Z'e6
SE'66

LNOOWY

98S
98§
¥es
98S
S6S
S6S
€65
£6S
EES
98S
¥ES
98S
£8S
98s
V&S
98S
LBS
89%1
89%T
98S
£E6S
989
685
685
68S
985
965
£8S
Tes
S6S
28S
38s
89PT
89%1
8971
83%1
8991
06S
065
88g
88S
88%
¥ES
26S
165
S8S
S8S
$8S
58S
S8S
S8S
16§
16§
985S
£8S

#SNYHL

S1/20/015Y SSESSY A€ GWIAY €/1
S1/Z0/0TSY SSESSY X SWIZY /1
st/zo/oT

ST/ZO/O0TEHOVAL SSVWID 04 SLATO
ST/20/0TNAOMLAN NMOGHONNd 9IYD

sT/zo/ot MOWY MHOMIEN
51/z0/0T 5AINT - ZLUIONWA
ST/20/0T  1I¥D Md dN¥DId INFHL
S1/20/0T LOOE AD-ZLEIDNWA

ST1/Z0/0TSY SSESSY A8 &WIAY g/1
ST/20/0T

ST/Z0O/0TSY SSISSY Ad EWIAY €/L
ST/20/0TD WILY NYWAVHD ONIDAOT
S1/Z0/01SY SSESSY Ad AWIAE /L
ST/Z0/0T WS
ST/2Z0/0TSY SSISSY A SWIEN €/1
S1/20/0T00d WWOD 1704 d¥vaa 23S
ST/20/0T  ONINAWA/SHANNYId JO
ST/20/0T/1 SNEL ONINIVOUVE/EHY
ST/20/0TSY SSESSY Ad gWISY 8/L
ST/Z0/0TL ¥OLOWA LDIASNI-INIHL
ST/Z0/0T ¥HIVM ¥314Y dFAL HSWM
ST/20/0THINIYIINDD AOH FAYINIY
ST/Z0/0TEd A¥ING IAVEVd AVA AN
sT/Zo/0tT

ST/T0/01SY SSESSY A€ HWIFEN €/1
ST/20/0T1004 D53 AMIA-SAYYW 1S
ST/Z0/0T NO¥DIW WHONYS
S1/20/0TDLW WaSA dALYM QETILOS
ST/Z0/0TOMNI0T DdAWOLOD ¥VIA T
S1/20/0T5¥0SS3SSY/M HINNIQ QM
S1/Z0/0T8Y SSISSY A€ GWIEY €/L

ST/Z0/0T NYA ¥0d
st/zo/ot AQNYD LYYWIVM
ST/Z0/0T ST/LT/E
sT/eo/0t ao0d INZAZ

ST/Z0/0TAYLS TIVL ¥0d ONINIVHL
ST/Z0/0T WYD NLJIY NYA 0D NYATD
ST/20/0TWY TEWYD ¥ALAV NWA ‘0D
ST/ZO/OTNNIM LINSYE MOHS AVl

ST/z0/01 S3117dd0S
ST/Z0/0TSNEAELS AO¥ ¥LM TIAVHL
§1/20/01

ST/ZO/0TOD AT IHOITA AATIEONYD
ST/20/0TWOIAIINED D¥I F3d WYXE
ST/20/01 89ZZIXE -HSYM ¥YD
ST/20/0TEYSANGWIEY -WANOd DEdD
ST/20/0T ¥WIVd HLTYIH ¥Od SNIJ
ST/Z0/0TEYSENENIEY -WN¥Od DEAD

ST/EZ0/0T ANOHd FLITTIILVS
ST/Z0/0TNED QOOMMDOT -IEANYILINI
ST/2Z0/0T E2I430 I¥l ¥0d TASYE
ST/Z0/0T SA¥4dI ¥0d LINJEINI

ST/Z0/0TL 40 FAISNI ¥O4 A144nS
ST/Z0/0T SLAIO ¥OdID HDId40 DdM

aivg NOILdI¥0SHEA

YELSIOZY d¥¥d ASWHOUNd

ALNDIOD AZY¥OLS

dNOD TTVd o104
dNOD TTY¥d AYaMTAE DA
¥MLAS FE0AW TAAVHNYA

dNOD TIVd SMINEYVLS
LOCITEDS
66TETIEDS

STIYHIIW-YLLIUNS

INODETLSI¥E-YLLINNS
NOZYWY-YLLAUNS

dNOD TT¥d ANYTHIATIS
F2IA¥ES ATLLOHS
ANOD TTY¥d 1SNAMYS
WXZLov# sHY

4NOD TI¥d 200 aHy
dyIV¥ ONZ¥ LV ONINdWd
dNOD TI¥d HOWIWd
FSYHOUNd Q¥vD d
J0SS¥ Z80L HANMOESO
NOILVYLSIDEY INJ0E50
02 TI¥d HONY SNYISNW
HIY YASYTY-NIATNKW
HSYMAYD OQULENW
SEMHLNOS ax
ANOYOQIASIN TYdAYd ax
WSIHNOL AN OX

dNQD TI¥d 02 AN¥Er
SAMOT-MNOSYL
GOYISPO-T60E" " "# ANI
SHLIINS JHOWAYH

UYEA T DdAWOLOD

dNOD TT¥d TILOH HO
dNCD T1IYd TALOH HO
SIDAY¥ STZTHBOE NIV
9TEQ00EP0T NIV
ONILEINW WHHHN NIVA
NSO

NEs0a

HS¥M ¥¥D S.HOINH add

(T304} NO¥AEHD ad

TALOH FSOO0H HOHYWL MD

LOdHd 321440 MD
SYUAWTYd HIIAE MD
JONIUIINGD HDIL LD
STOSTIAY vJDs LIQI¥D
€ 201 ¥WATANYHD
SSCOUMDSUANNIM-NIAIND
HESHONILSVOE-NIAEN'D
LNIHdWIY -NIAZIN'D
NIVHL I%A ~NIAEN'D
L1S04a¥oy ~NIAIN'D
LI¥Y -NIAEN'D

0d3d 440 IMENYIHOONE

I3LY I¥ENYIHDONE

ONINYITY ENOZOLOY
LOBISO# HINY

INEWAYd QqdYD

# FDIOANI ILd3a-aNnNd

TYIDVIWNCD INC STTIM
HOaNIA

S1/0E/60
1508¥SEd

23

ddannn
od

3qeg uny
:oN 3aoday



z

L0'995'0T

LO°99570T

TYLOL

abeg

00°0S
66°ET
00°5¢
92’98
9L’ &8
00" sL
o0°oL
0g'5¢
BE 66T
66°6ST
SE Y
S6°TF
ZT° 99T

LNOOWY

a1va

HINOISSIWWOD

NOIIWZIHOHLOY ONY MIIATY 40 INIWISATTMONAIY

BOPI
S65
5658
SES
S6S
S6S
S6S
89T
S65
565
565
B9PT
285

#SNYHEL

ST/Z0/0T SdIL LIN¥A ¥0d
ST/20/01 LIN 1S3l
ST/Z0/0T A¥ALIVE INIWNIOWTIdEd
ST/20/0T TS0 HOLI¥4SIa
S1/20/01 780 AZAWOD
SI/Z0/0T 440 sSng 05 75a
§1/20/01 vLLS 150
S1/20/0T¥A ¥02 TOOLS 4ELS NIVJ
ST/Z0/0T SAAIHA 4NNIWE LI
st1/20/0T A¥EILYE S4n I¥OQ

ST/20/0T LNNCW YMOVY F¥YMI¥YH
ST/Z0/0TA MNVHL ATTEN/SAUVANIA
ST1/20/015Y S5355Y A9 @WIEY /1

arva NOIL4I¥DSEA

HALSIDEY g¥YD ISYHIUNA
ALNNOD AZHUOLS

»TB30L DIEDs

NOX MNYHL NIV 0LE8T9
ANYIA-8FESEY
TO-ST#OTT-0SE
C8SE6VESHT

TPLLSSERT

£T6¥988ET

£99TT0BET
9CZTEBI-LEPIERE-FIT
HNVYEA-902060
dNY3d-902060

HOY 0000000
TTIHDYNHD /NELLIHM
dNOD TTIVd LUYWIYM

# FJIOANI 1d3a-aNnd

JOANIA

ST/0E/60
1S08vSEd

HIFWOAN

od
t ajeqg uny
:oN 3axoday



Meeting date: October 20, 2015

Agenda Action Report

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for September 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund:

7. Legal review required:

Telephone: 847-0969

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
“J> Department Head

County Manager
9. Board action:

[]  Approved []
[] Denied [

Comptroller

Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.

5



09°SZLLI8 § STO9¥'P S O09E $ WVOBE'EL § SAOILZ $ 69'986'VZT § IS'SIOT S PESEVE § [LVWELZ'T$ OLS66'BES ZOBPYIT S GEVWLLEE $ SEEIT'SLT § SBUSZ'06Z § LVWEIF'IIT  §  TWIOL ONWHD
= s - s E S % S - S % L4 151Q2d
- S 1510 Xd
- s - g - g - 5 - 5 = s 1510 XA
: 5 3 § = & = S = s 1510 2d'%d
251N
96'650°€2 S ST'09P'v S 1SC  § UCLOSE'ET § L86Y S BEDBL'ZE $ 0799 $ 9U688 $ E6'Z65S $ OSOB00T § TVEYE'T § [LZ08S'B § ZUESM'vy S OTLBLEOT $ T6LSTT $  J3SNNTVLOL
15T s juawAediang
Sy'Ls9'zzz  $ BBISYY S €9'8SE'ET $ OSET S LEEET'TE S 9LSAT $ TLUBB  § L6'I6S § BU'ESOOL § T98SE'T $ ZE99S'®  § IB0EEWy $ OTUBL'EOT $§ BOULSOT s 910%/5102
00°00% $ Lzt $ 181z $ Le9E ¢ 15'2S $ wwo $ trr $ 960 $ IELT $ I8V § SEEL $ 0£2L S = $ E8°0LT $  HOMdIVLIOL
= s stoz/vioz
00°00v S 7 A 181§ LE9E $ 1525 S o $ T $ %0 § I£L $ 18V $ S6'El $ 0EZL $ £8°0LT S |e3o3gng
00700t S dTL S 1812 $ L£98 0§ 18'2S S vro $ wrT $ 880  § TELI S 18 § SEEl $ 0£TL 5 £8°0LT S ¥10Z/€10T
HOSSISSY
v9'S99'PES § - $ 60T § - $ 801907 $ TEDOL'Z6 $ TE6VL $ BU'9YS'T $ ©S0B9'T $ OCSI6'BZ § O9vBY'S $§ TLWAI'ST $ ECOOL'OET $ SLOLV'98T $ 9ST9T'SIT  § SIVIOL LHOJ3Y
- m painliag punjay
r9's99'ves $ - $ 60T § - $ BO'T90Z $ I€00L'26 $ ZEGWL $ BT'OVS'T $ ©SOBI'T S 9TSTIE'BZ S 09v8Y8 $ TLWEI'ST $ ETOOLOET $ SLOLY'98T § 9STIT'SIT  § OIWNIISIVIOL
61'1€6'985 § - $ 2 $ EviLe S 9715916 $ 890V § OVLIST § TETI9T $ 26'88S'ET § PS'8BE'R § 96616 § O0B'BSI'GZI $ SO'LOYSEL $ PpEGIRZIT  $  9T/SIWLIOL
62°L2E S 05’15 S EV0 S Wi S S50 $ 809t S ELY S 89€l S €60L s L5291 L s5355Y |eldads
06°'£09'98S S EVLLE § 9L'665'T6 § STOvL $ BE'SIST $ 9E099T § VETLSBT $ IBEBE'® § BTO0SWT $ [BUBUEIT § SOLOY'SBT § LTTSITIT § 9107/5102
9E'EEL’L B # s - g = $ S9EBOT § SO6Y0'T  § 98 $ 88 $ EC6T § PE9ZE $ 909 § orvLe $ EVIUVY'T  $ OLE90'T $ ZLTVER $  HOIMdIWLOL
ST'06£'9 s - g = g = S vvote S 66526 $ 9L S oSz S L6691 $ veL8Z S BLYS S TE'EVT $ BETLZT  § OLET S OFINET §  STOZ/YTOZ IWiOL
vLTs s oE'g S L00 $ €20 S sto $ 657 $ 90 s 1TT S EVIT S 00'4Z §  ssassy jedads
TrLEL's $ vr'oze $ 69'LT6 $ SSL $ LTST $ T8I § SESBL S OB $ I $ 9509Z'T $ OLE%0T S OvYIET 5 STOT/Y10T
TTEVE $ TTE9T $ 90°EZT $ Tt $ 8EE $ 9TT § OvBE $ BTIL $ vR0E $ VYEST s 7 $ ZE00v H |e10Igns
1ZEv6 $ 1TE9T $ 90°£2T $ 01T $ BEE LT d $ Ov8E 5 8TTL S ¥80E $ tvest CHE S zeoov §  vI0Z/ET0Z Iei0L
ssassy [enadg
TTEST § 50§21 $ T0T S 8EE § 9T $ owse $ BTIL $ w80t $ vbest $ TE00F 5 FIOZ/E10Z
WLOL %ZH/V  LWYAO  %9¥/v  S3ILIWNId eqhed ML ¥3IN3/IHIE HLNOA 20V anli Q3IW ani ETUT now dvd 80 HOS dO HS QI9 1SNani TVHINID HIWNSYIYL
591 9059£-T00  POTVE-T00 100 00z 0sz 100 S8T 010 0Lt 090 09t 0ST 005-T00 100

STOZ Y383 1435 40 HINOW IHL HO4 VA OV



00"

oo-

oo-

¥Z ¥95°S
-€8°0FT'LOT
~PSTELTES'T
60 PST FOF
-1E E69'81 T
-E0"ETL’S
-E9°6ST'S6T
-¥OTE9S'SRLTL
~Z970LE"SLT
00"

-69 LIZ EY
~POLOELE
-99°FZETE
-G8 8¥9° 109
9L TELTLe
Py O0SE'TE
0L TILE 89T
-00°09
-POCTIE FLLE
LT 0957'9%Z
oo”

-00° 099

-00 000 000" T
LB EE6'ZSET
-9E"Z¥S 8971
~LLTLEOITVESL
-9% " SE6°S0¥
-00 000 00T
~LET9L PR
oo”

60"

ST TIIS'SE
-00"BES

69" LIB'SEE
oo

~¥0 61T 005
=~0L7SIB'TOZ'S
00 00Z

0o 000’z

00" 00T'T
OE"6L¥

0L PER"BLT'E
0SS TZ0ZT 65T'L
ELTPIRLEE"L
06"

oo

VSTEELS
85°ZE6'9

og"

H3NYTvE ONIaNa

T abeg

[ vl

00"
oo"
0o’
oo’
00"
oo’
0o°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
0o0”
00"
0o0°
00"
00"
00°
00"
00"
oo°
00"
oo-
0o”

00"
00"
00’
a0 "
0o0*

INO SH34SNYEL NI SHIEASNVHL

oo ao” oo

o0 " o0 a0"

oo- oo 60"

on- Go° 88 96% "801
[0y oo° oo

00" ¥LOERD'E 06 TED "86E
oo- £6° 0% 967 £TL BT
0o° oo on-

ao° CE TLEET oo-

ooc ~IT 98T’y oo°

oo- oo ooc

oo- (1] o0

0o- oo” oo

(+] oo (e

oo go-° o0

oo oo [+

oo oo-" (+]1 3

oo 00" oo

oo oo 00

oo 0o oo

oo oo 0o

0o- 00" 00"

0o° TesT Yy TL'99Z'8
oo oo" o0o-

oo- oo” 00"

oo oa” 0o

oo “RETHE6D 0T 080°ST
oo 00- oo’

oo- oo 00"

oo- 0o0° oo"

oo oo oo

oo” (+11 oo°

o00- +]1 0o

oo (+I+ i oo

00" o0 00"

oo-" (+]s i 0o-

oo P8 0BE'T L9° 088 '1f
oo oo {vivie

oo- 00° og"

oo- -65'BET'8T TZ 10065
oo- oo oo

oo- oo” 0o

Go- oo° oo

oo0° oo oo

o0° oo- oo-

00" 00" 00"

0o-” 00" -PECTRPER0T
oo” oo og”

a0 o0 oo

on° 00 oo°

a0’ oo- oo-

[+1+ e 00" 00"

LIZTHS ONIONYTYE ATHINOW
ONILNNOJOV S«dZdNSYIEL

SHIHINOA NENOL STIOHAWS

S10Z/60 ¥Wod

oo”

o0

oo
B0°ZS5°L
oo

v F0B06
8BS 0Z6 B9
00

L9292
00"0SZ’'s
oo-

oo*

oo

0o

oo’

G0 E6T

00" T60'S
6% FES

6B LS6'9ST
9L EbE'TTR
o o6

ag”

€9 ¥SL'BE
oo

00*

oo’
BSTLIL'ET
Y6 O0LE "ZBE
ST 6SE’'8BL
o’

o0

ag”

ag”

ag’

OL'09%
ae-ooe
00°928°'159
ac”
¥EOLZT'Y
CEB96°E00'T
ag”

(1513

aa”

[+ i1l

ac’

00"
LOBBE'8TE'E
0o

00°

ag”

oo

0Q”

SINIWISENESIA

HIANSYIEL ALNNOD ATHOLS

SERTRLECOLT
~Z8 TI6'66T
oo-
“EETITBIL
~BLTEILET
an”

Q0" 0%ST

00’

-05 506
~RE"SER'E
-00°5Z8

-L0 668 LL
-ST°SBZ'S
=66 PLL'EE
“SEBEYISLT
-00° 0t

oo
~£9795E D¢
oo

oo"

00"

95 T8E'LY
-S0°09L 61
[+ kg
-Z0"8¥r IS
oo

oo-

00"

oo”
~0E"LPL'¥S
-fo 0oL

~T9 9LV 62
oo

=LY RLTIT
56 E19'Z18
oo

oG-

oo"

00"

oo

oo"
FLOERZPOSL'T
00"

oo"

DS ECTT"S
e

oo"

SIJIE03Y

oo-

00"

00"
-ELTFBEOTT
~£8 0FT LOE
-60"B¥Z'BEL'T
-%L°926°'10€
-TE €69 '8YL T
-69" 0£5°TT
~BLTEBY'ZBT
PO E9S'SPET
-Z9'021'SLT

Q0"
-61°60%'ZY
-0t IE6 €€
-99°ZES0F
-BL O¥E BES
-DL TBE‘TE
-PETEES'SST
-15°955°v08
-0 oTT
-P9°TIRVLL'E
-66°0DBE"LSE

oo”

-00° 099
-007006°000°T
-SLOTSOTRERIT
-STEST'2E9 T
-ZL LEE'0ZF'E
-PCLES BSE
-00° 0007001
-LZ 9LB ' vE

oo*

00°
SLTLES'66
-00 8gEg
-65°8T0'Z¥9 T

06"
-10°L9E205
-69° ZBE‘EE6'S

00 ooz

00" 00z

007 00T T

0E"BEY

0L FEB'BLI'E

05" Z0EZ"6ST L

0T TOE'T09'0T

oo-

oo-

00"

LBTTEE'S

0o’

JuYMy0d " TvE

SANNd TV TYVLI0L

ONIOTOH SIXWI Q3dN03s
ONIOTOH SEXVL JFUNDESNN
aIv TYALOW

AONECHEWE 414
IDI¥LSIa J414
NOTSSIWWOD WSIHNOL JA
L23Ar0dEd TIVE DA

aNnd 23714 1IN S A3TH3EHS
SINWED TYHIadd
ADWEAYd THL

anna ¥Evd

L3N THL

aNna IEnod 3oILsnr
INBAIDOY LNZDIANI
LEN0D LOI¥LSIA

b AA-A RS

ONNE ADOTONHIEL

LE30 TOCHDS

TO0HDS

LENOS SEa

02¥vYd STTIM ONOE Yasn
YIMES EAIAIC VINIDNIA
ALID YWINIDHIA 40 NMOL
TIIH Q109 40 NMOL
NOLIWZITIEMLS

WILSAS H3LYM

ANNA FENLONELSYHANT
SLOArodd MYLIAYD
NOILISINOONY IRIWAINOE
HDIIAHES

aIv TYNLOW

LOTELSIO FEIA
ADNEOHEWI 3414

ad¥1a

NOILNLILSIH

Sa¥0d

X¥l- EINVISISSY INIOIANT
ITYOIQEW LNIDIANT
TYEINGD

HO5S3ISSY  HSWD ALL3d
A4I¥FEHS HSVD ALL3ad
HSYD ALLA4

SNICD aT10

LNNODOY 4191 IINIS
LINEVA AZNOW 09UV ST73M
INNOJOY 22 09¥W¥d ST1amM
S3NS RALY¥3d0¥d ¥ 40 €6
SO¥YoD MNYE SSENISNE
ANYHE NI HSWO

ONIQTOH L¥N0D JOIYLSIA
HSYO ¥asn 0odvd ST71am

NOIL4ATH053a

TZ:ST:60 ST/2T/01

008
oog
oLz
092
0sz
0£z
0zz
01z
902
002
061
681
L8T
S81
08T
OLT
591
091
DST
oyt
SET
DET
ozt
0Tt
001
060
080
0LD
090
0s0
S¥0
0%0
5E0
00
¥Z0
0zo
S10
0T0
100
506
Y06
£06
106
961
161
66T
861
LBT
56T
Y61
6T

1%

uny

00TZAL ‘oN 3Today



§5°2Z61'502 :Te30L

S6°¢Z6T°'50¢C :1e10L jueg

Z8°6SE'L9 st/62/6 6LLS9SESTH/HILAY 1S AEN 0S0006 00 661 €SFE8  ¥d
89 ' 9¥8'6TT s1/6Z/6 6LLS9S6STH/HILAY 1S AIN 050006 00 661 ZSvE8  ud
00 008 s1/sz/6 LZZY# DOSSY ¥ALHOIA HUIA T0S006 00 661 TLLYPE ¥d
LL ZT6F st/sz/6 XYl ¥d14AY SNI HSYM/AdddWd LOE006 00 661 89L%E ¥d
0S5 %25'¢€ s1/sz/6 dWOD aF¥¥addd 00€006 00 661 POLVE dd
00° 002 s1/s2/6 (XYL-¥ELAY) dWOD adddddd=d 662006 00 661 £9LPE ¥d
06°ZET st/sz/e aavy FHX0TdWH ¥NSNI TYINId 6TT006 00 66T 65LFE ¥4
007008 ST/T1/6 LZZPH# DOSSY MALHOIA HEId T0S006 00 66T PSLPE ¥d
€L°09 ST/%1/8 SZT “SNI HJAIT TYINOTOD 10Z006 00 66T SoLPE ¥d
TL°01 $1/ST/8 ¥O/NOILOETIOD 334 AATNIHS ST9006 00 66T TEeve ¥d
00°00T S1/81/6 WIP ‘ddvm BYLVOY 00 66T 9vvES  MD
00" %2 ST/81/6 d4A SANYTHOIH YINIDAIA £ZLEOY 00 66T pFPE8 MO
00 0ES’'T ST/81/6 ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDVIA €68E0% 00 66T £F¥FE8 MO
00°88%'¢ s1/81/6 0D ¥ F@EIDNYL ¥ VINIDNIA ¥68E0¥ 00 66T I¥FE8 MO
00 6¥%T s1/81/6 ONI 995 HI™HL 8E6E0T 00 66T 9E¥ER D
00" 88 S1/81/6 d OTIAONY ‘INI¥IEJ S68E0% 00 66T TI¥E8 D
80 %1 ST/81/6 NOOYYEY HIYYW NNY ' AVdHaNNW L69T0F 00 66T 06€€8 M2
SE €2 ST/81/6 UNYHS ‘NOXId 626007 00 66T GGEEE MO
00°08 S1/81/6 277 TIIW d709 MOOLSWOD LBBEOF 00 66T ISEE8 MO
00°0SZ ST/81/6 ¥0dD  0L900T 00 66T 9%EE€E8 D
IL°192°'T ST/81/6 TYNOISSHAONd » SSEANISNG £9%001 00 66T 8EEER D
00°0ST ST/81/6 AFN J0 DOSSY S, ¥0OSSHSSY T90€0T 00 66T TEECER  MD
00" SL ST/%0/6 YHIIEYL ‘NOSHOH 9ELTOT 00 66T 05ZE8 D
SZ 16T S1/12/8 SI¥HD ‘QO0H SZLYOY 00 66T ZITEB D
00° 91 ST1/12/8 ¥ELEd 'HOLIA LS9%0F 00 66T 00TE8 MD
00°LZ ST/L0/8 ¥O0HgHE NOSIvYd ZILYO® 00 66T STOES D
SZ° L9 S1/L0/8 NILSONY ‘dANJO9S0 LBEZO® 00 661 $10£E8 D
00°00T ST/L0/8 YANIT ‘OTdY¥DTIEd 00TH0% 00 66T 79628 MO
00" 8L ST/%Z/L DNI 999 Fd¥HL BEGEOT 00 661 L1628 D
Zv° 9 ST/¥%z/L d0A7TD ‘HOTINF 90LY 0¥ 00 66T 0€£8Z8 D
00°L68'T ST/92/9 SA0EMOD HNOLSHWOL HHL T06€0% 00 66T Z¥928 D
8T° 06 S1/92/9 HONH ‘I¥0D4440 9L9%0% 00 66T 16528 D
S0°98 S1/21/9 Ad¥vYE ¥ VANIT ‘¥3d1d 0LS%0¥ 00 66T SL¥Z8 MD
00°06 ST/21/9 NHOL ‘EANSHIANA Z8LE0F 00 66T ¥0FZ8 MO
SL 6E ST/LT/% NHOL ‘AVES 6T9%0% 00 66T £L6T8 D
I6°91 ST/LT/¥ avHD ‘SNVAT 1Z9%0% 00 66T LEGT8 D
00°09 ST/LT/% HYd0gdd ‘¥EaNdd 6S6E0F 00 66T ZZ6T8 MDD
00°0SZ s1/0z/2 QILIWIT 40 SHEDANL VAYAAN IS¥E0T 00 661 81618 D
00°6Z st/oz/e HOATEL ‘WAVETHAAY LBSHO® 00 6671 65FT8 MO
00°66 vI/2T/21 (ON&A) sSN1d SHIHALLYE LEBGE 00 66T 81608 D
€1 SZL ¥1/92/1T ONI 0D AT1ddNS HATE dyIDHIHAL S8ZEO0F 00 66T 0zg0o8 D
06°99% $1/T€/01 I 0D HDNVYNIA TYNOISSHAOHUd FS0%0F 00 66T LP908 D
98 " T1€E ¥T/€0/0T I 0D HDNYNIA TYNOISSHJIOHd ¥90%0F 00 66T zov08 M2
Junowy ajeqg Io28yD 2weN 22AoTdug/Iopusan # uosisqd beg jueg # yosyup di

ST/0€/6 - 00/00/0 woxg

666666 ybnoiyl T #309UyD woxg

syo8yd butpueisano

ONILNNODDY S.dIANSYHANL TI:9T:60 : SWTL uny ST/ZT/0T : 23eg uny

T abeq ALNNOD ATJOLS zoLTag :oN 3xodey



Storey County Board of County Commuisioners

"-;'_ Agenda Action Report
k e
.MAé“e.'lci‘n.g Date: Tuesday, October 20, 2015 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular [J Public Hearing Required [
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
3. Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4. Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for April, May, June 2015
6. Fiscal Impact: None X
Funds Available: n/a Fund: [J Comptroller [
7 Legal Review Required: District Attorney [
8. Reviewed By:
[J Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
[J County Manager [J Other Agency Review
9, Board Action:

[J Approve [J Approved with Modifications
[J Denied [J Continued

Agenda Item No._‘r\O_




Virginia Township Justice Court ~ Storey County, Nevada

agsimile: 775-847-0915
www.storeycounty.org

20150CT -5 AMI0: L0

October 5, 2015 B Y,Q\_/lﬁ&/\__,

QUARTERLY REPORT

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for July, August, and
September, 2015.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of

NRS 4.100. g@lf{bﬂ—/”-

EF Herring\’on
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me
this = _day of_ OCA O\Q¢ 2015 .

Justice %urt Clerk !




0 00°0ZY S dr S33d4 IOVIYYYIN SYNOH-YI LIV
00'EV6'TT S [1v101 a3syngsia
9 00°0ST S ¥31T0Y¥LNOD FLVIS AN DOA 334 ONITIH aNOg 80TSE-000-0LT| 41
3 00 S Y3IUNSYIYL ALNNOD ATYOLS 334 SNSNID TOZPE-000-0LT| 4T
Z 0528 $ Y3IYNSYIYL ALNNOD ATHOLS 334 SINIVID TIVIAIS v0Zre-000-100| 4T
I 0052 S YITTOYINOD JLVLS AN (O0V) 334 1YN0D ALIVID3dS INA 90Z¥€-000-0LT| 4T
09 00'8¢Y S ¥3TTOYLINOD 3LVIS AN (WIAI) 334 LYNOD ALTVIDAdS LICVE-000-0LT| 4T
0 ST'81S S Y3YNSYIYL ALNNOD ATHOLS HOYV3S SA¥0D3Y v0ZP€-000-100| 4T
I 00°ST S 1¥N0D 3DILSNF dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA LINNODJ2Y SIDIAYIS 1vIHLI™d v¥0SE-000-£8T| 4T
0 00°0€ S Y3UNSYIYL ILVLIS AN 334 3OVIYYVIN TIZYe-000-0LT| 4T
95 00°029 S L1HN0D 3D1LSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA 334 ALITIDV4 1YN0D TTTSE-000-T00| 4T
L 00°505°S $ Y3IYNSYIYL ALNNOD ATHOLS ALNNOD - INIS 60TSE-000-T00| 4T
X 00°S€ S ¥IYNSYIYL ALNNOD ATIHOLS $334 AJOD ¥0Z¥E-000-100| 4T
T 0009 S H3IYNSYIYL ALNNOD AIYOLS 334 SISATYNY TVDINIHD TOTSE-000-T00| 4T
4 00'vL2 S ¥3YNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFYOLS 1¥N02 - S334 1IAD ¥OTSE-000-£8T| 4T
v G801 S HIUNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS $334 1IAD v0Zr€-000-100| 4T
9 0S'ZT1 S H3YNSYIYL ALNNOD AIHOLS 334 ONISSID0Yd ANOS v0Zv€-000-T00| 41
S 00°0Tv S Y3YNSYIYL ALNNOD AFYOLS 334 INJNSYNGNITY AINYOLLY SYZvE-000-100| 4T
65 00261 S YIYNSYIUL ALNNOD AFHOLS|  SISATYNY HINYYIN DILINIO 334 WV TOTSE-000-08T| 4T
8¢ 00°002 S H3ITI0YLINOD ILVLS AN (TWY¥3INID) I1V1S 334 Vv ¥TISE-000-04T| 4T
¥S 00°0ZT S ¥3YNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS J1UNIANS - 334 VY €0TSE-000-T00| 4T
vS 000zt S 19N02 3D1LSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA 3D1LSNr - 334 VY YOTSE-000-£8T| 41
09 005297 $ HY3ITI0YLINOD FLVIS AN (0V) 3LVIS - 334 vV 90Z¥€-000-0LT| 4T
Sase) Jo Jaquinp junowy peasingsiqg 29Aed 100y

STOZ AINM - TVNLOV - DNILSIT dO3 LYN0D IDILSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDHIA



0 00°0S¢E S dr S334 IDOVIHHVIN SHNOH-Y314V
€€'858°CT S |'IVLOL @3syngsia
& 00708 S H3ITOHLNOD 3LVLS AN J0A 334 ONINIH aNod 80TSE-000-0LT 4T
L 00'8 S 43YNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 SASN3D TOZVE-000-0LT| 4T
Z 0s°LCT S HIYNSYIHL ALNNOD AJHOLS 334 SINIVTID TIVIAIS #0Z¥€-000-TO0 4T
9 00°9LY S YITIOULNOD 3LVIS AN (WIN) 334 1HNOD ALTIVIDAdS LTZ¥E-000-0LT 4T
0 T8y S HIYNSVYIYL ALNNOD A3HOLS HOYVY3S SAY0234 ¥0ZvE-000-100 4T
T 00°s¢ S 1YNOD IDILSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDHIA LNNOJ2V S3JIAY3S TVIHLIHd ¥¥0SE-000-L8T a1
T 00t S 43HNSYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS ALNNOD OL SININAVLHIAO 60TSE-000-T00 i1
0 00°'SE S YIHNSVYIYHL ILVIS AN 334 3OVIYHVIN C1ZVE-000-0LT| 4T
09 00°S59 S 14NOD IDILSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDYHIA 334 ALTIDV4 1¥N0D TTTSE-000-100) 4T
99 €€'L96'S S HIYNSYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS ALNNOD - 3N 60TSE-000-100( 4T
0 5¢°C S HIYNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS $334 AdO2D ¥0ZtE-000-100 4T
1 00°09 S HIYNSYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 SISATYNY TV2INIHD TOTSE-000-T00 41
6 05°1¢¢E S YIYNSYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS 14N02 - S334 TIAID vOTSE-000-£8T] dT
14 S2°96¢ S H3IUNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS S$334 TIAID v0ZrE-000-TO00| 4T
Z 0S°LE S YIYNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFHOIS 334 DNISS3D0Hd ANOd 0Z¥E-000-T00 Els
T SL°8T S HIYNSVYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 Tv¥3iddV 31
€ 00°SLT S HIHNSVIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 INJINSHNGINITY AINHOLLY SvZvE-000-T00| 4T
85 00°€6T S HIYNSVIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS SISATYNY HINYVIAI DILINID 334 YV T01SE-000-081 41
Sy 00°0€cC S HATTOYLNOD JLVLS AN (1vYY3INIO) 3LVLS 334 WY PTTSE-000-04LT a1
€9 00'vET S YIYNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS F1UNIANT - 334 vV €0TSE-000-T00 4T
€9 00'69% S 14N0D IDILSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA JDILSNr- 334 v ¥OTSE-000-LB8T 41
89 00°260°E S HITTOYLNOD 3LVIS AN (Dov) 31v1S - 334 vV 90¢tE-000-0LT J1
Sase) JO Jaqunp unowy pasingsiq a2hed oY

STOZ 1SN9NY - TVNLIV - DNILSIT dO3 - LYN0I 3D1LSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDHIA




00°08¢ S dr S$334 IDOVIYYVIN SHNOH-Y3 14V
00°96€'ST S |-IVLO1 @3s¥ngsia
v 00°00T S H3TIOYLNOD 3LVIS AN J0A 334 DNITIH ANOg 80TSE-000-0LT i1
T 00T S Y3HNSVYIYL ALNNOD A3HOLS 334 SNSN3D TOZYE-000-0LT 1
T SLEE S HIYNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 SWIVTD TIVIAS ¥0Z¥E-000-T00 4T
4 00°00¢ S YITIOYLNOD 31VLIS AN 334 14N0D ALVID3dS INa 90¢E-000-0LT it
L9 00°00S S H3ITIOHLINOD 31VLS AN (W) 334 LYNOD ALTVID3dS LTZVE-000-0LT 41
0 S¢'sel S HIUNSYIHL ALNNOD AFHOLS HOYVY3S SAHOD3H ¥0Z¥€-000-100 4T
[4 00's¢ S 1¥N0D 3D1LSNT dIHSNMOL YINIDHIA 1NNODIV SADIAYIS TVIYLIHd rP0SE-000-£L8T| 4T
T 00'¢ S HIUNSYIYL ALNNQOD AHOLS ALNNOD OL SINIWAVIHYIAO 60TS€-000-100 41
0 00°0¢€ S HIYNSYIYL JLVIS AN 334 JOVIHHVIN CIZrE-000-0LT 41
L9 00°0EL S 14N0D FDILSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDYHIA 334 ALITIDVL LHN0D TTTSE-000-T00 41
9L €EVC6L S H3IYNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS ALNNOD - INI4 60TSE-000-TOO| 4T
T 00°0S S HIUNSVIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS $334 AdOD v0ZveE-000-T00| 4T
(4 oo'ozt S HIYNSVYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 SISATVYNY TVOIWIHD TOTSE-000-T00| 4T
L 0§°'SZe 5 HIYNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOIS 14N0D - S334 1UAID 0TSE-000-L8T i1
[4 0sZvt S Y3YNSYIYL ALNNOD AHOLS S334 TIAID v0ZrE-000-T00| 4T
14 00'SL S HIYNSYIYL ALNNOD AJFHOLS 334 ONISS3ID0Hd ANO9 ¥0¢vE-000-T00] 4T
T 00°0S S Y3UNSVIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS 334 INJINSHNGINIZY AINYOLLY StCrE-000-T00 4T
S9 00°s1Z S Y3YNSVIYL ALNNOD A3HOLS SISATYNY YINUVIA DILINID 334 vV TOTSE-000-08T 41
0s 00°0L¢ S YITIOYLNOD 3LVLS AN (TYH¥3INI9) 31VLS 334 YV ¥TTSE-000-0LT i1
L 00°8ST S HIYNSYIYL ALNNOD AFHOLS FTINIANT - 334 vV €0TSE-000-T00 41
L 00°'85S S 14N0D ID1LSNT dIHSNMOL VINIDYIA D1LSNr- 334 ww Y0OTSE-000-L8T 4T
9L £9°095°€E S 43ITOYLNOD JLVYLS AN (Oov) 31viS - 334 v 90¢¥E-000-0LT 47
S9SBe) JO Jagquinp Junowy pasingsig 29Aed 100y

STOZ ¥39N31d3S - TVNLIV - DNILSIT O3 LHNOD IDILSNI dIHSNMOL VINIDYHIA




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: |0 ~20—15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
[ move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners” meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—

Agenda Item No. 7.



Storey County Com

)
\1‘

Buginess §

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 ¢ buslic@storeycounty.org

munity Bevelopment

L

| Licenging

To:

Fr:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 12,2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the October 20, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

FONOZIrNASNNIOMEDOE

€c.

RED-D-ARC, INC. — Contractor / 685A Lee Industrial Boulevard ~ Austell, GA (ind. equipment sales)
PANASONIC ENERGY OF N.A. - General / Electric Avenue (lithium-ion battery manufact) TRI
SUMMIT CONTRACTING, LLC - Contractor / 120 North Lime St ~ Lancaster, PA (insulation contractor)
SYSTEMS CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 701 South Carson Street ~ Carson City (steel erectors)
HIGH DESERT SURFACE PREP -- Contractor / 1885 Temple Hill Rd ~ Reno (concrete prep contractor)
SANKYO USA, INC. - Contractor / 1555 Mittel Blvd ~ Wood Dale, IL (cargo handling svcs.)

STEP BY STEP — Home Business / 2321 Cartwright Road ~ VCH (foot care nurse — no public traffic)
OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIES, INC. — Contractor / 352 East Monterey ~ Pomona, CA (epoxy coatings)
SOLUM CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 10105 Indian Ridge ~ Reno (contractor)

VERITAS MANAGED SOLUTIONS, INC. — General / 5302 Greenside Drive ~ San Jose, CA (IT)

CMC STEEL FABRICATORS, INC. — Contractor / 2990 East Annadale ~ Fresno, CA (rebar cont)
INDUSTRIAL LOGISTICS — Contractor / 3868 Goni Road ~ Carson City (machinery transport, sales)

. MESA FIRE SERVICES, INC. — Contractor / 7442 Tahoe Basin Drive ~ Las Vegas (fire protection)

CARR ELECTRICAL TECH, INC. - Contractor / 2929 Quality Dr ~ Petersburg, VA (elect cont)
DESERT COMMERCIAL SWEEPING - Contractor / 5620 Madras St ~ Carson City (indust. sweeping)
JC ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 10580 N McCarran ~ Reno (roofing contractor)

C & M CLEANING - Home Business / 137 D Street ~ Virginia City (cleaning service—no public traffic)
RYAN’S ROCK & HOE - Contractor / 274 North A Street ~ Virginia City (dirt hauling)

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

20
Meeting date: October 49, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION ONLY: Provide an overview of the State of Nevada Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program for the upcoming 2016 grant
application cycle.

2. Recommended motion: None required as this is only an item for discussion.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: This is the first in a series of three (3) informational meetings required to
meet the conditions of the CDBG Program. The purpose of this public hearing is to provide
information about the CDBG program, past projects that have been funded in the Storey County,
how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and where funds can be used, and to give citizens an
opportunity to make their comments known regarding what types of eligible activities that Storey
County should apply for under the State CDBG program. A second public hearing will be held to
discuss proposed projects submitted to date. A final hearing will be held to discuss, approve and
rank applications prior to submittal to the State.

5. Supporting materials:  Public Notice
Summary of Past CDBG Program Accomplishments

6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Q;E Department Head Department Name:

VD County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

) pr—
U

Agenda Item No. ! O



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE STATE OF NEVADA
COMMUNITY BLOCK DEVELOPMENT GRANT APPLICATION

Notice is hereby given that Storey County will conduct a public hearing on October 19, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.
in conjunction with the Board of County Commissioners Meeting at the Storey County Courthouse in
order to discuss possible applications for funding under the next fiscal year's (July 1, 2016 to June 30,
2017) State Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program and to solicit citizen input on
possible activities to be included in the application. It is estimated that approximately $2,400,000 will be
available in total.

Eligible activities under the above allocation consist of: housing rehabilitation programs, public facility and
public improvements projects, public service programs, planning studies, economic development
business assistance and microenterprise activities. Eligible activities paid for with the state CDBG funds
must meet one or more of the three national objectives listed in CDBG federal statutes as follows: benefit
to low income households or persons; elimination of slums and blight; or meeting urgent community
development need.

The purpose of this public hearing is to provide information about the CDBG program, past projects that
have been funded in the Storey County, how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and where funds can
be used, and to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments known regarding what types of
eligible activities that Storey County should apply for under the State CDBG program. A second public
hearing will be held to discuss proposed projects submitted to date. A final hearing will be held to
discuss, approve and rank applications prior to submittal to the State.

If you require special accommodations to participate in the public hearing, please contact Cherie Nevin at
775-847-0986; The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868;
voice only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

If you are unable to attend the public hearing, written comments may be directed to Storey County
Community Services at PO Box 7 Virginia City, NV 89440 or you may telephone Cherie Nevin at
775-847-0986 or contact via email at cnevin@storeycounty.org.

Storey County promotes fair housing and makes all its programs available to low and moderate income
families regardless of age, race, color, relation, sex, national origin, sexual preference, marital status or
handicap.

Date of Publication in Comstock Chronicle: October 9-16, 2015



Storey County
Summary of Past Accomplishments and Program QOutline for the CDBG
Program

The purpose of this public hearing is to provide information about the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) program, past projects that have been funded in Storey County, how to
apply, eligibility requirements, how and where funds can be used, and to give citizens an
opportunity to make their comments known regarding what types of eligible activities that Storey
County should apply for under the State CDBG program. A second public hearing will be held
on November 17, 2015 to discuss proposed project ideas. A final hearing will be held on
December 1, 2015 to discuss, approve and rank applications prior to submittal to the State.

In promoting and facilitating Community Development in rural Nevada, the Rural Community
Development Division of the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development administers
the State and Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.

Established in 1982 and administered by the US Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), CDBG funds are spent on projects that help achieve one or more of the
following goals:

e the development of suitable living environments

e to provide decent housing

e the creation of economic opportunities in rural parts of the state

Eligible activities under the above allocation consist of: housing rehabilitation programs, public
facility and public improvements projects, public service programs, planning studies, economic
development business assistance and microenterprise activities. Eligible activities paid for with
the state CDBG funds must meet one or more of the three national objectives listed in CDBG
federal statutes as follows:

e benefit low to moderate income households or persons

e climination of slums and blight

e or meeting urgent community development need

At this time, the only area of Storey County that qualifies based on the low to moderate income
is the Lockwood Community. We are currently in the process of finalizing an Income Survey
for the Mark Twain Community and hope that those results will be favorable to the community
being eligible for CDBG. Projects that benefit limited clientele such as senior citizens or
disabled persons are eligible throughout the entire county. For projects that eliminate slums and
blight or meet and urgent community development need, we do not need to meet the low to
moderate income guidelines and therefore these types of projects can benefit the entire county.

The amount of Funds Available for the 2016 application cycle is expected to be around 2 Million
Dollars.

Each eligible entity is able to submit 2 applications to CDBG. Applications are due to CDBG on
the 1% week of January 2016.



Past and Present Storey County Projects funded by or in part by CDBG include:

Storey County Fire Protection District Ambulance $114,000. This project is currently
underway.

Storey County Senior Center Kitchen and Transportation Improvement project in the amount
of $25,000. This project is currently underway.

Storey County Swimming Pool ADA Upgrades in the amount $152,000.

RSVP Rural Transportation Program in the amount of $63,150.

Rural Nevada Continuum of Care Sponsorship in the amount of $40,000.

2011 — Virginia City Gold Hill Sewer System Upgrades (SCADA system) in the amount of
$83,915.00

2010 — Countywide flood plan $100,000.00

2009 — Water & Sewer Master Plan $125,000.00

2009 — Virginia City Wastewater System Design $150,000.00 (Used to match CORP §1.2
million grant)

2008 — Canyon GID Wastewater Reconstruction Phase II $200,000.00

We are seeking input from our citizens for ideas on possible projects that you would like to see
Storey County apply for in the 2016 CDBG application. Please submit those ideas to Cherie
Nevin by November 4, 2015. At the November 17, 2015 County Commissioners meeting, we
will present the recommendations for projects that we have received to be considered to move
forward to final consideration for the application. At the December 1, 2015 meeting, we will
come before the commission again and address all comments received and finalize/approve
project applications for submission to the State CDBG program.

If you have any questions please feel free to contact Cherie Nevin.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: 10-20-15 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: (Continued from 10/06/15 board meeting.) Discussion/Possible Action: SECOND
READING Ordinance No. 15-269: Application No. 2014-020 by the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning
Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 IC Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent of the
proposed IC Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and commercial uses
where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the planning commission.
Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft zone text may
be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of
approval shown in Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and
county regulations, and the master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff
and the planning commission, [ (Commissioner) motion to approve Ordinance No. 15-
269 for Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include
“Chapter 17.39 IC Industrial Commercial Zone™ to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey
County Zoning Ordinance.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4, Staff summary: Text amendment of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) as
explained and recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-020.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-020 and proposed text amendments available at
775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
____ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
=V " Department Head Department Name:
__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
—e

Agenda Item No.



Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Zone Text Amendment

To:
From:
Meeting Dates:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:

Request:

Applicant:
Property Owner:

Staff Contact;

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
September 9, 2015 (continued from prior meetings)

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2014-020

The applicant requests a text amendment to Storey County Code
Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance that will add Chapter
17.39 1I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LL.C

Not applicable

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Storey County Code (SCC) 17.03 Administrative Provisions; SCC
17.28 Commercial Zone; SCC 17.34 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone; SCC 17.84 Signs and Billboards; Storey

County Master Plan, River District. Industry, and Economic plans.

Not applicable

Page 1 of 26



1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Request summary

The applicant requests an amendment to the text of Storey County Code Title 17. also known as
the Storey County Zoning Ordinance (zoning ordinance). that will create Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial-Commercial Zone. There is no particular parcel or property associated with this
request. However, the applicant of the text amendment submitted a zone map amendment
application (see Application No. 2014-021) to apply the proposed [-C Zone, it approved by the
board. to land located adjacent to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center at McCarran.

1:2 Purpose and intent of the proposed zone

The proposed 1-C Zone combines certain commercial. light industrial, and heavy industrial uses
now allowed pursuant to SCC Chapters 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.34 1-1 Light Industrial
Zone. and 17.35 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone. Unlike the existing Commercial zone that provides
for general neighborhood and regional commercial uses, and the Heavy Industrial zone that
provides for heavy manufacturing and other high-intensity uses, the 1-C zone is intended 10
facilitate a heavy commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited
for heavy arterial traffic corridors, such as Interstate 80 or USA Parkway, that interface and serve
large industrial developments.

1.3 Land use compatibility
1.3.1  Compatibility with surrounding uses

The subject application for zone text amendment does not apply to any parcel of land. However,
the potential application of this zoning designation to land in the future should be considered.
Table 1.1 — Use Comparisons, demonstrates allowed uses in the proposed [-C zone and compares
them with those allowed in the Commercial, Light Industrial, and Heavy Industrial zones, from
which each listed 1-C use originated. The Purpose and Intent of the proposed 1-C zone
(17.39.015, proposed) states that:

The purpose of the 1-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas w ith the county
where certain industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and
maintained together to promote efficiency, ensure compatibility. and provide for
mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy commercial and light industrial
mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic arterials, such as
the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed use are
compatible.

I-C zoning is intended to be applied to land that is in close proximity to principal traffic arterial
routes and existing industrial type uses with which allowed uses in the I-C zone are compatible.
It is not considered an appropriate zone for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial
areas, such as Gold Hill, Virginia City, and Lockwood where € Commercial or CR Commercial-
Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

Page 2 of 26



1.3.2  Compatibility with mixed-uses within the zone

Table 1.1 shows allowed uses in the [-C zone. Because the [-C zone provides for a mixed-use
commercial-industrial environment, it should be assumed that the listed uses may oceur together
on a single property (e.g.. such as in a strip-mall or cluster development) or in a group of
independent but closely situated properties,

To ensure compatibility between the allowed uses, setback distance requirements in the [-C zone
(17.39.070. proposed) are particular to the use category, that being commercial, light industrial.
or heavy industrial (see setbacks. height, and area requirements in Table 1.2 — Comparison of
Use Allowances). Planning staff finds that that the required setback distances facilitate a mixed-
use environment with necessary separation and other considerations between allowed uses.

A special use permit is required for certain heavy intensity uses in the I1-C zone that may be
incompatible with each other, or may be incompatible with allowed uses in zones likely to oceur
adjacent to the 1-C zone (see Section 3.1.1). Board and planning commission approvals are
required for special use permits. It is, therefore. found that these uses have the necessary case-by-
case governing body oversight to assure that their application will cause no zoning or use
conflicts with other conditions that may apply.

Table 1.1
Use Comparison T
Wise cateparies Commercial Light Industrial - ln}ézt‘r{ai g;;l;:;::: al
[ 1 | Retail (principle) X X
[ 2 | Retail (super regional) * X
{3 | Commercial offices ] X
| 4 | Personal services X X
5 | Hotels and boarding X X
| 6 | Tourism and visitor X X
| 7 | Recreation facilities X X
| 8 | Public infrastructure X X
19 | Schools and higher ed. X X X X
| 10 | Equipment repair X X X
11 | Indoor firearms use X X
12 | Outdoor fircarms use X X*
13 | Automaotive services X X X X
14 | Truck stops X X* X X
15 | Agriculture X X
16 | Billboards X b X*
17 | Automotive paint X X X
18 | Casinos (large-scale) X X X
19 | Fortune tellers X X*
20 | RV parks X X
21 | Mini-storage X X X X
22 | Hospitals / urgent care X* X* X X
23 | Crisis care, permanent X X X
24 | Open-air markets X X

Page 3 of 26



25 | Fairgrounds X X*
26 | Amusement parks X X*
27 | Film and movie sets X X* X*
28 | Race tracks X X* X
29 | Education boarding X* X* X*
30 | Light manufacturing X X X*
31 | Heavy manufacturing X
32 | Warehouses X X X
33 | Chemical/oil storage X X X
34 | Chemical manufacture X
35 | Laboratory testing X! X! X!
37 | Non-renewable energy g
38 | Renewable energy X+ e
39 | Solid waste recycling X+ X X
40 | Solid waste landfill X1
21 | Solid waste collection x* X X
22 | Natural resources X* X x*
23 | Conereate plant (perm) x*
24 | Adult retail X X* X*
24 | Mining b
25 | Mine processing X* X*

Uses shown above are categorized into general use categories; see Storey County Code
Chapters 17.24, 17.32, 17.35, 17.76, and 17.84 for specific uses in each zone.
*Asterisks indicate uses requiring a special use permit.

YThe use of live animals in laboratory testing is prohibited.

Table 1.2
Comparison of Use Allowances

Regulations per SCC Title 17

| 1. | Height

C — 457 or 3 stories

[-1 — 35" or 3 stories

1-2 — 75" or 6 stories

1-C ~ 120" or 10 stories

_ 2. | Setback distances

C — zero front and sides; 107 rear

-1 =20

1-2 - 50°

I-C - heavy industry, 50°; light industry, 20°: commercial, 20° front, 10 rear

3. | Minimum parcel area / use density

C - 15.000 sq.”

[-1 - | acre

[-2 — 3 acres

[-C — heavy industry, 3 acres; light industry. ¥ acre; commercial, 10.000 square-feet

Page 4 of 26



2.  General Compliance with Guiding Documents

2.1 Master Plan

Chapter 3.2 of the Storey County Master Plan (1994) states that considerable development has
occurred in the River District over the years and that development is expected to continue. It
recommends that planning officials “give serious consideration to development and zoning for an
industrial park in the [River District] area™ (pp. 19-20). Attracting additional businesses,
diversification to the county’s economy; broadening the county’s tax base: enhancing efficiency
of water, sewer, and other utility service; and managing growth are described benefits to
improving and consolidating industrial development in the county. Specific goals and objectives
listed in the master plan in this regard include:

o Chapter 3 Economy — Goal 1, enhance diversification of cconomic opportunities within
the county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: develop and adopt standards for industrial park
development before a large project is proposed.

e Chapter 5 Conservation and Natural Resources — Goal 2, protect the quality of present
and future water resources; Goal 4, regulate the use of open-range and watershed areas to
minimize fire danger and prevent degradation; Goal 4, Objective 4.1, assist property
owners and interested groups in controlling grazing and public use of critical watershed
and riparian areas.

o Chapter 9 Land Use — Goal |: maintain a healthy environment for all residents of the
county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: ensure that land use permit decisions are compatible with
the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decisions; Goal 4: preserve existing
agricultural arecas; Goal 4, objective 4.1: through zoning regulations, direct non-
agricultural development to non-agricultural areas.

e Section River District — Goal 4, Objective 4.1: coordinate land uses on the south side
[Storey County] of the Truckee River with developments on the north side [ Washoe
County] of the river and visa-versa; Goal 5: design zoning districts to allow for a mix in
land use development; Goal 5, Objective 5.1: consider zoning the Tracy-Clark and the
surrounding area for industrial use.

As stated in Section 1.3, the subject text amendment application does not apply to any particular
land. However, planning staff and the applicant have identified potential land adjacent to the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center that may be ideal for an I-C zoning designation. Aligned with the
purpose and intent of the I-C zone, this land abuts or is in immediate proximity to Interstate 80,
interfaces heavy industrial uses at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and is near existing
infrastructure that would support the listed uses. There are other arcas in the county near the
interstate or industrial development that too may be considered for this zoning designation.

With the expressed purpose and intent of the proposed [-C zone corresponding to such land

application, planning staff find that the I-C zone conforms to the goals and objectives of the
county master p|ElI‘l.

Page 5 of 26



2.2 Zoning Ordinance (SCC Title 17)
2.2.1 Conformance with zoning

Storey County is divided into zoning districts of such number and character as necessary to
achieve compatibility of land uses within each district, and to implement the master plan and
related official plans as needed to meet the purpose and intent of the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance. The purpose of the zoning ordinance is to serve the public health, safety, comfort,
convenience, and general welfare; to provide the economic and social advantages resulting from
an orderly planned use of economic, natural, and community resources; to encourage, guide, and
provide for the future growth and development of the county; and to implement the goals,
objectives, policies, and procedures of the master plan (SCC 17.02.020).

As stated in Sections 1.3 and 2.1 above, planning staff finds that the purpose and intent, and the
uses allowed in the 1-C zone conform to the elements of the master plan. as well as the
regulations and provisions of the county zoning ordinance.

2.2.2  Application for zone lext amendment

SCC 17.03.220 states that amendments to Title 17 (zoning ordinance) may be initiated by the
board, planning commission, or an owner of a lot or parcel, by applying with the Planning
Director a signed and completed application. The Planning Director must consider whether or
not information provided by the applicant substantiates findings for approval. The applicant will
then proceed with its presentation of such to the planning commission and board for
consideration. The subject application was initiated by the land owner and is hereby presented to
the planning commission and board with discussion, findings, and recommendations.

2.2.3  Zone map amendment, applicability

While not subject to this request, a property owner who desires to apply the I-C zone (if
adopted), or any other zone to a piece of land, is required to apply for a zone map amendment
that will be considered in public hearing by the board with recommendation by the planning
commission. The board and planning must consider: (a) how the proposal will impact the
immediate vicinity; (b) how the proposal supports the goals. objectives, and recommendations of
the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the neighborhood where the subject
parcel is situated; (¢) if the proposed amendment will impact properties within the use district;
and (d) any impacts on public services and facilities, and availability of water resources.

Notwithstanding approval of the I-C zone, any proposal to apply it to land will require further
review by the board and planning commission.

3. Public Comment

3.1 Public comments regarding proposal

Staff has received no public comment for this application request.

Page 6 of' 26



4. Findings

4.1 Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the zone text amendment under the recommended conditions
of approval shown in Section 5. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

4.1.1 The zone text amendment complies with federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

4.1.2 The zone text amendment substantially conforms to and supports the goals, objectives,
and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan concerning land use and related
policies.

4.1.3 The zone text amendment considers uses that pursuant to the master plan and zoning
ordinance occur on abutting lands, and it reasonably mitigates potential adverse impacts that
may be caused by its uses.

4.1.4 The zone text amendment does not conflict with the minimum requirements of Title 17
zoning ordinance or SCC Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone text amendments.

4.1.5 The proposed zone text amendment will not cause uses that will likely negatively impact
existing or planned public facilities, and it will not adversely impact the public health, safety,
and welfare.

4.1.6 The proposed zone text amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions, such
as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

4.2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the zone text amendment application, the following findings
with an explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to federal,
Nevada State, and Storey County regulations.

4.2.2 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to and
support the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan
concerning land use and related policies.

4.2.3 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not sufficiently
consider uses that may pursuant to the master plan and zoning ordinance occur on abutting
lands, and it does not reasonably mitigate potential adverse impacts that may be caused by its
allowed uses.

4.2.4 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment may cause uses that will

negatively impact existing or planned public facilities, may adversely impact the public
health, safety, and welfare, and may create non-conforming conditions.

Page 7 of 26



5. Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Official zoning text requirements

The official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be amended to
include Chapter *17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone”, and existing Chapter 17.08 Zones
Generally and other applicable zoning chapters must be amended to appropriately reference the
subject zone.

5.2 Official zoning map requirements

The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to depict the subject zone designation
that is added to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance. The Official
Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the signature of the chairman of the Board
attested by the Storey County Clerk under the following words: “This is to certified that this is
the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning
Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada™ together with the date of adoption.

5.3 Changes made promptly

The changes approved by the board with recommendation by the planning commission must be
entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County Zoning Map (and the
applicable area zoning maps) promptly as reasonable afler the amendment has been approved,
with the entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of
the purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Arca Zoning
Map which may periodically be made or published. the Official Storey County Zoning Map and
Area Zoning Maps shall be kept in the Office of the Storey County Clerk and Recorder. The
Storey County Recorder shall be the final authority as to the current zoning status of the land and
water area, buildings, and other structures in the county.

54 Copies of official zoning text and map

Signed and sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and Area Zoning Maps, and
official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be available for
public viewing at the Offices of the Storey County Clerk and Storey County Recorder.

5.5 General requirements

The zone text amendment and related map amendment must comply with and remain in
conformance with all provisions set forth by this zone map amendment and all applicable
federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations.

Page 8 of 26



6. Power of the Board and Planning Commission

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“*SCC”™) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration,

7.  Planning Commission Action

At its November 13, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant,
county staff, and the public. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
compatibility concerns; access and traffic impacts for several allowed uses; zoning and use
entitlements; potential impacts to areas where the zone may be allowable; potential location and
placement of the zoning designation; and overall benefits and impacts that the I-C zone may
have on the county and its communities. There was no public comment for or against the
proposal. Commissioner Tyler asked several questions about traffic and other impacts generated
by large-scale casinos allowed by the zone. Planning staff stated that the I-C zone is only
allowed near major arterial routes such as Interstate 80 and USA Parkway, which are typically
developed to standards that would accommodate large-scale casinos and other uses.
Commissioner Tyler and the planning commission asked that a special use permit be required for
large-scale casinos. Staff read into the records its recommended findings to be included with a
motion for approval. Members of the planning commission who were present voted unanimously
(4 votes with 4 planning commissioners present) to approve the zone text amendment in
accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff, except that a special use permit
shall be required for large-scale casinos.

8. Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1. This motion is
recommended by staff, but does not contorm to the recommendation by the planning commission
regarding special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 2 for approval, as an
alternative, may be made in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1 and the
recommendation by the planning commission, but against the recommendation by stalf regarding
special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in Subsection 4.2. The findings of fact in the
respective section of this report, and other findings of fact determined appropriate by the body
should be made part of the motion.

Page 9 01 26



Motion 1 — Recommended motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subscction 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by the planning commission that a special use permit shall be
required for large-scale casinos, | (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text
Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial
Zone” to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Approve zone text amendment as presented, except modify planning
commission recommendation so a special use permit is not required for large casinos

Motion 2 — Alternative motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section S of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by staff that a special use permit not be required for large-scale
casinos, 1 (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 1-C Industrial Commercial Zone™ to Storey County
Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Approve zone text amendment as recommended by the planning commission,
and require a special use permif for large casinos

Motion 3 — Alternative motion (denial)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.2 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, or other findings found appropriate, and against the recommendation for
approval by staff and the planning commission, | (commissioner) motion to a deny Storey
County Zone Text Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial Commercial Zone™ to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Deny text amendment

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 1-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Exhibit B: Application No, 2014-020

Page 10 of 26



Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Chapter 17.39

IC Industrial-Commercial Zone
Sections:
17.39.010  Applicability.
17.39.015  Purpose and Intent
17.39.020  Allowed Uses
17.39.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
17.39.040  Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
17.39.050  Minimum Parcel Area
17.39.070  Loading Area
17.39.080  Sctback Requirements

17.39.010 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the IC Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in the C Commercial
Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and uses in the CR Commercial-Residential
zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-Residential zone.

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the 1C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas within the county where certain
industrial and commercial uses and activitics may be established and maintained together to promote
efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy
commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic
arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed uses are
compatible. It is not intended for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial arcas, such as
Gold Hill, Virginia City, Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are allowed in the IC
Industrial-Commercial Zone.
A. Commercial uses including:
1. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

a. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery  stores,
neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and shopping centers, and super
regional stores and shopping centers.

b. Secasonal holiday sales and uses.

c. Secasonal farmers markets.

2. Commercial offices and financial institutions:

a. Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants, insurance,

employment agencies. consulting firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,

secretarial services, associations and other similar office uses and activities.

Page 11 of 26



b. Building maintenance and services.
c. Business and professional offices and buildings.
d. Convention and meeting facilities,

3. Personal services:

a. Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons, tailors, massage
establishments, and similar type uses.

b. Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
c. Childcare of any number of children.
d. Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services,

4. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns, timeshares,
and vacation rentals,

5. Tourist and visitor services:

a. Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners, fast-food,
coffee shops and coffee houses. soda-fountains, saloons and taverns, and micro-breweries
with on-site and off-site sales.

b. Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on foot, gold
panning, and museums.

¢. Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony rides, and
carriage and stagecoach rides.

d. Theaters.

6. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming (when incidental to a
primary use and limited to no more than 13 slot and/or video machines), golf driving ranges,
miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and
saunas, tennis courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and

facilities, seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and other similar recreational uses and
activities.

7. Civic uses:
a. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff.
b. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
c. Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent.

d. Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices. post offices, community centers, and
courts of law.

Page 12 of 26



e. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies, colleges
and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice training, whether
public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is required for education institutions and
academies that include student residential accommodations.

f.  Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks, walking and
bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information Kiosks.

g. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-modal
transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail infrastructures, train

tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

h. Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals.

8. General services:

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair. gun repair, general contractors offices, heavy
and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, manufactured home sales and service,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops, video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activities.

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

9. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges, recreational and

10.

1.

social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private clubs.

Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses.
Uses also include community gardens.

Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area where slots
and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots and/or video machines,
and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission substations, and

ancillary uses.

. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

. Mini-warchouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat, utility trailer,

horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

. Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale, barter, or trade of items

associated with a business outside of a permanent building.

. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other motorized

vehicles.

. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

. Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 13 of 26



19. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

20. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use, placed

21.

upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in conformance with section 17.12.048.

Other uses similar to the above which are determincd by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

B. Light industrial uses including the following:

Lad

%

8.

9.

10.

. Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process that uses already
manufactured components 1o assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic,
leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts.

. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops, carpet

cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.

. Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, custom

animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural
entertainment and commercial uses.

. Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and refining,

upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers. and heavy equipment

associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

Manufactured home and modular home sales lots,

Propane sales and storage.

Firewood sales and storage.

Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing, and
experimentation is prohibited.

. Building material manufacturing.

. Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

. Warchouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale distribution.
. Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and detailing (manual

hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(including painting and body repair). sales, and rental.

. Truck stops.

Page 14 0f 26



17. Solid waste recycling collection center.

18. Solid waste recveling center,

19. Brick. tile or terra cotta products manufacturing,

20. Hunting, fishing. and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game farms.

. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing, treatment, or
storage.

22, Watchman's dwelling, whether permanent or temporary,

23. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment

associated with a commereial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

24. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses

permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uscs including the following:

1

13

o

6

. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already manufactured
components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, 'wood.
glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and manufacturing operations involving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section 17.39.030 as requiring
a special use permit.

. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other similar chemicals
within a warehouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of liquid petroleum products within a warehouse facility.

. Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpenting, varnishes, and other such chemicals. Manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid
petroleum products are prohibited.

. Paper manufacturing.
. Bottling plants.

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

Unless

stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit

pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

1

Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses under this
subsection must comply with the regulations under Title S Business licenses, and be located no
closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school, religious institution, public building or
facility. or another permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and

Page 15 0f 26



w2

L

6.

300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities,

. Fairgrounds, rodeo arcnas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and similar

USES,

. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and theme rides,

roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and production of

movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.

. Permancnt outdoor theatres.
. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks. and other maintenance, display, or possession of one

or more wild animals.

10. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent care, clinics,

convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services,

. Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These uses are only allowed

within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which is zoned 1-2 Heavy Industrial,
IC Industrial-Commercial, or C Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public or
private school or religious institution.

. Retail establishments featuring the display, lease, or rental of “adult material”™ books,

merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded video
devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia “adult™ material. The
merchandise shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the purchaser or lessee off
the premises of the business.

. Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to an on-site

construction project or when located within 2,500 feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

. Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

. Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland creation, water restoration

and recyeling.

. The keeping of 5 or more dogs or 3 or more potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A

minimum of 10 acres is required,

. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

. Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with action by the planning

commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special use permit within the zone.

Page 16 of 26



17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten stories or 120 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not
apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers,
flagpoles, and commercial and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas. Wind energy
turbine support structures are regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel area requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on a parcel of no less
than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than one-half acre;
and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than 3 acres. The minimum area
requirement for uses requiring a special use permit shall be determined by the special use permit, except
that the area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet.

17.39.060 Loading Area
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.070 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located no closer than 50 feet
from any property line; (B) light-industrial uses may be located no closer than 20 feet from any property
line: and (C) commercial uses shall have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front
setback. Uses requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the granted
special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances shall be no less than 10 feet from

any property line.

Page 17 0f 26



Exhibit B: Application No. 2014-020 (Zone Text Amendment)
The following application includes a request for both a zone text and zone map amendments. For
zone map amendment applicability, refer to Application and Staff Report No. 2014-021.

Storey County Planning Department

26 South “B" Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone: (775) 847-1144 Fax; (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounly.org

Development Application

Submit this completad application and all attachments atong with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) al least 30 days pricr to the meeting you wish 1o have your requost scheduled. The application
will not be accepled unleas complate, including attachments (applicant will be notifiad within 15 days if application is

and what Is still required). The application feo is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Development.

Project Number:

Property Owner: _Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LIC
A land owhasn miast be kitod on this applicaton. Typo or privt iegibly 11 Llack or bise ik

cfo Robert M. Sader, 8600 Techmology Way, Suite 101

Mailing Address:

City: Reno  State:. WV Zip: 89521
Telephono (Home) { ) N/A __Business (175 ) 329-8310
Applicant,__ SAME
Al applicanis must be lated on Wis appicetion.

Mailing Address;  SAME .
City: State. _Zip: i
Telephone (Home) ( 1 Business ( 1
[CGold Hill OVirginia City [ VC Highlands (] Highland Ranches  [[] Virginia Ranches

(1 acre) {10 ncras) (40 screa)
CIMark Twain [JHafed CLockwood  [[JPainted Rock PRI [Jother

Pfojeci Address: Waltham Way and I1-80

“161-98 and 99; 004-162-01 and 02;
Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN}:_&%_—% E&—%{L Qz.gggj. 04, gpd 05

N/A Block: N/A Acreage: 319.852

Lot:

Lofs

Page 18 of 26



“Application Type | Application Fee “Application Type | Application Fee
Abandonment $200.00 Amended Map n/a
| [] Condition nla [_] Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
1 Amendment Adjustment
[[] Development $1,000.00 " |TJ Extension of Time 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) | ExtensionOnly)
[ ] Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | [] Lot Consolidation nla
(40 acre minimum) lot
[C) Master Plan Map $2.900.00 | KX Master Plan Text $800.00 |
Amendment | Amendment
[C] Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour T[T Street Name nfa
| Exploration and | Request
| Registration | | o
[T Parcel Map - $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [ Parcel Map Final nla
| Record of Survey |
H:] Planned Unlit $500.00 + 1.00 perlot | [_] Planned Unit £200.00 + 25.00 per lot
! Development (PUD) - Development - Final
| Tentative =
. [[] "Special Use Permit | $250.00 T T*Special Use Permit | $450.00
| = Minor | -Routine
[T *Special Use Permit | $750.00 [ T*Special Use Permit | $2.500.00

| — Major

- Major Industrial

T ] Subdivision Map - | $500.00 + 1.00 per ot | [] Subdivision Map - | $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
| Tentative Final
"] Variance - n/a "I Varlance $100.00
! Administrative -
| L Wireless [ JWireless nfa

Communication Facility Communication

Facility, Modification
Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 5] Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professicnal council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed wrilten permission by the applicant.

V M\\ g

Applicants Initlals

“If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.

Juts

Page 19 of 26



Storey Cownty Gevelopment App waliun

tail Descri Ju
Aftached additonal pages as necessary

SEE ATTACHED

Page 20 of 26




INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment 1o the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning lext change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™ which was formerly i Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The l’rqurt>-
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attached to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine (9) parcels subject 1o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
ol Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Scnate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county's board of commissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment.

The result of these actions was to transter eighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County. Nine (9) of those parcels are awned by TRI and are subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“Center”). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center is separaied from the Property by lhe
Truckee River. It is a logical extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Cenler.

The basic entitlement for the Center is the Devclopment Agreement dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID"), Applications to annex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application 1o expand the service territory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is I-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Cade edition), which allows light industrial zoning uscs and also z_'.liows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land. This application seeks (o add a portion of the Property

Page 21 of 26



INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, 4
zoming map change, and zoning text change for real property (the “Propenty™) owned by
‘Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI) which was formerly in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attached 1o this application, including & map of the parcels.

There are nine (9) parcels subject 10 this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

‘The 2013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.3
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county’s board ol commissioners.
On June 17. 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment,

The result of these actions was to transfer cighteen {18) parcels [rom Washoe
County to Storey County. Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TRI and are subject to
this application

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center ("Center”). The
current northwestem boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Truckee River. Itis a logical extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Property as a pant of the Center,

The basic entitlement for the Center is the Development Agreement dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Improvement Disteiet (“TRIGID™), Applications t0 annex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is 1-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land. This application seeks to add a portion of the Property

Page 22 of 26



Storey Courty Development Applicatian

Professional Consultant/Representative(s)
Name: Robert M. Sader
Address: 8000 Technology wWay, Suite 101
City: Rend State;_Nevada Zip;__89521
Phone: (T75)329=8310 Emailrmsadex@robertmsaderitd.com  Cell: N/A
Applicant’s Affidavit:
A N/A , belng duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described
(Printed name)

project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted aze in
all respects complete, true and correct to the bast of my knowiedge and belief. | understand that no assurance of guarantee
can be given by members of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Slgnature of Apphicant wlo

State of Nevada,
County of Slorey

Signed and sworn 1o before me on

_———

by,

ety s Sanators

Liy Commission Explres

Property Owner's Affidavit:

|, Tahoe-Reno Induatrial, LIC, being duly swom, depose and say that | am an owner® in fee of the described
(Printed name)

property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agreae to, the filling of this applicaticn, and that the

statements and answers herein contalned and the information herewith submitted are in all respects compiets, true and

correct to the best of my knowledge and bellef. | understand that no assurance or guarantaa can be given by members of

. Blanning Department Staff,
UITTLT e /el
ert W, Sader, Legal Counsel

State of Nevada,

County of 8lbmy Washoe \ . TINA FORD

Signed and sworn to before me on ) ~ by, s?;?r?g; PNtéﬁuc
ADA

APPT. NO. 02-76303-2
MY APPT EXPIRES JUNE 8. 2018

Kolvr 1“. M. Sader
\ ZuNIn A

Nilery's Sgnatre

o

hj&/&“ 5_4 J0L8

My Commizs

ot d

Page 23 of 26



Sroey Coumy Development Application

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittal Regquirements

Application Type

Detailed

Descrption/Justfication

ﬁ

Paid Tax Receipt
Original Map Mylar
Map & Data in CAD
Formal on Disk

Floor Plan

Title Report

Drainage Report

1
|
|

Soils Report

Teaffic Report

Water Rights

Reclamation Plan

Additional Information -

Depanment

Abandonment

x

Ameanded Map

| x| Reduced Map (11x17)

| x| Plot Plan

x| x| Legal Desciiption - Deod

Condition Amendmant

TP 53

Boundary Line Acjustment

Development Agreament
| {Requires Special Use Permil)

» |3¢|»| 2| x| Development Application

>

>

|

|
x}x
) 4
S

Extension of Time Request (One
| Year Extension Only)

Land Dwision Map (40 acre
minimum

» | > | x [ x]|x x| Check with Planning

Lot Consolidation®

| x| x|

1

Master Plan Map Amendment

|| 3¢ | 3 | 3 || 3¢| 5| x| Vicinity Map

)‘!}K >

Master Pian Text Amendment

Natural Resources Exploration
and Registration Review

MMM M| K

MM || X x| M| x| XR|X

x
x
x
*

Parcel Map - Record of Survey

Parcel Map

X

>

Planned Unit Developmeant,
Tenlative

X

slEIEEEEEEEEEEEEER

Planned Unit Development, Final

X

x XNJXXNXX

*Administrative lot consolidation procedure

Hofl B

Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.

Page 24 of 26



Starey County D=velupinent Apphuatien

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

|

Submittal Requirements

Application Type

Pald Tax Recaipt

Development Application
Detalled
Description/Justification
Original Map Mylar
Map & Data in CAD

| Format on Disk
Flgor Plan
Legal Description - Deed
Title Report
Drainage Repont

Soils Report

| Traffic Report

| Water Rights

| Reclamation Plan

I Addttional Information —
Check with Planning
Department

Special Use Permit - Minor

I

—_

Specal Use Permit - Routine

.._..i__,..
1
|

Speaal Use Permit — Major

Special Use Permil —
Major Industrial

> | % %> Reduced Map (11 x 17)

X | x| x>

XKKKI

Street Name Reguest

i
|
4
T
|
|
I

sl we | 3¢ | 3¢ | 3¢ x]\.rlcinityh‘lnp

Subdivision Map - Tentative

>

Page 25 of 26

x| x| [ x]|x|x]| PlolPlan

Subdivision Map - Final

Vanance - Administrative

Variance

Wireless Communication
Facifity

Mo M| M| K| K KX
>

Wireless Communication
Facility, Modification

Mo | x| x| X
>

Zoning Map Change

M| M| M| MMM MM K|

Zoning Text Change

wlElEE = E EE EENE

Other

x

x| || x

||| x| x

> | x| x| x| x
x

MM X M| oM | XXX

Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.



10.

11.

12,

13,

14,

15,

16.

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

Davelogment Application -~ You can get an application from the Planning Department al the Storey County
Courthouse or online at StoreyCounty.org.

Detailed Description/Justification — The description of your project and the reason for the projecl. Be as detailed
as possible and submit any Information to help explain your project (photos, maps, etc.).

Paid Tax Raceipt — This Is a receipt showing your properly taxes are current or pald in full. A copy can be
obtained fram the Clerk/Treasurer's office located on the 2™ floor in the Storey County Courthousa.

Piot Plan - A diagram showing the location of ell buildings, well and septic (if any). This can be obtalned from the
Building Department or Assessor's offica or neatly hand drawn by the applicant.

Reduced Map (11 x 17) — Applications with large maps mus! supply one that can be scannad in for use in reports.

Original Map Mylar — This map is done by a professional surveyor.

Map & Data in CAD format on Disk = This map Is done by a professional surveyor,

Vicinity Map — This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy ¢an be obtained from the
assessor's office located on the 1% fioor in the Storey County Courthouse.

Floor Plan - These are building plans for a house (subdivision) and done by a builder,
Legal Description - Deed — Done by a professional surveyor,
Title Report -~ Done by a professional company.

Drainage Report — Done by a professional company.

Solls Report — Dane by a professional company.
Traffic Report — Done by a professional company.
Water Rights — You ¢an obtain this from State Water Department,

Reclamation Pian — Done by a professional company.

(Proposed text amendment attached to application is located in Exhibit A above.)

Page 26 of 26



Ordinance No. 15-269

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 zoning text (Zoning Ordinance) by adding
Chapter 17.39 IC Industrial-Commercial Zone, and other properly related matters.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 zoning text (Zoning Ordinance) by
adding Chapter 17.39 1C Industrial-Commercial Zone, and other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of
Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 17 is amended by adding text as follows:
Chapter 17.39

IC Industrial-Commercial Zone
Sections:
17.39.010 Applicability.
17.39.015 Purpose and Intent
17.39.020 Allowed Uses
17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area
17.39.070  Loading Area
17.39.080 Setback Requirements

17.39.010 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the 1C Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in
the C Commercial Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and
uses in the CR Commercial-Residential zone are regulated by chapter 17.30
Commercial-Residential zone,

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the IC Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas with the
county where certain industrial and commercial uses and activities may be
established and maintained together to promote efficiency, ensure compatibility,
and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy commercial and
light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal
traffic arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with
which the allowed uses are compatible, 1t is not intended for residential areas or
general neighborhood commercial areas, such as Gold Hill, Virginia City,

Page 1 of 8



Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are

allowed in the IC Industrial-Commercial Zone,

A. Commercial uses including:

. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

a. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and
shopping centers, and super regional stores and shopping centers.

b. Seasonal holiday sales and uscs.

¢. Seasonal farmers markets.

2. Commercial offices and financial institutions:

a. Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants,
insurance, employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer
representatives, newspapers, secretarial services, associations and
other similar office uses and activities,

b. Building maintenance and services.

c. Business and professional offices and buildings.

d. Convention and meeting facilities.

3. Personal services:

a. Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons,
tailors, massage establishments, and similar type uses.

b. Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
¢. Childeare of any number of children.
d. Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.

4. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and
breakfast inns, timeshares, and vacation rentals.

h

. Tourist and visitor services:

a. Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in
diners, fast-food, coffee shops and coffee houses, soda-fountains,

Page 2 of 8



d.

saloons and taverns, and micro-breweries with on-site and off-site
sales.

Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided
tours on foot, gold panning, and museums,

Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse
and pony rides, and carriage and stagecoach rides.

Theaters.

6. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming
(when incidental to a primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or
video machines), golf driving ranges, miniature golf, country clubs, health
clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and saunas, tennis courts,
permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and other similar
recreational uses and activities.

7. Civic uses:

h.

Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff.

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport
services.

Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent.

Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices,
community centers, and courts of law,

Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required for education institutions and academies
that include student residential accommodations,

Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog
parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities,
and information Kiosks,

Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer
centers, multi-modal transit hubs, parking garages and storage,
railroad and light rail infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad
switchyards and turntables.

Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and
small animals.

8. General services:

Page 3 of 8



9.

10.

I

12,

13

14

16.

17.

21

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general
contractors offices, heavy and light equipment rental, feed and tack
stores, manufactured home sales and service, pawn brokers, pet sales
and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops, video rentals, and other
similar general services uses and activities,

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal
lodges, recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities
for other private clubs.

Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to
the permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total
floor arca where slots and/or video machines are located, where there are
more than 15 slots and/or video machines, and where other forms of
gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uses.

Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

Mini-warehouses and storage facilitics for rent including recreational
vehicle, boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

. Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale,

barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside of a permanent
building.

Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors,
and other motorized vehicles.

Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and airera ft facilities and
uses.,

Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a
permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and
in conformance with section 17.12.048.

Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be
consistent with the uses permitted within the zone.

Page 4 of 8



B. Light industrial uses including the following:

I.

9

10

12

13.

14,

i
h

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production
process that uses already manufactured components to assemble, print, or
package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood, glass, stones,
or computer and electronic parts.

Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service
shops, carpet cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar
usces,

Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural
animal production, custom animal processing, agricultural rescarch,

agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural entertainment and commercial
uses.

Trade and eraftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry
manufacturing and refining, upholstery shops, monument works, and
similar uses.

Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers,
and heavy equipment associated with a commercial building contractor or
business when not directly associated with a construction project on the
premises.

Manufactured home and modular home sales lots.
Propane sales and storage.
Firewood sales and storage.

Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permancnt
structure.

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory,
testing, and experimentation is prohibited,

Building material manufacturing.
Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale
distribution.

Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and

detailing (manual hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line
methods), service and fueling stations, repair (including painting and body
repair), sales, and rental.

Page 5ol 8



16. Truck stops.

17. Solid waste recycling collection center.

18. Solid waste recycling center.

19. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing.

20. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game
farms.

21. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge
processing, treatment, or storage.

22. Watchman’s dwelling, whether permanent or temporary.

23. Qutdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and
heavy equipment associated with a commercial building contractor or
business when not directly associated with a construction project on the
premises.

24. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be
consistent with the uses permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uses including the following:

1. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses
already manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product
such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and
clectronic parts and manufacturing operations involving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section
17.39.030 as requiring a special use permit.

2. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varn ishes, and other
similar chemicals within a warchouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of petroleum and liquid petroleum products within
a warchouse facility.

4, Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other such
chemicals. Manufacturing, reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of
cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid petroleum products are
prohibited.

5. Paper manufacturing.
6. Bottling plants.

7. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be
consistent with the uses permitted within the zone,

Page 6 of 8



17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a
special use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

I. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally,
uses under this subsection must comply with the regulations under Title 5
Business licenses, and be located no closer than 1,000 feet from a public or
private school, religious institution, public building or facility, or another
permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use,
and 300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

2. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

3. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and
arenas, and similar uses.

4. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill
and theme rides, roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession
booths.

5. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development
and production of movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

6. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding
accommodations.

7. Permanent outdoor theatres.

8. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

9, Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display,
or possession of one or more wild animals.

10. Healtheare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent
care, clinics, convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care
service, continuum of care facilities for seniors, and group care services.

11

Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These
uses are only allowed within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center which is zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial, IC Industrial-Com mercial, or C
Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public or private
school or religious institution.

12. Retail establishments featuring the display, lease, or rental of “adult
material” books, merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks
including DVDs and other recorded video devices, computer disks,
instruments, devices or paraphernalia “adult” material. The merchandise
shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the pu rchaser or

lessee off the premises of the business.

.

13. Temporary (less than 1 year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not
incidental to an on-site construction project or when located within 2,500
feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

14. Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

Page 7 of 8



15. Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland
creation, water restoration and recycling.

16. The keeping of 7 or more dogs or potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A
minimum of 10 acres is required,

17. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

18. Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with
action by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a
special use permit within the zone,

17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten
stories or 120 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The
requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes,
chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers, flagpoles, and commercial
and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas. Wind energy turbine
support structures are regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and
structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel area requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on
a parcel of no less than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located
on a parcel no less than one-half acre; and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located
on a parcel no less than 3 acres. The minimum area requirement for uses requiring
a special use permit shall be determined by the special use permit, except that the
area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet,

17.39.060 Loading Area

Loading arca must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All
truck parking and docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and
travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.070 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located
no closer than 30 feet from any property line; (B) light-industrial uses may be
located no closer than 20 feet from any property line; and (C) commercial uses shall
have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front setback. Uses
requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the
granted special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances
shall be no less than 10 feet from any property line.

Page 8 of 8



Proposed on

by Commissioner

, 2015.

, 2015.

Passed on
Vote: Ayes Commissioners
Nays Commissioners
Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effectiveon




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 10/20/15 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ x ] Public hearing required [ X ]

1. Title: (Continued from 10/06/15 board meeting). Discussion /Possible Action: SECOND
READING Ordinance No. 15-268 (Zone /Text Amendments). An ordinance amending Storey County
Code Title 17 Zoning to update the /procedures and requirements of the title by amending the
following chapters: Ordinance title page; Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions; 17.06
Nonconforming Uses; 17.08 Zones Generally; 17.10 Definitions; Chapter 17.12 General Provisions; 17.15
P Public Zone; 17.16 R-1 Single-Family Residential Zone; 17.20 R-2 Multi-Family Residential Zone; 17.24
A Agriculture Zone; 17.28 C Commercial Zone; 17.30 C-R Commercial-Residential Zone; 17.32 F
Forestry Zone; 17.34 I-1 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35 [-2 Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.36 1-3 Heavy
Industrial Zone; 17.38 I-S Special Industrial Zone; 17.40 E Estate Zone; 17.44 SPR Special Planning
Review Zone; 17.48 Historic Overlay District; 17.56 PUD Planned Unit Development; 17.76 N-R Natural
Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards; 17.92 Mineral Exploration Mining and Extraction; and
other properly related matters. Public participation is encouraged. Copies of the text amendments may
be obtained from the Planning Department website at www .storeycounty.org/521/updates, at
775.847.1144 or from planning@storeycounty org.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation of the planning commission and county stalf, and
in conformance with the applicable NRS and Storey County Code 17.03 Administrative
Provisions, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the Ordinance No. 15-268 text amendments to
Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance).

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: In conformance with NRS 278 and Storey County Code 17.03 Administrative
Provisions, the Storey County Planning Commission and county staff
recommend approval of Ordinance No. 15-268 amending Storey County Code
Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) as shown in the attached correspondence
(correspondence provided at the 09/01/15 board meeting), and the addendum
enclosed herewith.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosure: Ordinance No. 15-268 (Storey County Zoning Ordinance as
to be amended; enclosure provided at the 09/01/15 board meeting); and
addendum included herewith. Note: Chapter 17.92 is also included in

the addendum.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewe :
7y Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
kil Denied

Approved with Modifications o
Continued Agenda Item No: ' -

Page 1 of 1

e
[



Storey County Planning Department

775.847.1144
ADDENDUM
To: Storey County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Meeting Date: 10/20/15
Re: Changes to recommended amendments in Title 17 zoning after final
evaluation.
Note:
Bold blue underline = Modified proposed amendments
Bold blue = Proposed amendment unchanged since first reading
Bold red strike-thru underline = Modified proposed amendments
Red strike-thru (not bold) = Proposed amendment unchanged since first reading
Black = Qriginal text unchanged

17.10 Definitions: Planning staff recommends the following changes to the recommendations in
SCC 17.10 by adding blue and deleting red strike-out underlined text as follows:

17.10 Definitions

Auto wrecking and dismantling yard. The term “Auto Wrecking and Dismantling Yard”
use refers to a facility where land is used for the salvage, dismantling, or wrecking of motor
vehicles and trailers required to be registered under the motor vehicle laws of the state of
Nevada, including premises used in the storing, keeping, buying, selling, or dealing in
salvaged, dismantled, wrecked, inoperative or disabled vehicles or integral parts of
component materials thereof, and the storage, sale or dumping of dismantled, partially
dismantled or wrecked inoperative vehicles and trailers, or parts thereof. Automobile
dismantling shall- must not include the incidental storage of inoperative or dismantled
vehicles in connection with the legal operation of an automobile repair garage or
automobile body and fender repair shop while waiting for repair. Uses shall must not be
carried out within the required setback and a natural or artificial screen or buffer-shal

Page 1 of 23




must be provided to obscure the subject property from the street on which lands abut and
from any opposite or adjoining properties.

(13 H = P )

Dwelling Unit. Fhe-term—Dwelling Unit"refersto-aroom-or-group-ofre ehretivd
WW%WMW&HW%WMW@WW—&W
The term “Dwelling Unit” refers to any building or portion of a building used exclusively by one
or more persons for permanent (thirty days or more) residential purposes. A dwelling unit
must have, at a minimum, a permanent kitchen, and a bathroom with a bathtub or shower.
A dwelling unit may also include habitable space for living, sleeping, and eating. The term
does not include hotels, elubs: motels, boarding or rooming houses, transient eommereial
lodging. corrections facilities and institutions, or health care institutions and facilities.

Extended Stay Hotel. The term “Extended Stay Hotel” refers to transient lodging in which
each unit has a kitchen (complete with sink and range) and the length of stay by guests is
typically 28 days or longer, but not longer than 180 days. Extended stay hotels are not
residential uses, but rather accommodate extended temporary stays for business-related
purposes. Extended stay hotels are not considered shelters for the homeless; convalescent,
civic convalescent, or group care facilities; or continuum of care service facilities.

Hotel. The term “Hotel” refers to any transient eommereiat lodging use having two or more
units providing for dwelling, living, or sleeping, as well as on-site parking for each unit. These
units are intended primarily for transient use and may or may not provide cooking facilities.

[Move to alphabetical order.] Junkyard. The term “Junkyard” us refers to any space used
for collecting, storage, abandonment or sale of junk, wastepaper, rags, scrap metal,
discarded material or similar waste including the dismantling, demolition or abandonment
of automobiles, other vehicles, machinery or parts or placement of 1 or more dismantled or
partially dismantled vehicles.

Motel. The term “Motel” refers to any transient eommereiat lodging use having 2 or more units
providing for dwelling, living or sleeping therein, with or without cooking facilities, primarily
intended for transient use, and having individual on-site parking areas allocated to each unit.

Transient Commereial-Lodging Use, The term “Transient Commereial Use Lodging” refers
to the use of a unit, for remuneration, as a hostel, hotel, inn, motel, resort, vacation rental, or
other form of transient lodging for a term of occupancy, possession, or use of the unit or
dwelling of less than 38 28 consecutive calendar days, except for Extended Stay Hotels as
defined in this chapter.

Page 2 of 23



Vacation Rental. The term “Vacation Rental” refers to any transient eommereial-use-lodging
providing for dwelling, living, or sleeping within a single-family or multi-family residential
dwelling for a period of less than 30 days in a 1-year period.

17.12 General: Planning staff recommends the following changes to the recommendations in
SCC 17.12 by adding blue and deleting red strike-out underlined text as follows:

[The amended text in this section was not bolded in first reading. The text is hereby bolded
and unchanged since first reading.] Accessory buildings must be no less than 6 feet from
another building, and must comply with applicable building and fire separation
requirements. Regular setback distances apply to accessory buildings with exception of the
following.

A. Accessory buildings in R and SPR zone.

1. Accessory buildings up to 500 square feet or 20 feet in height may be located up
to 3 feet of the rear and side property line.

2. Accessory buildings exceeding 500 square feet or 20 feet in height must conform
to regular setback distances. However, a variance may be granted by the board
with action by the planning commission to locate an accessory structure
exceeding 500 square feet or 20 feet in height less than the regular setback
distance fo the rear and side property lines.

3. Accessory building(s) may cover no more than 40 percent of the rear yard area.

B. Accessory buildings in E zone.

1. Standard setback distances apply when the lot is larger than one acre. When the
lot is one acre or less, accessory buildings may be placed no closer than 50
percent of the depth of the lot from the front property line, or 60 feet, whichever
is less.

C. Accessory buildings in the I1, 12, I3, and IC zones.

1. Accessory buildings 2,000 square feet or less may be located up to 20 feet of the
front, rear, or side lot line.

D. Accessory buildings in the A and NR zones.

1. The location, placement, and area of accessory buildings in the A and NR zones
are regulated by chapters 17.24 Agriculture zone and 17.76 Natural Resources
zone, respectively.

. Deed restriction. Any detached accessory building proposed to be connected to a
potable water supply line, or a septic system or community water system (i.e., sanitary
sewer) as part of a building permit application shall require a deed restriction to be
filed with the county recorder’s office stipulating that the structure will not be
converted to an accessory dwelling unit as defined by chapter 17.10 Definitions. The
deed restriction shall make the county a party to the restriction and shall be obtained
from the building or planning department. A copy of the recorded deed restriction
shall be required prior to the issuance of the building permit.

G. Temporary accessory structure — during construction. It is unlawful to construct,
erect, or locate private garages or other accessory buildings and uses in the E, R, or
SPR zone without an existing principal building. A temporary building may be

Page 3 of 23




constructed pending the construction of the principal building providing that a

building permit will not be issued for the temporary building unless a permit is also

issued at the same time for the principal building. Temporary accessory dwelling

units are regulated under section 17.12.046 Accessory dwellings, location, and

placement.

[The amended text in this section was not bolded in first reading. The text is hereby bolded
and unchanged since first reading.]

17.12.046

Accessory Dwellings, Location and Placement

The following provisions apply to accessory dwelling units defined in section 17.10

Definitions. Detached accessory dwelling units must be no less than 6 feet to another

building and must comply with applicable building and fire separation requirements.

Unless otherwise stated in this title, regular setback distances apply to accessory dwellings.

A, Accessory dwellings in the A, CR, F, and R2 zones

1.

Dwelling units are regulated by chapter 17.24 Agriculture zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential zone, 17.32 Forestry zone, and 17.20 Multi-family
Residential zone, respectively.

B. Accessorv dwellings in the 11, 12, 13, and IC zones

1.

Special use permit. A special use permit for an accessory dwelling (attached or
detached) may be granted by the board with action by the planning commission
for the purpose of providing 1 watchperson/security living quarters for the
property in which the principal industrial use is located.

Principal use required. No accessory dwelling may be permitted without a

principal industrial use existing on the property.

Occupancy. The dwelling shall be limited to 1 person or 1 family. There shall be
no payment of rent or lease, or payment toward purchase by the occupant of

the dwelling,

C. Accessory dwellings in the E, R1, NR and SPR zones

1.

Special use permit. A special use permit for an accessory dwelling (attached or
detached) may be granted by the board with action by the planning
commission.

Minimum parcel size. The lot size must be at least: 10,000 square feet in the R
and SPR zones; 1 acre in the E zone; and 40 acres in the NR zone.

Principal occupants. The owners of the property in which the accessory
dwelling unit is permitted shall occupy at least one of the dwelling units
(accessory or principal unit) on the premises, except for bona fide temporary
absence.

Building area. The attached and detached accessory dwelling may be no less
than 500 square feet, and the detached accessory dwelling may be no more than
1,000 square feet,

Parking. At least 1 off-street parking shall be provided in addition to the
required parking requirements for the principal use.

One allowed. Only 1 accessory dwelling unit is allowed per parcel.

Affidavit of family. If the accessory dwelling is occupied, an affidavit provided
by the planning department and signed by the property owner(s) must be filed
Page 4 of 23




with the building and planning departments. It must state the name(s) of
person(s) occupying the principal and accessory dwellings and describe the
family lineage between the property owners(s) and the person occupying the
accessory dwelling.

8. Deed restriction. A deed restriction shall be filed with the county recorder’s
office stating that the accessory dwelling unit is a temporary use for immediate
family members. It shall stipulate that the unit will be vacated and converted to
a non-dwelling use (in accordance with the building code) at such time that the
immediate familv member(s) no longer occupy the unit. The deed restriction
form will be provided by the planning department and it shall make the county
a party to the deed restriction. The planning department shall agree in-writing
to allow the property owners(s) to remove the deed restriction if the owner
legally converts the accessory dwelling to a non-dwelling use. A copy of the
recorded deed restriction shall be required and presented to the building
department prior to issuance of a building permit.

D. Temporary accessory dwelling — during construction. It is unlawful to construct, erect,
or locate an accessory dwelling unit in the E, R, or SPR zone without an existing
principal dwelling unit. When the following requirements are met, a temporary
accessory dwelling unit may be constructed pending the construction of the principal
building providing that a building permit will not be issued for the temporary dwelling
unless a permit is also issued at the same time for the principal building. A certificate
of occupancy for the principal building and the accessory dwelling shall not be granted
until the temporary accessory dwelling is converted to a non-dwelling use.

[The amended text in this section was not bolded in first reading. The text is hereby bolded
and unchanged since first reading. |

17.12.049 Comstock Historic District standards

The provisions of NRS 384 establishing and regulating the Comstock Historic District are
made part of this title within the boundaries of the Comstock Historic District. The
boundaries of this area are fixed pursuant to the terms of NRS 384. The provisions of this
section are those contained in NRS 384 as well as other provisions found by this ordinance
to be appropriate for the area.

A. Commercial buildings abutting “C” Street. Commercial buildings abutting “C”
Street and located within the Virginia City Downtown District must have wooden
porches over the top of the sidewalks/boardwalks extending from the building front
to the street, and must have a front sidewalk constructed of wood from the building
front to the street. A variance may be granted by the board with action by the
planning commission when good cause is shown by the applicant.

B. Setback distances.

for each use.

C. Buildings, structures, and exteriors. The following standards apply to all buildings,
structures, and exteriors located with the Comstock Historic District.

Page 5 of 23



1. All exterior materials must consist of a substance shown to have existed prior
to 1942, and building and structure exteriors must be appropriate in design
for that time period.

2. Outdoor signs and advertising devices must comply with the provisions of
chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

3. Lighting within 2,000 feet of the Comstock Historic District boundaries is
limited to incandescent lighting or indirect (concealed) fluorescent, Compact
Florescent Lighting (CFL), or Light Emitting Diode (LED) type lighting.
CLF and LED light emitting devices which are made to look like
incandescent light “bulbs” are permitted to be plainly visible. No neon, or
blinking, flashing, chasing. or motion lights are permitted. The regulations of
this provision including other light emitting devices which appear similar to
neon signs, such as those which employ LEDs similar in hue to neon and
configuration to show a continuous stream of light.

4. Wind energy turbines must conform to the requirements in section 17.12.044.

17.12.100 General Provisions for all zones

C. A Where a commercial business is allowed, a special use permit is required for the
display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside of a
permanent building, except for permitted temporary uses and farmer’s markets. A
business may not display items for sale or conduct any business on the public right-of-
way (See Figure 12.7-9.) or between the public traveled way and building. exeeptas
HHH—l—)&HFMeﬂ—f(ﬂ"—b\r—Heiﬂ-B&FH-ﬁ- meem!—ew&&s—per—nm Rec,esscd door

opcnmgs and thresholds Tiias

Trews ¥ e placed. divpls
srand within the doorway o

| |
Dbt o e i

|

|

Figure 12.9: The diagram Shows_where merchandise and other items may and may not be displayed. The diagram
does not apply to signs and advertising devices which are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

H. Up to 4 dogs and 2 pot-belly pigs more than 12 weeks of age are allowed in any
zone. A special use permit is required to exceed this number. A minimum of 10
acres is required to obtain a special use permit for this use. This restriction does
not apply to the A Agriculture zone.

17.12.044 Height of Buildings and Structures

C. Wind energy turbines. A special use permit is required for all wind energy
turbines located within the Comstock Historic District boundaries. Where allowed
and where a special use permit is required, A- a wind energy turbine of 10 kWh or
less capacity may net be located no closer than its total height, including its support

Page 6 of 23



tower and blade in the upward position, plus 10 percent of its total height, to the lot
boundary in the parcel it is located (see figure 12.1). A variance for reduced setback
may be granted when a wind energy turbine of 10 kWh or less capacity is located on a
parcel of at least | acre. Setbacks for wind energy turbine support towers exceeding 45
feet in height or for wind energy turbines exceeding 10 kWh capacity, must conform to
the approved special use permit.

S0°

e 557

Figure 12.1: Total fall-down setback for a 10 kWh or less capacity wind turbine is the sum of its total height and ten
percent thereof.

17.12.049 Comstock Historic District standards

C. Buildings, structures, and exteriors. The following standards apply to all buildings,
structures, and exteriors located with the Comstock Historic District.

5. All exterior materials must consist of a substance shown to have existed prior to
1942, and building and structure exteriors must be appropriate in design for that
time period.

6. Outdoor signs and advertising devices must comply with the provisions of chapter
17.84 Signs and billboards.

7. Lighting within 2,000 feet of the Comstock Historic District boundaries is limited
to incandescent lighting or indirect (concealed) fluorescent, Compact Florescent
Lighting (CFL), or Light Emitting Diode (LED) type lighting. CLF and LED light
emitting devices which are made to look like incandescent light “bulbs™ are
permitted to be plainly visible. No neon, or blinking, flashing, chasing, or motion
lights are permitted. The regulations of this provision including other light
emitting devices which appear similar to neon signs, such as those which employ
LEDs similar in hue to neon and configuration to show a continuous stream of
light.

8. Wind energy turbines must conform to the requirements in section 17.12.044.

17.20 R2 Zone: Planning staff recommends the following changes to the recommendations in
SCC 17.20 by adding blue and deleting red strike-out underlined text as follows:

17.20.020 Allowed uses
In an R2 multi-family residential zone, land may be used and buildings and structures may be
erected, maintained and used if they are arranged, intended and designed for the following uses:
A SnelesBmtly e e e . eastaR:
Residential uses and buildings of permanent character and permanent location
including the following.

=y

1. One single-family dwelling, detached. The parcel containing this use must be at

Page 7 of 23




least 5,000 square feet.

2. One or more single-family dwellings, attached. This use includes townhouses,
rowhouses, twinhomes, and condominiums. There shall be-no-mere-than Only
one 1 principal building is allowed per lot. There shall-be-no-more than Only 1
dwelling unit is allowed for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area. A special
use permit may be granted for increased dwelling units per square feet of gross
lot area when the use is located within the Virginia City Downtown District
boundaries (see Chapter 17.30 Appendix A). Findings for approval of the
special use permit for increased density shall must, at a minimum, cite no
significant adverse impacts to area vehicular parking, circulation, and egress,
and public health, safety, comfort, convenience, and general welfare.

3. Multi-family dwellings. This use includes apartment buildings, apartment
complexes, duplexes, triplexes, and other configurations of multi-family uses.
There shall-be no-more-than Only 1 dwelling unit is allowed for every 2,000
square feet of gross lot area. A special use permit may be granted for increased
dwelling units per square feet of gross lot area when the use is located within
the Virginia City Downtown District boundaries (see Chapter 17.30 Appendix
A). Findings for approval of the special use permit for increased density shall,
at a minimum, cite no significant adverse impacts to area vehicular parking,
circulation, and egress, and public health, safety, comfort, convenience, and
general welfare.

17.20.025 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit as
provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A. Boarding accommodations including apartment-extended stay hotels, dormitories,
rooming and boarding houses, bed-and-breakfast inns, time-shares, and short-
term vacation rentals. A special use permit is not required for long-term rental
and lease arrangements. Hotels, motels, hostels and other transient eommereiat
lodging uses are prohibited.

17.28 C Zone: Planning staff recommends the following changes to the recommendations in
SCC 17.28 by adding blue and deleting red strike-out underlined text as follows:

17.28.020 Allowed Uses
The following uses are allowed in the C commercial zone unless stated otherwise:

D. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns,
time shares, and vacation rentals, and other transient eemmereiat lodging.

17.30 CR Zone: Planning staff reccommends the following changes to the recommendations in
SCC 17.30 by adding blue and deleting red strike-out underlined text as follows:

17.30.020 Allowed uses
The following uses are allowed in the CR commercial-residential zone unless stated otherwise:
J. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns,

short-term vacation rentals, time shares, apartment extended stay hotels, and other
commeretal transient eemmereiat lodging uses.

Page 8 of 23




L-K. Residential uses and buildings of permanent character and permanent location as
foHews: including the following.

17.30.050

. Multi- famlly dwellings. !

. One single-family dwelling, detached. The parcel containing this use must be at

least 5,000 square feet. of permanenteharacterin-a-permanentlocation:

One or more single-family dwellings, attached. efa-permanent-characterin-a
permanenttocation-This use includes townhouses and, rowhouses, twinhomes,
and condominiums. There shall-be-no-more-than Only one principal building is
allowed per lot. There shall-be-no-more-than Only 1 dwelling unit is allowed for

every 2,000 square feet of gross lnt area except as provided by section
1'? 3(] 040 3 an—+uni-isalewed-for

and-fourplexes: This use mcludes apartment buildings, apartment Lomplexes,
duplexes, triplexes, and other Lonfigu rations of multi- famlly uses except as
provided by section 17.30.050. pr<

every20bbsgaare-teet ob gross fotarens

Setback Requirements

B. Residential uses

17.30.060

. Virginia City Downtown District

a. Single-Family Dwelling, Detached. Setbacks are: front, 0 feet; side, 0
feet; and rear, 10 feet. There shall be-ne-No primary emergency egress
doors or windows may be placed on the building side walls, unless the
subject side walls, doors, and windows are setback a minimum of 5 feet
from the side lot line.*

b. Single-Family and Multi-Family Dwelling, Attached. Setback distances
are: front, 0 feet; side, 0 feet (between each dwelling unit and between
the building and property line); and rear, 10 feet. Thereshall-beno No
primary emergency egress doors or windows may be placed on the
building side walls, unless the subject side walls, doors, and windows
are setback a minimum of 5 feet from the side lot line.*

Use Density and Parcel Width

A, Commerclal use. %hm%ektem&%wm&%ﬁwe%%mm

SR 55 o

The parcel must be at least 2 000 square feet and at least 25 feet in w:dth (thc snde
facing the street). Thereshal-be-atleast-one One parking space must be provided
for each transient eommereial lodging unit.

B. Residential use. Commereial-residentinl-use:

1. Single-family dwelling, detached. The parcel containing this use must be at least

5,000 square feet.

. Single-family dwellings, attached. Fhere-shatl-be-no-more-than-Only 1 dwelling

unit is allowed for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area except as provided in
section 4 below.

. Multi-family dwellings such as apartment buildings, duplexes, triplexes, and

fourplexes. There shall be no more than Only 1 dwelling unit is allowed for
every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area except as provided in section 4 below.
Page 9 of 23




provided-that-no-more-thant-unitis-allowed for every-2:000square-feet-of-grosslot

17.92 Mineral Exploration, Mining, and Extraction: Planning staff recommends the
following changes to SCC 17.92 as recommended by the planning commission. Changes are
shown in blue and red bold and strike-thru. Black non-bold text is to remain unchanged.

Chapter 17.92
Mineral Exploration, Mining, and Extraction

Sections:

17.92.010 Authority

17.92.020 Applicability

17.92.030 Findings of fact

17.92.040 Purpose and intent

17.92.060 Sale or transfer of site

17.92.070 Scale of operation

17.92.080 Application requirements

17.92.090 Ancillary uses

17.92.110 Use of explosive materials

17.92.120 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site
17.92.135 Small operations—Applicability and restrictions
17.92.140 Large operations—Applicability

17.92.145 Large operations—Restrictions

17.92.160 Special use permit conditions of approval
17.92.170 Compliance review

Appendix A: Comstock Historic Preservation Area map

17.92.010 Authority
NRS 244.335 and 278.020 provides the board of commissioners with the authority to:

A. Regulate all character of lawful trade, callings, industries, occupations, professions and
businesses conducted in the county, outside of the limits of incorporated cities and
towns (NRS 244.335),

B. Fix, impose and collect a license tax for revenue or regulation on these trades, callings,
industries, occupations, professions and businesses (NRS 244.335).

C. Regulate and restrict the improvements of land and to control the location and
soundness of structures (NRS 278.020).

D. When regulating and restricting the improvements of land and controlling the location
and soundness of structure, take into account the potential impairment of natural
resources and the total population which the available natural resources will support
without impairment (NRS 278.020).

17.92.020 Applicability

The provision of this chapter apply to exploration and mining for locatable metallic minerals,
such as gold, silver, lead, copper, platinum, zinc, nickel, etc., and non-metallic minerals, such as
fluorspar, mica, limestone and gypsum, titanium, heavy mineral placer form, and gemstones.
Uses incidental to exploration and mining, including on-site maintenance of large domestic
animals, crushing, milling, and processing are also included in the provisions of this chapter.
Recreational use exploration and mining, as defined in chapter 17.10 Definitions, including gold
panning and sluicing activities lasting no longer than five days in a one year period, are exempt

Page 10 of 23




from the provisions of this chapter. Exploration and development associated with aggregate
facilities, including rock quarries, gravel pits, sand or earth borrow pit operations, and the
extraction and processing of sand, diatomite, gravel, and rock from the ground are regulated
pursuant to the zones in this title.

17.92.030 Findings of Fact
The board finds that that:

A. Certain mineral and surface property rights exist across the county and this chapter
serves to protect those rights. This chapter also recognizes and serves to abide by the
Mining Law of 1872 which provides mineral property owners the right to mine where
the property is a mine patent pursuant to title 30 of the United States Code Section 29,
or an unpatented mining claim located pursuant to section 23, as well as the right to
milling and ancillary uses pursuant to section 42(a).

B. The county has a diversified economy including agriculture, commercial, industrial,
tourism, recreation, and mining. Permitted uses under these categories are found to be
economically and socially beneficial to the county, directly and indirectly, when they
are appropriately regulated so that they do not cause substantial adverse impacts to
adjacent uses and are not detrimental to the health, safety, and general welfare of the
citizens, property owners, scholars, and businesses in the county.

C. The provisions of this chapter serve to address and mitigate potential adverse impacts
that mining and related activities may have on the natural and historic environment and
adjacent land uses (e.g., residential, commercial, tourism, etc.) as they now exist or as
they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions
and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or
ordinance adopted or under consideration, pursuant to an official notice by the county
or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

D. The county master plan states that the existing historical environment, including natural
and manmade features, in and around the Virginia City National Historic Landmark
provides a sense of orientation and authentic place and feeling which is beneficial to
residents, businesses, investors, visitors, scholars, and future generations. It emphasizes
reducing land use conflicts between mining and other land uses and preserving the
historic resources and heritage of the Comstock for the enjoyment and education of
present and future residents and visitors and the economic opportunities afforded.
Present and future mining and its ancillary uses within the Comstock, when conducted
in a way to preserve and not cause substantial negative impacts to existing cultural
resources, also contributes to the sense of orientation and authenticity of the historic
mining area. The provisions of this chapter serve to consider certain mining proposals
within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark while protecting its existing
historic environment, including natural landscapes and manmade features.

E. Surface mining (e.g., open-pit mining) by its nature causes substantially greater impact
to the surface environment than underground mining, and in some instances, precludes
complete restoration of the affected land to a condition existing prior to the surface
mine. Thus, unless appropriately mitigated through reclamation of land, surface mining
has a greater potential for adverse impacts to adjacent land uses, the Virginia City
National Historic Landmark, the tourism economy, and the health, safety, and general
welfare of the citizens of the county. While the provisions under this chapter provide
for surface mining under certain circumstances, underground mining is highly
encouraged in all areas of the county, including within the Virginia City National
Historic Landmark, when conducted pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.

Page |1 of 23



F. Areas surrounding State Routes 341 and 342 within the Virginia City National Historic
Landmark are found to contain critical natural and manmade features which contribute
to the historic integrity of Gold Hill and Virginia City. This area has been incorporated
into the “Comstock Historic Preservation Area” (“CHPA restricted area”) map as
shown in appendix A and made part of this this chapter.

G. Under certain circumstances and when regulated by the provisions of this chapter,
mining and processing of existing historic mine dumps and tailings, including those
located within the Virginia City National Historic Landmark, may be found to be
beneficial when the existing mine dumps and tailings contain Contaminates of Concern
applicable to the Carson River Mercury Superfund Site and when appropriate measures
are employed to preserve the historic significance of the manmade landscape features.

17.92.040 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this chapter is to recognize and protect both mineral and surface property rights,
provide for mineral exploration, allow for surface mining where appropriate, and allow and
encourage underground mining across the county, when exploration and mining activities are
consistent with the general purpose, goals, and objectives of the county master plan, and when
they do not result in substantial adverse impacts to adjacent residential and commercial uses,
tourism, the local economy, natural resources (without appropriate mitigation), or other matters
affecting the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the county.

17.92.060 Sale or Transfer of Site

When an entitlement for exploration or mining, whether by transfer of land or right, is conveyed,
the transfer must be disclosed in writing to the community development department at least 90
days before the assignee takes over the property or right. The permit holder must direct the party
taking ownership or right to meet with the community development department to review the
conditions of approval of the permit prior to the final sale or transfer.

17.92.070 Scale of Operations

Surface and underground exploration and mining is divided into 4 categories: (1) recreational
use; (2) casual use; (3) small operation; and (4) large operations. The following provisions will
determine the category in which the exploration or mining operation fits:

A. Recreational use. This classification includes recreational gold panning, sluicing
activities, and “rock hounding” lasting no longer than 5 days in a | year period.
Recreational use exploration and mining are exempt from the provisions of this chapter.

B. Casual use. This classification includes surface and underground exploration and
mining with the use of hand tools for a longer period of time than recreational use. The
use of explosives and mechanized or motorized equipment is prohibited. Tools
typically associated with casual use include picks, shovels, gold pans, sluice boxes,
miner’s moss, wheelbarrows, ore carts, and other similar manually operated devices.
Casual use exploration and mining are exempt from the provisions of this chapter.

C. Small operations. This classification includes surface and underground mining and
exploration involving the use of mechanized or motorized equipment, or involving the
use of explosives, but remaining less than the duration, excavation, and surface area
disturbance thresholds at which a special use permit is required for large operations, or
the limitations imposed on the restricted CHPA. A combination or series of small
operations permits or uses (i.e., serial or chain exploration or mining) that violate or
serve to circumvent the letter and spirit of this chapter or title will not be permitted.

Page 12 of 23



D. Large operations. This classification includes surface and underground exploration and
mining meeting or exceeding the duration, excavation, or surface area disturbance
thresholds requiring a special use permit.

E. Ancillary uses. When allowed by the provisions of section 17.92.090 Ancillary uses
and the underlying regulatory zone, beneficiation and processing, boarding
accommodations, concrete batch plants, and the keeping of large domestic animals
which are incidental to the small operations or large operations exploration and mining
may be made part of the submitted permit for exploration and mining.

17.92.080 Application Requirements

Recreational use and casual use exploration and mining are exempt from application
requirements and other provisions of this chapter. The application for small operations and large
operations must be submitted as required by this section to the community development
department on the application furnished by the department and approved by the planning
commission. Plans, permits, and other documentation required by a federal or state agency will
fulfill the application information requirements of this section when they are submitted as part of
the county permit application. Requirements in this section that are inapplicable to the
exploration or mining operation are not required to be submitted with the application. The
completed application must include:

A. Basic information. The name, address, and telephone number(s) of the owner of record,
applicant, corporation, business association, or individual, and that of the operator,
project manager, or local contact person.

B. Demonstration of rights. Appropriate documentation showing that the applicant is the
lessee or owner of the surface or mineral estate on which exploration, mining, or
associated activity will occur and, if the applicant is a lessee, certification that the
applicant has the right, power, and authority to conduct the described operation. The
application must include the name, address, and telephone number of the private owner
and any federal agency (i.e., Bureau of Land Management) having jurisdiction over the
surface and mineral estate.

C. Taxes. A certificate from the county assessor’s office stating that no taxes or
assessments are delinquent on the property for which the application is submitted.

D. Vicinity map. A copy of the assessor’s office vicinity map showing where the surface
or underground project and property is located in association with surrounding
properties. The document may be on 8.5” by 117 or similar format, unless a larger
format is needed to see details in the map.

E. Operations plan requirements. An operations plan must be submitted with the
application for review and approval by the county fire, emergency management,
community development, and public works departments. The operations plan must be
updated for county review annually or when substantial changes are made to the
operation. The county may require an application for an amended or new permit when
adjustments to the operations plan are substantially out of conformance with the
conditions of the existing permit. The operations plan must otherwise meet the
minimum requirements of this chapter and include the following information:

1. Background-land. A brief history of activities on the applicable land and past
exploration, mining, beneficiation, and processing which had taken place on the
land.

2. Background—applicant. A brief background of the applicant, company, or
corporation applying for exploration or mining.

Page 13 of 23



3. Scale of operation. A narrative description of the scale of the proposal, including
anticipated number of employees during construction, operation, and post-operation
phases; hours of the operation (including continuous, seasonal, or other); estimated
surface disturbances and underground work for the entire project, including phasing;
blasting and ancillary uses; and estimated life of the operation, including reclamation
and post-operation monitoring.

4. Site plans and drawings. A site plan drawn to scale must include, as applicable, the
following information:

a. The project boundaries, including anticipated phasing;

b. The location and placement of existing and proposed structures, including
buildings; utility poles, lines, and substations; fire hydrants; water storage tanks;
railroads and crossings; signs; fences, walls, and controlled access points; wells,
water, sewer, and septic systems, as may be applicable;

c. All setback dimensions as they apply to existing and proposed buildings and
structures and exploration and mining activities;

d. The location and placement of existing and proposed transportation routes,
including access and egress points, driveways, parking, haul roads; public right-
of-ways; and easements;

e. The location of existing and proposed floodways; water bodies; bridges and
culverts; and other hydrological features.

f. The location and placement of existing and proposed manmade landforms and
surface alterations, such as open pits, portals and other openings; heap leaches,
tailings, dumps, and overburden placement, etc.

g. The estimated location of newly proposed underground mine portals, tunnels,
adits, drifts, and shafts in association with the rights to mine, including patented
and unpatented claims.

5. Methods. Narrative description of proposed methods including:

a. Development of pits, trenches, and underground workings;

b. Type of equipment to be used;

c. Rationale for the type of mining proposed (i.e., surface versus underground)
proposed;

d. Processing, including whether and how ancillary reducing and milling will take
place on- or off-site;

e. Liquid and solid waste management;

f. Grading and slope stability.

6. Documenting and reporting. A plan showing how copies of federal and state permits,
compliance reports, and violation notices will be submitted to the community
development department. The plan must show that copies of the required documents
will be submitted to the department within 30 days of the permit holder’s receipt. As
required by the federal Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act
(EPCRA), all applicable hazardous chemical, material, or explosive submittals must
also include copies of permits from the Nevada State Fire Marshall. Copies of all
reports sent to the Nevada State Hazardous Material Data Base and the Local
Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) must also be submitted. The permit holder

Page 14 of 23



must immediately (within 48 hours receipt) report all environmental related
violations, spills, accidents, notices, and cease-and-desist orders to the community
development, fire, and emergency management departments.

7. Emergency management and prevention. The applicant must submit with the
operations plan an emergency management and prevention plan that will be
reviewed for approval by the fire and emergency management departments.

8. Transportation. A narrative description with accompanying visuals providing on-site
and off-site access and egress routes, use of state and county right-of-ways, external
and internal haul roads, and a plan for consulting with the applicable regulatory
agencies for the use, protection, and repair of land and right-of-ways used for
transporting goods, equipment, and people.

9. Water. The availability, including ownership rights, anticipated use, and protection
of quality and quantity of aboveground and underground water resources.

10. Best management practices. A plan for obtaining and notifying the county of all
applicable federal and state air, water, and stormwater permits and noxious weed

abatement.

11. Noise abatement. A plan indicating sufficient noise abatement to meet noise
limitations determined by chapter 8.04. When it is determined by the county that
additional noise abatement is needed, further requirements, such as installation of
sound-absorbing structures, earth-fill barriers, limitations on the number of
motorized machines that may operate concurrently, and restrictions on the hours and
days of operation, may be imposed as needed on a case-by-case basis. At a
minimum, surface activities located within 1,000 feet of a C, CR, E, P, or R zone or

any permitted residential use in other zones, except those owned by the applicant or
waived by the property owner, must not be allowed to take place between 5:00 p.m.
and 8:00 a.m. and on Saturdays, Sundays, and national and state holidays.

12. Explosives use. The plan must meet the requirements of section 17.92.110 Use of
explosive materials, when applicable.

13. Historic structures protection. The provisions of this chapter will apply to
exploration and mining located within the boundaries of the Comstock Historic
District as defined by NRS 384:

a. The application must include a list of all existing buildings within the exploration
and mining boundary estimated to have been in existence as of 1942 and planned
to be demolished, relocated, or altered as a result of the operation. Buildings
applicable to this subsection include primary buildings and accessory buildings
and mine head frames.

b. The list of buildings and structures pursuant to subsection (a) must include the
estimated year of construction, a brief physical description, and a photograph of
no less than all four sides of the structure. Those structures which will be
proposed to the Comstock Historic District Commission for demolition,
relocation, or alteration in association with the exploration or mining operation
must be identified as such in the exploration and mining application;

¢. The historic structures plan must include a narrative description of how structures
identified pursuant to subsection (a) and (b) above will be protected from
disturbance or destruction;

14, Cemetery protection. The plan must identify all known graves or cemeteries, as
defined by NRS 452, located within 1,000 feet of the proposed exploration and mine
Page 15 of 23



site(s) and explain measures which will be taken to protect the cemeteries and
graves, and associated structures (i.e., headstones, monuments, fences, and
enclosures) from demolition, alteration, and disturbances. A plan must be provided
to initiate and maintain communication and collaboration with the Comstock
Cemetery Foundation, or other applicable organization or agency managing and
protecting the gravesite or cemetery, to develop a plan and enter into an agreement
that assures adequate protection of the cemetery from potential impacts (e.g., surface
vibrations) generated from exploration or mining activities. The applicable agency or
organization may require a surface vibration monitoring program as it determines
appropriate and necessary. The plan must be submitted to the community
development department by the permit holder within 30 days of approval by the
applicable cemetery protection organization or agency.

15. Closure and reclamation. The reclamation and surety bond requirements imposed
by a federal or state agency will supersede this subsection and serve as the
reclamation and bonding requirements under the county approved exploration or
mining permit. The requirements for reclamation under this subsection and surety
bonding under subsection 17.92.160 Special use permit conditions, will apply,
whether or not a special use permit is required, when no reclamation permit or surety
bonding is required by a federal or state agency. Unless the exploration or mining
operation falls within the regulations of a federal or state agency, the county
reclamation plan must include the following information:

a. Reclamation schedule. The plan must include a timeline showing time of closure,
estimated phases of reclamation including all required stages in this subsection,
and date of completion;

b. Preexisting conditions. The plan must include photographic evidence, deemed
acceptable by the director, showing the surface conditions, including grade and
vegetation, existing prior to the exploration or mining operation;

¢. Grading and backfilling. The plan must show that all surface disturbances and
excavations will be backfilled and contoured to a condition that is safe, stable, and
reasonably flush and consistent with the surrounding environment. The plan may
allow for access roads to remain following the permit expiration date if it is
shown that the roads will provide access to expanded or new exploration or
mining operations immediately following the active permit. Access roads must be
reclaimed concurrently with the remaining operation if an application for
additional exploration or mining is not submitted within 30 days of the expiration
date of the active permit or the application is not approved by the director.

d. Bore holes. Bore holes must be plugged as required by the Nevada Administrative
Code.

e. Safety. The plan must show abatement of all safety hazards and nuisances.

f. Re-vegetation. The plan must include re-vegetation returning all disturbed
surfaces to a reasonable condition existing prior to the exploration or mining
operation. Unless directed otherwise by the county, seeding, re-seeding, and
planning will take place in the autumn season during the months of October or
November, but not during times of extreme weather conditions such as snow or
sub-freezing conditions.

g. Removal of equipment and structures. The plan must show that vehicles,
equipment, stored materials, structures, and other manmade features will be

Page 16 of 23



removed from the land within 90 days of closure. Equipment used for reclaiming
the land may remain until the completion of reclamation.

h. Visual rendition. The application for large operations surface mining or expansion
of existing large operations surface mining within one mile of a CR, E, or R zone
or the CHPA restricted area must include a photographic or computer generated
visual model consisting of the existing surface topography and the approximate
topographic conditions during operations, including phasing, and following
closure and reclamation. The applicant must consult with the community
development department to determine appropriate locations and viewpoints for
the visual model. The visual model may include screening and other systems
represented in the operations plan to mitigate potential visual impacts.

17.92.090 Ancillary Uses

The following ancillary uses may be proposed and submitted as part of the required application
for surface and underground exploration and mining. Ancillary uses are defined as on-site
systems such as those shown below which are reasonable and sometimes necessary to support
surface and underground exploration and mining operations. Unless stated otherwise in this
chapter, the following requirements apply to on-site ancillary uses for large operations
exploration and mining:

A. Accessory structures and uses. These uses include the deposit and storage of ore,
tailings, and overburden; settling ponds; offices, repair shops, storage and other
buildings; buildings for the storage of explosives; ditches and other mechanisms for the
conveyance of water and utilities; and fueling facilities. The uses listed in this
subsection may only be placed where allowable by the underlying zone. These uses are
not subject to the CHPA restricted area.

B. Keeping of large domestic animals. Large domestic animals (e.g., mules) may be used
in association with exploration and mining when the limitations and requirements of the
respective zone and any applicable county regulations are met.

C. Processing and beneficiation. These uses may be allowed in the F, 12, I3, IC, and SPR
zones; they are prohibited in all other zones. No use involving crushing or hazardous
substances, except those existing at the time of adoption of this chapter, may be
permitted within 1,000 feet of a CR, E, P, or R zone or an existing residence in other
zones.

D. Boarding accommodations. This ancillary use may be allowable in the F and SPR
zones for temporary boarding accommodations for workers and other persons directly
employed by the large operations if the temporary residential use exceeds the
residential density allowance in the respective zone. The boarding accommodations
must be located on-site of the large operation, i.e., within the boundaries of its special
use permit, and must be removed and associated land reclaimed at the time of closure
of the mine. This use must not be included as part of any small operations permit.

E. Concrete batch plants. This ancillary use may be allowable in the A and F zones when
they are temporary (lasting less than one year) and the 12 and I3 and-}4 zones when
they are permanent (lasting one year or longer). They are prohibited in and within 1,000
feet of all other zones. Permanent and temporary concrete batch plants are permitted
uses, but are subject to a special use permit, beneath the surface of any zone when they
are operated entirely within the underground portion of a mine (i.e., adit, tunnel, drift,
etc.) and when there are no impacts to the surface environment, including ground and
air.

17.92.110 Use of Explosive Materials
Page 17 of 23



A Storey County Fire Department Blasting Permit is required for any blasting or detonation of
explosives. In addition to the requirements under the blasting permit, transportation, storage, and
use of explosives must conform to the applicable federal regulations and 500 feet of an existing
private or parochial school, healthcare facility, or residence, except a residence owned by the
permit holder. A blasting plan may be included with and as part of a special use permit
application for exploration and mining. A blasting permit may be required, but a special use
permit is not required for down-hole use of explosives for the purpose of dislodging or
mobilizing seized borehole drilling equipment.

A pre-blast condition inspection must be conducted by a qualified person for all existing
buildings, except those owned by the applicant, within 1,000 feet of any blasting activity. The
pre-blast condition inspection must be provided by the applicant at no cost to property owners,
unless the property owner(s) refuse to allow the inspection to take place, and the county. The
applicant must bear full responsibility for structural damage caused by blasting activities.

17.92.120 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site

In the 1970°s the United States Geological Survey discovered high mercury levels in water
samples in the Carson River. Subsequently, the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) designated the Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (CRMS) and placed it on the
National Priorities List (NPL) regulated under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq. The USEPA divided the
CRMS into two Operable Units (OU’s): OU 1, which includes parts of Virginia City and Gold
Hill, consists of the mill sites and those areas where tailings have contaminated surface soils; and
OU?2 is the Carson River itself, including sediments and biota (generally the
depositional/ecological area). USEPA designated the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection (NDEP) as the CRMS lead agency to manage OU1. USEPA has determined that
mercury, arsenic, and lead are Contaminates of Concern (CoC’s) in OUI. To facilitate proper
management of CoC’s in OU1, the NDEP and EPA have developed the Carson River Mercury
Superfund Site, Long-Term Sampling and Response Plan (LTSRP) to provide guidance for land
disturbance activities conducted within the CRMS. The LTSRP requires commercial land
development owners, including mining operation owners, to assess areas of the property each
owner proposes to access or disturb in connection with its operations for the presence or absence
of CoC’s where historic mining, milling infrastructure, or mill tailings are identified.

By accepting any permit to conduct exploration or mining, the permit holder must acknowledge
that the exploration or mining area, or portions thereof, may be within the CRMS and subject to
CERCLA. Properly managing or removing existing mill tailings, mine waste, mine material, etc.,
from former mine and mill sites that are found to contain CoC’s as applicable to the CERCLA
will be the sole responsibility of the permit holder. Prior to disturbances of any ground surface
within the CRMS site, the permit holder must comply with the applicable NDEP or USEPA
requirements, including compliance with the LTSRP, for sampling and analyzing soils for
possible CoC’s. Handling, redistributing, or reprocessing by the permit holder of material
containing CoC’s above screening/action levels, as determined by NDEP, will be permitted when
the comply with NDEP or USEPA requirements, as applicable. Official reports and results of
each study required by NDEP or USEPA must be submitted to the county prior to
commencement of surface disturbances. Naturally occurring mineral and elements, such as
mercury, arsenic, lead, etc., and lands outside of the CRMS site will be managed under state and
federal mining and environmental protection laws and regulations that are unrelated to the
CERCLA.

17.92.135 Small Operations — Applicability and Restrictions

Small operations include exploration, surface mining, and underground mining having surface
disturbances below the threshold categories in section 17.92.140 Large operations applicability.

Page 18 of 23



Only small operations are allowed within the CHPA restricted area. The requirements are as

follows:

A.

Permit required. A permit issued by the community development department is
required for small operations exploration and mining. The conditions of the permit will
incorporate the approved operations plan required in section 17.92.080 Application
requirements, and include other conditions of approval that are found by the director to
be necessary to conform to federal, state, and county regulations.

. Permit renewal. An application may be submitted to renew an active permit. The

renewal application must be submitted to the community development department at
least 30 days before the expiration of the active permit. The renewed permit may
contain added or modified conditions that are deemed by the director to be necessary to
comply with federal, state, and county regulations. All reclamation must be completed
as shown in the approved operations plan before a new or renewed permit may be
issued on land within 1 mile of the active or closed operation. The director must deny
the application for a new or renewed permit if any active exploration and mining
operations permit of the applicant is non-compliant with federal, state, and county
regulations.

C. Concurrent permits. An applicant may hold 2 or more small operations permits for

surface mining concurrently when the surface mining operations are separated by at
least 1 mile. An applicant may hold 2 or more small operations permits for exploration
concurrently when their cumulative surface disturbance does not exceed 5 acres. The 5
acre cumulative surface disturbance limitation for small operations exploration does not
apply to exploration which is combined with a small operations mining permit. Only 1
small operations permit may be active on any given parcel or claim. The scope of a
small operations permit may include both exploration and mining.

. Allowable zones—exploration. Small operations exploration is allowed in any

regulatory zone for a period of 1 year; provided that it does not exceed 10 days in the
C, CR, E, P, and R zones. A new or renewed permit on the same land in the C, CR, E,
P, and R zones may not be issued for a period of 1 year following the expiration of the
previous permit.

Allowable zones—surface mining. Small operations surface mining is allowed in the A,
F, I, and SPR zones and is prohibited in the C, CR, E, P, and R zones.

Allowable zones—underground mining. Underground mining is allowed beneath the
surface of all zones, including the CHPA restricted area, when surface disturbances,
such as the mine portal, access roads, and staging areas are not in the C, CR, E, P, or R
zones.

. Force majeure extension. The small operation permit may be extended under

circumstances where operation is impossible due to naturally occurring events beyond
the control of the county or the permit holder, such as the destruction of sites or access
due to flood or earthquake. Such extensions will last for a period of time equal to that

during which the operation was rendered inoperable, but must not exceed one year.

17.92.140 Large Operations — Applicability

The provisions under this section for a special use permit do not apply to surface or underground
exploration or mining operations classified as recreational use, casual use, or small operations as
defined in section 17.92.070 Scale of operations. Exploration and mining operations that meet or
exceed the threshold classifications specified in this section are classified as large operations
exploration and mining and a special use permit is required. The threshold classifications
specified in this section apply only to the surface disturbances cause by exploration and mining,

Page 19 of 23



and not underground development such as tunnels, adits, and stopes. Surface disturbances caused
by ancillary uses under section 17.92.090 Ancillary uses, or other permitted uses related to
milling and processing, do not apply toward the threshold limitations shown below.

A. Surface disturbance taking place within 500 feet of any residence (unless that residence
is the property of the applicant), public, private, or parochial school or academy, or
health care facility, and that include any of the following:

1.
2.

3.
4.
5.

Exceeding 30 days duration;

Grading of new roads and access routes exceeding 5,000 gross cubic yards volume
or 5,000 square-feet in area;

Exploration exceeding 1,000 gross cubic yards;
Surface disturbance, except access roads, exceeding 5,000 square feet; or

Alteration of any stream, river, or floodway.

B. Surface disturbance taking place within 1,000 feet of any residence (unless that
residence is the property of the applicant), public, private, or parochial school or
academy, or health care facility, and that include any of the following:

1.
2:

= Y

Exceeding 90 days duration.

Grading of new roads and access routes exceeding 5,000 gross cubic yards volume
or 5,000 square-feet in area;

Exploration exceeding 5,000 gross cubic yards;

Surface disturbance, except access roads, exceeding | acre;

. Alteration of any stream, river, or floodway; or

. Blasting or use of explosives as regulated by section 17.92.110 Use of explosive

materials.

C. Surface disturbances taking place more than 1,000 feet of any residence (unless that
residence is the property of the applicant), or public, private, or parochial school or
academy, or health care facility, and that includes any of the following:

L
2:

3
4.
3.
6.

17.92.145

Exceeding 1 year duration.

Grading of new roads and access routes exceeding 10,000 gross cubic yards volume
and 1 acre in area;

Exploration exceeding 10,000 gross cubic yards;

Surface disturbance, except access roads, exceeding 5 acres.

Alteration of any stream, river, or floodway; or

Blasting or use of explosives as regulated by 17.92.110 Use of explosive materials.

Large Operations — Restrictions

The following restrictions apply to large operations exploration and mining:

A. Allowable zones—surface mining. A special use permit is required for large operations
surface mining in the A, F, 12, I3, and SPR zones. Large operations surface mining is
prohibited in all other zones.

B. Allowable zones—underground mining. Large operations underground mining is
allowable beneath the surface of any zone. Surface disturbances associated with
underground mining, such as the portal and shaft opening, access roads, and staging

Page 20 of 23



areas are allowable in the A, F, I, and SPR zones and are subject to a special use permit
pursuant section 17.92.040 Large operations applicability. Surface disturbances
meeting or exceeding those large operations threshold categories are prohibited in all
other zones.

C. Allowable zones-exploration. A special use permit is required for large operations
exploration in the A, F, 12, I3, and SPR zones. Large operations exploration is
prohibited in all other zones.

D. CHPA restricted area—surface mining. Large operations surface mining is prohibited
within the CHPA restricted area.

E. CHPA restricted area—underground mining. A special use permit is required for large
operations underground mining that causes surface disturbances in the CHPA restricted
area to meet or exceed the threshold classifications in section 17.92.140 Large
operations applicability. A special use permit is not required for development and
expansion of operations that take place beneath the surface.

F. CHPA restricted area—exploration. A special use permit is required for large
operations exploration in the CHPA restricted area.

G. CHPA restricted area — variance. Where a mine claim or other private property is
divided by the CHPA restricted area boundary line, the applicant may request a
variance to conduct large operations exploration and mining, including surface mining,
on that land inside the restricted area. The variance will allow the large operations
exploration and mining to take place pursuant to the regulations of this chapter that are
applied to those operations taking place outside the restricted area. In the variance
application and during the hearing, the applicant must show substantial evidence,
including photographs, topographic maps and aerial imagery, and other appropriate
documentation, that the portion of land where the variance is requested is not visible
from any point within the Gold Hill and Virginia City townships, except for portions of
those townships outside the restricted area. The application and public hearing
procedure is pursuant to the regulations for a variance in chapter 17.03 Administrative
provisions.

17.92.160 Special Use Permit Conditions

The application for a special use permit for exploration and mining must meet the requirements
of this chapter and chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions, if the county determines it lacks
staff expertise to review an item submitted as part of the special use permit application and
subject to the county’s regulatory authority, the county may require a third-party review.
Activities regulated by federal or state regulatory authorities are exempt from this third-party
review requirement. The scope, schedule of work, costs, and firm for the third-party review must
be accepted by the county before the special use permit is approved. The scope of work will be
limited to checking for compliance with regulations and codes, accuracy of calculations,
adequacy and completeness of the information submitted, and preparation under generally
accepted professional practices.

A. Requirements inclusive. The special use permit conditions of approval must, at a
minimum, meet the requirements of this section and the findings of fact under section
17.92.030 Findings of fact, in order to protect cultural and natural resources and the
tourism economy in Gold Hill and Virginia City, and the health, safety, and general
welfare of the citizens of the county.

B. Application requirements incorporated. The conditions of the special use permit must
incorporate and may expand upon all application requirements under section 17.92.080
Application requirements.

Page 21 of 23



C. Duration. The special use permit must impose the following limitations on the duration
of exploration and mining:

1. Exploration. The special use permit may not exceed 5 years and may be limited to a
lesser period of time, but not less than 1 year, as determined by the board with action
by the planning commission;

2. Surface and underground mining. The special use permit may not exceed 20 years
and may be limited to a lesser period of time for surface mining, but not less than 5
years, as determined by the board with action by the planning commission.

D. Documenting and reporting. All federal and state permits must be submitted to the
community development department as described in the approved application
operations plan.

E. Permit renewal. An application may be submitted to renew an active permit. The
renewal application must be submitted to the community development department at
least 30 days before the expiration of the active permit. The renewed permit may
contain added or modified conditions are deemed by the board with action by the
planning commission to be necessary to comply with federal, state, and county
regulations. The board with action by the planning commission may deny the
application for a new or renewed special use permit if any active exploration and
mining operations permit of the applicant is non-compliant with federal, state, and
county regulations.

F. Expiration of inactive permit. An extension of an inactive special use permit may be
granted for good cause as allowed by chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

G. Liability insurance and indemnification. The special use permit will require liability
insurance in an amount deemed appropriate for the type and scope of the operation, but
not less than one million dollars. The permit holder and all property owner(s) must
agree, as evidenced by their acceptance of the special use permit, to hold the county, its
officers, and its representatives harmless from the costs and liabilities associated with
any damage or liability, and any/all other claims existing at the time of approval or
which may occur as a result of the approved special use permit.

H. Surety bond. A surety bond is required for any reclamation under a permit for small
operations and a special use permit for large operations as stated in subsection
17.92.080(E)(15). A surety bond required by a federal or state agency overseeing the
exploration or mining operation will fulfill this requirement when proof is submitted to
the community development department as required by section 17.92.080 Application
requirements. If no surety bond is required by a federal or state agency, the permit
holder must post cash or other appropriate surety bonding to assure that disturbed land
is reclaimed as required by the county approved operations and reclamation plan. The
surety bond must be posted prior to disturbance of land and must be updated as the
exploration and mining operations progress or change. The amount of the surety bond
necessary to fulfill the county requirement will be determined by a qualified licensed
engineer or environmental manager at the expense of the applicant and will be subject
to review by a third-party approved by the county.

I. Visitor and education element. The special use permit will required the applicant to
develop an information and education center or kiosk adjacent to the large operations
mine site for the public to view and learn about history and other information about
mining on the Comstock and the active mining operation. The placement and design of
the information and education center or kiosk must comply with the conditions of the
special use permit.

Page 22 of 23



Appendix A. Comstock Historic Preservation Area map

ST SR T T
N - Wt n b __" 7t N il
e s "ZL*:-I"";- T
AT SN s )
- |. ‘_‘4%_ i ‘:.__l < d
Al ;
jeaml e
1 ;
i L e ths P e
ok ol ﬁ:.. .
COMSTOCK HISTORIC PRESERVATION AREA S8
- D ":a"'ﬁ: e A g
et R R
: 4 e '.' e - -_ v@
- i Ak
. de d el : .n"‘"": . Tt = b
il T o BT Y ih o E
e Gt e R
o L 1 b e ] - v
iV : )
! e i gD :,_,.__T_:__‘-..]--', ! o :
: '*.“ {s". ,{.J;‘} B S S s
T : | AR B [t
CHPA RESTR'CTED AREA BOUNDARY SCALE: 1 =1200"
HISTORIC VIEWSHED BOUNDARY = = = = == = w= o
VIRGINIA CITY MINE ORDINANCE EXHIBIT

The Comstock Historic Preservation Area is located entirely within the boundaries of the Comstock Historic District
but does not encompass the entire district. Its boundaries conform to the historic viewshed parameters from the Gold
Hill and Virginia City town sites as shown in the Sensitivity Study of the Storey County Portions of the Comstock
Historic District (Reno, 1990) included with and as part of the Storey County Master Plan.

Page 23 of 23



Enclosures: Ordinance No. 15-268

Ordinance No. 15-268

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to update the procedures and requirements of
the title by amending the following chapters: Ordinance title page; Chapter 17.03 Administrative
Provisious; 17.06 Nonconforming Uses; 17.08 Zones Generally; 17.10 Definitions; Chapter 17.12 General
Provisions; 17,15 P Public Zone; 17.16 R-1 Single-Family Residential Zone; 17.20 R-2 Multi-Family
Residential Zone; 17.24 A Agriculture Zone; 17.28 C Commercial Zone; 17.30 C-R Commercial-Residential
Zone; 17.32 F Forestry Zone; 17.34 [-1 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.36 [-3
Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.38 1-5 Special Industrial Zone; 17.40 E Estate Zone; 17.44 SPR Special Planning
Review Zone; 17.48 Historic Overlay District; 17.56 PUD Planned Unit Development; 17.76 N-R Natural
Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards; 17.92 Mineral Exploration Mining and Extraction; and other
properly related matters,

Title
An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to update the procedures and requirements
of the title by amending the following chapters: Ordinance title page; Chapter 17.03 Administrative
Provisions; 17.06 Nonconforming Uses; 17.08 Zones Generally; 17.10 Definitions; Chapter 17.12 General
Provisions; 17.15 P Public Zone; 17.16 R-1 Single-Family Residential Zone; 17.20 R-2 Multi-Family
Residential Zone; 17.24 A Agriculture Zone; 17.28 C Commercial Zone; 17.30 C-R Commercial-
Residential Zone; 17.32 F Forestry Zone; 17.34 I-1 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35 I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone;
17.36 1-3 Heavy Industrial Zone; 17.38 I-S Special Industrial Zone; 17.40 E Estate Zone; 17.44 SPR Special
Planning Review Zone; 17.48 Historic Overlay District; 17.56 PUD Planned Unit Development; 17.76 N-R
Natural Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards; 17.92 Mineral Exploration Mining and Extraction;
and other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does
ordain:

SECTION I: Title 17 is amended as follows (enclosed draft chapters):

Page 2 of 2






Sections:

Chapter 17.02

Title, Purpose, and Jurisdiction

17.02.010 Title

17.02.020 Purpose

17.02.030 Jurisdiction

17.02.040 Interpretation and conflict
17.02.050 Conformance with the master plan

17.02.010 Title
This title is known as and may be cited as the “Zoning Ordinance of Storey County,
Nevada.”

17.02.020 Purpose
This land use zoning title for the county of Storey is adopted and established to serve
the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare; to provide the
economic and social advantages resulting from an orderly planned use of cconomic,
natural and community resources; to encourage, guide and provide for the future
growth and development of the county: and to implement the goals, objectives,
policies, and proposals of the master plan by:

A.
B.

H.

Giving effect to the policies and objectives of the master plan,

Dividing the county into regulatory zones that are in accordance with the master
plan and serve to regulate the location and use of buildings, structures, and land
for trade, industry, tourism, residences, natural and cultural resources, and other

usces.

. Providing for the protection and enhancement of property rights, property

values, quality of life, historic and cultural resources, and natural resources.

D. Providing for a vibrant, stable, and diversified economy in the county.

Protecting the tax base by providing for cost-cffective development within the
county.
Concentrating residential development to areas where adequate water, sewerage
facilities, schools, roads, and other public services can be provided, and limiting
residential development in arcas where these resources and facilities are not and
should not be provided.

. Lessening the danger and congestion of traffic on the roads and highways,

limiting excessive number of intersections, driveways, and other friction points,
minimizing other hazards, and insuring the continued usefulness of all elements
of the existing highway system for their planned function.

Protecting land owners from adverse impacts of adjoining developments.

17.02.030 Jurisdiction
Storey County's governing body, the board of county commissioners (board),_is
authorized by NRS 278.250 to divide the county into zoning districts to carry out the
purposes of NRS 278.010-278.630, and may regulate and restrict the crection,

Page [ of 2



construction, alteration, repair or use of buildings, structures or land within its
jurisdiction.
17.02,040 Interpretation and Conflict
In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this ordinance are held to be
minimum requirements. Wherever the requirements of this title are at variance with
the requirements of any other lawfully adopted rules, regulations, restrictions or
ordinances, the most restrictive or that imposing the higher standards will govern. This
title must be interpreted, whenever the board is called upon to do so, in conformance
with the purposes intended by the board to be served by its enactment. The intent of
the standards and supporting definitions of this title is to protect both individual
property owners and the general public from substantial adverse impacts that may
otherwise be the result of a proposed use. To this end. those called upon to interpret
this title shall proceed as follows:
A. Determine the public purposes of the standards with respect to which an
interpretation is required;
B. Determine the actual impact of the proposed interpretation; and
C. Determine that the proposed interpretation will insure a just balance between
the right of the landowner and all others who will be affected by that person’s

land use proposal.
17.02.050 Conformance with the Master Plan
The board declares and makes the specific finding that this title and the official zoning
maps conform to the master plan,

Page 20l 2



Chapter 17.03

Administrative Provisions

Sections:

17.03.010 Powers of the board and planning commission
17.03.020 Administration of this title

17.03.030 Jurisdiction, interpretation, and application

17.03.040 Enforcement

17.03.050 Applications

17.03.060 Application limitations

17.03.070 Notice provisions

17.03.080 Hearings

17.03.090 Advisory action by the planning commission
17.03.100 Decisions by the board

17.03.110  Amendments and revisions of approvals

17.03.120 Fees and charges

17.03.130 Appeal procedures

17.03.140 Variances

17.03.045 Abatement of public nuisances

17.03.150 Special uses (conditional uses)

17.03.160 Standard conditions of approval - special use permits and variances
17.03.170 Review or revocation of variance or special use permit
17.03.180 Show cause procedures of variance or special use permit
17.03.200 Administrative permits

17.03.210 Master plan

17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text amendments
17.03.230 Planned unit developments

17.03.010  Power of the Board and Planning Commission

The board of county commissioners (the board) has the power to make planning and
zoning decisions for Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise
the board as provided in title 2 of this code and NRS 278 and 278A.

A. The planning commission must perform all duties and functions delegated to a
county planning commission by the terms of NRS 278.010 to 278.630,
inclusive, and chapter 2.12 (Planning commission).

B. The planning commission is advisory to the board. The planning commission
must hear applications on special use permits, variances, and appeals of
administrative decisions, changes to the county master plan, zoning districts,
amendments to title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and make
recommendations to the board.

C. After considering the planning commission’s reccommendation the board by
majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application,
or return the recommendation to the planning commission for further

Page 1 of 25



consideration.
17.03.020 Administration of this Title
The community-developasent Director of Planning will administer this title. For the
purposes of this title, the term “director™ means the director of the planning-and
conmunity-development planning department or the director’s designee. The director
will determine when any application under his jurisdiction is complete.

17.03.030 Jurisdiction, Interpretation, and Application

The provisions and standards contained in this title are the minimum standards for the
allowed or permitted uses, and must not be construed as limiting the legislative discretion
of the board to further restrict the allowed or permissive uses or to withhold or revoke
permits for uses when the protection of the public health, morals, safety, welfare and
protection of surrounding land uses is necessary. Title 17 requirements apply to all
properties within the county.

A. Conflict of regulation. When this title imposes a greater restriction upon the use
of land, or upon height, bulk, location or use of buildings and structures than is
required by existing provisions of law or by private covenant or other
restriction, the provisions of this title will prevail. Private covenants or deed
restrictions that impose more restrictive conditions than those contained in this
title are not superseded by this title or enforced by the county.

B. Rules of interpretation. In interpreting the language of this title, the rules set
out in this chapter will be observed unless the interpretation is inconsistent with
the expressed language of this title.

C. Text controls. In case of any conflict between the text of this title and any figure
or appendix, the text will apply.

D. Computation of time. The time in which an act is to be performed will be
computed by excluding the first day and including the last day. [fthe last day is
a Saturday, Sunday, or legal federal or state holiday, the period runs until the
next day which is not a Saturday. Sunday, or legal federal or state holiday. The
following time-related words will have the meanings ascribed below:

I. “Day"™ means a calendar day unless otherwise stated.

2. “Week™ means 7 calendar days.

3. “Business week™ means 5 days starting Monday and ending Friday.

4. ~Business day” means | or more days beginning on Monday and ending on
Friday.

5. “Month™ means 1 calendar month.

6. “Year” means a calendar year, unless a fiscal year is indicated.

3. Other clarifications.

1. Tense. Unless clearly indicated to the contrary, words used in the present
tense include the future, words used in the plural include the singular, words
used in the singular include the plural and words of one gender include the
other.

2. Use of certain words. The words "shall.” "must," and "will" arc always
mandatory. The term "may" is discretionary to the subject which it refers.
Words and phrases are to be construed according to the common and
approved usage in the language, except for technical words and phrases that

Page 2 of 25



may have acquired a peculiar and appropriate meaning,

Conjunctions. Unless the context clearly indicates the contrary, conjunctions
are to be interpreted as follows:

a. "And” indicates that all connected items or provisions apply; and

b. "Or" indicates that the connected items or provisions may apply singularly
or in any combination.

Delegation of authority. Whenever reference is made to the head of a
department or to some other county officer or employee, the reference will be

construed as authorizing the head of the department or other officer to
designate, delegate to and authorize subordinates to perform the required act
or duty, unless expressly provided otherwise.

17.03.040 Enforcement

[t is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation, whether as a principal, agent,
employee, or otherwise, to construct, build, convert, alter, erect maintain a building,
structure or any use of property, equipment, or operation in violation of a provision of
this title. Any violation of this title is a public nuisance and a misdemeanor offense
punishable by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars, or by imprisonment in the
county jail for a period of not more than six months. or by both fine or imprisonment.
The following procedures apply to enforce the provisions of this title:

A.

G

If a violation of this title occurs, the director may deliver to the party in
violation an order to comply with the provision of this title in a time period up
to 30 days from the issuance of the order to comply at the director's discretion.

. The director may also refer notice of the violation to the district attorney who

may commence an action to abate, remove and enjoin the violation as a public
nuisance or a criminal action in the manner provided by law. A party is guilty of
a separate offense for each and every day the violation of this title, or the failure
to comply with any order, is committed or otherwise maintained.

The conviction and punishment of any person under this section will not relieve
the person from the responsibilities of correcting the nuisance.

17.03.045 Abatement of Public Nuisances
A. Upon receipt of a complaint alleging a public nuisance violation of this chapter,

the director must determine the validity of the cemphiant complaint. If the

director determines the complaint to be valid, the director must personally

deliver to the property owner, or send to the property owner by certified mail,
return receipt requested, notice of the violation and notice to abate. The notice
of violation and notice to abate must inform the owner of the following:

1. Nature of the violation.

2. The date the owner must abate the condition. If the public nuisance is not an
immediate danger to public health, safety, or welfare or was caused by the
criminal activity of another person, the owner has a minimum of 30 days to
abate the public nuisance.

3. That the owner has a right to request a hearing before the director.

Page 3 of 25



4. That should the owner not prevail at the hearing, the owner may appeal to the
commission upon filing a notice of appeal with the commission and payment
of a filing fee.

B. A property owner who desires a hearing to challenge the violations set forth in
the notice of violation must notify the director in writing prior to the date
indicated on the notice to abate. The property owner will be afforded an
opportunity to appear before the director and, if not satisfied with the results of
the hearing, may request an appeal of the decision by filing a notice of
administrative appeal with the office of the board along with the filing fee. The
notice of appeal must be placed on the next available board’s agenda. The
board’s decision is final.

C. Should the property owner fail to comply with the terms of the notice to abate,
fail to request a hearing within the time specified, fail to prevail at any requested
hearing, or fail to file an appeal in the time specified, the county may abate the
nuisance on the property and may recover the amount expended by the county
for labor and materials used to abate the public nuisance. The expense and any
civil penalties are a special assessment against the property where the nuisance
is located and this special assessment may be collected as allowed by law.

D. The board may by resolution set civil penalties to be imposed for a public
nuisance violation.

17.03.050 Applications

A. Application deadline. An application for a variance, a special use permit, a
zoning map amendment, a master plan amendment, zoning code amendment, an
amendment to this title, or an appeal of an administrative decision must be filed
with the director no later than 5:00 p.m. on the Friday of the third week before
the planning commission meeting at which the application will be heard. The
director may under certain exigent circumstances make a determination to
accept an application after the deadline but before that planning commission
meeting.

B. Determination of a complete application. Within 3-5 working days after
receiving an application, the director will determine whether the application is
complete. If the director determings that the application is not complete, the
director must contact the applicant during that time period verbally or in writing
and state the application’s deficiencies and describe the additional information
required. The director may take no further action on the application unless the
deficiencies are remedied. An application may only be scheduled for hearing if
the director deems the application complete before the agenda deadline date of
the planning commission or board without the written concurrence of the
applicant, the application is deemed complete. A determination of completeness
will not constitute a determination of compliance with other requirements of this
title or federal and state regulations.

C. Fee submittal. The required application fee must be tendered to the COHHHTY
development planning department with the submitted application.

D. Processing of an application. The director will review the application and
prepare a report for the planning commission and board recommending
approval, approval with conditions, denial, or continuance for re-design. The

Page 4 of 25



director will schedule the application for public hearing within the time and in
the manner required by this title and state statute. An application for a planned
unit development must be preceded by a pre-submittal conference pursuant to
section 17.03.230(A).

E. Official filing date. The time for processing and acting on planning commission
and board applications as established by NRS or this title will commence on the
date that the application is deemed complete. Material modifications of any
application by the applicant following the filing of the application will re-
establish the time for processing and acting on the application upon the
director's determination that the modified application is complete.

17.03.060 Application Limitations
A second or subsequent application substantially similar to an application for a
variance, special use permit, zoning map amendment, zoning code amendment or
master plan amendment may not be submitted for review within | year of the first
application’s denial by the board with respect to that parcel or any portion of that
parcel under the same ownership or if ownership changes unless the director
determines that the subsequent application is substantially different such that the facts
supporting the previous denial from the commission or board no longer exists.

Where the holder of an application for a development approval wishes to file a
subsequent application for a project that is substantially different from the first project,
the new development application will supersede the previous development application,
and the applicant must state on the application that, upon approval of the subsequent
application, the first development approval is withdrawn,

17.03.070 Notice Provisions

A. Published notice. Unless as otherwise provided by this title, any application,
including a zoning map or text amendment, tentative map, planned unit
development, master plan amendment (land use amendment or element text
amendment), that requires a public hearing to be held, a notice of the time and
place of the hearing must be published in an official newspaper of general
circulation in the county at least 10 days before the date for the hearing.

B. Personal notice. Whenever personal notice of a public hearing is required by
this title or NRS 278, in addition to the published notice, including an
application for a variance, special use permit, zoning map or text amendment,
tentative map, planned unit development map, master plan amendment (land use
map amendment or element text amendment), appeal of administrative decision
or administrative permit, the director will mail notice of the hearing not less
than 10 days before the public hearing date Lo:

I. The applicant;

2. All record property owners, as shown on the latest equalized assessment
rolls, within 300 feet of the exterior boundaries of the subject property, to all
property owners of land within such area proposed for re-zoning;

3. Each tenant of a mobile home park if that park is located within 300 feet of
the property in question, written notice of the time, place and date of such
hearing and the general location of the property of the addressee with

Page 5 of 25



C.

reference to the property proposed for change: and
4. At least 30 unique property owners nearest the subject site if there are not 30

unique property owners within 300 feet of the subject site.
Notice for zoning map and text amendments. In addition to published and
personal notice required above, the notice for a zoning map or text amendment
must set forth the time, place and purpose of the hearing and a physical
description of or a map detailing the proposed change. It must indicate the
existing zoning designation and the proposed zoning designation of the property
in question, and must contain a brief summary of the intent of the proposed
change. If the proposed amendment involves a change in the boundary of the
zoning district that would reduce the density or intensity with which a parcel of
land may be used, the notice must include a section that an owner ol property
may complete and return to the board to indicate his or her approval of or
opposition to the proposed amendment.

. When notice of a hearing is sent, the board or other entity must retain:

1. A copy of the notice:

2. A list of the persons or governmental entities (o which the notice was
addressed; and

3. A record of the date on which the notice was deposited in the United States
mail postage prepaid, or sent by electronic means.

17.03.080 Hearings

A,

D.

The board and the planning commission, when holding a hearing on an
application for a variance, special use permit, tentative map, zoning map
amendment, master plan amendment, zoning code amendment, or master plan
clement, must review and judge the merits of an application and find that the
regulations and standards in this title and state law are met.

. Any person or persons may appear at a public hearing and submit evidence,

either individually or as a representative of an organization. Each person who
appears at a public hearing must state his or her full name, and if appcaring on
behalf of an organization, state the name and mailing address of the
organization for the record.

The hearing body may exclude testimony or evidence that it finds to be
irrelevant, immaterial or unduly repetitious. Any person appearing as a witness
may ask relevant questions of other persons appearing as witnesses, but may do
so only through the chairman of the body conducting the hearing and at the
chairman’s discretion.

Continuances. The body conducting the hearing may, on its own motion or at
the request of any person, for good cause, continue the hearing to a fixed date,
time, and place. The applicant must agree to the continuance when the time
limit of the application provided by law would otherwise lapse. An applicant
has the right to one continuance upon payment of the established fee, and if
required, the cost of additional notice. A continuance requested by the applicant
suspends the time lines established in NRS and this title. All subsequent
continuances may be granted at the discretion of the body conducting the
hearing only on good cause shown. and on payment of applicable fees. If the

Page 6 of 25



request for continuance is denied, the hearing will be conducted as scheduled on
the posted agenda and the fee for the continuance will be refunded to the
applicant, If the hearing is continued to a fixed date within 35 days of the
original hearing date, additional notice is not required. For all other
continuances, additional notice is required in the manner required for the initial
hearing. The county will prepare the notice and the party requesting the
continuance must pay the costs.

17.03.090 Advisory Action by the Planning Commission

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take action on the
application and announce and record its action in the form of a motion. The motion
must recite the findings of the planning commission used for its decision and include
any reasonably necessary conditions of approval. Notice of the approval, approval
with conditions, or a denial must be prepared by the director and sent to the applicant
and the board by the agenda cut-off date of the board meeting at which the item will be
heard. The decision of the planning commission in approving, approving with
conditions, or denying the application is advisory only to the board.

17.03.100 Decision by the Board

The board, when required by this title or NRS to take final action on an application,
and after receipt of the report from staff and the recommendation from the planning
commission, must consider the application as an action agenda item during a normally
scheduled meeting of the board and must make a decision on that item based on the
findings required by this title. For an approval, a majority of the board must vote to
approve the item. A vote of less than a majority or tie vote is considered a denial.
Within 5 working days of the date of the board’s decision on an application, written
notification of the action taken must be filed with the clerk of the board and mailed to
the applicant stating the action taken and including all conditions imposed and the
times established for satisfaction of conditions. The board may return an application to
the planning commission for further consideration if new information, not presented at
the planning commission, is submitted to the board. The decision of the board is final.

17.03.110 Amendments and Revisions of Approvals
A. The director, upon submittal of the applicable form, materials and fee., may
approve minor amendments to the terms of an approval, Minor amendments or
revisions must be authorized in writing by the director and are subject to appeal
pursuant to section 17.03.120. Minor revisions that may be authorized are those
that appear necessary in light of technical considerations requested by the
applicant or the director and are limited (o the following:

1. Requests that involve less than 10 percent of the building area or project site

area;

2. Requests for adjustments to a planned unit development pursuant 1o this
subsection must comply with the provisions of chapter 17.56 PUD zone, and
section 17.03.230;

Requests that involve minor changes in color, material, signage, design,
landscape material or parking or driveway orientation: or
. Requests that involve minor design changes which represent improvements

tad

5

Page 7 of 25



B.

to previous engineering, site design or building practices, provided the
request does not change the character of the project or result in negative
impacts to adjoining propertics, drainage facilities, irrigation facilities or
rights-of-way.
For a special use permit, a minor amendment means a modification to one or
more of the conditions of the special use permit which: does not substantially
change the use allowed by the special use permit; does not cause substantially
greater impacts to surrounding properties than that allowed under the existing
special use permit; does not increase area of land, increase the height of any
structure, or reduce the required setbacks of any structure under the special use
permit; and conforms to the minimum required findings and conditions of
approval pursuant to this chapter.

. All other amendments or revisions are considered major revisions, Where the

holder of an approved application for a permit wishes to make a major
amendment or revision to the approval which is not covered by subsections |
through 3 above, an application including all required materials and fees must
be submitted 10 the conmmunity-development planning department and
forwarded for approval of the final decision-maker in accordance with the
procedures established for the original approval.

17.03.120 Fees and Charges

A.

QP

Before accepting any application required by this title, fees adopted by the
board, including service charges, will be charged, collected and deposited with
the community-development planning department. A fee sheet will be available
to the general public at the main desk of the department.

. No fee is charged to any nonprofit organization or government agency that is

the owner of record of the property involved in an application.

. All fees are non-refundable except for recording fees when there is no actual

recording.

. The fee for an extension of the expiration date of the special use permit or

variance will be the same amount as the original application fee.

Unless a continuance is requested by the planning commission or board with the
applicant's concurrence, a continuance of a planning commission agenda item to
a later meeting is subject to the following: The applicant will be required to pay
any fees and the cost of re-noticing the items as required by this chapter or
NRS.

No fee or part of fee will be refunded if an application is not approved.

. All application costs must be paid in U.S. cash, by credit card accepted by the

commraniv-development planning department, or check payable to Storey
County Conmmunit-Development—Planning

17.03.130 Appeal Procedure

A.

B.

Appeals of staff decisions. The applicant or any aggrieved party may appeal an
administrative decision of the director to the board within 10 days of the written
decision. The board may affirm, modify, or reverse the decision.

Procedure for filing a staff administrative decision appeal.

1. Standing for filing an appeal. The applicant or any aggrieved party, defined

Page 8 of 25



as a person with a legal or equitable interest in the property affected by the
final decision or property located within the notice area of the property that is
entitled by law to notice, may file an appeal provided that the appellant has
participated in the administrative process before filing the appeal.

2. Issues for an appeal. Only issues raised or addressed in the public hearing

stage of the administrative process for a project may be raised as a basis for
the appeal unless there is substantial new evidence that has become available
after the time of the public hearing.

3. Appeal application. All appeal applications must be filed in writing with a
letter of appeal to the director.

a. The letter of appeal and application must be submitted within 10 days of
the date of the staff decision for which the appeal is requested.

b. The appeal letter must include the appellant’s name, mailing address,
daytime phone number, and must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

¢. The letter must specify the project or decision for which the appeal is
being requested. The letter must indicate which aspects of the decision are
being appealed. No other aspect of the appealed decision may be heard.

d. The letter must provide the necessary facts or other information that
support the appellant's contention that the staff erred in its consideration or
findings supporting its decision.

e. The staff may provide the board with a report containing the information
used in making the decision

f. The board must set the appeal for hearing and render its decision on the
appeal within 60 days of the submittal of a complete appeal application.

g. Notice of appeals. Notice of time and place of appeal hearings must meet
the requirements of 17.03.070.

17.03.140 Variances
A variance to the provisions of this title may be granted by the board with action by
the planning commission where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or
shape of a specific piece of property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or by
reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional
situation or condition of the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations
enacted under this title would result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties
to, or exceptional and undue hardships upon the owner of property.

A.

Authority. The board with action by the planning commission has the
discretionary authority to approve, conditionally approve, continue within
allowed time frames, or deny a variance.

. Application requirements, Any person requesting a variance must file a

complete application signed by all owners of record of the subject property. The
application must include the information, site plans and other materials
determined by the director to be necessary to support the requirements of this
section.

. The applicant for a variance must bear the burden of proof by a preponderance

of the evidence to provide facts supporting the proposed variance. Additionally,
the applicant must provide adequate information in the application and on the
site plan to substantiate the findings required in this section.

Page 9 of 25



D. Investigation. The director will investigate each application to assure that the
proposal is consistent with the requirements of this title and make a report to the
planning commission and board.

E. Hearing. The planning commission must hold a public hearting on the
application and make a recommendation to the board. The board must hold a
public hearing no later than 65 days after the acceptance of the complete
application. The hearing must meet the requirements of section 17.03.080
(Hearings).

F. Findings. The board's approval, approval with conditions, or denial of'a
variance must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed use is
appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The findings listed in this
subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the board may include
additional findings in their decision. The board and planning commission must
cite findings of fact in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or
denial. At a minimum, the approval must be based on findings that the proposal:

I. That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property,
including shape, size, topography or location of surroundings, the strict
application of the zoning ordinance would deprive the subject property of
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical zone
classification;

2. That the granting of the application is necessary for the preservation and
enjoyment of substantial property rights of the applicant: and

3. That the granting of the application will not, under the circumstances of the
particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of
persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the subject property and
will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious
to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property.

. Decision. Following the public hearing, the board must decide if there is
adequate evidence in the record to support the findings required by this section
and must approve, conditionally approve, modify, continue within allowed time
frames, or deny the variance request.

H. Request for continuance. The applicant may request a continuance of any

application for a variance 1o a future meeting under section17.03.080 (D).

I. Expiration. Where an approved variance is not developed or exercised within 12
months of the date of approval, unless additional time is granted by the board
with action by the planning commission, based upon consideration of the
specific circumstances of the project, then without further action, the permit will
be null and void and no development activity may be made of the property
except on the granting of a new variance.

J. Force majeure. In the event that circumstances beyond the control of the
applicant result in a failure to complete variance conditions and construct or
commence the project prior to the expiration date, the applicant may request in
writing an extension of the expiration date. The director may approve a | year
extension from the original date of variance expiration with the option of the
director to have the planning commission and board review the extension. The
board with action by the planning commission may approve additional

o

Page 10 of 25



extensions of time subject to the consideration of the continued appropriateness
of the variance and may be subject to the imposition of additional conditions to
ensure that the project permitted by the variance does not adversely impact
other properties in the area or the public interest.

. Limitations on Variances. A variance may not be granted that allows a land use

prohibited in the zoning district in which it is located or that changes any
boundary of the district; nor may any variance be granted that changes the
permitted residential density of a zoning district.

17.03.150 Special Use Permit (conditional use)
The board, with action by the planning commission, may approve, approve with
conditions, continue within the allowed timeframe, or deny uses expressly listed as
“uses subject to permit™. Uses in each zone not expressly listed as allowed, permitted,
or subject to permit are prohibited unless the board, with action by the planning
commission, determines that the proposed use is consistent and similar to the uses
listed in the zone. The following requirements apply to the approval of a special use
permit:

A.

B.

Application requirements. Before a special use permit may be considered for
approval, the proposed use must be listed as a use requiring a special use permit
in the regulatory zone or must be a similar usc as determined by the board with
action by the planning commission. For the purpose of accepting an application.
the director will determine whether the use is similar to those expressly listed as
requiring a special use permit. The similar use must not deviate from the pattern
of other conditional uses in the zone.

Investigation. The director will investigate cach application to assure that the
proposal is consistent with the requirements of this title and make a report to the
planning commission and board.

. Hearing. The planning commission must hold a public hearing after acceptance

of a complete application, and notice of the hearing is given as required by this
chapter and the NRS. The board must hold a public hearing no later than 65
days after the acceptance of the complete application. The hearings must meet
the requirements of section 17.03.080 (Hearings).

. Findings. The approval of a special use permit must be based on findings that

indicate that the proposed use is appropriate in the location for which it is
approved. The findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in
an approval; the board and planning commission may include additional
findings in their decision. The body must cite findings in its motion for approval
or findings for their motion for denial. The applicant will bear the burden of
proof by a preponderance of the evidence to provide facts supporting the
proposed special use permit. At a minimum, the approval must be based on
findings that the proposal:
|. Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.
2. The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on

Page 11 of 25



G.

adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

3. Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking. public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant
to an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

4. The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will

impose no undue burden or any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county. Where improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services are not available or adequate to service the proposed use in the
proposed location, the special use permit applicant must, as part of the
application and as a condition of approval of the proposed special use permit,
be responsible for establishing ability, willingness, and binding commitment
to provide the improvements, facilities, utilities, infrastructure, and services
in sufficient time and in a manner consistent with the county master plan, this
title, and all plans, programs, maps, and ordinances adopted by the county to
guide its growth and development. The approval of the special use permit
must be conditioned upon the improvements, facilities, and services being
provided and guaranteed by the applicant.
Conditions of approval. The board with action by the planning commission may
require conditions under which the lot or parcel may be used or the building
constructed if the use may otherwise be incompatible with other existing and
potential uses within the same general area or will constitute a nuisance or will
overburden public services, improvements or facilities.

*. Expiration and revocation, Where a use permitted by a special use permit is not

started on the property within 24 months from the date of approval, unless
additional time is granted by the board with action by the planning commission
based upon consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then the
special use permit will be null and void without any further action and the use
will not be allowed except by the granting of a new special use permit.
Extension and expiration of permits. If circumstances beyond the control of the
applicant result in a failure to complete applicable special use permit conditions
and construct or commence the use prior to the expiration date, the applicant
may request in writing an extension of the expiration date. The written request
for an extension must be received by the communityv-development planning
department within 30 days prior to the expiration date. The application must
state the reason for the extension request. The board with action by the planning
commission may approve a 24 month extension of the special use permit and
may approve up to 2 additional extensions for time subject to the consideration
of the continued appropriateness of the special use permit. The extended special

Page 12 of 25



use permit may be subject to additional conditions imposed by the board to
ensure that the activity permitted by the special use permit does not adversely
impact other properties in the area or the public interest. If construction work is
involved, the work must actually commence within the stated period and be
diligently pursued to completion. A stoppage or lapse of work for a period of 12
months will invalidate the special use permit. When any use of land, building,
structure or premises established under the provisions of this chapter has been
discontinued for a period of 24 consecutive months, it is unlawful to again use
the land or building or premises for the discontinued use unless a subsequent
special use permit is authorized and issued.

. Re-application. No person, including the original applicant, may reapply for a

similar special use permit on the same land, building. or structure within a
period of | year from the date of the final decision by the board of such
previous application.

17.03.160 Standard Conditions of Approval - Special Use Permits and Variances
The standard conditions contained in this section are imposed on applications
requiring discretionary approval. Additional conditions may be imposed by the board
or recommended by the planning commission. The minimum required conditions are
as follows:

A.

B.

D.

Conformance with plans. All development must be substantially in accordance
with the site development plans submitted with the application,

Conformance with regulations. All on- and off-site improvements must conform
to federal, state, and county regulations and the regulations by any applicable
political subdivision of the county.

. Period to commencement. The use for which the permit or variance is approved

must commence within 24 months of the date of final approval. A single, 1 year
extension of time must be requested in writing to the eervmunity-development
planning department 30 days prior to the permit or variance expiration date.
The permit or variance will become null and void if the project applicable to the
permit is not initiated within 1 year and no extension granted.

Department conditions. The recommended conditions of approval from each
county department must be incorporated as conditions to the final permit or
variance, provided that the recommended conditions comply with federal, state,
and county regulations.

17.03.170 Review or Revocation of Variance or Special Use Permit
The director may refer a variance or a special use permit to the board for a show cause
hearing on revocation based on any of the following reasons or occurrences. The
procedure for the show cause hearing will be as required in section 17.03.180.

A.

B.

.

A failure or refusal of the applicant to comply with any of the terms or
conditions of a variance or special use permit.

Any misrepresentation made in the application for a variance or special use
permit.

Any act or failure to act by the applicant or its agents or employees directly
related to the variance or special use permit which would be a violation of
federal or state law or a violation of the county code.

Page 13 of 25



. Any act or failure to act by the applicant or its agents or employees directly

E:

relating to the variance or special use permit that creates or tends to create a
public nuisance or is detrimental to the public health. safety and welfare.

A failure to return a signed copy of the notice of decision, 21 days from receipt
of said notice.

. Further use of a revoked variance or special use permit is a violation of this title

and will be punishable as provided in this title.

17.03.180 Show Cause Procedures of Variance or Special Use Permit
A. Procedures. The board upon its own motion, or upon the sworn complaint in

B

writing of any person, or upon information presented by the director, must

request that the director investigate the conduct of any applicant under this

chapter to determine whether grounds for revocation of any variance or special
use permit exist. The director will notify the applicant of any investigation prior
to any public hearing.

Investigation. After an investigation, if the director determines that a ground for

revocation of a variance or special use permit exists, the director will issue and

serve the applicant with an order to show cause why the variance or special use
permit should not be revoked. The order must contain:

I. A statement directing the applicant or applicant's representative to appear
before the board at a particular time and place; provided. that the applicant
has at least 10 days from the date of service of the order before the scheduled
meeting;

2. A statement of the grounds for revocation;

3. A statement that the applicant will have an opportunity to be heard. present
witnesses and respond to any witnesses against him or her;

4. Service on the applicant must be made by personally delivering a copy of the
order to show cause to one of the persons whose name is on the application
or by mailing a copy of the order by certified mail with return receipt to the
applicant's address on the variance or special use permit.

. Hearing for show cause.

|. At the public hearing on the order to show cause, the applicant and the
complainant, if there is one, may present testimony, question witnesses, and
be represented by attorneys. If the hearing is pursuant to a complaint, the
complainant must also be present.

2. After the conclusion of discussion and public testimony, the possible actions
that the board may take include taking no action on the permit, revocation, or
modification of permit conditions of approval, limited suspension, and
continuance with the concurrence of the applicant.

. Appeal of show cause determination. A show cause decision from the board is

final. Any further appeal of the board's decision must be in the court of
competent jurisdiction within the time frames established by NRS.

17.03.200 Administrative Permit
A. Purpose. The purpose of administrative permits is to provide for the method of

reviewing proposed uses which possess characteristics that have the potential to
adversely affect other land uses, transportation, or facilities in the vicinity. The

Page 14 of 25



director may require conditions of approval necessary to eliminate or reduce any
adverse effects of a use.

. Applicability. This chapter authorizes the director to review and render final

decisions on zoning matters and development proposals identified within this
chapter as requiring an administrative permit pursuant to the provisions of this
section,

. Permit Required. An administrative permit is required in the following cases:

I. A proposed accessory structure pursuant to chapter 17.12 General provisions,
with a total size that is more than 50 percent and up 1o 75 percent of the size
of the primary structure.

2. Small eperations exploration and mining.

3. Sign permits.

. Process. Applications for administrative permits may be initiated by the

property owner or the property owner's authorized agent. Applications must be
filed with the community-development planning department. A request for an
administrative permit must include a site plan which clearly delineates the
location and characteristics of the proposed use. No administrative permit will
be processed until the director determines the application is complete.
Decision. This title delegates certain authority for making decisions relating to
various development applications, uses and similar approvals to the director.
The director must review all complete applications, make necessary findings
and render a decision on the application. The director may refer the application
to the planning commission for its review and recommendation to the board
prior to rendering a decision on the application.

. Findings. In approvmg an administrative permit, the director must make the

findings shown in section 17.03.150 (D).

. Notification and appeal of decision by director. The director must notify the

applicant within 10 working days of the decision. The decision of the director
may be appealed to the board by the applicant or any aggrieved party pursuant
to section 17.03.130 (Appeal procedure).

17.03.210 Master Plan

A,

B.

Purpose, The purpose of this section is to provide for the adoption of the county
master plan and amendments to the master plan.

Administration. The members of the board and the planning commission and
county employees, in the performance of their functions, may enter upon any
land and make examinations and surveys. The board has power as may be
necessary to enable it to fulfill its function and carry out the provisions of this
title and NRS 278. The county master plan is, but is not limited to, a map,
together with charts, drawings, diagrams, schedules, reports, ordinances. or
other printed or published material, or any one or a combination of any of the
foregoing.

C. Requirements for application.

1. Initiation of amendments. The director, planning commission, the board, or a
property owner, resident or the owner of a business located in the county may
initiate a request for amendment of the master plan map. The CONHHHY

Page 15 of 25



Ex

I

G.

development planning department is responsible for reviewing and
processing of master plan map amendments. A public hearing must be
scheduled before the board within 45 days of the planning commission
action.

2. Types of applications, There are 3 types of applications for master plan
amendments. The first type is an amendment to the master plan map. The
second type of amendment is an amendment to the master plan text. The third
type of amendments to the county master plan is adoption of a new master
plan element.

3. Completeness. No master plan amendment may be processed until the
information necessary to review and decide upon the proposed master plan
amendment or element is determined to be complete by the director.

4. Timing of amendments. The county master plan land use map may be
amended by the board no more than 4 times per year on a schedule to be
determined by the director. Master plan elements or other master plan text
amendments may be submitted in any month during the calendar year for
adoption.

5. Frequency of amendment. Only the board or planning commission may
initiate an amendment of the master plan for a parcel within 12 months after
an amendment on that parcel has been approved or denied.

. Concurrent processing of applications. If a proposed project requires more than

| application under the provisions of this title, the applications may be filed at
the same time and processed concurrently.

Elements of the master plan. The master plan, along with accompanying maps,
charts, drawings, diagrams, schedules and reports may include, but is not
limited to, the subject matter appropriate under state law for the county and as
the basis for the physical development of the county.

Master plan maps. The official county zoning maps may serve as the maps for
the county master plan.

Adoption of master plan by planning commission. The planning commission
must prepare and adopt a comprehensive, long-term master plan for the physical
development of the county. This plan will be known as the county's master plan
and must be prepared so that all or portions of the plan may be adopted by the
board as the basis for the development of the county for a set, reasonable period
of time. The planning commission must hear the request within 120 days of a
determination of completeness by the department. The adoption of the master
plan, or of any amendment, extension or addition, must be at a public hearing
and be by resolution of the planning commission carried by the affirmative
votes of not less than two-thirds of the total membership of that body. The
resolution must refer expressly to the maps. descriptive matter, and other matter
intended by the planning commission to constitute the plan or any amendment,
addition or extension, and the action taken must be recorded on the map and
plan and descriptive by the identifying signatures of chair of the planning
commission and its secretary or clerk.

1. Adoption of master plan by board. Following receipt of a certified copy of the

resolution approving a master plan amendment or the report referencing the

Page 16 of 25



decision and findings of the planning commission, the board must schedule a
public hearing to decide whether to adopt the amendment. The comuunity
development planning department must provide published notice of the
hearing. For amendments to the master plan map or text amendments seeking a
change to minimum parcel size policy provisions, personal notice must also be
given. The board may continue a master plan application pursuant to section
17.03.080(D). The board may adopt all or a portion of the master plan for all or
any part of the county. If the board’s approval proposes to change the plan, as
adopted by the planning commission, it must refer the proposed changes to the
planning commission for its report and recommendation. The planning
commission must review the proposed changes at a regularly scheduled meeting
and file an attested copy of its report and recommendation with the county clerk
within 40 days after referral from the board. Failure to file the report and
recommendation within the time period is considered to be an approval of the
proposed changes to the amendment.

I. Findings of fact. The board and planning commission must, at a minimum, make

the following findings of fact in the decision:

1. Consistency with the existing master plan.

a. Adoption. The proposed amendment is in substantial compliance with the
goals, policies and action programs of the existing master plan.

b. Denial. The proposed amendment is not in substantial compliance with the
goals, objectives and policies and action programs of the existing master
plan.

Compatible land uses.

a. Adoption. The proposed amendment will provide for land uses compatible
with existing adjacent land uses, and will not adversely impact the public
health, safety or welfare.

b. Denial. The proposed amendment would result in land uses which are
incompatible with existing adjacent land uses, and would adversely impact
the public health, safety or welfare.

3. Response to change conditions.

a. Approval, The proposed amendment addresses changed conditions that
have occurred since the plan was adopted by the board and the requested
amendment represents a more desirable utilization of land.

b. Denial. The proposed amendment does not identify and/or address
changed conditions of an arca that have occurred since the plan was
adopted by the board and the requested amendment does not represent a
more desirable utilization of land.

[0S

4. Desired pattern of growth.

a. Approval, The proposed amendment will promote the desired pattern for
the orderly physical growth of the county and guides development of the
county based on the projected population growth with the least amount of
natural resource impairment and the efficient expenditure of funds for
public services.

b. Denial. The proposed amendment does not promote the desired pattern for

Page 17 of 26



the orderly physical growth of the county. The proposed amendment does
not guide development of the county based on the projected population
growth with the least amount of natural resource impairment and/or the
efficient expenditure of funds for public services.

5. When forwarding its recommendation to the board for adoption of a master

plan element, the planning commission must, at a minimum, make the
following findings of fact:

a. That the proposed element is consistent with and not contrary to the
present elements of the existing master plan.

b. That the element must be part of the existing county master plan, which is
a comprehensive long-term document for the physical development of the
county, and that the element will now supplement the other master plan
elements that compose the county master plan.

¢. The proposed element will promote a desired pattern of orderly, physical
growth of the county or guide a particular type of development activity
within the county, which will be based on the projected population growth
with the least amount of impairment to natural resources and available
water, andsthe efficient expenditure of funds per public services.

1. Implementation of the master plan by the board. Whenever the board has

approved the master plan, upon recommendation of the planning commission,
the board must determine a reasonable and practical means for implementing
the master plan. The master plan will serve as a pattern and guide for the kind of
orderly physical growth and development of the county that will cause the least
amount of natural resource impairment and will conform to the county growth
plan as a basis for the efficient expenditure of funds. relating to the subject
elements of the master plan. The board may adopt and use procedures as may be
necessary for the implementation of'this title.

17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text amendments

A.

B.

Amendments. This title and land use map incorporated as part of this title may
be amended, repealed, or supplemented by the board.

Application requirements. Amendments to this title or the county official
zoning district map may be initiated by the board, planning commission, or an
owner of a lot or parcel, by filing with the director a signed and complete
application, accompanied by the necessary fee. and application materials
including all evidence and facts required under this section. Pursuant 10 section
17.03.230(C) only the owner of a lot or parcel may initiate an application for a
zone change to PUD.

. Investigation. The director will investigate each application to assure that the

proposal is consistent with the requirements of this title.

. Notice. Notice of time and place of planning commission and board hearings

must meet the requirements in section 17.03.070.

Hearing.

1. The planning commission must hold a public hearing with notice required
under chapter 17.03.060 on all proposed amendments within 65 days
following the acceptance of a complete application.

Page 18 of 25



2. When the planning commission deems it proper, it may consider other
property for change in addition to that sought in the application; provided,
that proper notice has been given pursuant to this section.

F. Findings. The applicant for a zoning map amendment or zoning code
amendment has the burden of proof to provide facts supporting the proposed
zoning map amendment or zoning text amendment. The applicant must provide
adequate information in the application and on the site plan to substantiate the
findings required in this section. The submitted application for a PUD must also
provide adequate information to substantiate the findings required in section
17.03.230(C). The board and planning commission must determine if the
information presented is adequate to support their decision.

1. Before a zoning map amendment may be recommended for approval, the
applicant must provide evidence to the board and planning commission
concerning the physical use of land and zoning currently existing in the
general vicinity, and which have occurred in the previous 5 year time period,
and describe:

a. How the proposal will impact the immediate vicinity.

b. How the proposal supports the goals, objectives and recommendations of
the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the
neighborhood where the subject project is situated.

¢. Ifthe proposed amendment will impact properties within that use district.

d. Any impacts on public services and facilities, and availability of water
resources.

e. How the application for a PUD will conform to the findings in section
17.03.230(C).

2. The planning commission, in forwarding a recommendation to the board for
approval of a zoning map amendment or zoning code amendment must make
the following findings of fact:

a. That the proposed amendment is in substantial compliance with and
supports the goals and policies of the master plan;

b. That the proposed amendment will provide for land uses compatible with
existing adjacent land uses and will not have detrimental impacts to other
properties in the vicinity:

c. That the proposed amendment will not negatively impact existing or
planned public services or facilitics and will not adversely impact the
public health, safety and welfare.

d. That the approval of a PUD will conform to the findings in section
17.03.230(C).

G. Planning commission decision. Following the public hearing, the planning
commission will determine if there is adequate evidence in the record to support
the facts and findings required by this section and must recommend to the board
to approve or deny the request for the zoning map amendment or zoning text
amendment.

H. Report to the board. The planning commission must forward to the board a
copy of its decision and findings recommending approval, modification, or

Page 19 of 25



denial of the proposed zoning map amendment or zoning code amendment.

I. Action by the board. The board must consider the evidence relating to the map

amendment or the ordinance containing the proposed zoning text amendment at
a hearing noticed and conducted in accordance with the provisions of this title
and state law. The zone text amendment must be adopted by ordinance and the
map amendments must be adopted in accordance with all procedures established
in this code. Following approval of the ordinance or map amendment, the
zoning text or the official zoning map must be changed to reflect the
amendment.

17.03.230 Planned unit developments

A.

Pre-application submittal conference. Before an application for a PUD zone
may be accepted, a pre-submittal conference including the developer (or an
authorized representative) and county staft, including staff from other
regulatory agencies or jurisdictions if necessary, is required to discuss proposed
plans and review submittal requirements. The purpose of the pre-application
submittal conference will be to determine if and how the proposed development
may satisfy the required findings of fact under sections 17.03.230(C).

. Application. An application for a PUD will include a request for zone change

from the existing zone to PUD; a tentative map pursuant to section 17.03.220;
and a PUD development plan which conforms to the provisions of chapter 17.56
(PUD zone). All of these required components will be submitted together in the
application.

. Approval and required findings. As required by NRS 278A.500. the grant or

denial of tentative approval by minute action must set forth the reasons for the
grant, with or without conditions, or for the denial, and the minutes must set
forth with particularity in what respects the plan would or would not be in the
public interest including, but not limited to, findings on the following:

I. In what respects the plan is or is not consistent with the statement of
objectives of a planned unit development.

2. The extent to which the plan departs from zoning and subdivision regulations
otherwise applicable to the property including, but not limited to, density,
bulk and use, and the reasons why these departures are or are not deemed to
be in the public interest.

3. The ratio of residential to nonresidential use in the planned unit
development.

4, The purpose, location and amount of the common area in the pla nned
unit development, the reliability of the proposals for maintenance and
conservation of the common area, and the adequacy or inadequacy of
the amount and purpose of the common area as related to the proposed
density and type of residential development.

5. The physical design of the plan and the manner in which the design does
or does not make adequate provision for publie services, provide
adequate control over vehicular traffic, and further the amenities of
light and air, recreation and visual enjoyment. 3.—the ratio-orresidential
to-nonresidentinhuse-in the planned-uiit-development———4—he-purpose;
location-snd-amount-ofthe-conimon-area-in-the planned-unit-development:

Page 20 of 25



the-reliabilin-of the-proposal-tormaintenance-and-conservation-otthe
common-area—and-the-adequuer-or-inadequacy-of the-amount-and-purpose-of
tHhe-common-areaasrelated-to-the-proposed-density-and-type-obresidential
development—— 5 The physical-design-of-the-plan-and-the-manner-
which the desien does-or dovsnotmake-adequate provision-for-pubhe
sepvices: provide-adequate-controlover vehicular-trathie—and-further the
amenities-of-lisht-and-airrecreation-and-visual-enjoyment:

3- 6. The relationship, beneficial or adverse, of the proposed planned unit
development to the neighborhood in which it is proposed to be established.

4- 7. In the case of a plan which proposes development over a period of years,
the sufficiency of the terms and conditions intended to protect the interests of
the public, residents and owners of the planned unit development in the
integrity of the plan.

3. 8. The extent to which the plan is consistent with the statement of objectives
of a planned unit development contained in the master plan, this chapter, and
chapter 17.56 (planned unit development zone).

6-9. The extent to which the proposed development is compatible and preserves
the character and integrity of adjacent developments and communities.

7-10. The extent to which the quality or quantity of available water for
surrounding communities and uses will be protected.

$.11. The extent to which sufficient quality and quantity of water serving the
anticipated number of units in the proposed development, including phasing
and at completion, will be provided.

9. 12. The extent to which the development conforms to existing topography
(including hillside and ridgeline environments as described in chapter 17.56),
water bodies, natural drainage systems, and other geographic features.

H:13. The extent to which the development provides for an orderly and
creative arrangement of land uses that include a variety of housing types,
commercial services, employment and recreational opportunities, and
common area for recreational purpose (passive and active), or any
combination thercof, designed to achieve a balanced integration of economic,
housing, or redevelopment opportunities.

11.14. The extent to which the development mitigates adverse impacts such as
traffic, noise, odors, visual nuisances, light pollution, or other similar adverse
effects to adjacent developments and communities.

12.15. Where the development plan proposes development over a period of
years, the sufficiency of the terms and conditions intended to protect the
interest of the public, residents, and owners of the PUD and the integrity of
the plan and, where the plan provides phases, the period in which the
application for each phase must be filed.

13-16. Where there is deviation from the standard ordinance requirements in the
county code, how it will be warranted by the design and additional amenitics
incorporated in the development which offers certain unusual redeeming
features to compensate for any allowed deviations.

1417, The extent to which the development will not result in material prejudice
or diminution in the value of surrounding properties, and will not endanger

Page 21 of 26



the health, safety, and general welfare of the community.

D. Development standards. The development standards, density, and intensity of

E.

H.

uses of a planned unit development are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.56.
Revision procedure. A public hearing by the planning commission and board is
required before revisions to the plan which involve changes in land use,
expansion, or intensification of development, or changes in the standards of
development may be approved. The director will determine on a case-by-case
basis those instances when a revision to the development plan is necessary,
following the same procedure as the original application. Changes in an
approved development plan which do not involve changes in land use,
expansion, or intensification of development or changes in the standards of
development may be approved by the director if the changes are consistent with
the purposes, character, and conditions of the development plan.

‘. Development schedule, modification, or revocation.

I. An application for a PUD approval must be accompanied by a development
schedule, including a phasing plan, indicating the dates when applications for
final approval of all sections of the plan are to be filed and, in the case of
tentative maps, dates that the final map or series of final maps must be
recorded by.

2. Minute order. As required by NRS 278A.510, unless the time is specified in
an agreement entered into pursuant 1o NRS 278.0201, if a plan is granted
tentative approval, with or without conditions, the board must set forth, in the
minute action, the time within which an application for final approval of the
plan must be filed or, in the case of a plan which provides for development
over a period of years, the periods within which application for final approval
of cach part thereof must be filed. The board may add, delete, or modify the
conditions of approval for a planned development when approving a
modification to a development schedule.

3. Tentative approval will be revoked for areas included in the plan for which

final approval has not been given if:

a. The landowner elects to abandon the plan or any part thercof, and 50
notifies the director in writing; or

b. The landowner fails to file application for the final approval within the
required time.

. Identification. Each planned development overlay must be numbered, the first

adopted being shown on the zoning map as Planned Development (1) and each
zone subsequently adopted being numbered consecutively.

Compliance with chapter, application restricted. Compliance with any
requirement contained in this chapter must not be construed to relieve the
applicant from compliance with subdivision regulations, building code
requirements, or any other applicable regulations of the county, except when
they are modified in the approval process.

[. Status of plan after tentative approval.

|. Tentative approval of a planned development plan does not qualify the plan
for recording or authorize development or the issuance of any building

Page 22 of 25



permits. Recording and development of the planned development requires
filing and approval of substantially conforming applications for final
approval of each phase within the time specified in the order approving the
application for tentative approval.

2. A plan which has been approved by the board as submitted, or which has
been given tentative approval with conditions which have been accepted by
the developer, may not be modified, revoked or otherwise impaired by action
of the county pending an application for final approval without the consent of
the developer or assigns, except as provided in subsection 17.03.230(J).

1. Revocation of tentative approval. Tentative approval may be revoked in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this chapter and the portion of the
area included in the plan for which final approval has not been given is subject
to the current provisions of this title if:

1. The developer elects to abandon the plan or any part thercof, and so notifies
the county in writing; or

2. The landowner fails to file applications for final approval within the times
established in the tentative approval.

K. Procedure for final map approval.

1. Application requirements. An application for final approval of a phase or
phases of a PUD must be submitted to the director on forms provided by the
community-development planning department within the times specified by
the tentative approval of the plan. The application for final approval may be
for all the land included in a tentatively approved plan or, to the extent set
forth in the tentative approval, for a particular phase of the plan. The
application must be accompanied by the maps, drawings, specifications, fees,
covenants, casements, conditions and forms of performance security required
in the tentative approval or otherwise required by law. If a tentative map is
submitted with the development plan, a final map must be approved at or
before final plan approval.

Determination of substantial compliance. The director will review the

application for final approval and all information submitted and determine

whether it complies with the approved tentative plan. The plan submitted for
final approval will not be in substantial compliance if any modification:

a. Varies the proposed gross residential density or intensity of use;

b. Varies the proposed ratio of residential to non-residential use;

¢. Involves a reduction of the area set aside for common area or involves the
substantial relocation of the area;

d. Substantially increases the floor area proposed for non-residential use;

e. Substantially increases the total ground areas covered by buildings or
involve a substantial change in the height of buildings:

f. No longer meets adequate public facilities standards of this title, except for
minor modifications in the location and design of streets or facilities for
water and for disposal of storm water and sanitary; or

0. Is not accompanied by proof of satisfaction of conditions imposed as
prerequisites to final plan approval.

(3o

Page 23 of 25



L.

3. Approval of applications which substantially comply with tentative approval.
The director must approve a final plan if it is in substantial compliance with
the plan as tentatively approved.

Procedure for determining noncompliance.

1. Ifthe final plan as submitted for final approval is found by the director not to
be in substantial compliance with the plan as tentatively approved, the
director must, within 30 days of the date of filing of the application for final
approval, notify the developer in writing the particular ways in which the
plan is not in substantial compliance with the tentative approval.

. The developer may:

a. Treat the notification as a denial of final approval;

b. Re-file the plan in a form which is in substantial compliance with the plan

as tentatively approved; or

¢. File a written appeal request with the director that a hearing be set before
the commission on the application for final approval.

If the developer elects the alternative set forth in subsection (2)(ii) or (2)(iii)

above, the developer may re-file the plan or file a request for a public

hearing, as the case may be, on or before the last day of the time within
which the developer was authorized by the tentative approval to file for final
approval, or 30 days from the date the developer receives notice of the
refusal, whichever is the latter.

4. The public hearing must be held within 30 days after the request for the
hearing is made by the landowner. Notice must be given and the hearing
must be conducted as prescribed by this chapter. Within 20 days after the
conclusion of the hearing, the commission must either grant final approval of
the plan or deny final approval of the plan. The grant or denial of final
approval of the plan must contain the findings of fact required in in this
section and chapter 17.56.

tJ

Ll

. Certification, filing and recording of approved plan. A plan, or any part, which

has been given final approval, must be certified without delay by the county and
filed of record in the county recorder’s office before any development occurs in
accordance with the plan. The county recorder must not file for record any final
plan unless, if required by the provisions of this code. a final map has been
approved, the certificates of approval as required under NRS 278.377 have been
provided, or the map is accompanied by evidence that the approvals were
requested more than 30 days before the date on which the request for filing is
made, and that the approval has been refused.

. Effect of recordation. After the final map is recorded for the PUD, or any phase,

the zoning and subdivision regulations of this code apply to the land subject to
the final map or phase only to the extent that these regulations have been
incorporated in the final plan as recorded.

. Development schedule, revocation or amendment. The PUD project must be

initiated within 3 years of approval of the final map. If the PUD owner fails to
meet this deadline and the approved schedule, including phasing, the board may
initiate proceedings to reclassify the property back to its original underlying

Page 24 of 25



zone(s) and revoke the approval of the development plan, or amend the required
timelines and phasing in the development plan.

Page 25 of 25



Chapter 17.06

Nonconforming Uses

Sections:

17.06.010 Purpose.

17.06.020 Continuance of nonconforming use

17.06.025 Nonconforming parcel size

17.06.030 Expansion of nonconforming use

17.06.040 Discontinuance of use

17.06.050 Damaged nonconforming buildings

17.06.060 Procedure for loss of legal nonconforming use status

17.06.010 Purpose

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate and limit the continued existence of lawfully
created uses and structures established before the enactment of this title or any
amendments that do not conform to the provisions of this title. These nonconforming uses
may continue:; but the intent is to limit substantial investment in nonconforming uses and
structures and when necessary to preserve the integrity of this title to bring about their
eventual elimination.

17.06.020 Continuance of Nonconforming Use

A lawful use of land or buildings not in conformance with the regulations prescribed in
this title but legally existing before the enactment of this title or any amendments may be
a continued nonconforming use.

17.06.025 Nonconforming Parcel Size

The area of any lot created after the effective date of this title must not be less than the
minimum area required by the respective zone. Where an existing lot has less area than
required in the zone, but was recorded before the adoption of this title or any amendments
that make the lot nonconforming, the lot may remain at its existing size and be developed
with the uses allowable in the zone. A variance pursuant to Chapter-chapter 17.03
Administrative provisions, will be required if building setback requirements cannot be
mel.

17.06.030 Expansion of Nonconforming Use

A nonconforming use of land or building may not be extended or expanded. Minor
modifications or repair and maintenance are permitted.

17.06.040 Discontinuance of Use

A lawful use of nonconforming land or buildings, including house trailers or mobile
homes, which is operationally abandoned or discontinued for a period of one year or
more, may not be resumed or re-established.

17.06.050 Damaged Nonconforming Buildings

Nonconforming buildings that have been damaged or destroyed by natural calamity may
be repaired or reconstructed within one year from the date of damage; provided the

Page 1 0of 2



repaired or reconstructed building is same as the previous use and the repairs cost less
than 50% of the fair market valuation.

17.06.060 Procedure for Loss of Legal Nonconforming Use Status

The community-development building and planning departments has have the
responsibility to ensure compliance with this chapter. If the either or both department
determines that a use or structure no longer meets the requirements of a legally created
nonconforming structure or use, the department will file a report with the reason for the
determination and a recommendation with the board. Personal notice must given to the
owner of the nonconforming structure and a hearing must be set within 30 days of the
date the notice is mailed specifying the time and place of the hearing. The board must
decide whether the use or structure is required to meet the provisions of this title.

Page 2 of 2



Chapter 17.08

Chapter 17.08

Zones Generally

Sections:

17.08.010 Establishment of zoning districts

17.08.020 Zoning districts

17.08.030 Statement of purpose and intent of each zoning district
17.08.040 Map of zoning districts

17.08.050 Arca zoning maps

17.08.060 Changes of official and area zoning maps

17.08.070 Rules for interpretation of zone boundaries

17.08.010 Establishment of Zoning Districts.

Storey County, Nevada is divided into zoning districts of such number and character as
necessary to achieve compatibility of uses within each district, to implement the master
plan and related official plans and the official county zoning map.

17.08.020 Zoning Districts,
For the purpose of this title, all land in Storey County is divided into zoning districts that
are designated as follows:

A Agricultural

& Commercial

CR Commercial-Residential

L Estates (1, 2.5, 5, 10 and 40 acre parcels)

E-1-VCH Estates | acre—Virginia City Highlands

E-10-HR Estates 10 acres—Highland Ranches

E-40-VR Estates 40 acres—Virginia Ranches 4‘
F Forestry

H Historic Overlay District

IC Industrial Commercial

11 Light Industrial

212 Heavy Industrial

1-3-13 Heavy Industrial |
s IS Special Industrial

MHP Manufactured-Mobile Home Park

NR Natural Resources

P Public

PUD Planned Unit Development Overlay District

R~ R1 Single-Family Residential ]
R2R2 Multi-Family Residential

SPR Special Planning Review

Page 1 of 2



Chapter 17.08

17.08.030 Statement of Purpose and Intent of Each Zoning District.
The statement of purpose and intent of each zoning district is contained in each zoning
district chapter.

17.08.040 Map of Zoning Districts,

The land use zones and their boundaries are established and adopted as shown on the map
entitled “Official Zoning Map of Storey County.” This map is made a part of this title by
reference. The official zoning map is identified by the signature of the chairman of the
board of county commissioners attested by the county clerk under the following words:
“This is to certify that this is the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in
Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada® together with the
date of adoption.

17.08.050 Area Zoning Maps.

FFor convenience and identification, the official zoning map may be divided into scparate
maps having a scale different than the official zoning map. The zones and boundaries of
the zones must be determined and delineated in accordance with the official zoning map
if the area map is an enlargement of the official zoning map. When an area zoning map is
created and not based upon the delineations of the official zoning map, a public hearing
will be held for each area covered as provided in chapter +7:64 17.03 Administrative
provisions, prior to adoption of the map. Upon adoption, regulations governing the zones
become effective. Each area zoning map must be certified in the manner specified for the
official zoning map in Section 17.08.040.

17.08.060 Changes of Official and Area Zoning Maps.

In accordance with the provisions of this title, if changes are made in zone boundaries or
other matters portrayed on the official or arca zoning map, the changes must be entered
on the official or area zoning map promptly afier the amendment has been approved by
the board with an entry on the official or area zoning map indicating the ordinance
number and date adopted. The entry must be signed by the chairman of the board and
attested by the county clerk. Regardless of the existence of the purported copies of the
official and area zoning maps which may from time to time be made or published, the
official zoning maps of Storey County arc to be located in the office of the county
recorder and are the final authority as to the current zoning status of land and water area,
buildings and other structures in the county.

17.08.070 Rules for Interpretation of Zone Boundaries.
Where uncertainty exists as to the boundaries as shown on the official and arca zoning
maps, the following rules apply:

A. Boundaries indicated as approximately following the centerline of streets,
highways or alleys must be construed to follow that centerline;

B. Boundaries indicated as approximately following plotted lines, section lines, or
quarter section lines must be construed as following those lines;

C. In non-subdivided property or where a zone boundary divides a lot, the location
of the boundary, unless it is indicated by dimensions, must be determined by use
of the scale appearing on the map;

D. In case any uncertainty exists, the board may determine the location of
boundaries, after considering a reccommendation on the location by the planning
commission,

Page 2 of 2



Chapter 17.10
Definitions
Sections:

17.10.020 Definitions generally
17.10.030 Definitions

17.10.020 Definitions Generally

For the purpose of this title certain terms and words are defined as follows in this chapter.
When consistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future;
words in the singular include those in the plural and the plural the singular; any words of
gender include the opposite gender; “building” includes “structure,” the word “shall™ is
mandatory, not discretionary, the word “person” includes “firm,” “association,”
“corporation,” “partnership,” and “natural person”; the word “used” includes the words
“arranged,” “designed,” or “intended to be used”; and the word “construct” includes the
words “erect,” “reconstruct,” “alter,” “move-in" and “move-upon.”

17.10.030 Definitions

Abandoned. The term “abandoned™ concerns a building or use that has not been developed
or maintained for a period of time as stated in an ordinance.

Access Way. The term “Access Way™ means a clear and unobstructed usable approach of at
least 12 feet in width (residential), 15 feet in width (one-way commercial), and 24 i'ccl_in
width (two-way) from a development upon land to a public travelled way located within a
public right-of-way. An access may also be secured by means of an easement from the owner
of a parcel or lot proposed to be built upon for the full length of the parcel or lot extending to
a public right-of-way, or any other access way suitable or acceptable to the community and
public works departments.

Accessory building, detached. The term “Accessory Building, Detached™ refers to a
building on the same lot as the principal building, but which is physically
separated from the principal building, subordinate to the principal building,
and devoted to a use incidental to that principal building. A detached
accessory building is not designed, configured, or used for human habitation.
The detached accessory building may be connected to water and wastewater
systems subject to the recordation of a deed restriction prohibiting the use of
the structure as a dwelling unit (see accessory dwelling unit). Installation of
both a Kitchen, and bathroom with bathtub or shower, changes the building to
an accessory dwelling unit and, therefore, subject to the respective
regulations, Typical uses include detached garages, outbuildings, storage
buildings, barns, sheds, ete.

Accessory dwelling unit, attached. The term “Accessory Dwelling Unit, Attached”
refers to a portion of a principal single-family dwelling or other principal
building that is designed to be used as a separate and completely independent
dwelling unit. An attached accessory dwelling unit includes, at a minimum, a

Page 1 of 40



permanent kitchen and a bathroom with bathtub or shower. It may also
include habitable space for living, sleeping, and eating. The attached
accessory dwelling is separated from the principal unit by walls, ceilings, or
other permanent partitions, or by non-habitable space such as a garage, and
is accessed through a lockable door between the partitions, or by a separate
entrance from the principal living space. Incidental and accessory features
such as trellises, decks, patios, breezeways, tunnels, or bridges connecting the
non-principal dwelling space to the principal structure, are not considered as
establishing an attached dwelling unit. Typical uses include guesthouses,
second units, granny-flats, mother-in-law quarters, efe.

Accessory dwelling unit, detached. The term “Accessory Dwelling, Detached™ refers to
a separate and completely independent dwelling unit on the same lot as the
principal single-family dwelling or other principal building, but which is
physically separated from the principal building. A detached accessory
dwelling unit includes, at a minimum, a permanent Kitchen and a bathroom
with bathtub or shower. It may also include habitable space for living,
sleeping, and eating. The accessory dwelling unit is considered detached
regardless of whether it is connected to the principal single-family dwelling by
trellises, decks, patios, breezeways, tunnels, or bridges. Typical uses include
guesthouses, second units, granny flats, mother-in-law quarters, etc.

Aﬂ!espmﬁ%%u%!d—’m;:—'I-wem#«.-\eveﬁmr-_\—%Hdm_a;-ﬂr-ihx'-.'—terfn—'if%eeeﬁsnFy-SIFﬂewre'—’
means-a-detached-building or structure-associated-with-a permitted-orconditiondl-vse-thatis
subordinate-to-the primary-use-on-the-same lot—Bulldings-typicath-associated- with-the-use
Hetude but-are-not-Hmited-o-storagesheds—tookshops-ehildren's-playhouses—guest
butldings-ureerhouses—carases—swimming pools-or similarstruetares—A-porton-ota
building-connected to-a-main-building by u common watl-ofanv-length—or-by-irook
breexeway: tunnel-bridge-orother-means-that-is-nethabitable space and-that-does-not-execed
30Hfeetin-distance-witlheconsidered-part-of-the-priman-buiding-and-not-aR-dceessory
Accessory Use. The term “Accessory use’ means customarily ineident-anetary: incidental
and subordinate and-aceessory-10 the principal use of the landsbuiding-orstrachire located
on the same lot or parcel, effand-as-the-accessor—tse

Active Permit. The term “Active Permit” means a permit issued by a federal, state, or
county agency that is active, has not expired, has not been revoked or suspended, and
otherwise remains in effect,

Adjacent.  The term “Adjacent” for the purpose of determining setback requirements for
adjacent uses means that a parcel is “adjacent” if it is contiguous with the principal parcel on
any side or it is situated opposite the principal parcel across a public or private right-of-way
or access easement. Where an adjacent parcel is located across a public or private right-of-
way or access easement, setback requirements will be measured from the centerline of the
right-of-way or access easement.

Administrative Offices. The term “Administrative Offices” refers to public or private
offices, firms. or organizations that are primarily used for the provision of executive,
management, or administrative services. Examples of these services include recordkeeping,

Page 2 of 40



secretarial service, telephone answering, photocopying and reproduction, and similar services
customarily associated with the functions of administrative offices.

Adult Merchandise Retail Use. The term “Adult Merchandise Retail Use™ refers to retail
establishments furnishing adult material for display, sale, lease, or rental. Adult material
includes but is not limited to books, merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks
(including DVDs and other recorded video devices), computer disks, instruments, devices, or
any other paraphernalia depicting, describing, or otherwise relating to “specific sexual
activities™ and “specific anatomical areas.”

A. For the purposes of this chapter "specific anatomical areas” includes exposed
human genitals, the pubic region. buttocks, and female breasts below a point
immediately above the areola:

B. For purposes of this chapter, "specific sexual activities"” includes any form of actual
or simulated sexual intercourse, copulation, bestiality, sadism, masochism, and
fondling or touching of "specific anatomical areas.”

Aggregate Facility. The term “Aggregate Facility” refers to an operation involved in the
exploration and mining of rock quarries, gravel pits, and sand or earth borrow pits, as well as
the excavation, extraction, and processing of sand, diatomite, gravel, and rock. The term
does not apply to the excavation, extraction, beneficiation, and processing of locatable
metallic minerals, such as gold, silver, lead, copper, zinc, nickel, etc., nor to that of non-
metallic minerals, such as fluorspar, mica, limestone and gypsum, titanium, heavy mineral
placer form, and gemstones.

Agricultural, Animal Production. The term “Agricultural, Animal Production” use type
refers to the raising of animals or production of animal products, such as eggs or dairy
products, on an agricultural or commercial basis, but excluding commercial slaughtering.
Typical uses include grazing, ranching, dairy farming, and poultry farming, but do not
include intensive agricultural uses.

Agricultural, Entertainment and Commercial. The term “Agricultural Entertainment and
Commercial” use refers to agriculturally-themed visitor-oriented services, sales, and
attractions “with an agricultural theme” conducted in conjunction with on-site agricultural
uses. The use includes but is not limited to retail and food sales, as well as the provision of
tasting rooms, reception facilities, and outdoor entertainment areas.

Agricultural, General. The term “Agricultural General™ refers to the use of land for
agricultural purposes, including farming, dairying, pasturage, apiculture, horticulture,
floriculture, viticulture, and animal and poultry husbandry. and the accessory uses of
packing, treating, and storing of produce: provided that the operation of the accessory uses is
secondary to that of the principal agriculture use. The term does not include agricultural
industrial uses, laboratories or testing facilities involving the use of animals, recreation,
hunting clubs, fishing clubs, and other similar uses types.

Agricultural, Industrial Use. The term “Agricultural, Industrial Use™ refers to the following
agriculturally related uses that are classified as industrial uses related to agriculture:

A. Agricultural, Intensive Use. The term “Agricultural, Intensive Use™ also known
as “factory farms”, means the process of raising large numbers of livestock and
other animals in close confinement at high stocking density. Typical uses include,
but are not limited to, dairies, hog farms, poultry production, slaughterhouses,
shipping terminal holding pens, concentrated feeding or holding of large numbers

Page 3 of 40



of animals, and areas for storage or processing of manure, garbage, or spent
compost materials. The term does not include animal husbandry.

B. Agricultural Packing and Processing. The term “Agricultural Packing and
Processing” refers to the washing, storing, crating, rendering, packing and other
functional operations such as drying, field crushing, or other preparation of meats
and other agricultural products, but not those which are incidental to the general
agricultural use, custom animal processing, or butcher shops;

C. Slaughter House. The term “Slaughter House™ refers to any land, building, place,
or establishment in which animals are slaughtered, eviscerated, or dressed and that
is not incidental to general agricultural use or custom animal processing;

D. Stockyard and Auction Facilities. The term “Stockyard and Auction Facilities™
refers 10 any land, building, place, or cstablishment in which agricultural goods or
livestock are sold by auction.

Agricultural, Research. The term “Agricultural Research” use refers to establishments
conducting experimental research relating to the production of agricultural com modities, The
research typically involves experimentation relating to landscaping techniques, seed choice,
use of herbicides and pesticides, and other agricultural practices. Agricultural Research use
does not include laboratories or testing facilities involving the use of animals for
experimentation purposes.

Air Bag. The term “Air Bag” refers to an automobile safety device, also known as a
supplementary restraint system, consisting of a bag designed to inflate automatically during a
vehicular collision.

Alley. The term “Alley” refers to a public way permanently reserved as a secondary means
of access to abutting property and not intended for general traffic circulation.

Allowed Use. The term “Allowed Use™ refers to a land use that is allowed under this title
and does not require a special use permit.

Alter. The term “Alter” refers to change, make different, adjust, or modify in any way.
Amusement Park. The term “Amusement Park™ refers to a permanent facility or park
where amusement rides are available for use by the public. An amusement ride means a type
of ride, including, without limitation, any mechanical or aquatic device that carries
passengers over a fixed or restricted route primarily for the passengers’ amusement. The term
includes any ride propelled by its passengers or gravity if it is located in an amusement park.
The term does not include temporary carnivals, circuses, or fairs that are transient (lasting no
longer than 30 days in one year) in nature.

Animal Processing, Custom. The term “Animal Processing, Custom™ refers to
slaughtering, eviscerating, dressing, or processing an animal or processing meat products for
the owner of the animal or of the meat products, if the meat products derived from the
custom operation are returned to the owner of the animal.

Animal Processor, Custom. The term “Animal Processor, Custom” refers to a person who
slaughters or processes non-inspected meat (not under continuous inspections by either the
Nevada Department of Agriculture or the U.S. Department of Agriculture for slaughter house
activities) for the owner of the animals, and returns the majority of the meat products derived
from the slaughter or processing to the owner. “Custom processor” does not include a person
who slaughters animals or processes meat for the owner of the animals on a farm or premises
of the owner of the animals.

Page 4 of 40



Apartment Building. The term “Apartment Building” refers to a building of multi-family
dwelling units devoted to monthly rental, lease arrangements, and other long-term residential
use.

Apartment Hotel. The term “Apartment Hotel” refers to a building or portion thereof
designed for or containing beth individual guest rooms ef~ and suites of rooms-—and-dweltine
witits-for temporary quartering. Apartnenthetels-are flexible-types-efaccommedation-and
wsuathy-offer-completefully-fitted-apartmentsThese complexes-are sometimes custom-butt
aRd-smto-a-hotehcomplex-containie-avaried-amount-ofapartments: The length of stay
in apartment hotels is varied, lasting-amwhere generally lasting for less than 30 days, but
sometimes exceed 30 days. from-a-few-days-to-months-oreven-years: An apartment hotel is
a commercial transient lodging #-pe usc generally for the purpose of temporary housing
for professionals on extended visits related to business. and-is Apartment hotels are not
to be considered a shelter for the homeless, a convalescent or civic convalescent or group
care, or continuum of care service facility.

Arcade. The term “Arcade” refers to a single use facility that provides electronic,
mechanical, or video game machines for use of patrons.

Archery Range. The term “Archery Range" refers to an indoor or outdoor facility in which
the art, skill, or sport of shooting with a bow and arrow or similar devices are conducted.
Arrow. The term “Arrow” refers to a mark or object of a distinctive shape that clearly
indicates direction to a place by its shape and position.

Assessment Work. The term “Assessment Work™ refers to the minimum amount of work
required annually by the Bureau of Land Management to keep an unpatented mining claim
active.

Attached. The term “Attached™ means joined in close association.

Automotive, Repair. The term “Automotive Repair” use refers to the use of a location
principally for the repair of automobiles and light-duty motor vehicles. The use includes the
sale, installation, and servicing of automobile equipment and parts. Examples of Automotive
Repair use include muffler and brake shops, automobile repair garages, automobile glass
shops, and similar establishments.

Automotive, Sales and Rentals. The term “Automotive Sales and Rentals™ use refers to
on-site sales or rentals of automobiles, motoreycles, or similar light-duty motor vehicles. 1t
also includes incidental repair, maintenance, washing, and detailing. Examples of this use
include new and used car dealerships and rental agencies.

Automotive, Service Station. The term “Automotive, Service Station” refers to a place
where automobiles or similar light-duty motor vehicles are fueled or serviced, including
gasoline sales and service station, retail sales of petroleum products from the premises of the
establishment and incidental sales of tires, batteries, replacement items, lubricating services,
and minor repair services. An automotive service station may be combined with a
convenience store, a retail establishment that is principally devoted to providing the public
with a convenient location to purchase consumable products quickly and in which the arca
open (o the public is less than 5,000 square feet in arca.

Automotive, Washing and Detailing. The term “Automotive, Washing and Detailing™ use
refers to the washing, detailing, waxing, or cleaning of automobiles or similar light-duty
motor vehicles. Facilities may use manual washing methods (including coin operated) or
production line conveyor mechanisms.

Page 5 of 40



Auto wreeking and dismantling yard. The term “Auto Wrecking and Dismantling
Yard” use refers to a facility where land is used for the dismantling or wrecking
of motor vehicles and trailers required to be registered under the motor vehicle
laws of the state of Nevada, including premises used in the storing, keeping,
buying, selling, or dealing in dismantled, wrecked, inoperative or disabled
vehicles or integral parts of component materials thereof, and the storage, sale or
dumping of dismantled, partially dismantled or wrecked inoperative vehicles and
trailers, or parts thereof. Automobile dismantling shall not include the incidental
storage of inoperative or dismantied vehicles in connection with the legal
operation of an automobile repair garage or automobile body and fender repair
shop while waiting for repair. Uses shall not be carried out within the required
setback and a natural or artificial sereen or buffer shall be provided to obscure
the subject property from the street on which lands abut and from any opposite
or adjoining properties.

Junkyard. The term “Junkyard™ us refers to any space used for collecting, storage,
abandonment or sale of junk, wastepaper, rags, scrap metal, discarded material
or similar waste including the dismantling, demolition or abandonment of
automobiles, other vehicles, machinery or parts or placement of I or more
dismantled or partially dismantled vehicles.

Banner. The term “Banner" refers to a long strip of flexible material that is suspended

between two points for the purpose of decoration, advertising, or otherwise displaying a

message.

Basement. The term “Basement” refers to a story underground or partially underground. A

basement will be counted as a story for purposes of height measurement if its height is one-

half or more above grade.

Batch Plant (Concrete and Asphalt). The term “Batch Plant” refers to an industrial facility

used for the production of concrete or asphalt or related products, used in building or

construction, including facilities for the administration or management of the business, the
stockpiling of bulk materials used in the production process of finished products
manufactured on the premises, and the storage and maintenance of required equipment but
not including the retail sale of finished concrete or asphalt products. A facility operating for

less than 1 year is considered a temporary batch plant; a facility operating for a period of 1

year or more is considered permanent.

Beauty Salon. The term “Beauty Salon™ refers to a commercial establishment offering

products or services related to personal beauty and fashion, such as hair cutting and styling,

manicures, and pedicures.

Bed and Breakfast Inn. The term “Bed and Breakfast Inn” refers to a facility with sleeping

rooms and dining accommodations, lmited-to-overnight guests-onty limited to stays of less

than 30 days in a one year period, designed to serve the-metering-public paying gucests
within a single-family residential dwelling, with required parking to be located off-strect.

Belfry. The term “Belfry” refers to a bell tower or part of a tower or steeple attached to a

principal building in which bells are hung.

Billboard.  The term “Billboard” refers to a device, display, sign, or structure, or part
thercof with a sign face measuring more than 128 square feet in area, that is
used to advertise, identify, display, direct, or attract attention 10 an object,
person, institution, organization, business, product, service, event, or

Page 6 of 40



location; or to express a point of view, by any means, including words,
letters, figures, design, symbols, fixtures, colors, illuminations.

Blackboard. A smooth, hard, dark-colored panel or surface for writing on with chalk.

Board. The term “Board™ refers to the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners,

Boarding and Rooming House. The term “Boarding and Rooming House™ refers to a
building or portion of the building designed for containing cither individual
guest rooms or suites or rooms and dwelling units as a transient
commercial lodging use. Boarding and rooming houses are flexible types
of accommodations where oftentimes the common parts of the building are
maintained by the owners or managers, and some services such as laundry,
cleaning, and one or more meals may be provided. The length of stay in
boarding and rooming houses is varied, lasting anywhere from days to
months, or even years. A rooming and boarding house is a commercial type
use and is not to be considered a shelter for the homeless, a convalescent or
civic convalescent or group care, or continuum of care service facility.

Body Piercing. The term “Body Piercing” refers to the practice of piercing holes in parts
of the body so that rings. studs, and other objects can be inserted.

Bracing. The term “Bracing” refers to a structural member used to stiffen or
otherwise support a structure or framework.

Brew Pub.  The term “Brew Pub™ also known as a “micro-brewery” refers to an
establishment that is 10,000 square-feet or less in area that manufactures
malt beverages and sells those malt beverages for on-site consumption, off-
site consumption, and retail sale.

Brewery. The Term “Brewery” refers to an establishment exceeding 10,000 square-
feet in area that manufactures malt beverages, but does not sell those malt
beverages ar-vetad for on-site consumption.

Building. The term “Building™ refers to any structure having a single or common roof
supported by columns or walls. The following definitions also relate to
buildings:

A. Building Height. The term “Building height™ means the vertical distance from the

average grade level to the highest point of the structure.

B. Building Line. The term “Building line” means a line between any street right-ot-
way, either existing or future, and any building, or parts ofa
building or structures which may be erected or altered on a lot,
parcel or tract of land.

C.—Main Buildine—Fhe term-Main buildine " means-the principal-building-or-one-of
theprineipal-buildings-on-ulor-ora-butdingorene otthe
prineipal-buildines-housing a-principal-tse-upoti-atot

H.C. Public Building. The term “Public building™ means a building owned and

operated, or owned and intended to be operated, by a public
agency of the United States of America, of the State of Nevada,
the county, or any political subdivision thereof.

I-.D, Building Site. The term “Building site” means the ground arca of a building or

buildings, together with all open spaces which are required.

Page 7 of 40



Building Department. The term “Building Department™ refers to the department
designated by the board to administrate building codes and other
county functions, and enforce and administrate the county regulations
of those functions,

Building Face. The term “Building Face” refers to all window and solid wall area of a
building in one place or e¢levation.

Building Permit. The term “Building Permit” refers to a written approval issued by the
county building official pursuant to the latest edition of the adopted
building code by the county that authorizes construction of any building or
structure,

Bulletin Board. The term “Bulletin Board” also known as a pin-board or notice board.
This is a device where people can leave public messages. For example, to
advertise things to buy or sell, announce events, or provide information to
the public. These devices are often made of a material such as cork to
facilitate addition and removal of messages. A chalk board, white board,
electronic display, or similar type device that facilitates the same purpose
or intent may be considered a bulletin board for the purpose of this title.

Butcher Shop. The term “Butcher Shop” refers to a custom retail meat cutting operation.
This definition does not include slaughter houses but does include other
accessory uses such as frozen food lockers,

Campground. The term “Campground” refers to a plot of ground upon which 2 or more
campsites are located, established, or maintained for temporary transient
living quarters for recreation, education, or vacation purposes. Also see
"recreational vehicle Park™.

Casino. The term “Casino™ refers to any place where gaming is operated or maintained,
except that “casino™ may not be construed to include any place devoted to
15 or less slot machines or video gaming devices.

Cemetery. The term “Cemetery” refers to land used for burial of the dead, including
columbariums, mausoleums, and mortuaries.

Changeable Copy Sign. The term “Changeable Copy Sign™ refers to any sign in which
the portrayed message or image can be changed without manually
replacing the sign’s face.

Childcare Facility. The term “Childcare Facility" refers to child daycare use and refers
to the use of a building or a portion of the building for the care (day or
night) of individuals less than 18 years of age. The use includes nursery
schools, preschools, daycare centers, and similar uses, including those
provided in a private dwelling but excluding those classified as “education
facilities.” For the purposes of this title, child daycare refers to services
providing non-medical care to any number of children in need of personal
services or supetvision on less than a 24-hour basis.

Children’s Camp. The term “Children’s Camp™ as used in NRS 444 means any land
with permanent buildings, tents or other structures established or
maintained as living quarters where both food and lodging or the facilities
are provided for minors, operated continuously on a 24-hour basis fora
period of 5 days or more cach year for religious, recreational or vacation
purposes, cither free of charge or for a fee, but does not mean any camps

Page 8 of 40



owned or leased for individual or family use, penal or correctional
purposes, or places operated for the education, care or treatment of
children.

Civic Holiday. The term “Civic Holiday" refers to any seasonal holiday officially
recognized by the United States of America, the State of Nevada, or Storey
County.

Coffee House. The term “Coffee House” (also includes “coffee shop™) refers to a
business establishment with the principal business of preparing and selling
coffee, lattes, mochas, tea, or other non-alcoholic beverages for on-site and
off-site consumption. The use may also include facilities for the purchase
and consumption of light meals.

Columbarium. The term “Columbarium™ refers to a room or building with niches in
which funeral urns are stored.

Commercial, Convenience Store. The term “Commercial, Convenience Store™ refers to
a retail establishment that is principally devoted to providing the public
with a convenient location to purchase consumable products quickly and in
which the area open to the public is less than 5,000 square feet.

Commercial, Neighborhood Store or Shopping Center. The term “Commercial,
Neighborhood Store or Shopping Center” refers to a commercial
establishment or group of commercial establishments that: measures
between 30,000 and 100,000 square feet in gross area; provides for the
commercial sale of convenience goods (food, drugs, sundries, etc.) and
personal services (laundry and personal dry cleaning, barbering, shoe
repair, etc.) for the day-to-day living needs of the immediate area; and has a
supermarket as the principal tenant. A typical example is a principal
grocery supermarket grouped with or attached to secondary stores.

Commercial, Principal Grocery Store. The term “Commercial, Principal Grocery
Store” refers to a commercial retail establishment that: measures between
5,000 and 30,000 square fect in gross area; is principally devoted to the sale
of food for human consumption off the premises; and derives a substantial
amount of its gross revenue from such sales, regardless of whether the store
also derives revenue from the sale of non-food items.

Commercial, Regional Store or Shopping Center. The Term “Commercial, Regional
Store or Shopping Center” refers to a commercial establishment or group of
commercial establishments that: measures between 100,000 and 250,000
square feet in gross area; provides for the commercial sale of convenience
goods (food, drugs, sundries, etc.) and personal services (laundry and dry
cleaning, barbering, shoe repair, etc.) for the day-to-day living needs of the
immediate area; and has a supermarket as the principal tenant. Typical
examples include department stores, warchouse shopping clubs, “Big Box™
retail stores (which may be grouped with or attached to secondary stores
and non-retail services such as automobile service and fueling, as permitted
in the zone).

Commercial, Shopping Center. The term “Commercial, Shopping Center™ refers to a
building or group of buildings housing two or more commercial businesses
on a unified tract as opposed 1o a lease lot or parcel subdivided out of the

Page 9 of 40



original larger shopping center parcel, Businesses within the shopping
center are typically arranged as in-line tenants, operating under one banner
as a pedestrian oriented environment or having common ingress and egress
points. Its occupants provide or are intended to provide for the retail sale of
goods and services to the public, including postal services, etc.

Commercial, Store. The term “Commercial, Store™ refers to a freestanding commercial
retail establishment that is not included as part of a shopping center.

Commercial, Super Regional Store or Shopping Center. The term “Commercial,
Super Regional Store or Shopping Center” refers to a commercial
establishment or group of commercial establishments that measures
between 250,000 and 1,000,000 or more square feet in gross area and
provides an extensive variety of general merchandise. These centers
typically include one or more “anchor™ department stores as principal
tenants that generally have individual square footage of 100,000 square feet
cach.

Common Area. The term “Common Area” refers to a parcel or parcels of land or area of
water or a combination of land and water with the site designated for a
planned unit development that is designed and intended for the general usc
or enjoyment of the residents of residential developments and land
occupants in commercial or industrial developments. Common area may
contain complementary structures and improvements (clubhouses or social
halls) necessary and appropriate for the benefit and enjoyment of the
residents. Perimeter setbacks may be included in common area.

Community Center. The term “Community Center” refers to a public or quasi-public
building designed for and used as a social, recreational, and cultural center.
As part of such recreation centers, there may be included craft rooms,
music rooms, game rooms, meeting rooms, and auditoriums, swimming
pools, and kitchen facilities. Kitchen facilities and dining arcas may be
used for special events only.
Bﬁmﬁm&a{imﬁerﬂa-ﬁa&depamwnt-des#gmﬂet#by—!heheard 1o
adnrinistrate-buildine- planping-and-other-counb—tunctions-and-epforee
and-administrate-the-corntregilations-of these-funetions:

Community Garden. The term “Community Garden™ refers to the growing or
production of vegetables, fruit, and other produce not for profit and through
collaborative community effort on private or public land. Accessory
structures incidental to gardens such as protective fences, greenhouses, and
other buildings below 200 square feet in area are also considered elements
of community gardens.

Comstock Historic District. The term “Comstock Historic District” refers to the area
within the boundaries set forth by NRS 384 and regulated pursuant to both
that chapter and ehapter+-748 section 17.12.049 of the county code.

Condominium. The term “Condominium’ refers to an estate in real property consisting
of an undivided interest in common in portions of a parcel of real property
together with: (a) a separate interest in space in a residential, industrial, or
commercial building or industrial or commercial building on such real

Page 10 of 40



property, such as, but not restricted to, an apartment, office or store: and
(b) a separate interest in air space only, without any building or structure,
to be used for a mobile home. A condominium may include in addition to a
separate interest in other portions of such real property. The estate may,
with respect to the duration of its enjoyment, be either an estate or
inheritance or perpetual estate, and estate for life, or an estate for years.

Construction Sales and Services. The term “Construction Sales and Services™ use refers
to establishments or places of business primarily engaged in construction
activities and incidental storage, but that are also engaged in the retail or
wholesale sale from the premises of materials used in construction. This
use does not include retail sales of paint, fixtures, and hardware, nor does it
include other uses classified as automotive and equipment use. The use
does not refer to actual construction sites. Examples of Construction Sales
and Services use include businesses that sell or rent tools and equipment, as
well as building material stores.

WEMMME—W—MHW—%%WWNMWHH?&M
wsed-tor the-storage ol materiah-or equipment-used-in-the-construetion
industry—(ineluding fandscaping-and-highwiy-construction—orprposes
of this-title-a-sinalevehicle-used-byv- the-ownertor the storage-of simak
items-of material-and-equipment-tsed-on-a-day—to-day-basis-Hr-carphg-oul
his-trade-or tsed-byv- the owner o tiansportation-purposes-ma—not-be
classHied-as construction equipment

Corrections Facility. The term “Corrections Facility” refers to a community correctional
center, conservation camp, minimum seeurity prison facility, or other place
for the confinement, care, and training of persons convicted of crimes. The
term does not include Corrections Institutions.

Corrections Facility, Private. The term “Corrections Facility, Private™ refersto a
Corrections Facility operated by a private organization.

Corrections Institution. The term “Corrections Institution™ refers to a medium or
maximum security prison facility designed for the confinement and care for
persons convicted of crimes within a secure perimeter.

Corrections Institution, Private. The term “Corrections Institution, Private™ refersto a
Corrections Institution operated by a private organization.

Crematorium. The term “Crematorium” refers to a facility where a furnace is used to
incinerate human or animal remains and reduce them to ashes.

Crisis Care Facility, Permanent, The term “Crisis Care Facility, Permanent” refers 1o a
building or part of a building used principally (for more than 7 days ina
30-day period) to provide temperiryv-tess-than-F-days-in-a-3-day-period)
crisis intervention shelter for children and adults who are immediate
victims of crime, abuse, or neglect. The term does not include homeless
shelters.

Crisis Care Use, Temporary. The term ~Crisis Care Use, Temporary™ refers to a
building or part of a building used temporarily (7 or less days than-7-days
in a 30-day period) to provide temporar-Hess-than-7-days-i-a-30-day
period) crisis intervention shelter for children and adults who are
immediate victims of crime, abuse. or neglect. The term does not include

Page 11 of 40



homeless shelters. The use may include a private residence or other
building used in accordance with this definition and the applicable zones.

Cultural and Library Services. The term “Cultural and Library Services™ use refers to
non-profit, museum-like preservation and exhibition of objects of
permanent interest in any of the arts and sciences. Examples of such use
include gallery exhibitions of artwork and library collections of books,
manuscripts, etc., for study and reading.

Cupola. The term “Cupola™ refers to an ornamental structure placed on the top of a larger
roof or dome.

Dairy Farm. The term “Dairy Farm™ refers to a type of indoor or outdoor commercial
farm specializing in the raising of dairy cows for milk and dairy
production.

Designee. The term “Designee” refers to a department, official, or employee of the
county authorized by the Storey County Board of Commissioners to
administer and enforce established certain county codes and regulations.

Development Agreement, The term “Development Agreement” refers to an agreement
between a governing body and a party that has a legal or equitable interest
in land largely or completely undeveloped that is entered into upon the
application of the party wishing to develop the land. The purpose of such
an agreement is to enable the governing body to distribute equitably the
cost of developing infrastructure for the land. This cost distribution will be
based on an analysis of the need for infrastructure prepared pursuant to
NRS 278.

Directional Sign. The term “Directional Sign™ refers to a directional sign which displays
a type of service that is provided away from the local arterial or collector
roadways and when the traveler must change direction from one public
right-of-way to another to reach a business, event, or attraction. With
exception of traffic regulatory devices installed by a governmental agency,
directional signs may only be located where the traveler must change
direction from one public right-of-way to another to reach the attraction for
which the sign represents.

Director. The term “Director” refers to the direclor ef-the-community-development
department—of the planning, building, or other department as
designated by the Board of County Commissioners.

Distillery. The term “Distillery” refers to an establishment engaged in distillation of
alcoholic beverages.

Docent. The term “Docent” refers to a casual teacher or lecturer who leads guided tours
or shares popular knowledge and history with an open audience.

Dog Park. The term “Dog Park” refers to a public or private park where dogs may run
off-leash within an area completely surrounded by a fence.

Dry Cleaning, Personal. The term “Dry Cleaning. Personal™ refers to a facility of less
than 5,000 square feet where customers drop off and pick up clothing or
other textile articles for dry cleaning, dry dying, cleaning and spotting, and
stain removing.

Page 12 of 40



Dry Cleaning, Plant. The term “Dry Cleaning, Plant” refers to establishments primarily
engaged in the provision of large-scale (5,000 square feet or more) dry
clcaning, dry dying and cleaning ot‘clolhing and olhcr lcxlilc articlc.

H%sweh—iw-pe;m&neanHr!»%dwﬂr—mam}-femdeﬂu&-pmpmeﬁ——lm
term-does-not-include-hotels-chibs-boardie-orrooming-houses:
correctionsacHities-and-nstititions-or-health-care-institutions-and

NR%%?S—&&*MH&HR{%MHH\&HGWWW%W
MWWMWMWM%!WM%MM
dweHings-of the-building-code-mostreeently \rﬂ&k}fﬁc{}—h\— hhe hﬂema%mﬁd%

Conference-ofBuilding OfficiaksFactory—bui :
HoHOSDavaresidential mwﬂmm%m—h&»wmm
either-wholly-manufact mml—ﬂ;—ﬁ%ﬁh&&aﬂtmmwm%
sie-location-to-be-wholh-orpartialy-assembled-on-site-in-aecordanee-with
regiations-adopted-by-the division: but-does notinclude-a-mebile-howe of

irmmﬂmw'k—u‘ﬂﬂe&
Dwelling-Manufactured- Home—Fheterm—Dweling-Manuhietured-Home—relersto-us

provided-for-in-NRS 278 A-single-tamily-dwelling-ineludes-a
nmuu%@wﬂ%\%4%¥m~ﬂﬂww
d—pemmﬂem Lhi"h%l*r ({t"-it.’-ﬂed o be-used-with-or-without-a-pennanent
opnectedo-utilides-wransportuble-tnt-oF

i i more-in-body-width-ord40-feet-or-more-in
k@M&Eﬂ}W—WﬁM@(HM%W{E&O%ﬂWWW
site—Fhetermneludes-the-plimbineheating—al-conditioning-and
electrical-systems-of-the struetireFhe-ternalso-includes-any straciire
Mwmemtﬂmmmwwww
steucture-buittin-comphisnee-with-the-requirements-ot NRSA89-H3-and
WWW&HW&WW%%&WWM
M:&Mtﬂae&»edﬂaw%& onstructon-and-Safety-StandardsActof
W%w#&%aﬁaw&nmmm%eawm
memmﬁmwmmmmw

MMMM—MMM&WM&HWAMMMWW
designed-orused-o house muiple famities-tivine-independently-of-each

emmmmwww—m—mm%aﬂkwm
irchide-row-honses—townhouses; w~ap:u=+men+ ho{ela

LmMiwellﬁHx+rnH%a wwa&efnm—dmi 'I"r!'tibd[e'd—tﬂH separate

buitdingtot-Row-housesusvath-havea-party-w. all-separating-them-tthat-is:
asohid-waH-thatis-a-shared-structural-part of-the-adjacent-housesy-t-some
instances—each-dwelling unit-has-its-own-two-side-wall—and-there-may-be

ween-the-dwelhings:

Page 13 of 40



Dwellingg Sinsle-Famihy—Theterm — Dwelhine Sinele-Famihyrefers-to-a-building-used
to-house-netmorethan-|-family-or a-sroup-of-not-mere than-4-unrelated
pessons-tivinetovetherand-sharineo- RoRcommercial-sinsle-dwelling-unit
with-common-housekeepinetfaciities—Fheterm-inchides-tactory-built
housing-and-mantactured-housing-in-comphance-with-NRS-278:

Mwmmmmwwmm—nwhm—swmm%mm
refersto-a-single-family- {-l-\-\-ellﬂ‘i}.‘,—ﬂH@H(}edvltﬂ—mi.ifﬁdﬂtv h\-—l—lamkl»—
This-term-tncludesrowhotses—tow : ;
doesnotrchide —duplenes” aplexes ™K :
buitdings~—reoming hotses - and ulhel—ﬂ%ﬂu—iamm dwel bigs:

HWSWHWDMM—LhHWiMHMMHkW
refers-to-a-free-standing strueture-intended-for-oeeupaney-by-Hamily-and
mewmw%%mﬂw
building has-a-front-vard.-a-rear-yard—und-tvo-s

Dwelhnu—lwﬂmuse—l—hﬁeﬂn—gwﬁlmn—Fewmkw,e—reJrerwv&m kmnﬂh—aw
housing-that-may-utilize a-combination-olfee-simple-and-condominium
land-ownership-—Unkike the-“row-house” -the-townhouse-has-fee-simple
awnership-oa-tand--which-the-butding-is-sivated-the~the = “hoetprirt ot
the-buHeding phis-a-smat-ameount-of land-for-a-private-patio-orvard—the
remainder-ol the land-surrounding the-strvcturesis-used-for-attractively
landseaped-areas-and-recreational-tael iHties—Fhe-land that-surrounds-the
privite butldings sits-is jointhy-owned-by-the-owners-oFal-the-buildines:
wetathe b-condoenitie owhership-H-s-mamtained-by-a-homeowners-
MW%—M&MMWWMw{HMW

Dwelling Unit. Fhe-term-=Pweline Linitrelers to-a-roon-orgrotip-of rooms-providing
iqu&e&eHm#vau&mﬁaw&e—mﬂwewmm
eatingrecreation—andsanitation: The term “Dwelling Unit” refers to any
building or portion of a building used exclusively by one or more persons
for permanent (thirty days or more) residential purposes. A dwelling unit
must have, at a minimum, a permanent kitchen, and a bathroom with
a bathtub or shower. A dwelling unit may also include habitable space
for living, sleeping, and eating. The term does not include hotels, chibs
motels, boarding or rooming houses, transient commercial lodging,
corrections facilities and institutions, or health care institutions and
facilities.

Easement. The term “Easement” refers to an interest in real property that entitles the
casement holder to use the land of another in a specified manner. A
negative easement is an interest in real property that entitles the casement
holder to prevent another from using land in a specified manner.

Electric Fence. The term “Electric Fence™ refers to a barrier made of electrified metal
material used as a means of protection or confinement.

Excavation. The term “Excavation” means the breaking of surface soil by physical or
mechanical means.

Exploration. The term “Exploration” means any activity which involves disturbance of
the existing environment, including core dr:tlmg, construction of access
roads, excavation, blasting, seismic testing or similar activities conducted

Page 14 of 40



while in search of mineral deposits, precious metals, gemstones, sand,
gravel, stone or any other material to be mined or extracted.

Factory Built Building. The term “Dwelling, Factory Building” means a single-
family dwelling built in accordance with NRS 461 and in compliance
with the standards for single-family residential dwellings of the
building code most recently adopted by the International Conference
of Building Officials. Factory-built housing is defined at NRS 461.080
as a residential building, dwelling unit or habitable room that is either
wholly manufactured or is in substantial part manufactured at an off-
site location to be wholly or partially assembled on-site in accordance
with regulations adopted by the division, but does not include a mobile
home or recreational vehicle park trailer.

Fairground. The term “Fairground” refers to land devoted to entertainment on a seasonal
or temporary basis, including grandstands, barns, and other accessory
buildings normally associated with such use.

Family. The term “Family” means a group of individuals, not necessarily related by
blood, marriage, adoption, or guardianship, living together in a dwelling
unit as a single housekeeping unit under a common housekeeping
management plan based on an intentionally structured relationship proving
organization and stability,

Farmer's Market. The term “Farmer’'s Market™ refers to an indoor or outdoor area
providing retail sales booths for numerous merchants of produce and plant
life. Arts and crafts booths may be permitted as accessory to a produce or
plant life booth. A flea market or open-air- market may not be considered
a farmer’s market.

Feed Store. The term “Feed Store™ means a retail establishment that is principally
devoted to the sale of food for domestic animal consumption off the
premises and that derives a substantial amount of its gross revenue from
such sales, regardless of whether the store is also devoted to or derives
revenue from the sale of non-food items such as tack supplies.

Fence. The term “Fence” refers to an artificially constructed barrier of any material or
combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or separate arcas.

Filming Activity. The term “Filming Activity” refers to the taking or making of any
motion picture or still photograph, but not including the filming or
photographing for news media purposes or filming or photography that is
not for distribution or sale for commercial purposes. The term does not
include filming or photography related to adult uses, adult themes, or other
pornographic themes.

Final Map. The term “Final Map™ refers to a map prepared in compliance with NRS 278
and the county code and placed on record in the office of the county
recorder.

Firewood. The term “Firewood” refers to wood used as fuel.

Firewood Sales. The term “Firewood Sales” refers to the sale, barter, or trade of
firewood.

First Amendment. The term “First Amendment” refers to an amendment of the United
States Constitution guaranteeing the right of free expression. It includes

Page 15 of 40



freedom of assembly, freedom of press, freedom of religion, and freedom
of speech.

Flag Pole. The term “Flag Pole” refers to a pole on which a flag is raised; also called a
flagstaff.

Flashing Light. The term “Flashing Light” refers to a rhythmic and arrhythmic light in
which the total duration of light in cach period is clearly shorter than the
total duration of the dark.

Flea market. The term “Flea Market” refers to a building or outdoor area where
secondhand goods, articles, and antiques are temporarily or intermittently
offered for barter, trade, or retail sale to the general public. The term does
not include garage or vard sales, or any other retail establishment
otherwise defined or classified in this chapter.

Florescent Lighting. The term “Florescent Lighting™ refers to a gas-charged source of light,
sometimes in the form of a Compact Florescent Light (CFL), in which
electricity is used to excite mercury vapors. The excited mercury atoms
produce short-wave ultraviolet light that then causes a phosphor to
fluoresce, producing visible light, Neon lighting (See definition for Neon
Lighting.) will not be considered as florescent lighting for the purposes of
the title.

Fortune Teller. The term “Fortune Teller” refers 1o any person who practices, teaches, or
professes to practice the business of astrology, hypnotism, or the psychic
arts and sciences for a fee, gift, donation, or other compensation, Psychic
arts and sciences include but are not limited to palmistry, phrenology, life
reading, fortune telling, cartomancy, clairvoyance, clairaudience, crystal
gazing, mediumship, prophecy, augury, divination, magic and necromancy.

Fossil Fuels. The term “Fossil Fuels™ includes non-renewable sources of energy, such as
oil, coal, natural gas, and other naturally-occurring substances created from
dead carbon-based organic material that has been deposited, compressed,
decomposed, and fossilized over very long periods of time.

Fraternal Organization. The term “Fraternal Organization™ also known as a
“fraternity" refers to a group of people formally organized for a common
interest, usually one based in culture, religion, or entertainment. Such
organizations typically hold regular meetings, observe rituals, and
establish formal written membership requirements.

Funeral Parlor. The term “Funeral Parlor™ refers 10 a place of business devoted
exclusively to activities related to the preparing and arranging for the
funeral, transportation, and burial or other disposition of human deceased
remains.

Game Farm. The term “Game Farm™ refers to boarding or breeding of exotic animals
generally considered wild or not normally domesticated.

Gaming. The term “Gaming” refers to all games of chance played for money or for
checks or tokens redeemable in money, including those played on electric
or mechanical devices such as slot machines.

Gaming Establishment. The term “Gaming Establishment™ refers to any place where
gaming is operated and maintained. “Gaming™ or “gambling™ means all
games of chance played for money or for checks or tokens redeemable in

Page 16 of 40



money, including those played on electric or mechanical devices such as
slot machines.

Gaming, Limited. The term “Gaming, Limited” refers to an establishment that contains
no more than fifteen slot or video gaming machines (and no other games or
gaming devices), where the operation of the slot or video machine is
incidental to the primary business of the establishment.

Gaming, Non-Restricted. The term “Gaming, Non-Restricted™ refers to an establishment
that is used or is intended to be used for the conducting of gaming activities
for which a non-restricted gaming license is required. For example, the
term includes any establishment whose gaming operations consist of 16 or
more slot machines, or any number of slot machines together with any
other game, gaming device, race book, or sports pool establishment.

General Improvement District (GID). The term “General Improvement District (GID)”
refers to a political subdivision organized or proposed to be organized
pursuant to NRS 318,

Generator. The term “Generator” refers to a machine that converts mechanical energy
from an internal combustion engine to electric energy.

Golf Course. The term “Golf Course™ refers (o a tract of land laid out for playing at least
9 holes of the game of golf and improved with trees, greens, fairways, and
obstacle hazards. A golf course may include a clubhouse, driving range,
and necessary and incidental structures.

Golf Course, Miniature. The term “Golf Course, Miniature™ known as “miniature golf”
refers to an area of land or a building, structure, or premises or any part,
operated for profit or gain as a commercial place of amusement in which
facilities are provided to simulate the game of golf or any aspect of itona
small scale. The term does not include a golf driving range.

Government Agency: The term “Government Agency™ refers Lo an administrative unit
of federal, state, or local government.

Government Services. The term “Government Services” use refers to all types of uses
by federal, state, or local governments (including municipal corporations,
general improvement districts, and other political subdivisions of federal,
state or local governments). Typical uses include offices, courts, jails,
maintenance yards, equipment or materials storage, and legislative
facilities, but not those uses that are classified as major public facilities,
safety services, or utility services.

Grade. The term “Grade” (ground level) is the average of the finished ground level at the
center of all walls of a building.

Groundwater Recharge. The term “Groundwater Recharge™ refers to the process by
which water is transmitted underground to an aquifer.

Gun Repair. The term “Gun Repair” refers to the repair of fircarms.

un Shooting Range. The term “Gun Shooting Range™ refers to a facility for the sport
of shooting at stationary or moving targets, including skeet shooting, to test
skill and accuracy in rifle, pistol, or shotgun shooting, These facilities may
be owned or operated by corporations, associations, or individuals.

Gun Show. The term “Gun Show” refers to a temporary (less than one week) indoor
event at which ammunition and firearms, ranging from small handheld

Page 17 of 40



pistols to large pieces of artillery, are displayed, exhibited, and sold to the
general public.

Gun Store. The term “Gun Store” refers to a retail establishment where ammunition and
firearms, ranging from small handheld pistols to large pieces of artillery,
are displayed, exhibited, and sold to the general public.

Gunsmith, The term “Gunsmith” refers to a person who repairs or builds firearms.
Gunsmith does not include industrial or large-scale manufacturing of
firearms.

Guy Wire. The term “Guy Wire™ refers to a tensioned cable designed to add stability to
structures such as towers, wind turbines, utility poles, etc. One end of the
cable is attached to the structure while the other end is anchored to the
ground at a distance from the structure’s base.

Guyed Tower. The term “Guyed Tower™ refers to a monopole or lattice tower that is tied
to the ground or other surface by diagonal cables known as guy wires.

Halfway House. The term “Halfway House” refers to a facility providing supervision or
detention, or both, for residents making the transition from institutional to
community living, or a facility for recovering alcohol and drug abusers as
described by NRS 449.008. This classification includes pre-parole
detention facilities and halfway houses for juvenile delinquents and adult
offenders, and shelters for the homeless.

Hazardous Material. The term “Hazardous Material™ refers to any substance or material
that, by reason of its toxic, caustic, corrosive, abrasive, or otherwise
injurious properties, or is listed in the U.S. Department of
Transportation Emergency Response Guidebook, Pipeline and
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration guidebook, or may be
detrimental or deleterious to the health of any person handling or otherwise
coming into contact with such material or substance.

Hazardous Waste. The term “Hazardous Waste™ refers to a byproduct or remnant of an
operation or process that is dangerous or potentially harmful to the health
of humans, animals, or the environment. Hazardous wastes can be liquids,
solids, gasses, or sludge.

Health Care Facilities. The term “Health Care Facilities” refers to a use type or
establishment primarily engaged in the provision of health and medical
services ranging from prevention, diagnosis, and treatment. Uses are
categorized as follows:

A. Civic Convalescent and Group Care Service. The term “Civic Convalescent
and Group Care Service” refers to a use type allowing uses listed under
Convalescent Services and Group Care but also allowing the in-patient and
out-patient treatment and rehabilitation for alcohol, drug, and substance
abuse addiction;

B. Continuum of Care Facilitics for Seniors. The term “Continuum of Care
Facilities for Seniors” refers to establishments that provide range housing,
activities, and health services to allow for adults to age in pace. Facilities
may include independent living, assisted living, nursing care, and hospice
care as well as accessory buildings for staff, and medical facilities and
services for residents;

Page 18 of 40



C. Convalescent Services. The term “Convalescent Services” refers to a use type
referring to a provision of bed care and in-patient services for persons
requiring regular medical attention, but excludes a facility providing surgical
or emergency medical services and a facility providing care for alcohol, drug,
and substance addiction.

D. Group Care Services. The term “Group Care Services™ refers to care services
provided in facilities that accommodate eleven or more persons who are not
defined as a family, excluding caregivers and their family, halfway-houses
for recovering alcohol, drug, and substance abusers, and those uses classified
under hospital services. Typical uses include intermediate care facilities or
senior citizen board and care homes.

I, Hospital Services. The term “Hospital Services” refers to medical, psychiatric,
or surgical services for sick or injured persons primarily on an in-patient
basis, including ancillary facilities for out-patient and emergency medical
services, diagnostic services, training, research, administration, and services
to patients, employees, and visitors.

. Medical Services. The term “Medical Services™ refers to establishments
primarily engaged in the provision of personal health services ranging from
prevention, diagnosis, and treatment, or rehabilitation services provided by
physicians, dentists, nurses, and other health personnel as well as the
provision of medical testing and analysis cervices. Typical uses include
medical and primary care offices, dentist laboratories, health maintenance
organizations, immediate care facilities, sports medicine facilities,
acupuncture services, chiropractic services, and physical therapy.

Health Club. The term “Health Club” refers to a facility in which recreational athletic
activitics are performed, including but not limited to bodybuilding and
exercise classes. A club may also provide associated facilities like saunas,
solariums, and swimming pools.

Hedge. The term “Hedge” refers 1o a sight-obscuring fence-like boundary (of
approximately 75 to 100 percent sight-obscuring density) formed by a
dense row of shrubs or low growing mature trees.

Helipad. The term “Helipad™ refers to arcas on a roof or on the ground used by
helicopters or other steep-gradient aircraft for the purpose of picking up or
discharging passengers or cargo, but not including fueling service,
maintenance or overhaul. This use is subject to applicable state and federal
flight path and air space regulations and restrictions.

Heliport. The term “Heliport” refers to areas used by helicopters or other steep-gradient
aircraft for takeoff and landing, maintenance, and storage. A heliport may
include passenger and cargo facilities, maintenance and overhaul facilities,
fueling services, storage space, tie-down space, hangars and other
accessory buildings, and open space. This use is subject to applicable state
and federal flight path and air space regulations and restrictions,

High Technology Industry. The term “High Technology Industry™ use refers to
research, development, and controlled production of high-technology
electronic, industrial, or scientific products. Examples of this use include
biotechnology firms and computer component manufacturers.

m

-

Page 19 of 40



Historic, Archaeological and Cultural Sites. The term “Historic, Archacological and
Cultural Sites” refers to an area of land associated with history, tradition,
archacological findings, or the cultural heritage of the county as determined
by the Nevada State Office of Historic Preservation.

Hog Farm. The term “Hog Farm™ refers to a type of indoor and outdoor intensive
agricultural use specializing in the raising of domestic pigs and hogs for
breeding or slaughter.

Holiday: The term “Holiday” refers to official or unofficial observances of religious,
national, or cultural significance, often accompanied by celebration or
festivities,

Home-Oceupation: Home Enterprise: The term “Home Occupation Enterprise” means
a business within a principal residence or accessory structure to the
principal residence that does not change the residential nature of the
property or abutting residential uses. The use is incidental to the primary
residential purpose, thus the residential character of the property is not
changed. Contractors-conducting bustness-out-of a+esidence-are-excluded
From-this-definition:

Homeless. The term “Homeless™ refers 1o an individual who lacks a fixed, regular, and
adequate nighttime residence; an individual whose primary nighttime
residence is a supervised publically or privately operated shelter designed
to provide temporary living accommodations (including welfare hotels,
congregate shelters, and transitional housing for the mentally ill and other
persons); or a public or private place not designed for, or originally used as,
a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

Homeowners Association. The term *Homeowner's Association™ refers to a corporation
responsible for the operation of a community or a mobile home subdivision
in which the voting membership is made up of parcel owners or their
agents, or a combination of both; membership is a mandatory condition of
parcel ownership; and the corporation is authorized to impose assessments
that, if unpaid, may become a lien on the parcel. The term does not include
a general improvement district or other similar special taxing district
created pursuant to NRS 318,

Hotel. The term “Hotel” refers to any transient commercial lodging use having two or
more units providing for dwelling, living, or sleeping, as well as on-site
parking for cach unit. These units are intended primarily for transient use
and may or may not provide cooking facilities.

Human Sign. The term “Human Sign™ refers to any person who holds or wears a sign for
the purpose of displaying a message or attracting attention to a business or
service. Human signs are also known in the advertising industry or
colloquially as sign walkers or sign twirlers. Frequently, the sign holder
will spin, dance, or otherwise exhibit movement with the promotional sign
in order to attract attention.

Inactive Permit. The term “Inactive Permit” means a permit issued by a federal, state, or
county agency that expires, is not renewed, is revoked or suspended, or
otherwise becomes null and void.

Page 20 of 40



Indirect Hlumination. The term “Indirect Illumination™ refers to lighting or illumination
of a place, structure, or object that employs the use of a concealed light
source that is not visible when viewed upon at a horizontal plane.

Inflatable Sign. The term “Inflatable Sign™ refers to a sign that is either expanded to its
full dimension or supported by gasses contained within the sign, or sign
parts, at pressure greater than atmospheric pressure.

Intersection: The term “Intersection” refers to a junction where two or more roads mecet
or cross at-grade, i.¢. at the same level. A junction may also be called a
“crossroads.”

Interstate Highway. The term “Interstate Highway™ refers to a roadway included in the
Interstate Highway System, a network of limited-access highways (also
called freeways or expressways) connecting the 48 contiguous states of the
United States of America.

Jail. The term “Jail” refers to a facility owned and operated by Storey County, including
the county jail and branch county jails, for the detention of prisoners in
accordance with NRS 211.

Junk. The term “Junk” refers to any scrap, waste, reclaimable material, or debris,
whether or not stored, for sale, or in the process of being dismantled,
destroyed, processed, salvaged., stored, baled, disposed, or other use or
disposition.

Kennel, Commercial. The term “Kennel, Commercial™ refers to animal dog breeding
with four or more animais-dogs, boarding kennels and other kennel
services, doggie day-care. pet motels, dog training centers, and animak-dog
shelters with four or more dogs exceeding 12 weeks in age.

Laboratories and Testing Services. The term “Laboratories and Testing Services™ use
refers to electronic, mechanical, biological, or other scientific or analytical
testing, including the housing of animals. raising of plants, and other
similar activities used in the testing process that do not fall under
agricultural research use. Experimentation on any animals may only be
conducted in the I-S Special Industrial Zone within adequately secured
facilities.

Laser. The term “Laser” refers to an acronym for Light Amplification by Stimulated
Emission of Radiation; an optical device that produces an intense
monochromatic beam.

Laundromat. The term “Laundromat” refers to a building or structure where coin-
operated laundry machines using only water, detergents, and additives are
made available to the public for the purpose of laundry cleaning. Typical
use includes coin-operated washers and dryers.

Laundry Services. The term “Laundry Services™ refers to establishments primarily
engaged in the provision of large-scale (15,000 square feet or more)
laundering, dry cleaning (see Dry Cleaning Plants), or dying services other
than those classified as personal services. Examples of this use include
laundry agencies, diaper services, and linen supply services.

Light Emitting Diode (LED). The term “Light Emitting Diode (LED)" refers to a
semiconductor diode that emits light when voltage is applied.

Page 21 of 40



Light Rail Infrastructure. The term ~Light Rail Infrastructure™ refers to facilities
directly related and incidental to light rail transportation.

Lighted & Illuminated Signs. The term “Lighted & Illuminated Signs™ refers to any
sign that is directly or indirectly lighted by a source or sources of light.

Liquor Store. The term “Liquor Store” refers to a retail establishment where beers,
wines, and spirits are sold to customers in their original packages.

Livestock Auction Yard. The term “Livestock Auction Yard” refers to a type of
industrial agricultural use establishment primarily used for the sale of
livestock by public auction, including the incidental temporary storage of
livestock in conjunction with their sale.

Loading Area, The term “Loading Arca” refers to a designated arca or recessed
driveway for delivery or pick-up of goods or people.

Lot. The term “Lot” refers to a parcel of land occupied or to be occupied by a building or
group of buildings, together with yards, open spaces, lot width and lot area
as required by this title, having frontage upon a street or private easement.
A lot may be land recorded on a plat of record, or considered as a unit of
property and described by metes and bounds, and which may include parts
of or a combination of lots. when adjacent to one another, providing the
grounds are used for one improvement. All lots must front or have ingress
or egress by means of officially approved public right-of-way. The
following definitions also apply to lots:

A. Lot Area. The term “Lot area™ means the total horizontal area within the lot.

B. Lot, Corner, The term “Corner lot” means a lot abutting two intersecting
streets, where the interior angle of intersection does not exceed one hundred
thirty-five degrees.

C. Lot, Interior. The term “Interior lot” means a lot other than a corner lot.

D. Lot, Through. The term “Through lot”™ means a lot having frontage on two
parallel or approximately parallel streets.

E. Lot Line, Front. The term “Front lot line” means the property line dividing a
lot from a street, On a corner lot only 1 street line may be considered as a front
line and the shorter street frontage will be considered the front lot line.

F. Lot Line, Rear. The term “Rear lot line™ means the property line opposite the
front lot line.

G. Lot Line, Side. “*Side lot line™ means any lot boundary not a front line or a rear
lot line.

H. Lot, Width of. The term “Width of lot™ means the horizontal distance between
the side lot lines measured at right angles to the depth at the front yard setback
line. The street frontage of a lot may be at least 80 percent of the required width.

Lumen. The term “Lumen” refers to the lumen (symbol: Im) which is the SI unit of
luminous flux, a measure of the perceived power of light. Luminous flux
differs from radiant flux. the measure of the total power of light emitted, in
that luminous flux is adjusted to reflect the varying sensitivity of the human
eye to different wavelengths of light. The lumen is defined in relation to
the candela by | Im =1 cd-sr,

Manufactured/Mobile Home Park. The term "Manufactured/Mobile Home Parks”
refers to areas permitted only in approved zoning for mobile home parks

Page 22 of 40



(MHP) and must comply with all requirements of the county code.
Manufactured/mobile home parks may also be called a “land lease
community.”

Manufactured Home. The term “Manufactured Home” means a single-family
dwelling defined by NRS 489.113 as a structure that is: built on a
permanent chassis; designed to be used with or without a permanent
foundation as a dwelling when connected to utilities; transportable in 1
or more sections; and is 8 feet or more in body width or 40 feet or
more in body length when transported or 320 square-feet or more
when erected on site. The term includes the plumbing, heating, air-
conditioning, and electrical systems of the structure. The term also
includes any structure built in compliance with the requirements of
NRS 461, as well as any structure built in compliance with the
requirements of NRS 489.113 and certified by the manufacturer to
meet the standards established under the National Manufactured
Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 U.S.C. §§
5401 et seq., as required by the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development. The term does not include a recreational vehicle or
trailer.

Massage Establishments. The term “Massage Establishments™ use refers to fixed places
of business where massage is administered for compensation or from which
a massage business or service for compensation is operated. A Massage
Establishment does not include establishments where massage is
administered incidentally with any of the following:

A. The practice of a medical doctor, chiropractor, dentist, osteopath, physical
therapist, or registered nurse:

. A state-approved massage school;

_. An athletic club; or

. A barber or beauty salon,

For the above establishments listed in “A™ thru “D.” the term “incidental”
is defined as not being more than 15 percent of net floor space used for
massage activity, and not more than 15 percent of gross revenue derived
from massage activity. No adult entertainment, escort services, or adult
book. materials, or video sales, rentals, or uses are allowed in a massage
establishment.

Micro-Brewery.  The term “Micro-Brewery” also known as a “Brew Pub” refers to an
establishment that is 10,000 square-feet or less in area that manufactures
malt beverages and sells those malt beverages for on-site consumption, off-
site consumption, and retail sale.

Micro-Distillery. The term “Micro-Distillery” refers to an establishment that is
10,000 square-feet or less in area that manufactures distilled alcoholic
spirits and sells those distilled alcoholic spirits for on-site consumption,
off-site consumption, and retail sale.

Micro-Winery. The term “Micro-Winery” refers to an establishment that is 10,000
square-feet or less in area that manufactures wine and sells that wine
for on-site consumption, off-site consumption, and retail sale. This

oow

Page 23 of 40



term applies whether the wine is manufactured from grapes or other
substances originating on-site or off-site, and whether on-site
consumption is for tastings or general consumption.

Mining or Extraction Operation. The term “Mining or Extraction Operation™ refers to
the extraction of minerals, precious metals, whether by underground or
surface methods. Materials extracted may or may not require milling or
finishing on or in the proximity of the extraction site. The term does not
include “aggregate facilities” as defined in this chapter.

Mobile Home. The term “Mobile Home™ refers to a vehicular structure, built before
1976, constructed on a chassis or frame, which is designed to be used with
or without a permanent foundation and, in its initial configuration, is
designed to be capable in whole or part of being drawn by a motor vehicle.
It may be used as a dwelling when connected to utilities or may be used
permanently or temporarily for the advertising, sales, display, or promotion
of merchandise or services. The size is eight feet or more in body width or
forty feet or more in body length when transported, or when erected on site,
and contains 320 square feet in area or more. The term includes the
plumbing, heating, air-conditioning and electrical systems of the structure.
The term does not include a manufactured building, manufactured home, or
a travel trailer.

Mobility Scooter, The term *Mobility Scooter” refers to mobility aid similar to a
wheelchair, but configured like a motor scooter. These devices are
generally used by persons with physical disabilities.

Mobile Sign. The term “Mobile Sign" refers to advertising devices that are affixed to a
frame or chassis having wheels and capable of being carried, or otherwise
portable and designed to stand free from a building or other structure and
fulfill the purpose of advertising. Mere removal of wheels or temporary
securing of the mobile sign to the surface of real estate does not change the
device to free-standing sign. Mere identification of a business or service on
an associated utility vehicle will not be considered a mobile sign.

Monopole. The term “Monopole™ refers to a type of structure or mount 0 fa single shaft
of wood, steel, or concrete that is self-supporting or guyed.

Mortuary. The term “Mortuary” refers to a facility in which bodies are prepared for
burial or cremation and where funeral services are conducted.

Motel. The term “Motel” refers to any transient commercial lodging use having 2 or
more units providing for dwelling, living or sleeping therein, with or
without cooking facilities, primarily intended for transient use, and having
individual on-site parking arcas allocated to each unit.

Motor Vehicle. An automobile, automobile truck, automobile wagon, motorcycle, or any
other self-propelled vehicle designed for running on land but not on rails,

Multi-Family Dwelling. The term “Multi-Family Dwelling” refers to a building
designed or used to house multiple families living independently of
each other. The term includes duplexes, triplexes, or fourplexes, but
does not include row houses, townhouses, or apartment hotels.

Multi-Modal Transit Hub. The term “Multi-Modal Transit Hub” refers to a centralized
area or facility in which 2 or more converging modes of ground

Page 24 of 40



transportation, including trains, light rail, bus, taxi service, automobiles,
ete., arrive and depart. Ancillary uses may include passenger and freight
loading and unloading, parking arcas, luggage claim and handling,
passenger waiting area, and restrooms.

Multi-Tenant Shopping Center. The term “Multi-Tenant Shopping Center” refers to
stores and businesses that face a system of enclosed walkways and are
located on a single parcel or piece of land.

Mural. The term “Mural” refers to non-commercial images such as paintings or enlarged
photographs applied directly onto walls and ceilings. They are usually but
not always large in size. Murals typically exhibit few or no words and are
not intended to advertise or otherwise bring attention to any attraction.
Non-commercial images oftentimes are intended to enhance an area’s
beauty, highlight the community’s social or historical character, or
otherwise depict a message or theme that is common to the immediate
community in which they are displayed.

Museum. The term “Museum” refers to a building that has public significance by reason
of its architecture, its former use or occupancy, or its use as a repository for
a collection of natural. scientific, literary, or artistic curiosities or objects of
interest and that is arranged, intended, and designed for public viewing,
with or without an admission charge. A museum may also engage in, as an
accessory use, the sale of museum-related goods to the public, such as ina
museum gift shop.

NAC. The term “NAC” refers to the Nevada Administrative Code.

Neon Lighting. The term “Neon Lighting” refers to any sign that employs the use of a
small electrical current (AC or DC) that is allowed through a tube, causing
it to glow. Neon lighting also includes devices that use Argon, Helium,
Krypton, Xenon, or any other substance or periodic element that produces a
similar illumination effect. Florescent lighting (See definition for
Florescent Lighting.) is not considered as neon lighting for the purposes of
the title.

Net Metering. The term “Net Metering™ as regulated by NRS 704, is a practice in which
electricity generated by a customer-generator through the use of renewable
energy generating systems may be fed back to a public utility in order to
offset the customer’s use of electricity supplied by the utility during an
applicable billing period.

Nightclub. The term “Nightclub” refers to a commercial establishment dispensing
alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises, typically requiring
an entrance fee or cover charge, and where dancing and musical
entertainment are provided on a regular basis.

Nonconforming Building or Structure. The term “Nonconforming Building or
Structure™ refers to a building or structure or portion thereof, lawfully
existing at the time of adoption of this title and which does not conform to
all the current height, area, yard, or other regulations prescribed in the zone
in which it is located.

Page 25 of 40



Nonconforming Use. The term “Nonconforming Use” refers to the lawful use of a
building or land at the time of the adoption of this title and which does not
conform to the current regulations of the zone in which it is located.

Non-Renewable Energy. The term “Non-Renewable Energy™ refers to energy that is
derived from non-renewable resources such as coal, gas, petroleum, and
fossil fuels.

Noxious Weeds. The term “Noxious Weeds” refers to plant species identified by NRS
5335 as being “noxious™ or “invasive.”

NRS. The term “NRS" refers to the Nevada Revised Statutes.

Nursery Sales - Retail. The term “Nursery Sales — Retail” refers to the retail sale of
plants, flowers, and related nursery items. Examples of this use include
retail nurseries and home garden stores.

Nursery Sales. Wholesale. The term “Nursery Sales — Wholesale™ refers to the
wholesaling of plants and flowers, with incidental retail sales. A
wholesale nursery is an example of this use.

Office Building. The term “Office Building” refers to a building used primarily for
conducting the affairs of a business, profession, service, industry, or
government and that may include ancillary services for office workers,
such as restaurants, newsstands, or other minor commercial establishments.

Off-Site. The term “Off-Site™ in the context of land use refers to areas or activities
located at a site other than the specific site where the particular usc is
permitted.

On-Site. The term “On-Site” in the context of land use refers to areas or activities located
at the same site where the particular use is permitted.

Open Air Market. The term “Open Ar Market” use refers to an outdoor area where
secondhand goods, articles, or antiques are temporarily or intermittently
offered for barter, trade. or retail sale to the general public. This use
includes the display or sale of merchandise from, or in connection with, a
truck. trailer, or movable building of any type. but does not include garage
or yards sales, or any other retail establishment otherwise defined or
classified in this chapter.

Open Storage. The term “Open Storage” refers to a significant portion of a lot or
area used for the long-term retention (more than 72 hours) of
materials, machinery, trailers, inoperable or unregistered vehicles, or
equipment outside of a permanent building, regardless of whether the
items are to be bought, sold, repaired, stored, incinerated, or
discarded. The term does not include new or used motor vehicle sales
and rental display, nor does it include accessory and incidental parking
of operable registered vehicles for residents, guests, customers, or
employees in connection with a principal use.

Operator. The term “Operator” refers 1o any person or organization responsible for and
having the legal right to operate, control or supervise a mining or extraction
operation.

Outdoor Advertisement. The term “Outdoor Advertisement” refers to any form of
advertisement or display. whether temporary or permanent, that takes place
on or within the exterior of a building or an outdoor area.

Page 26 of 40



Outdoor-Stornse—The-termOudoor Storage’ relars-to-use-efa-signicantpertion-ola
ot ar—me-a»kar—{he-hw%ef PPN H O Hnme{}ian—ﬂ—halwf}m—ﬁmiefmh

d—twdrd&d——khe%ﬂm—«%ml meiude—ewwtwuaedmtm wlﬂt—le—w:deﬁ i
rental-display—nor-does-it-inelude aecessory-and-incidental-parking-of
vehielesforresidents: suests—customers-or-employees-in-connection-with-a

Overlay Zone. The term “Overlay Zone™ refers to a zoning district that is imposed on
one or more underlying base zoning districts and that provides additional
requirements and limitations bevond those required by the underlying
zoning district.

Paper Sign. The term “Paper Sign™ refers to a sign made from any kind of paper stock
including, but not limited to, construction paper and cardboard.

Park. The term “Park” refers to a publicly owned area of land, usually with grass, trees,
paths, sports fields, playgrounds, picnic areas, and other features for
recreation and relaxation.

Parking Space. The term “Parking Space” refers to a space within a building, lot or
parking lot for the parking or storage of one automobile. The space must be
at least 9 feet by 18.5 feet in dimension, exclusive of drives, streets, alleys,
or aisles giving ingress and egress thereto.

Pedestrian. The term “Pedestrian™ refers to a person who travels by foot.

Permanent Cosmetics. The term “Permanent Cosmetics™ means the application of
pigments to or under the skin of a person, using ink or other substances that
result in permanent coloration of the skin by means of the use of needles or
other instruments designed to contact or puncture the skin. This term
includes, but is not limited to, eyebrows, eyeliner, and lip color.

Permit. The term “Permit” refers to a legal document, certification, or license giving
permission to do something (¢.2., building or grading permit, or business
license).

Pet Cemetery. The term “Pet Cemetery™ use refers to services involving the preparation
of dead animals for burial and the keeping of animal bodies on cemetery
grounds.

Pharmacy. The term “Pharmacy refers to a store or shop licensed by the Nevada State
Board of Pharmacy where drugs, controlled substances, poisons,
medicines, or chemicals (not including marijuana and related products) are
stored, displayed, possessed, compounded, dispensed, or sold at retail. The
term does not include an institutional pharmacy as defined by NRS 639.
The storage, poseuwun dispensing, or display for sale or retail of

“medicinal marijuana”™ or any other substance found to be illegal by the
State of Nevada or United States of America is not considered a
pharmaceutical use and is prohibited.

Planned Unit Development. The term “Planned Unit Development” means an area of
land controlled by | landowner, that is developed as a single entity for 1 or
more planned unit residential developments, 1 or more public, quasi- -public,
commercial, or industrial developments, or both.

Page 27 of 40



Planned Unit Development, Commercial. The term “Planned Unit Development,
Commercial” means a planned unit development in which 75 percent or
more of the developable area is devoted to commercial uses.

Planned Unit Development, Industrial. The term “Planned Unit Development,
Industrial” means a planned unit development in which at least 90 percent
of the developable area is devoted to industrial uses. Up to 10 percent of an
industrial PUD’s developable area may be devoted to commercial uses.

Planned Unit Development, Residential. The term “Planned Unit Development,
Residential” means a planned unit development in which 75 percent or
more of the developable area is devoted to residential uses.

Planning Department. The term “Planning Department” refers to the department
designated by the board to administrate this title and other land use
planning codes and other county functions, and enforce and
administrate the county regulations of those functions.

Political Sign. The term “Political Sign” refers to a sign, display, or device that expresses
the support for or opposition to a candidate, political party, or ballot
question, or otherwise relates 1o a political campaign or election (NRS
405.030).

Postal Services. The term “Postal Services™ use refers o mailing services such as those
provided by the United States Postal Service. including branch post offices
and public and private facilities. The term does not include major postal
service processing facilities.

Pot-Belly Pig. The term “Pot-Belly Pig” refers to a pig-orhog-clissitied-aisus-serota
W&M%%w%ﬂﬁﬂ%mekwﬁhm{mé—m
as-a domesticated Vietnamese, Chinese, or Asian pot-bellied or pot-belly
pygmy pig or mini-pig, that stands no higher than 20 inches at the shoulder:
i-ho-Jongerthan40-inches-from-the-tip-of-the-head-to-the end-el-the
buttoeks and weighs no more than 420 50 pounds.

Premises. The term “Premises” refers to the contiguous land in the same ownership or
control that is not divided by a strecet.

Primitive Area. The term “Primitive Area” refers to an area of undisturbed natural
environment which may be considered as wilderness area with limited
recreational use.

Principal Building. The term “Principal Building” means the main or primary
building or the main buildings on a lot, or a building or one of the
main buildings housing a principal use upon a lot.

Dwelling, Principal. The term “Principal Dwelling™ means the main or primary
residential dwelling on the lot which is not accessory to any other use.

Principal Residence. The term “Principal Residence” means the main or primary
residential use on the lot which is not accessory to any other use.

Professional Building. The term “Professional Building” refers to a structure used for
rendering professional services to individuals and businesses on a fee or
contract basis. Examples of this use include banks, financial institutions,
stock brokerages, advertising agencies, employment services, and title
companies.

Page 28 of 40



Prohibited Use. The term “Prohibited Use™ refers to a use that is not permitted by any
means in a particular zoning district.

Project Area. The term “Project Area™ refers to a single tract of land, mining claim, or
group of mining claims upon which an operator is, or will be, conducting
operations.

Projection Sign. The term “Projection Sign” refers to any sign that employs the use of a
device (e.g., LCD Projector) that projects a lighted image or animation onto
an outdoor wall or other surface. A projection that is associated with a
permitted outdoor theater (i.¢., drive-in movie theater) or permitted
temporary outdoor theater event is not be considered a Projection Sign for
the purposes of this Ordinance.

Public Place. The term “Public Place” refers to an area or place that is open and
accessible to all citizens, regardless of gender, race, ethnicity, age, etc.
Examples include, but are not limited to, public right-of-ways, parks,
government buildings, schools, libraries, and other buildings and structures
providing service to persons of the public.

Public Right-of-Way. The term “Public Right-of-Way" refers to a strip of land or
easement acquired by reservation, dedication, prescription, or
condemnation and intended to be occupied by public traveled ways,
highways, sidewalks, boardwalks, bicycle lanes, equestrian and pedestrian
trails, or other transportation related improvements.

Public Travelled Way. The term “Public Travelled Way” refers to the entire width
between the boundary line of every way (measured from the curbs or edges
of paved or graveled roadways) maintained by a public authority and that is
open to public use for the purpose of vehicular or other mechanized transit
traffic.

Public Use. The term “Public Use” refers to a publicly owned structure or parcel of land
or a recognized 501(c)3 non-profit organization that is permitted to take
place within a publicly owned structure or parcel of land.

Public Utility. The term “Public Utility™ refers to any business or utility that the Public
Utilities Commission of the State of Nevada is authorized to regulate
pursuant to NRS 704.

Public Utility Right-of-Way. The term “Public Utility Right-of-Way" refers to a strip of
land or easement acquired by reservation, dedication, prescription, or
condemnation and intended to be occupied by public utilities such as
waterlines, sanitary sewers, communication infrastructures, electricity
transmission lines, but not including transportation related facilities
applicable to the Public Right-of-Way.

Radio Controlled (RC) Vehicles. The term “Radio Controlled (RC) Vehicles™ refers to
an unmanned recreational hobby device controlled remotely, including
radio-controlled cars and trucks, aircrafl, and watercraft, but not including
unmanned drones, reconnaissance craft. or other non-recreational devices,

Railroad or Railway. The term “Railroad or Railway™ refers to any track on which the
wheels of a vehicle may run; transport via locomotive; to convey by train.

Real-Estate For-Sale Sign. The term “Real-Estate For-Sale Sign™ refers to a sign
indicating that a property or any portion on which the sign is located is

Page 29 of 40



available for inspection, sale, lease, or rent. A commercial advertisement
sign indicating the presence of a real-estate office or service is not to be
considered a real estate sign.

Real-Estate Office. The term “Real-Estate Office™ refers to a permanent or temporary
administrative office space in which private real-estate firms or
organizations conduct real-estate business.

Recreational Vehicle. The term “Recreational Vehicle™ refers to a vehicular-type
structure without permanent foundation that can be towed, hauled, or
driven and primarily designed as a temporary living accommodation for
recreation, camping, and travel use and including, but not limited to, travel
trailers, truck campers, camping trailers, and self-propelled motor homes.

Recreational Vehicle Park. The term “Recreational Vehicle Park™ refers to any lot or
parcel of land upon which two or more recreational vehicle sites are
located, established, or maintained for occupancy by recreational vehicles
of the general public as temporary living quarters for recreation or vacation
purposes.

Religious Institution. The term “Religious Institution” refers to any building used for
religious worship services, religious education and fellowship activities, or
programs of a religious organization. The term includes the use of the
building and premises for activities such as childcare, formal educational
programs, preschool classes, and recreational activities; provided that these
activities must be ancillary to the religious usc and a special use permit is
required as provided in this title. The term does not include general child
care facilities, general education classrooms or facilities, thrift shops,
homeless shelters, or buildings used for commercial activities.

Renewable Energy. The term “Renewable Energy” refers to energy that is derived from
renewable resources such as geothermal, hydrological, solar, and wind.

Resort. The term “Resort™ refers to a group or groups of buildings containing more than
five dwelling units or guest rooms and providing outdoor recreational
activities that may include golf, horseback riding, swimming, shuffleboard,
tennis, and similar activities. A resort may furnish services customarily
furnished by a hotel, including a restaurant, cocktail lounge, and
convention facilities. At least 15 percent of its land area must be devoted
to usable open space in addition to required landscaping.

Rest Area. The term “Rest Area” refers to a designated paved or unpaved area beside a
main road where cars and other vehicles can stop temporarily.

Restaurant. The term “Restaurant” refers to an establishment principally engaged in the
business of preparing and selling meals in an unpackaged, ready-to-
consume state in non-disposable containers to customers who consume the
meals seated at a table on the restaurant premises. Alcoholic beverages
may be served accessory to food service in a restaurant.

Restaurant, Fast Food. The term “Restaurant, Fast Food™ refers to an establishment that
offers quick food and non-alcoholic drink service, accomplished through a
limited menu of items that are readymade, or quickly prepared, fried,
griddled, or heated in a device such as a microwave oven. Orders are

Page 30 of 40



generally taken and dispensed at a counter, parking stall, or drive-through
window rather than at a table.

Re-Vegetation. The term “Re-Vegetation™ refers to the stabilization of disturbed or
graded soils and land by replanting with indigenous or non-invasive plant
species.

Right-of-Way, The term “Right-of Way” refers to areas of land legally designated and
used for a road or sidewalk, including the side of the roadway or sidewalks.

Roadside Parks and Rest Areas. The term “Roadside Parks and Rest Areas™ refers to a
public facility located next to a large thoroughfare such as a highway,
expressway, or freeway at which drivers and passengers can rest, ¢at, or
refuel without exiting onto secondary roads.

Rodeo Arenas. The term “Rodeo Arena™ refers to any activity involving the exhibition or
competition of the traditional skills of cowboys, such as riding of rough
stock, roping, and timed events, as well as equestrian events including
training, exercise, handling, competition, and exhibition of horses.

Roof. The term “Roof™ refers to a covering on the uppermost part ot a building or
structure that protects the building or structure and its contents from the
effects of weather and other natural outdoor elements.

Rowhouse. The term “Rowhouse” refers to a series of three or more dwelling units
placed side-by-side, with no side yards between them. Each dwelling
unit has a separate entry and is located on a separate building lot with
fee-simple ownership with little or no common interest land ownership.
Row houses usually have a common wall separating them (that is, a
solid wall that is a shared structural part of the adjacent houses). In
some instances, each dwelling unit has its own two side walls, and there
may be approximately 1 inch of airspace or insulation betwecen the
dwellings.

Saloon, The term “Saloon™ refers to an establishment serving alcoholic beverages for
consumption on the premises.

Salvage and Reclamation. The term “Salvage and Reclamation™ refers to a facility or
area for storing, keeping, selling, dismantling, or salvaging scrap or
discarded material or equipment that is not considered as another use under
this title. Scrap or discarded material includes, but is not limited to, metal,
paper, rags, tires, bottles, inoperable or wrecked motor vehicles, motor
vehicle parts, machinery. structural steel, equipment, and appliances.

Sandwich Board Sign. The term “Sandwich Board Sign™ refers to a portable sign
typically consisting of large boards bearing placards, hinged at the top by
straps or other flexible mechanisms.

Scenery. The term “Scenery” refers to a view or views of natural features and vistas,
especially in open natural environments.

Scenic Resource. The term “Scenic Resource” refers to a natural setting in combination
with certain undisturbed physical qualities such as streams, rivers, rock
outcroppings, vegetation, or outstanding scenic features.

Schools and Educational Uses. The term “Schools and Educational Use” includes—
whether public, private, or parochial—elementary, middle, and high

Page 31 of 40



schools and academies (K-12), colleges and higher education institutions,
technical and vocational schools, and apprentice training, including:

A. K-12 schools in which children and teenagers (usually up to 17 years of age) are
provided academic education;

B. Colleges, universities, and educational institutions for higher learning, including
undergraduate colleges and graduate schools in various disciplines such as
medical, law, and other professional specialties:

C. Trade schools for instruction and training in trades or crafts such as auto repair,
welding, bricklaying, machine operating, or other similar trade or craft that
requires the use of large equipment, outdoor training activities, or both;

D. Vocational schools and institutions that specialize in teaching a specific skill,
especially a practical vocation, including, but not limited to, business, dance,
music, martial arts, trade, or driving. The term includes a school where student
classes are relayed to a remote location, with limited student time spent at the
physical location of the school or institution.

Screening. The term “Screening” refers to a permanent method of visually screening or
obscuring a structure or use from the view of any abutting property.
sidewalk, or roadway.

Seasonal Holiday Sales and Use. The term “Secasonal Holiday Sales and Use™ (less than
60 days in a 1-year period) refers to a piece of land for activities associated
with the holidays, including corn mazes, haunted houses, skating rinks,
Santa Clause visits, nativity displays, caroling, etc. This use also includes
the retail sale of seasonal holiday celebratory symbols such as Halloween
pumpkins, Christmas trees, Hanukkah bushes, etc.

Setback Area. The term “Setback Area” refers to an open space on a lot, other than a
court, unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground upward, except as
otherwise provided herein. The following definitions also apply to the
following required setback arcas:

A. Setback Area, Front. The term “Setback Area, Front” refers to an open space
on the same lot with a building, extending between the front line of the building
and the front lot line and extending across the full width of the lot. The depth of
the front setback area is the minimum distance between the front lot line and the
nearest exterior wall of the building, the front of a bay window or the front of a
covered porch, or other similar projections, whichever is nearest the front lot
line.

B. Setback Area, Rear. The term “Setback Arca, Rear refers (o an open space
extending across the full width of the lot between the most rear main building
and rear lot line. The depth of the required rear setback area will be measured
horizontally from the nearest part of a main building toward the nearest point of
the rear lot line

C. Setback Area, Side. The term “Sctback Area, Side™ refers to an open spacc
between the main building and the side lot line and extending from the front
setback area to the rear setback area.

Sign. The term “Sign” refers to any writing (including letter, word, or numeral); pictorial
representation (including illustration or decoration); emblem (including
device, symbol, or trademark); flag (including banner, streamer, or

Page 32 of 40



pennant); or lights or any combination that is designed, intended, or used to
advertise, attract special attention, or otherwise inform when any part of the
advertising or information content is visible from an outdoor area.

Searchlight. The term “Searchlight™ refers to a light source with reflectors that projects a
beam of light in a particular direction or many directions.

Secretary of Transportation (23 U.S.C. Section 131). The term “Secretary of
Transportation” refers to the person who holds the Secretaryship of the
United States Department of Transportation.

Sign Holder, The term “Sign Holder” known as a “human directional™ in the advertising
industry, or colloquially as sign walkers or sign twirlers. Frequently, they
will spin or dance with the promotional sign in order to attract attention.

Similar Use. Where a specific use is cited, the term “Similar Use” is any use that has the
same characteristics as the cited use in terms of trip generation and type of
traffic, parking, and circulation, utility demands, environmental impacts,
physical space needs and clientele, and other land use impacts, as
determined by the board with action by the planning commission to be
consistent with the allowed uses within the zone.

Single-Family Dwelling. The term “Single-Family Dwelling” refers to a building
used to house not more than 1 family or a group of not more than 4
unrelated persons living together and sharing a noncommercial single
dwelling unit with common housekeeping facilities. The term includes
factory built homes and manufactured home in compliance with NRS
278, 461, and 489.

Single-Family Dwelling, Attached. The term “Single-Family Dwelling, Attached”
refers to a single-family dwelling intended for occupancy by 1 family.
This term includes “rowhouses”, “townhouses”, “twinhomes”, and
“condominiums”, but does not include “duplexes”, “triplexes”,
“fourplexes”, “apartment buildings”, “rooming houses”, and other
multi-family dwellings.

Single-Family Dwelling, Detached. The term “Single-Family Dwelling, Detached”
refers to a free-standing structure intended for occupancy by 1 family,
and constructed on a separate building lot, that is owned in fee simple.
Each building has a front yard, a rear yard, and two side yards,

Skateboard. The term “Skateboard” refers to a tandem or in-line set of wheels mounted
on a board.

Skateboard Park. The term “Skateboard Park™ refers to a park or part of a park with
paths, slopes, structures, jumps, and other areas open o the public that are
designated for use with a skateboard, roller skates, a bicycle, or a scooter.

Skating Rink. The term “Skating Rink” refers to an indoor or outdoor facility, open to
the public, where roller skating, rollerblading, or ice skating or uses
associated therewith and may be conducted. The term does not include
skateboard parks or associated uses.

Solid Waste. The term “Solid Waste™ refers to all putrescible and non-putrescible refuse
in solid or semisolid form, including, but not limited to, garbage, rubbish,
junk vehicles (not including “junkyards™), ashes, incinerator residue, street
refuse, dead animals, demolition waste, construction waste, and solid or

Page 33 of 40



semisolid commercial and industrial waste. The term does not include
hazardous waste managed pursuant to NRS 459.

Solid Waste Collection Center. The term “Solid Waste Collection Center” refers to a
facility used for the collection and temporary storage of municipal solid
wastes within enclosed bins or storage containers. The term does not
include solid waste transfer stations, solid waste landfills, or facilities
involving infectious or hazardous wastes.

Solid Waste Landfill. The term “Solid Waste Landfill” refers to any place. including
municipal and regional facilities, where solid waste is permanently
dumped, abandoned, accepted, or disposed of by incineration, land filling,
composting, or any other method in accordance with NRS 444.

Solid Waste Recycling Center. The term “Solid Waste Recycling Center” refers to a
facility designed and operated to receive, store, process. or transfer
recyclable material that has been separated at the source from other solid
waste.

Solid Waste Recycling Collection Center. The term “Solid Waste Recycling Collection
Center” refers to a totally enclosed structure or container where plastic,
aluminum, glass, paper, clothing, or other recoverable resources are
collected and stored for later pick up and recycling.

Solid Waste Transfer Stations. The term “Solid Waste Transfer Station™ refers to a
fixed facility where solid wastes from collection vehicles are consolidated
and temporarily stored outside of containers but within an enclosed facility
for subsequent transport to a permanent disposal site. This use does not
include facilities involving infectious or hazardous wastes.

Special Event. The term “Special Event” refers to any planned activity not part ofa
normal routine business license that would require county services and
resources and that will impact the county and its citizens. Special events
include, but are not limited to, promotional and fund-raising activities,
athletic or sports events, live musical events, community celebrations and
observances, and similar uses.

Special Use Permit. The term “Special Use Permit™ refers to a specilic discretionary
approval for a use that has been determined to have unique circumstances,
be more intense, or to have a potentially greater impact than an allowed use
within the same zoning district.

Stockyards. The term “Stockyards” refers to establishments primarily used for the
keeping, sale, and display of livestock by public auction, including the
incidental temporary storage of livestock in conjunction with their sale or
use.

Story. The term “Story” refers to the space within a building included between the
surface of any floor and the surface of the ceiling next above.

Streamer. The term “Streamer’” refers 10 a long narrow strip of material used for
ornament, decoration, or to attract attention to a particular place, business,
event, or object.

Street. The term “Street” refers to a thoroughfare that has been dedicated or abandoned
to the public and accepted by proper public authority, or a thoroughfare that

Page 34 of 40



has been made public by right of usc and that affords the principal means
of access to abutting property.

Structure. The term “Structure” refers to any building, fence, tower, edifice or building
of any kind, or any piece of work artificially built up or composed of parts
joined together in some definite form which requires location on the ground
or is attached to something having a location on the ground.

Supplementary Restraint System. The term “Supplementary Restraint System” refers to
an automobile safety device, also known as an “air bag,” consisting of a
bag designed to inflate automatically during a vehicular collision.

Surety. The term “Surety” refers to a corporation authorized to transact surety business in
the State of Nevada pursuant to NRS 679 that is included in the United
States Department of the Treasury's Listing of Approved Sureties and
issues a surety bond pursuant to NRS 108 that does not exceed the
underwriting limitations established for that surety by the United States
Department of the Treasury.

Surety Bond. The term “Surety Bond™ refers to a bond issued by a surety for the release
of a prospective or existing lien pursuant to NRS 108.

Tattoo Facility. The term “Tattoo Facility” (also known as a “Tattoo Parlor”) refers to an
establishment that places permanent designs, letters, figures, symbols, or
other marks upon or under the skin of any person, using ink or other
substances that result in the permanent coloration of the skin. including
permanent cosmetics, by means of the use of needles or other instruments
designed to contact or puncture the skin.

Tavern. The term “Tavern” refers to an establishment serving alcoholic beverages for
consumption on the premiscs.

Temporary. The term “Temporary” refers to impermanent; not permanent; not lasting.

Temporary Batch Plant. The term ““I'emporary Batch Plant” refers to a temporary
(lasting less than 1 year) facility for mixing asphalt or concrete.

Temporary Sign or Banner. The term “Temporary Sign or Banner” refers to any sign or
banner governed by the provisions of chapter 17.84 that is displayed for a
period of time not exceeding 30 consecutive or non-consecutive days ina
12-month period of time.

Tentative Map. The term “Tentative Map" refers to a map made to show the design of a
proposed subdivision and the existing conditions around it as pursuant 1o
NRS 278.

Theater. The term “Theater” refers to a building or part of a building devoted to showing
motion pictures or dramatic, dance, musical, or other live performances.

Theme Park. The term “Theme Park” refers to an entertainment or amusement park built
around one or more themes and typically including amusement rides.

Tower. The term “Tower” refers 1o a structure or mast that is exceptionally high in
proportion to its width and length and is free-standing, guyed, or fixed to a
roof, side of a building, or a structure other than a building, and is generally
intended to support devices including, but not limited to, antennas,
transmitters, relay wireless communications, wind energy turbines, sensors,
water tanks, sound or light emitting devices, etc.

Page 35 of 40



Tower, Lattice. The term “Lattice Tower™ refers to a structure, mast, or tower that
consists of an open network of braces forming a support structure that is
usually but not always triangular or square in cross section and is free-
standing, guyed, or fixed to a roof. side of a building, or a structure other
than a building.

Tower, Monopole. The term “Monopole Tower™ refers to a structure, mast, or lower that
consists of a vertical pole that is freestanding, guyed, or fixed to a roof, side
of a building, or a structure other than a building.

Townhouse. The term “Townhouse” refers to a form of row housing that may utilize
a combination of fee-simple and condominium land ownership. Unlike
the “row house”, the townhouse has fee-simple ownership on land in
which the building is situated (i.e., the “footprint” of the building), plus
a small amount of land for a private patio or yard. The remainder of
the land surrounding the structures is used for attractively landscaped
areas and recreational facilities. The land that surrounds the private
buildings sits is jointly owned by the owners of all the buildings,
usually in condominium ownership. It is maintained by a homeowners’
association with funds from dues assessed to the property owners.

Trailer. The term “Trailer” refers to an individual mobile but not self-motive structure or
facility so constructed and designed as to permit occupancy for dwelling or
sleeping purposes for short or long periods of time. They are usually
intended for more mobile use than a mobile home,

Transient Commercial Lodging Yse. The term “Transient Commercial bse lLodging™
refers to the use of a unit, for remuneration, as a hostel, hotel, inn, motel,
resort, vacation rental, or other form of transient lodging for a term of
occupancy. possession, or use of the unit or dwelling of less than 30
consecutive calendar days.

Travel Trailer. The term “Travel Trailer” refers to a portable vehicle built on a chassis
designed to be used as a temporary dwelling for travel, recreational and
vacation uses. When factory equipped for the road, it must have a body
width of not more than 8 feet and a body length of not more than 43 fect.

Truck and Equipment, Repair. The term “Truck and Equipment, Repair” refers to an
establishment devoted principally to the repair of large trucks, recreational
vehicles, tractors, and equipment together with the sale, installation, and
servicing of associated equipment and parts. Examples of this use include
muftler shops, repair garages, glass shops, and similar establishments.

Truck and Equipment, Sales and Rentals. The term “Truck and Equipment, Sales and
Rentals™ refers to an establishment engaged in the on-site sales or rentals
of large trucks, recreational vehicles, tractors, and equipment together with
incidental repair, maintenance, washing, and detailing. Examples of this
use include dealerships and rental agencies.

Truck and Equipment, Service Station. The term “Truck and Equipment, Service
Station”, also known as a *“truck stop,” refers to an establishment where
large trucks. recreational vehicles, tractors, and equipment are fueled or
serviced. Examples of this use include the sale of gasoline and petroleum
products, service station work. and incidental sales of tires, batteries,

Page 36 of 40



replacement items, lubricating services, and minor repair services. A truck
and equipment service station may be combined with a convenience store
or other commercial uses permitted in the zone. A convenience store
located within a truck stop may include retail area open to the public that is
less than 5,000 square feet in area.

Truck and Equipment, Washing and Detailing. The term “Truck and Equipment,

Washing and Detailing ™ refers to washing, detailing, waxing, or cleaning of
large trucks, recreational vehicles, tractors, and equipment. Facilities may
use manual washing methods (including coin-operated) or conveyor
mechanisms.

Truck and Railroad Terminals. The term “Truck and Railroad Terminals™ use refers to

Truck Stop. ~

Twinhome. T

UAYV

freight terminals for goods transported by truck or rail, with associated
facilities for the loading and transfer of goods.

The term “Truck Stop™ refers to a place where large trucks, recreational
vehicles, tractors, and equipment are fueled or serviced, including: on-site
retail sales of gasoline and petroleum products: service station work such as
lubrication and minor repair; washing and detailing; and incidental sales of
tires, batteries, and replacement items. A truck stop is typically combined
with a convenience store, restaurant. gaming uses, Laundromat, showering
and personal hygiene facilities, sleeping accommodations, areas for
medium-term (up to 24 hours) truck staging areas, and other commercial
uses as permitted in the zone in accordance with this title.

he term “Twinhome” refers to two residential dwelling unites placed
side-by-side with no side yards between them. Each dwelling unit has a
separate entry and is located on a separate building lot. Twinhomes
usually have a common wall separating them (that is, a solid shared
structural part of the adjacent house). In some instances, cach dwelling
unit has its own side wall which abuts the neighboring side wall with
nominal (e.g., onc inch or less) distance, airspace, or insulation between
them.,

The term “UAV” (Unmanned Aerial Vehicle) or “drone™ refers to
powered aerial vehicles sustained in flight by aerodynamic lift over
most of their flight path and guided without an onboard person or
crew. They may be expendable or recoverable and can fly
autonomously or piloted remotely.

Uniformity. The term “Uniformity™ refers to a condition in which two or more similar

things (e.g.. signs) are precisely the same, regular, and unvarying.

Use. The term “Use” refers to the purpose for which land or building is arranged,

designed or intended, or for which it is or may be occupied or maintained.

Use, Principal. The term “Use, Principal”, means the main or primary use of a premises

which is not accessory to any other use on the premises. Unless the use customarily
occurs indoors, ¢
principal use occurs indoors. See¢ also *principal building” definition in this chapter.
Utility Substatio

yr the definition of the use explicitly mentions that it occurs outdoors, a

n. The term “Utility Substation™ refers to an assembly of electrical,

telephone, gas, or other utility company equipment used to provide distribution of services.

Page 37 of 40



Vacation Rental, The term “Vacation Rental” refers to any transient commercial use
lodging providing for dwelling, living, or sleeping within a single-family
or multi-family residential dwelling for a period of less than 30 days ina 1-
year period.

Variable Image Sign. The term “Variable Image Sign™ refers to any lighted sign on
which the porirayed message or image changes periodically or
continuously (i.e., reader board).

Variance. The term “Variance™ excuses a particular parcel from full compliance with the
provisions of a zoning ordinance where requiring full compliance would
result in hardship to the interested party. Variances, however, may not be
granted for failure to comply with use restrictions. The grant of a variance
does not change the zoning ordinance or underlying zoning of the parcel
and may only be granted upon demonstration of hardship based on the
peculiarity of the property in relation to other properties in the same zoning
district. The hardship may be demonstrated where, due to special
circumstances applicable to the property, strict application of the
development code’s standards or requirements would deprive the property
of privileges enjoyed by others in the vicinity. A self-imposed hardship is
not a legitimate ground or reason for a variance approval.

Vending Machine. The term “Vending Machine™ refers to a mechanical device that
dispenses merchandise.

Veterinary Services, Large Animals. The term “Veterinary Services, Large Animals™
specializes in the care and medical treatment of large animals or livestock.
Veterinary services for small animals including pet clinics and small
animal hospitals may be included to provide full veterinary services. An
example of this use is a large animal hospital providing veterinary serv ices
for livestock, including stables and pens associated with care and feeding.

Veterinary Services, Small Animals. The term “Veterinary Services, Small Animals™
specializes in the care and medical treatment of small animals and pets.
Examples of this use include pet clinics and small animal hospitals.

Video Sales and Rental. The term “Video Sales and Rental™ refers to an establishment
primarily engaged in the retail rental or lease of video tapes, films, CD-
ROMs, laser disks, electronic games, cassettes, or other electronic media.

Vision Clearance Triangle. The term “*Vision Clearance Triangle™ is formed by
establishing a set distance from the point of intersection of a street or
driveway in both directions and by a straight line connecting those two
points.

Visitor. The term “Visitor” refers to a guest or tourist who pays a visit or otherwise stays
locally for a short period of time,

Wall. The term “Wall” refers to an architectural partition with a height and length greater
than its thickness which is used to divide or enclose an arca or to support
another structure,

Warchousing, Storage and Distribution. The term “Warehousing, Storage, and
Distribution” refers to establishments or places of business primarily
engaged in warchousing, storage, and wholesale distribution, including, but
not limited to, handling of material, goods and equipment.

Page 38 of 40



Wastewater Treatment Facility. The term “Wastewater Treatment Facility” refers to a
facility or group of units used for the treatment of industrial or domestic
wastewater from sewer systems and for the reduction and handling of
solids and gases removed from these wastes.

Watchman’s Dwelling. The term “Watchman’s Dwelling” also called “watchman’s
quarters” refers to a single-family dwelling unit that is accessory to a
permitted principal use and for the occupancy by the owner, operator, or
an employee of the permitted principal use acting as caretaker, custodian,
or security personnel, together with his or her immediate family, if
applicable. The use may not be rented or leased.

Water Storage Facility, The term *“Water Storage Facility™ refers to a system for
collecting, storing, and distributing potable water from a source of supply
1o users.

Water Towers. The term “Water Towers™ refers (o an elevated storage container and
support structure intended to hold a water supply at a height sutficient to
pressurize a water distribution system.

Watershed. The term “Watershed” refers to an area of land separated from other land by
a ridge or high land and serving as a drainage arca by a stream or river.

Wild Animal. The term “Wild Animal” refers to any animal wild by nature and not
customarily domesticated, including but not limited to mammals, fowl, fish
or reptiles.

Wind Energy Turbine. The term “Wind Energy Turbine” refers to a system consisting
of a wind turbine, support tower, and associated control or conversion
electronics that generates electrical power for a lawful principal use.

Winery. The term “Winery™ refers to a facility engaged in the production of wine,
including storage, bottling, distribution, and related administrative
functions such as office management and on-site tasting. Incidental
production of olive oils, non-alcoholic grape juices, and similar products is
also permitted.

Wireless Communications Facilities. The term “Wireless Communications Facilities”
refers to all equipment, buildings, and structures that receive and broadcast
communication services over radio-frequency waves. The term includes
any of the following:

A. Amateur Radio Communication Facility. The term “Amateur Radio
Communication Facility” refers to a non-commercial radio service involving
amateur radio operators communicating locally and worldwide using store-
bought or homemade radios, computers, satellites, and the internet, and
including above-ground antenna support structures.

B. Antenna. The term “Antenna” refers to a whip (omni-directional antenna),
panel (directional antenna), disk (parabolic antenna), or similar device used for
transmission or reception of radio or electromagnetic waves and signals.

C. Antenna Array. The term “Antenna Array” refers to more than one whip,
panel, disk, or similar device used on the same antenna support structure.

D. Antenna Support Structure. The term “Antenna Support Structure”™ refers to a
structure, mast, tower, framework, or monopole that is designed to support
devices including, but not limited to, antennas, transmitters, relay wireless

Page 39 of 40



communications, and related devices, These structures include free-standing,
guyed, or mounted to a roof, side of a building, ground, or a structure other than
a building. The overall height, regardless of its mounting position, is measured
from ground grade level to the uppermost portion of the antenna support
structure.

E. Commercial Communication Facility. The term “Commercial
Communication Facility” refers to a communication system that uses a network
of short-range transmitters in overlapping zones and a central station to connect
to telephone lines and oftentimes including antenna support structures,

F. Repeater. The term “Repeater” refers to a receiver or relay transmitter designed
to provide service to arcas that are not able to receive adequate coverage from
the primary sending and receiving site in a wireless communications network;

G. Satellite Dish Antenna, The term “Satellite Dish Antenna™ refers o any
parabolic or dish-shaped (and related equipment) designed to receive
communications from orbiting satellites or other communication source.

H. Wireless Communication Services. The term “Wireless Communication
Services” refers to commercial mobile radio services, unlicensed wireless
services, and common carrier wireless exchange access services as defined in the
Telecommunications Act.

I. Wireless Communication Service Provider. The term “Wircless
Communication Service Provider” refers to an entity licensed by the Federal
Communication Commission (FCC) to provide wireless communication services
to individuals, businesses or institutions.

Whiteboard. The term “Whiteboard” refers to a smooth, hard, light-colored panel or
surface for writing on with an erasable marker or pen.

Window. The term “Window” refers to any opening within the exterior of a building or
structure that is intended to provide natural light into the building, or any
framework that contains a glass or glasslike windowpane and is built into a
wall or roof to admit light or air.

Yard, Rummage, Estate, or Garage Sale. The term “Yard, Rummage, Estate, or Garage
Sale” refers to a sale of used houschold belongings typically held outdoors
at the primary residence of the seller limited to 2 days in a 12-month
period.

Youth Recreation Facility. The term “Youth Recreation Facility™ refers to an indoor or
outdoor facility designed and equipped for the performance of sports
activities. leisure activities, and other customary and usual youth recreation
activities. The operators of these facilities often design arts, sports, fitness,
and recreation programs for the youth, as well as other more specialized
programs on topics such as leadership, education and career guidance, and
health and life skills.

Zoo. The term “Zoo” refers to a park where wild animals are kept in enclosures for public
viewing, and where they may be bred and observed for research. The term
does not include laboratory or experimental animal research.

Page 40 of 40



Chapter 17.12

General Provisions
Sections:

17.12.010 Purpose and intent

17.12.014 Uses allowed

17.12.018 Uses permitted subject to a special use permit
17.12.022 Uses prohibited

17.12.023 Home eceupations enterprises

17.12.024 Nonconforming buildings and uses

17.12.040 Modernization

17.12.041 Net metering

17.12.044 Height of buildings and structures

17.12.045 Accessory buildings, location and placement
17.12.046 Accessory dwellings, location and placement
17.12.048 Accessory buildings

17.12.049 Comstock Historic District standards
17.12.050 Visibility at intersections

17.12.052 Through lots

17.12.056 Yard encroachments

17.12.060 Fences, walls and hedges

17.12.064 Public utility uses

17 12,068 Minimum lot area

17.12.070 Off-street parking

17.12.080 Open storage prohibited

17.12.090 Access and right-of-ways

17.12.100 General provisions for €-ERs-HA2-and-13-zones all zones
17.12.110 Manufactured homes authorized

17.12.120 Converting manufactured and existing mobile homes to real property

17.12.010 Purpose and Intent
The regulations set forth in this chapter modify or further restrict, where applicable, the
zoning regulations of this title.

17.12,014 Uses Allowed
The following regulations apply to allowed uses:

A. Uses listed as allowed. Buildings, structures and land may be used, erected.
maintained, altered or enlarged only for purposes listed as allowed in the zone
where the building or land is located.

B. Any legally created use already established within an area prior to the present
zone regulations that is not an allowed use within the zone or is a permitted use
only with a special use permit may be allowed to continue as a nonconforming

Page | ol'23



use subject to all conditions and restrictions relating to nonconforming uses
provided in chapter 17.06 Nonconforming uses.

17.12.018 Uses Permitted Subject to a Special Use Permit

Uses listed as requiring a special use permit are considered as special exceptions within
each zone. Any special permitted use must meet with the regulations for special use
permits and any conditions imposed by the board. [n addition to the special use permit,
all necessary federal, state, and county permits and licenses are required.

17.12.022 Uses Prohibited

Uses that are prohibited in each zone are declared to be detrimental to the public health,
safety and general welfare.

17.12.023 Home Oeeupations Enterprises

A. Home eccupations enterprises may be permitted as an incidental use to the
principal residential purpose in zones permitting residences provided that the
occupation is confined to the inside of the principal residence or accessory
building and does not involve an addition or alteration that would change the
residential nature of the property. A home occupation that might produce noise,
odor, dust or smoke, excessive vehicular traffic, other disturbance, or that would
adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the citizens of the
county is not permitted.

B. All home eecupations enterprises arc subject to the requirements of a special
use permit.

O

Signs used in connection with a home eecupations enterprises are limited to |
foot by 2 feet, except for garage sales, which are limited to 2 sales per year per
residence. Chapter 17.84 regulates all signs.

D. Home pet and plant sales. In any GR CR, R, E, or SPR zone, a person may keep
or cultivate pets or raise fowl, bushes, trees, berrs berries, or crops, or sell
pets, fowl, or crops from the premises, providing that no stores or stands are
constructed for the purpose, the operation is not conducted as a regular
commercial enterprise, and the activity is not in violation of any other
ordinance.

17.12.024 Nonconforming Buildings and Uses

The uses of property or buildings that may become nonconforming by reason of changes
to the zoning ordinance are regulated by chapter 17.06 Nonconforming uses.

17.12.040 Modernization

The expansion, modernization, replacement, reconstruction, repair, or rebuilding and
continued use of public utility buildings. structures, equipment and facilities is allowed
where there is no change of use or increase in area of the land so used.

17.12.041 Net Metering

In accordance with NRS 704, the difference between the electricity supplied by a public
utility and the electricity generated by a customer-generator using renewable energy

Page 2 0of 23



generating systems may be fed back to the utility over the applicable billing period is
known as “net metering”. Net metering is permitted in all zones providing that all of the
following apply:

A

B.

. Renewable energy is the primary source of energy to generate electricity;

The system has a generating capacity not exceeding the maximum allowable
renewable energy generating capacity for the zone, or not more than 1 megawatt
in [ and P zones;

. The system is located on-site of the user or on the customer-generator’s

premises;

. The system operates in parallel with the public utilities transmission and
distribution facilities;

. The system is intended primarily 10 offset part or all of the customer-generator’s

requirements for electricity; and

The facility or renewable energy system for the generation of electricity has a
generating capacity that does not exceed the greater of:

1. The limit on the demand that the class of customer of the customer-
generator may place on the system of the utility; or

2. 150 percent of the peak demand of the customer or user.

Renewable energy generation systems are regulated in each zone pursuant to this title as
well as federal, state, and county regulations and ordinances.

17.12,044 Height of Buildings and Structures

A

B.

. Buildings and structures - general. The height limitations for buildings,
manufactured buildinas-and homes, and other structures not listed in this section
is regulated by the zone in which they are located. Church spires, belfries,
cupolas, domes, chimneys water towers, and flagpoles are exempt from the
height limitations in this title.

Wireless communication facilities. Radio, television, and other commercial
and non-commercial communication antenna support structures may extend
vertically ro-more-than up to 45 feet above grade level in the A, C, €k CR, 11,
E, F, P, R. and SPR zones; 30-feet-in-the-H-zone—and 75 feet in the 1C, 12 and
I3 zones. A special use permit may be granted to exceed these height limitations
provided that the structures may be safely erccted and maintained at that height
in view of surrounding conditions and circumstances. For radio, television, and
other commercial and non-commercial communication antenna support
structures existing under an approved special use permit, no additional special
use permit or alteration of the existing special use permit will be required to add
or modify antennas attached to the structure, provided that the antennas conform
to the conditions of the special use permit and does not increase the height of
the antenna supporl structure.

. Wind energy turbines. A wind energy turbine of 10 kWh or less capacity may

not be located closer than its total height, including its support tower and blade
Page 3 of 23



in the upward position, plus 10 percent of its total height, to the lot boundary in
the parcel it is located (see figure 12.1). A variance for reduced setback may be
granted when a wind energy turbine of 10 kWh or less capacity is located on a
parcel of at least 1 acre. Setbacks for wind energy turbine support towers
exceeding 45 feet in height or for wind energy turbines exceeding 10 kWh
capacity must conform to the approved special use permit,

30°

10 pecent butfor distance

b Parcel boundary
-

. B .

’ - 55 -

e L e e e s — ——
Figure 12.1: Total fall-down setback for a 10 kWh or less capacity wind turbine is the sum of its total
height and ten percent thereof.

1742048 17.12.045 Accessory Buildings, Location and Placement (non-dwelling)
The following provisions apply to the location and placement of accessory buildings
unless otherwise provided in this titlez. Accessory buildings must be no less than 6 feet
from another building, and must comply with applicable building and fire separation
requirements. Regular setback distances apply to accessory buildings with exception of
the following.

A. Accessory buildings in R and SPR zone,

I. Accessory buildings up to 500 square feet or 20 feet in height may be located
up to 3 feet of the rear and side property line.

o

. Accessory buildings exceeding 500 square feet or 20 feet in height must
conform to regular setback distances. However, a variance may be granted by
the board with action by the planning commission to locate an accessory
structure exceeding 500 square feet or 20 feet in height less than the regular
setback distance to the rear and side property lines.

3. Accessory building(s) may cover no more than 40 percent of the rear yard area.

B. Accessory buildings in E zone.

1. Standard setback distances apply when the lot is larger than one acre. When the

lot is one acre or less, accessory buildings may be placed no closer than 50

percent of the depth of the lot from the front property line, or 60 feet.

whichever is less.

C. Accessory buildings in the I1, 12, 13, and IC zones.

Page 4 of 23




1. Accessory buildings 2,000 square feet or less may be located up to 20 feet of
the front, rear. or side lot line.

D. Accessory buildings in the A and NR zones.

I. The location, placement, and area of accessory buildings in the A and NR
zones are regulated by chapters 17.24 Agriculture zone and 17.76 Natural
Resources zone, respeclivelv

&wm#—l-qems-ar—»»{reem}e@m
BA-detache ihdi w-notbe-ocated-within-thereguired-Hromt
hﬂd%&mk-awme%‘ﬂm SPR-zones- o ithi-amront-side-orrearvard
setback-in-the-zone-A-detached accessory-buildings-in-the-E-zone-may-not-be
closer-than-S0-percent-of-the-depth-of the Jot-from-the-front-propert-Hneor 60

C-A-detached-aecessory-strueiure-rot-exceeding-200-square-feetin-area-in-the R
and-SPR-zonesmav-pot-betocated-closer-than-3-feet-from-the property-Hne—A
detached-aceessorv-structure-exceeding 200-square-feet-in-area-but-nebmore
l%ﬁ%q&w&k%n%mﬁ—hﬁm%%h&%nm

properi-Hne-iess-otherwise-stated--thisHbe
ekweérwﬂwﬁ%eﬂ—wdwammkqmumﬁi—w{baekrequemem«-

A it -Hie—-k—k—aﬁd-@-#llc Fones—H-2-stories-tn-heishi-may-not
h&%ﬂ%%ﬁ%emmﬂnww}mp&h—hw

Fbbunhwd - to-e peReorSPRzoneprivate
W%»Mrwdmﬁmﬂm ﬂ—;mm ipat-building—A-temporary
bmmwmthwwmmhe
construction-of a-permanent use providing that-a-permit-will not-be-issued-or
MMW#HWFHWWMMH?WW
ﬁﬂth&hH%wwHﬁ&mquw
PEFRISS Ve BUeessORy-Hse-Hpoi-completion-ok i 5t
frstocetf-upei-compledon-oht hHIﬂﬁJ—%HKM&H‘)&dEH&*&i—M—&h&&-W
wﬂhm«t—;wd—aH—wdem—f}wdﬁ{eﬂi “isstanee-of-the-eriginal-permit-A

&bﬂ#d—l—ft“vﬁk‘ﬂi—h&%ﬂ?“—h—ik—ﬂ _be-required-for-aecessory-budings-and-uses

éem‘t#ﬂmei mﬂwd-&tmmmes—m%}e—,ﬁ-ﬁw
he%mv—umde—&&mei—m—%w;%w&{h‘ﬂ—w mat—#mht{»&h#e-ﬁpcﬁf—d-w&-#ﬂ-}ed-b»
the-buiding code—euchstructure mustmeetfront-rear-and-side-yird-setbaer
Fexjureimenis-fos that one-and--considered-ar-acessory-building and-w-mai
struetire for-caletlation-ofsquarefootage-ob aeeessory-Sttetires:

same-or-adjoining-lotthan-aHowed-bythe building-codeand-fire-code:

Page 5 of 23




LE Area limitations. The lmitations-in-thetollowing table following limitations
apply to allowable cumulative square footage for accessory struetures building(s)

Zone Maximum square footage for accessory strieture
building
Cand CR 1:300-square-feet-but-notta-exceed-S-percento ot
totarea No limitation
RI and R2 1,500 square feet
SPR 1,500 square fect
e V23 First-floor-net-to-exceed 2300 square-eettotal-ared
and-1-5-F and potto-exceed 4000 square-feet 4,000 square feet
EIVCH(1to5 total. Second floor exterior walls must be offset
acres) from the first floor exterior walls by at least 10

percent on at least two sides.
5.000 square feet

and-E4O0VR-E,
E10HR, and E40VR
(more than 5 acres,

up to 40 acres)

F 5,000 square feet

IC. 11,12, and 13 Notore than-S0-percent of-totaberea-orprmetpal
buidineon-thedot-No limitation

A Up to 5 percent of total lot area when clearly

incidental to the permitted agriculture use and 5,000
square feet when not clearly incidental to the
permitted agricultural use

F. Deed restriction. Any detached accessory building proposed to be connected to a
potable water supply line, or a septic system or community water system (i.¢.,
sanitary sewer) as part of a building permit application shall require a deed
restriction to be filed with the county recorder’s office stipulating that the structure
will not be converted to an accessory dwelling unit as defined by chapter 17.10
Definitions. The deed restriction shall make the county a party to the restriction and
shall be obtained from the building or planning department. A copy of the recorded
deed restriction shall be required prior to the issuance of the building permit.

G. Temporary accessory structure — during construction. It is unfawful to
construct. erect, or locate private garages or other accessory buildings and uses in
the E. R, or SPR zone without an existing principal building. A temporary building
may be constructed pending the construction of the principal building providing that
a building permit will not be issued for the temporary building unless a permit is
also issued at the same time for the principal building. Temporary accessory
dwelling units are regulated under section 17.12.046 Accessory dwellings. location,
and placement.

Page 6 of 23



17.12.046  Accessory Dwellings, Location and Placement

The following provisions apply to accessory dwelling units defined in section 17.10

Definitions. Detached accessory dwelling units must be no less than 6 feet to another
building and must comply with applicable building and fire separation requirements.
Unless otherwise stated in this title, regular setback distances apply to accessory

dwellings.

A. Accessory dwellings in the A, CR, F, and R2 zones

Dwelling units are regulated by chapter 17.24 Agriculture zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential zone, 17.32 Forestry zone, and 17.20 Multi-family
Residential zone, respectively.

B. Accessory dwellings in the 11, 12, 13, and IC zones

{ {5}

Special use permit. A special use permit for an accessory dwelling (attached
or detached) may be granted by the board with action by the planning
commission for the purpose of providing | watchperson/security living
quarters for the property in which the principal industrial use is located.
Principal use required. No accessory dwelling may be permitted without a
principal industrial use existing on the property.

Occupancy. The dwelling shall be limited to 1 person or 1 family. There
shall be no payment of rent or lease, or payment toward purchase by the
occupant of the dwelling.

C. Accessory dwellings in the E, R1, NR and SPR zones

¥

Special use permit. A special use permit for an accessory dwelling (attached
or detached) may be granted by the board with action by the planning
commission,

Minimum parcel size. The lot size must be at least: 10,000 square feet in the
R and SPR zones; | acre in the I zone: and 40 acres in the NR zone.
Principal occupants. The owners of the property in which the accessory
dwelling unit is permitted shall occupy at least one of the dwelling units
(accessory or principal unit) on the premises. except for bona fide temporary
absence.

Building area. The attached and detached accessory dwelling may be no less
than 500 square feet, and the detached accessory dwelling may be no more
than 1,000 square feet.

Parking. At least | off-strect parking shall be provided in addition to the
required parking requirements for the principal use.

One allowed. Only 1 accessory dwelling unit is allowed per parcel.
Affidavit of family. [f the accessory dwelling is occupied, an affidavit
provided by the planning department and signed by the property owner(s)
must be filed with the building and planning departments. It must state the
name(s) of person(s) oceupying the principal and accessory dwellings and

Page 7 of 23



describe the family lineage between the property owners(s) and the person
occupying the accessory dwelling,

8. Deed restriction. A deed restriction shall be filed with the county recorder’s
office stating that the accessory dwelling unit is a temporary use for
immediate family members. It shall stipulate that the unit will be vacated and
converted to a non-dwelling use (in accordance with the building code) at
such time that the immediate family member(s) no longer occupy the unit.
The deed restriction form will be provided by the planning department and it
shall make the county a party to the deed restriction. The planning
department shall agree in-writing to allow the property owners(s) to remove
the deed restriction if the owner legally converts the accessory dwelling to a
non-dwelling use. A copy of the recorded deed restriction shall be required
and presented 1o the building department prior to issuance of a building
permit.

D. Temporary accessory dwelling — during construction. It is unlawful to construct,
erect, or locate an accessory dwelling unit in the E. R, or SPR zone without an
existing principal dwelling unit. When the following requirements are met, a
temporary accessory dwelling unit may be constructed pending the construction of
the principal building providing that a building permit will not be issued for the
temporary dwelling unless a permit is also issued at the same time for the principal
building. A certificate of occupancy for the principal building and the accessory
dwelling shall not be granted until the temporary accessory dwelling is converted to
a non-dwelling use.

17.12.049 Comstock Historic District standards

The provisions of NRS 384 establishing and regulating the Comstock Historic District are
made part of this title within the boundaries of the Comstock Historic District. The
boundaries of this area are fixed pursuant to the terms of NRS 384. The provisions of this
section are those contained in NRS 384 as well as other provisions found by this
ordinance to be appropriate for the area.

A. Commercial buildings abutting “C™ Street. Commercial buildings abutting s
Street and located within the Virginia City Downtown District must have
wooden porches over the top of the sidewalks/boardwalks extending from the
building front to the street, and must have a front sidewalk constructed of wood
from the building front to the street. A variance may be granted by the board
with action by the planning commission when good cause is shown by the
applicant,

B. Setback distances. Buidinesetbacks-must contorm-to-chapters+728
strteture setbacks-mustconform to-chapter 1712 General provisions: A-varianee

oy . s i N i i B
ladb bhvabe-boardaaitly Honbv-th HESHo-however:

Maa e et & % MYTET s PP AR LN
LERALT AL TS '[YI\!Y!‘.!\U q_r.j T ooy Yy T ey st IJ. AL R 'E T Illlll&.‘ O
the-variance-must-notcontlict-with-the-provisions-of- NRS-384- Building
setbacks are established by the respective zones for each use.

Page 8 of 23



C. Buildings, structures, and exteriors. The following standards apply to all
buildings, structures, and exteriors located with the Comstock Historic District.

|. All exterior materials must consist of a substance shown to have existed
prior to 1942, and building and structure exteriors must be appropriate in
design for that time period.

2. Outdoor signs and advertising devices must comply with the provisions of
chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Lighting within 2,000 feet of the Comstock Historic District boundaries is
limited to incandescent lighting or indirect (concealed) fluorescent,
Compact Florescent Lighting (CFL). or Light Emitting Diode (LED) type
lighting. CLF and LED light emitting devices which are made to look like
incandescent light “bulbs™ are permitted to be plainly visible. No neon, or
blinking, flashing, chasing, or motion lights are permitted. The regulations
of this provision including other light emitting devices which appear
similar to neon signs, such as those which employ LEDs similar in hue to
neon and configuration to show a continuous stream of light.

tad

17.12.050 Visibility at Intersections

Fences, certain fence support columns, walls, hedges, and other obstructions abutting the
intersecting portions of the public right-of-way must be placed so that they do not
obstruct vehicular and pedestrian visibility. Specifically, obstructions located within the
vision-clearance-triangle must have a base 8 feet or higher above grade or a total height
not exceeding 3 feet from grade, except solid fences and hedges up to 4 feet in height and
other fences permitted by section 17.12.060. Trees and shrubs located within the vision
clearance triangle are permitted so long as they are trimmed and maintained to meet the
purpose and intent of this section. Traffic regulatory signs, lights, utilities, and other
devices installed by a governing agency are exempt from these limitations. In instances
where a safety or traffic hazard is caused by inadequate visibility at intersections,
additional or more restrictive conditions may be imposed. A commercial building
located in the C and CR zone and abutting the public right-of-way must have the corners
abutting the intersection designed in accordance with the vision-clearance-triangle as
demonstrated in figure 423 12.2.

Page 9 of 23



Area of mereased velucular VISION CLEARANCE
visibihiry TRIANGLE

Intersecting public right-of-ways

Figure 12.2: Setback requirements for devices placed within the vi sion-clearance-triangle maintain clear
visibility for vehicular and pedestrian traffic. In some instances more restrictive requirements may be
necessary 1o maintain a safe travel environment.

Page 100123



Buildug A

Building A Building B

Front sethack fulfiils the vision Upper stories may overhang cutour

setbacx when obsmicnons fe.g j - enmway Corner pillar supporting upper steries
Jences) therein comply o3 2 may inpuds into the vision clearance area
- 3 oo — e ]
7-.'{ 2 P Cenaw | cwou
E = :n | woae
3573 O ) _J
‘ x5 1
!
R night-of-way intersection
i
| y
U | - l 2 E §
) ¢ 3 S 3
Upper stories may overhang cuteur : ,E é 3 Buddmg D z; z
entrvway. Corner pillar suppernng : 5 = Building side (left) meeats the viston 25
upper stories may inmde inra the Byt clearance requiremonrwhen 7' from s
vision clearance area = % B | .15_&:.0_:‘_1.-.7-. .?-j
2 2 | ;_-' ¥
$2¢ |
2 ] %

Figure 12.3: The image illustrates examples of building design and placement that meet the purpose and
intent of the vision-clearance-triangle. The configurations above are not exhaustive as buildings and
improvements may take many forms that meet said requirements. It is hereby recognized that many
historic buildings in the Virginia City area currently abut the paved travelled way and facilitate no
pedestrian access such as sidewalks. It is strongly encouraged that new developments which abut the
public right-of-way in accordance with this Title include development of appropriate pedestrian access
such as sidewalks/boardwalks, and stairways when needed. The building cut-out corner design shall not
be required for allies and access driveways.

Page |1 0123



17.12.052 Through Lots

On through lots, either line separating the lot from a public right-of-way may be
designated by the owner as the front lot line. In such cases, the minimum rear yard
setback distance is the average of the yards on adjoining lots. If the adjoining lots are
undeveloped, the minimum rear ¥ard setback distance must-be shall be equal to the
front yard setback distance for the zone in which the property is located.

17.12.056 ¥ard Sethback Encroachments

Where yards-setback distances are required # by this title, they must meet the minimum
dimension specified for any part, and they must be open and unobstructed from the
ground upward, except as follows:

A. Cornices, canopics, eaves, or other similar architectural features not providing
additional floor space within the building may extend into a-the required front,
side, or rear-vard setback area no more than 3 feet.

B. Open, unenclosed, covered and uncovered porches, decks, platforms, or
landing places which do not extend above the level of the first floor of the
building, may extend into any front-side: or rear+ard setback area no more than
6 feet: and side setback area no more than 5 feet.provided-thatan An open-
work railing—nettess-than up to 36 inches in height-may be installed or
constructed on any porch, deck, platform, or landing place including above the
first floor level.

C. Detached accessory buildings may occupy side and rear yards setback areas in
accordance with seetiont742:043- the provisions of this chapter.

17.12.060 Fences, Walls and Hedges

The following regulations apply to the placement and design of fences. walls, and

hedges:

A. Height limitation and visibility:

I

In addition to the requirements of this section, all fences, walls, hedges, and
other obstruction must comply with section 17.12.050.

Rear and side yard fences, hedges, and walls may not exceed a height of 6
feet above grade (see-figure-12:3) in the C, CR, R, and SPR zones, (see
figure 12.5).

Front yards fences, hedges, and walls may not exceed a height of 4 feet
above grade (see-fienre42-39 in the C, CR, R, and SPR zones, (see figure
12.5). (Note: Corper For the purpose of this section, corner lots in these
zones are considered to have 2 front yards as illustrated in figure 12.3-4).

Fences and walls in the A, E, and F zones may extend to 6 feet above grade
in the front yard setback area when the criteria listed below are met. Hedges
in the A, E. and F zones are exempt from these height limitations when i
accordance-with they conform to section 17.12.050:

Page 12 of'23



9.

a. They consist of at least 75 percent of open space uniformly distributed
along their surface above a height of 4 feet; and

b. Vision through the fence or hedge is not materially obstructed from any
angle as to obstruct the view of vehicular traffic on adjacent streets or
public right-of-ways or of pedestrian traffic on adjacent sidewalks.

c

Examples of fences that typically meet the ebeve requirements in this
subsection include chain link, wire, rail and split rail, and wrought iron
(see Figure 424 12.5). Rail and-sphit-rail fences must consist of horizontal
rails not more than 4 inches wide and at least 1 foot between rail edges.
Deviation from horizontal rails and from these dimensions may be
allowed, providing the applicant can demonstrate 1o the satisfaction of the
commtrity-development building and planning departments that the
deviation will not violate the purpose and intent of this chapter. Picket
fences, wire and chain-link with inserted solid slats or other solid
applications are-net-considered-to-he-in-aecordarecwith-this do not
comply with this section.

Rear yard fences in R zones within Virginia City must be setback 4 feet from
the edge of the public travelled way.

Fences and walls in the A and | zones may extend 8 feet above grade level in
the rear, side, and front yard, but must not materially obstruct from any angle
as to obstruct the view of vehicular traffic on adjacent public right-of-ways or
of pedestrian traffic on adjacent sidewalks.

+One additional foot of height is allowed for fence or wall columns which
are a maximum of 2 feet in width and spaced at least 6 feet apart measured
center to center (see figure 12.5).

2 Two additional feet of height is allowed for decorative open arched gate
which does not exceed 25 feet in width for a vehicular gate or 8 feet in width
for a pedestrian gate (see figure 12.6).

4-Four additional feet of height is allowed to accommodate solid arch
structures over gates and other passageways for pedestrians and vehicles (see
figure 12.5).

10. A fence height must be measured from grade to the top of the fence. When a

fence is located on top, and within 127 of a retaining wall, the height of the
retaining wall is not be included in the height measurement of the fence (sce
fieure—2-6 illustration below).

Figure+2:6: The retaining
wall is not part of the
fence in this illustration.
Retaining walls are
defined pursuant to
chapter 17.10.




11. 2 Two additional feet of height is allowed for decorative lanterns, urns,
planters, or sculptural elements above the maximum height allowed for the
fence or wall component (e.g., wall, column, or arch) upon which such
decorative feature is located.

12. Maximum height may vary up to 6 inches to allow for grade changes,
clearance under fences for maintenance, footers, other obstacles customary
to the use intended to be fence, and reasonable human error.

13. Fences and walls that which are exempt from the height limitations of this
scction when they are:

a. Associated with uses that require high fences to protect public safety
including, but not limited to, golf driving ranges, public utility
substations, baseball fields, athletic fields, and swimming pools;

b. A requirement of a state or federal agency, such as those for jails and
other high security facilities.

B. Barbed or razor wire. Fences incorporating barbed wire or razor wire are not
permitted in C, CR, E, and R zones, except barbed wire may be used on top ofa
6 foot high solid or chain link fence or wall surrounding a public utility
building, e substation, or public usc¢ or when the fence is not a-property-line
fence-placed within 12 inches of the property line.

C. Electric fences. Fences or barriers incorporating electrical current are not
permitted in C, CR, and R zones. In all other zones, fences and other barriers
(e.g., electrical ribbon) incorporating electrical current are permitted provided
that they are safe for humans and animals, are manufactured by an established
and reputable company and carry a=bi=-Approved™ an Underwriters
Laboratory UL or equivalent federally recognized standard seal, and are
located no closer than 10 feet from the property line. The setback requirement
does not apply to wireless below-ground electronic pet barriers, i.e., “invisible
dog fences™.

D. Fabric and screening. The attachment of fabric or shade cloth to a chain link or
similar open fence is prohibited. Fabric, shade cloth, or other material is not a
permitted method of required screening of outdoor storage areas. Fabric, shade
cloth, or other material may be installed to create a wind barrier for athletic
ficlds and courts or similar situations subject to the following requirements: (a)
it must be professionally installed by a licensed contractor; and (b) the proposed
material must be designed and installed to withstand wind resistance and
attached at grommets designed in a manner consistent with the building code.

Page 14 023



;ml—l L e B B B B N B B B B B B N = B

4 solid fence

= : sssvesew
- 6" sokid fence
Peear fence setback 4 when mEEm.
abuttng paved pavelled way m
i Varguua Ciey Pear yard retback | §' see-thry
S == feuce
J . - S a9
o %’ fence placed on -
bowundary Lue not - I
'Iah\lm.n.g nght-of-way e i‘
T —_— —Meeoes;
4
- 4
Typical Resdential / ! s
zone configuration i 1
4
— o
= § .
T4 :’_
3 3 2
%
R -
= 3 L7
% =y g 3 z
- A &
| " -
| 4
| > 4
k.
AmmEw
g
Front vard tetback b
4
4
= i S il
h PSS - - + - /
Pubbe nght.ofiway
" o PR PR Y PR RS PR, o N
e @
& ]
=
Vision Clearance G EEREE@ “®
Trnaongle for €7 -
solid fences, - [
support columns, -
walls, and hedges - @
™ ap
Typical Estate -
- zone configuration gy @
- z
—— — - &
™ <l
- o

Page 15 of 23

Figure 12.3 4: The diagram illustrates typical situations that are applicable to residential and estate zones.
It is recognized that that many rear yards of historic parcels in Virginia City abut the public (paved)
travelled way and, in some instances, overlap the dedicated right-of-way. This situation leaves little or no
room for pedestrian ways and creates challenges for public parking as well as snow removal. The rear
yard fence setback requirement in R zones located within Virginia City will enable services to be provided
by the county in a safe and efficient manner.




: +
rnm

Figure 12.4 5: The wrought iron fences (top) are easily seen through by adjacent vehicular and pedestrian
traffic. The top left fence, with no large supporting columns, may be located within the vision-clearance-
triangle; the top right fence, with vision obstructing columns, may not. The 6 foot fences (bottom] may
abut the front lot line of the E zone because the solid portion meets the maximum height limitation for
fences and walls in the front yard. The bottom left fence/wall combination, like the top left fence,
employs large support columns and must be placed outside of the vision-clearance triangle.

N

, [
£
SSresumiSRR, |
S
.
.

g

Figure 12.6: The gate designs are examples where maximum height limitations for fences may be
exceeded in accordance with this chapter. They include structural archways over gates, arched gates,
support pillars, and their lamps.

age 16 0f 23



17.12.064 Public Utility Uses

The provisions of this title do not apply to the construction, installation, operation and
maintenance of public utility distribution and transmission lines, towers and poles, and
underground facilities for providing gas, water, clectricity, telephone, telegraph or
communication services by public utility companies under the jurisdiction of the Public
Utilities Commission of the State of Nevada: provided, before a public utility acquires
any right-of-way for a transmission line, the proposed route must be submitted to the
planning commission for review and recommendation to the board. This exemption does
not apply to commercial cellular and other wireless communication antenna support
structures and towers.

17.12.068 Minimum Lot Area

The minimum lot area required for any lot within a zone is based on the lot being served
by both public utilities of water and sewer systems. For a lot without both public utilities
of water and sewer systems, the minimum lot area within any residential zone is as
follows:

A. Onet acre per dwelling unit where the lot is served by a public sewer system
but not a public water system:

B. Ten Thousand+0-006 square fect per dwelling unit where the lot is served by a
public water system but not by a public sewer system;

C. Onet acre per dwelling unit where the lot is not served by either by a public
water or a public sewer system.

17.12.070 Off-Street Parking

A. Theoffstreetparking requirementis Residential. There shall be at least 2
off-street parking spaces provided for each residential-amity dwelling unit,
including manufactured homes, mobile homes, and other attached or detached
dwellings units. and-t-spacetor-each-500-square-feet-efgross-Hoorarea-forany
pﬁmmﬂkﬂtwm—ﬁwtﬂmﬂe%&eﬂwmmmhémm%mg
spices-loreach-unit

B. Commercial (no lodging). At least 1 off-street parking space shall be
provided for each 500 square feet of gross floor area of a commercial use.

C. Commercial lodging. At least 1 off-street parking space shall be provided
for each commercial transient lodging unit or suite.

D. All required parking spaces must be provided as on-site parking, and included
on the parcel upon which the unit is constructed, and must remain with the
parcel so long as the use is continued.

E. The planning commission may establish any other ratio not set forth in this
seetion, and all parking spaces referred to in this section must be of a sufficient
size to accommodate any size of passenger automobiles.

Page 17 of 23



17.12.080

Open Storage Prohibited

No open storagesincluding inoperative nutomebiles; is allowed in any zone unless
stated otherwise in this title,

17.12.090

Access and Right-of-Ways

A. Definitions.

L,

e

Access ways. A clear and unobstructed usable approach of at least 12 feet in
width (residential), 15 feet in width (one-way commercial and industrial),
and 24 feet in width (two-way) from a development upon land to a public
travelled way located within a public right-of-way (see figure 12.7). An
access way may also be seeured established by-means-of-an within a legal
recorded easement from-the owner-of-a parcelorlotproposed-to-be-built
upon-for-the-full-length-of the-pareelorot (see figure 12.8) across
another’s land which benefits the subject property by connecting it to
extending to a public right-of-way, or any other access way suitable and
acceptable to the community-development building, planning, and public
works departments,

Public right-of-way. A strip of land or casement acquired by reservation,
dedication, prescription, or condemnation and intended to be occupied by
public traveled ways. highways, sidewalks, boardwalks. bicycle lanes,
equestrian and pedestrian trails, or other transportation related improvements
(see figures 12.7 & and 12.8). A public utility right-of-way or easement
and associated public utility improvements may be located within a public
right-of-way. Public right-of-ways may also be used in reference to public-
private right-of-ways (easements) in which vehicular or pedestrian access are
limited to designated persons such as members of a homeowners association.

Public utility right-of-way. A strip of land or easement acquired by
reservation, dedication, prescription, or condemnation and intended to be
occupied by public utilities such as waterlines, sanitary sewers,
telecommunication infrastructures. electricity transmission lines, and gas,
but not including transportation related facilities applicable to the public
right-of-way.

Public traveled way. The entire width between the boundary line of every
way (from curb to curb and/or edge of paved or graveled roadway)
maintained by a public authority and that is open to public use for the
purpose of vehicular or other mechanized transit traffic (see figure 12.7).

B. Access Requirements,

Required area. On any subdivision, parcel, tentative or in formational map,
the required nominal parcel or lot area per the land use zoning requirements
is the net area of the parcel or lot, excluding any access ways containing the
public traveled way. A nominal gross area tolerance of 5 percent maximum
may be granted in the computation of the net area by the board with action by
the planning commission when there is a single access, and 10 percent where
there is a double access. Any higher percentage request requires a variance.
Page 18 of 23



2. Required width. The full dedicated or casement width, without reference to
the width of the developed public traveled way. No commercial, industrial, or
dwelling construction may be permitted on any parcel or lot not served by a
public right-of-way of at least 50 fect in width, with a minimum public
traveled way of 24 feet in width. When the public right-of-way is less than 50
feet in width, or the public traveled way is less than 24 feet in width, a
variance is required. This required width applies to all arcas subdivided,
parceled, or under record of survey, on file in the county recorder’s office. In
non-subdivided areas or arcas where no official map is on file in the county
recorder’s office, an applicant for a variance, special use permit, or a

building permit must

demonstrate by a title company report, or other

acceptable means, the existence of the required improved access way before
a variance, special use permit, or building permit wiH may be issued.

sresERrans
r

Pubhic ru_:__l_ll-of-wa\' I

F--..-oc.-tooccvlooooo«oa.c--..-uo.|

I R R R A A Rt

|

sidewalk _}

4

(1o curb or edge of

Public mraveled way
pavement. )

]

Durt shoulder

Pl

Access way

traveled way when
ne sulewalk

E
srsbssses

developed to public

. -
P

7 iAcdcessavay
~ [developed ro public.
travelled way edge)

B ] T T

Figure 12.7: The public right-of-way encompasses much more land than the traveled way. While public
utilities such as power, sanitary sewer, and water may be located above or below the traveled way, they
are oftentimes located within the outer edges of the public right-of-way.

Page 19 of 23



H

i
H

Parcel i Parcel Parcel Parcel
H
H
i
i
H
1
i
|
1 Public nght-of-way eascment i
i whach a public mavelled way
| for access to all pacels o1 other
; public unprovements may be
; develoned
'
; /’ /
' T
! s
1
'

I.‘t...-....---—'--v--b---r--.n-n..-..--.----.bdlc et L L L L L L TR L L LR R hhehddd il
1
—— L3 J o Y
--r::__: = Public nunhry nghr-ofoway

1 T easemient m o wiluch cenam
H public unhity nfiastroacnires
3 may be developed
: .
i
:

Parcel i Parcel Parcel Parcel
|
|

Figure 12.8: In the case illustrated above, only the lower parcels include easements for public right-of-way
development. Required building setbacks must be from that easement line in accordance with section
17.40.050. Public utilities, but not transportation improvements, may be developed in the public utility

right-of-way,

3

Surface materials. Surface materials covering the entire length of the access
way must consist of a minimum coverage of one and onc-half inches of
gravel installed and adequately maintained by the owner of the lot or parcel
to be developed, the developer, the homeowners association, or by a
cooperative effort of the adjoining lot owners. A paved 20-foot approach
must be installed by the developer, property owner, or association when the
access way abuts a paved public traveled way. The public works director
may require an extended pavement approach up to 100 feet if necessary to
minimize impacts to the paved public traveled way. The surface materials
installation must be inspected and approved by the conib-developrrent
building and public works departments.

Single-ownership conditions, When there are no-meore-than 4 dwelling sites,

cach a minimum required arca per the zoning, within a single ownership, the

developed arca must be served by double permanent access ways of soi-tess
than at least 50 feet in width. When there are 3 or less dwelling sites,
developed area may be served by a single 50 foot access way. The access
way must meet the following requirements:

a. Two2-copies of an acceptable map, signed by a state land surveyor,
showing the proposed layout together with any other supplementary
information, must be submitted by the applicant 1o conmmuity
development-department-the building and planning departments.

b. In the event there is a sale, trade, barter, or gift of any portion of the land
covered by the provisions of this section resulting in a condition which

Page 20 of 23



does not meet the terms of this section, the transaction is considered a
violation of this section, and subject to any penalties herein, and be
required to provide additional access ways acceptable to the planning
commission.

5. Drainage. Appropriate storm water drainage or detention must be installed
and maintained by the property owner and not negatively impact public right-
of-ways. All roads and access ways must be sloped properly to prevent
accumulation of storm water. All driveway culverts must be a minimum of
12 inches in diameter. Strect crossing culverts, bridges, and overpasses must
be developed and maintained as required by the community development
building, planning, and public works departments.

6. Fire prevention. Property along right-of- ways and between easement lines
must be kept clear of combustible materials including dead and dry
vegetation and other lammables. All combustible material applicable to this
subsection must be removed from the property and disposed of as required by
county code. Failure to abate the hazardous conditions in accordance with the
notice of violation may result in abatement of the hazardous conditions by
the county at the cost of the property owner,

7. Cuts and fills. All cuts and fills exceeding 30 inches and that are 2:1 or
steeper in slope must be mechanically stabilized. Cuts and fills exceeding 30
inches and that are flatter than 2:1 must be re-vegetated with non-invasive
plant species having fire retardant characteristics. Planting or maintenance of
noxious plant species is prohibited. The removal of noxious invasive plant
species must comply with subscetion 6.

8. Inspection. A site inspection by the community-development-and-ire
departments building, planning departments, and the fire district are
required prior to any actual grading work being done.

17.12.100 General Provisions for €-CRAEH A2 and-13-2ones all zones
This section applies to €-CRand-lzones-all zones unless otherwise stated:

A. Noise, smoke, odor, gases, weeds, or other noxious nuisances must be
controlled so as not to become objectionable, or adversely affect the praperties
in the vicinity, and must not be detrimental to the public health, safety and
welfare.

B. Uses involying the sale, display, dispensing, cultivation, or use of marijuana or
anv illegal drugs or paraphernalia commonly used or associated with the use of’
marijuana or any illegal drug, such as glass pipes, water pipes, roach clips.,
bongs, etc., is prohibited. Accessory items related to the use and sale of legal
tobacco products such as rolling papers, rolling machines, tobacco pipes and
pipe maintenance items are not considered “drug paraphernalia” unless they
are associated with the above prohibited items.

Page 21 of 23



C. A Where a commercial business is allowed, a special use permit is required
for the display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside
of a permanent building, except for permitted temporary uses and farmer’s
markets. A business may not display items for sale or conduct any business on
the public right-of-way (See Figure 12.7-9.) or between the public traveled way
and building. exceptas-mav-be-provided-for by-aemperapy-special-evens
permit- Recessed door openings and thresholds, and the setback area
between the building front and the front property line (i.c., front yard),
may be used to display and-=ell items. se-tone-as-the-items-oractivitiesdonot
proteude beyond- the euter edge-of the- thresheld-orbuilding-wath

Ttetns mny be placed, displayed. or

\ stand withn the doorway threshold
]

Trenws nuay |
not be
displaved
Okay
i’:;:'k Items may l:im 2 Items may be Itens except
be displave s displayed s1gns may not
i or hung on the z I -_E mside the leang i b
exXtenor or 3 | % building | nght-of-way
buildmg wall 2 | ;.5' through |
[ 2 | 2 wandows !
. £ | e [
= T |

Figure 12.9: The diagram shows where merchandise and other items may and may not be displayed. The
diagram does not apply to signs and advertising devices which are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.84
Signs and billboards.

D. Incidental hotel uscs. Any hotel may contain business uses that are customarily
conducted in conjunction with and incidental to the hotel. Unless the business
uses are otherwise permitted in the use district in which the hotel is situated,
every public entrance to the business must be from a lobby, a hallway, or other
interior portion of the hotel. No sign or other advertising material of the
incidental hotel use may be visible-fron-a public place placed outside of the
hotel, except for as allowed by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

E. Outdoor lighting, including for private and public uses, must comply the
regulations of chapter 8.02 Dark Skies. anc-be-arranged-to-refectaway-Hom
d+w+eﬂéeﬂmtweme—pem“+ked—w¢éeﬂhdi Hses-and-abutine-properties:

F. =Access ways are defined by section 17.12.090. The access way for
commercial building fronts abutting the public right-of-way are the door
openings or the thresholds located at the building front.

Page 22 of 23



G. A special use permit is required for all natural resources river and
waterway restoration, wetland creation, and water restoration and
recycling,

H. Up to 4 dogs and 2 pot-belly pigs more than 12 weeks ol age are allowed in
any zone. A special use permit is required to exceed this number. A
minimum of 10 acres is required to obtain a special use permit for this use.
This restriction does not apply to the A Agriculture zone.

17.12.110 Manufactured Homes Authorized

Manufactured homes as defined by chapter 17.10 Definitions, and NRS 118B.015
specifically include, without limitation, mobile homes that do not comply with the
standards established by the National Manufactured Housing Construction and
Safety Standards Act of 1974.

A. Manufactured homes are authorized when installed in accordance with the
NRS, the regulations adopted by the Manufactured Housing Division of the
Department of Business and Industry, and the county building code, including
snow load, earthquake zone, and wind load requirements for the county.

B. The manufactured home must have been manufactured no more than 15 years
from the date at which it is placed on a parcel. The manufactured home must
meet the Nevada Division of Manufactured Housing standards for manufactured
homes. (Note: The Nevada standards are required to be equal to or more
restrictive than the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
standards; however, if there is a discrepancy and the HUD standard are shown
to be more restrictive, the HUD Standards will be the governing standard). This
requirement does not pertain to any manufactured or mobile home which is
already installed in any area of Storey County prior to the adoption of the
ordinance codified in this section.

17.12.120 Converting Manufactured and Existing Mobile Homes to Real Property
[n order to permanently affix a single or smuhtSectionab-multi-sectional mobile home
existing at the time of adoption of this title or manufactured home to the land for the
purpose of having such home assessed as real property, the structure may be affixed to
the real property in any manner which a lending institution would find as acceptable for
treating the manufactured home as real property. In all cases, the running gear and tongue
must be completely removed from the property.

Page 23 0f 23



Sections:

17.15.010
17.15.020
17.15.030
17.15.040
17.15.050

17.15.010

Chapter 17.15

P Public Zone

Purpose and intent

Allowed and permitted uses

Uses subject to special use permit
Building height and width
Setback requirements

Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the P Public Zone is to achieve the following:

A. To accommodate the wide range of public institutional and auxiliary uses that
are established in response to the health, safety, cultural, and welfare need of the
citizens of the county:

B. To organize the assemblage of specific. non-profit, and profit public facilities
into efficient, functionally compatible, and attractively planned administrative
centers in conformance with the master plan;

C. To establish allowed uses and those requiring a special use permit to ensure
compatibility with adjacent zones; and

D. To ensure development standards and setback requirements that are compatible
with abutting regulatory zones.

17.15.020

Allowed and-Permitted uses

The following uses are allowed in the P public zone, unless otherwise stated, when the
use is owned and managed by a governmental entity or non-profit organization. A special
use permit is required for each use listed in this section when it is owned or managed by a
tor-profit entity.
A. Buildings and facilities owned, leased, or operated by Storey County, Storey
County School District, er-any-other-district other political su bdivision of the
Storey County or the State of Nevada, state of Nevada, or the government of
the United States, including:

ks

Agricultural use types including, general agricultural uses, agricultural animal
production, custom animal processing, agricultural supplies sales,
agricultural entertainment, and commercial uses.

. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the

permitted uses. This use includes community gardens.

. Public facilities and buildings for fire, emergency services, sheriff, public

works. and other governmental agencies and departments. A special use
permit is required for county jails.
Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.

. Outdoor storage or maintenance of materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy

equipment, including fueling stations and maintenance buildings, associated

Page 10f4



B.

with public works or other government entity.

6. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and
detailing (manual hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line
methods), service and fueling stations, and repair (including painting and
body repair).

7. Childcare where 4 or less children are cared for. A special use permit is
required for more than 4 children;

8. Crisis care uses, temporary.

9. Libraries, post offices, community centers, and courts of law.

10. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and

academies, colleges and higher cducauon, technical and vocational

education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required for education institutions and academies that
include student residential and boarding accommodations.

. Highway rest arcas, picnicking arcas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks,
walking and bicycle trails, interpretive tails, restroom facilities, and
information kiosks.

12. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers,
multi-modal transit hubs, transportation garages and storage, railroad and
light rail infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad switchyards and
turntables.

13. Indoor veterinarian services and shelters for small and large animals.

14. Uses involving the indoor discharge of fircarms.

15. Temporary (less than 1 vear) concrete and asphalt batch plants when
incidental to an on-site construction project.

Public Utilities uses:

1. Public utility service yards, electric substations, and gas transmission
stations,

2. Public utility or public service buildings, structures, and uses, not including
power generation for sale to a public utility.

3. Water treatment and storage facilities and groundwater recharge.

4. Storm water drainage, detention, retention, and storage.

Tourism, cultural resources, and community health uses:

I. Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on
foot, gold panning, and museums,

Library and cultural services.

Farmers markets.

Historical sites, markers, kiosks, and attractions.

Archeological heritage and cultural resource centers.

Permanent indoor and outdoor civic auditoriums and theatres.

Golf courses, driving ranges, miniature golf, and country clubs.

Fair grounds and rodeo arenas.

. Athletic fields, buildings, and complexes.

0 Health clubs, personal fitness gyms, swimming pools, spas, saunas, and

complexes dedicated to such uses.

Page 2 of 4



D.

E

11. Permanent indoor and seasonal or temporary outdoor roller and ice-skating
rinks and skateboard parks.

Healthcare Uses:

|. Healthcare facilities, including hospital services, medical services,
convalescent services, continuum of care facilities for seniors, and group care
services. A special use permit is required for civic convalescent and group
care services.

Accessory uses. buildings, and structures if they are incidental to a permitted use

and are placed on the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and meet the

requirements of sectiond7-+2:048-17.12.045-046 Accessory buildings.

Other similar uses which are determined by the board to be consistent with the

uses permitted within the zone, after considering a reccommendation on the use

by the planning commission.

17.15.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following uses require a special use permit:

A.
B.

Airports, airstrips, and related facilities.
Helipads and heliports used for non-emergency evacuation, sheriff and

government uses.

s

D.

R =

7z

®]

Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

Childeare facilities exceeding 4 children,

Health care facilities and uses, which include civic convalescent and group care
services. Civic convalescent care services are not be allowed within 1,500 feet
of a residential use and 2,500 fect of a public or private school or daycare.

. Halfway houses. Halfway houses are prohibited within 1,500 feet of CR, R, and

[ zones and 2,500 feet of a public or private school or daycare.

. Education facilities which include student residential and boarding

accommodations.

. County jails.

Solid waste recycling collection center.
Solid waste transfer station.

. Solid waste collection center.

Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for small and large animals.

Z00s. animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or
possession of 1 or more wild animals.

. The keeping of 2-5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12

weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Use involving outdoor discharge of firearms.

Nt Eresotrces-e e riv -w‘-&m&walervwaymiwal-imh—we{knu#ﬂ%%
and-waterrestoration-and-reeyeline-Natural resources river restoration
regulated under section 17.12.100.

. Sewage treatment plants and facilitics and other sewage or sludge processing,

treatment, or storage.

Page 3 of 4



17.15.040 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured buildine-manuiactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 45 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television, other
communication antenna, and wind encrgy turbine support structures are regulated
pursuant to section 17.12.044 Height of buildings and structures,

17.15.050 Setback requirements

Unless otherwise stated in this section, the distance between the principal building and
the property line must be in accordance with the setback requirements in the abutting
regulatory zone. Setbacks for accessory buildings must meet the provisions under section
+7:42-048 17.12.045. Distance requirements are as follows:

Abutting Zone Front Yard Setback | Side Yard Setback Rear Yard Setback

R1-5, R1-6, and R1-8 [20fea [ 8feat 20 feet
R1-10 30 feet § feet 20 feet —
R1-15 and R1-20 40 feet § foet 20 feet
R2 20 feet § feet 20 feet
Cand CR 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet
1-C 20 feet 20 feet 20 fect |
I 20 feet 20 feet 20 feet ]
12 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet |
IS and 13 100 feet 100 feet 100 feet

Setbacks for health care, child care, education, and crisis care uses

and facilities must be one mile from an IS or 13 zone boundary,
F 30 feet 15 feet 40 feet
A 50 feet 50 feet 30 feet
SPR-5, SPR-6, and SPR-§ 20 feet B 8 feet 20 feet
SPR10 30 feet 8 feet 20 feet ]
SPR135 and SPR20 40 feet 8 feet 20 feet

Page 4 of 4



Sections:

Chapter 17.16

R1 Residential Zones

17.16.015 Purpose and intent

17.16.020 Allowed uses

17.16.030 Uses subject to special use permit

17.16.040 Minimum floor area

17.16.050 Minimum parcel arca and width requirements
17.16.060 Setback requirements

17.15.065 Height of buildings and structures

17.60.070  Home oeeupations enterprises

17.16.080 Distance between buildings on the same lot

17.16.015 Purpose and Intent

The R1 residential zone is established to provide for the development of single-family
residential uses and to prohibit the development of uses that are incompatible and
detrimental to the residential environment.

17.16.020 Allowed Uses

In an R1 residential zone, land may be used and buildings and structures may be erected,
maintained and used if they are arranged. intended and designed for the following uses:

A.

B.

One single-family detached dwelling of permanent character in a permanent
location.

Accessory uses, buildings, and structures when they are incidental to a
permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and
comply with the regulations under section +742-048 17.12.045-046.
Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. These uses also include community gardens.

. Child-care Childcare where 4 or less children are carcd for.
. Storage parking for recreational vehicles, boats, utility trailers, horse trailers and

similar equipment owned by the occupant of the permitted principal residence,
provided that such items are stored entirely on private property.

17.16.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A,

B.

Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

The keeping of large domestic animals such as sheep, bovine, swine, llamas,
horses, goats, and other similar domestic farm animals under the ownership of
the resident occupant of the lot, provided that any combination of such animals
on any one lot does not exceed 2 for the first 20,000 square feet of lot arca.

Page 1 of 3



Additional animals may be allowed at the rate of 1 for each additional 10,000
square feet of lot area. There must be a minimum of 400 square feet per animal
of penned land area, which must be on less than 10 percent slope grade.

C. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

D. Bed and breakfast inns offering accommodations for up to 8 guests, subject to
providing one off-strect parking space for each sleeping room.

E. Short-term vacation rental of a single-family detached residential dwelling. This
provision does not apply to long-term rental and lease arrangements.

F. Child care facilities where 5 or more children will be cared for. Child care must
not exceed 15 children.

G. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

<H. Civic uses including:

I. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are

prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
Any-other-use-is-prohibited. These uses are prohibited for any other
purpose.

Crisis care use. temporary.

4. Education including elementary, middle. and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial, but not
including student residential accommodations.

5. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive
trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

a3

17.16.040 Minimum Floor Area
In the R1 residential zone, no detached single-family dwelling may have a floor area
of less than 800 square feet for a one-bedroom residence; 1,000 square feet for a two-
bedroom residence; and 1,200 square feet for a three or more bedroom residence.

17.16.050 Minimum Parcel Area and Width Requirements

Each R1 residential zone must have a minimum parcel area limit. The minimum parcel
area limit number is the suffix for the respective zone (e.g., “R1-57 is an R1 zone with
5,000 square feet minimum parcel area).-No-Ri-zone-mav-aHow-a-parcel-to-bedess-thin
5000 square feet-inarea: A parcel zoned R1 must be at least 5,000 square feet. The
area contained within the R1 zone parcel must include all easements, including easements
for access to an adjacent parcel. The minimum area and width for in cach R1 Residential

zone is indicated in the following table:

Minimum Width
Minimum Lot Area From Street
Zone and Suffix (square feet) (feet)
RI1-3 3,000 50
RI1-6 6,000 30
R1-8 8.000 60
RI1-10 10,000 60

Page 2 of 3




Minimum Width
Minimum Lot Area From Street
Zone and Suffix (square feet) (feet)
RI-15 15,000 80
R1-20 20,000 100

17.16.060 Setback Requirements

The required distance between the building and the property line is shown in the
following table. Setback requirements for accessory structures must comply with the
recttations-under section 4436048 17,12.045,

Zone and Suffix and Lot Front Setback Side Setback Rear Setback
Configuration
R1-5, R1-6, and R1-8 20 feet 8 feet 20 feet
RI-10 and R1-15 30 feet 8 feet 20 feet
R1-20 40 feet 8 feet 20 feet
Corner lot facing two Same as above | 10 feet street Same as above
streets side; 8 feet
non-sireet side

17.15.065 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building—manutactured-butding: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. The height of support structures
(towers) for radio, television, other communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is
regulated under chapter 17.12 General provisions.

17.60.070 Home oeccupations enterprises

Home ecetpations enterprise are regulated prestant-to-under chapter 17.12 General
provisions,

17.16.080 Distance Between Buildings on the Same Lot

There must be a minimum distance of 10 feet between a building used for dwelling
purposes and an accessory building. There must be a minimum distance of 6 feet
between accessory buildings.

Page 3 of 3



Chapter 17.20

R2 Multi-Family Residential Zone
Sections:

17.20.010 Applicability

17.20.015 Purpose and intent

17.20.020 Allowed uses

17.20.025 Uses subject to special use permit
17.20.030 Minimum parcel area

17.20.035 Home ocenpations enterprises
17.20.040 Setback requirements

17.20.050 Height of buildings and structures
17.20.060 Signs

17.20.015 Purpose and Intent

The R2 multi-family residential zone is established to provide for the development of
medium or higher density multi-family residential uses and to prohibit the development
of incompatible uses which are detrimental to the residential environment.

17.20.020 Allowed uscs
In an R2 multi-family residential zone, land may be used and buildings and structures
may be erected, maintained and used if they are arranged. intended and designed for the
following uses:
A. Onesinsle-tumih-detached-dwethng of permanent-characterina-permanent
jocation: Residential uses and buildings of permanent character and
permanent location including the following.

1. One single-family dwelling, detached. The parcel containing this use
must be at least 5,000 square feet.

2. One or more single-family dwellings, attached. This use includes
townhouses, rowhouses, twinhomes, and condominiums. There shall be
no more than one principal building per lot. There shall be no more than
| dwelling unit allowed for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area. A
special use permit may be granted for increased dwelling units per
square feet of gross lot area when the use is located within the Virginia
City Downtown District boundaries (see Chapter 17.30 Appendix A).
Findings for approval of the special use permit for increased density
shall, at a minimum, cite no significant adverse impacts to area
vehicular parking, circulation, and egress, and public health, safety,
comfort, convenience, and general welfare.

3. Multi-family dwellings. This use includes apartment buildings,
apartment complexes, duplexes, triplexes, and other configurations of
multi-family uses. There shall be no more than 1 dwelling unit allowed
for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area. A special use permit may be

Page 1 of 4



granted for increased dwelling units per square feet of gross lot area
when the use is located within the Virginia City Downtown District
boundaries (see Chapter 17.30 Appendix A). Findings for approval of
the special use permit for increased density shall, at a minimum, cite no
significant adverse impacts to area vehicular parking, circulation, and
egress, and public health, safety, comfort, convenience, and general
welfare.

4. Accessory uses, buildings, and structures if they are clearly incidental to
a permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use,
and comply with the regulations of section (B) below and section
17.12.045 Accessory buildings.

5. Manufactured and mobile home parks are prohibited.

B —Single-tamib-attached-dwelhnesofa-permanent-characterta-a-permanent
Jocation—inecluding row-houses. townhouses and condomintums-provided that
no-more-than--unitis-aHowed for-even-2000-square-feet-of-grosstot-ared:

C—Muti-famihy-dweHing-such-as-tow-rise-apariment-buildings: duplexes—teiplexes
and-fourplexes-provided-thatno-morethan-t- Hiis-aHowed-Horever-2:000
seppareteet-obgross-totare

B. Accessory uses, buildings, and structures when they are incidental to a
permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and
comply with the regulations under section 17.12.045, 1742845 Accessory
Examples of accessory uses incidental to the uses allowed in the R2 zone
include usesfor-muki-family-dwelhine buildines-mav-inchide-anaceessory self-
service or coin-operated laundry tacilityies, manager’s office, swimming pool
and related uses, recreation facilities and buildings, community center, and other
uses which customarily serve residents within a-the multi-family dwelling
property. Accessory uses may be permitted by the director but are subject to
special use permit requirement,

EManufactired-and-mobile-home patksareprohibiteds

F.C Child-care Childeare where 4 or less children are cared for. A special use
permit is required for more than 4 children.

G:D Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

H-E Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational education,
apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is
required for education institutions and academies that include student residential
accommodations.

17.20.025  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A. Boarding accommodations including apartment hotels, dormitories,
rooming and boarding houses, bed-and-breakfast inns, time-shares, and
short-term vacation rentals. A special use permit is not required for long-

Page 2 of 4



term rental and lease arrangements. Hotels, motels, hostels and other
transient commercial lodging uses are prohibited.

B. Congregational uses including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

B.C. Chitd-care Childeare facilities where 5 or more children will be cared for.
Child care must not exceed 15 children.

¢D. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

P:E. Civic uses including:

I. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.

These uses are prohibited for any other use.

Crisis care uses, lemporary.

Libraries, governmental offices, post offices. and community centers

Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive

trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

F. Education facilities that include student residential accommodations.

G. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

H. Multi-family and attached single-family dwellings with density exceeding 1
unit for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area (see Section 17.20.020).

I H. Bearding-accommodations-ineluding residential-apartmenthotels
dormitories—rooming-and-boarding-houses: bed-and-breakdast-innstime-shares:
and-sherterm-vacationrentals—A-speciahuse pesmitis-notrequiredHor-tong-
rerm-rental-and-Jease-arrangements-Hotelsmetels-hostels-and-other- transient

17.20.030 Minimum Parcel Area

tach The lot or parcel must have a minimum area of 8.000 square feet. The minimum
gross lot area per dwelling unit or suite is 2,000 square feet, and the maximum number of
units allowed on any one lot or parcel is determined by dividing the total area by 2,000.

17.20.035 Home Oceuputions Enterprises

Home eccupations enterprises are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General
provisions.

17.20.040 Setback Requirements

The minimum distance between a building and the property line is indicated in the
following table. Setback requirements for accessory structures must comply with the
regulations under section +7+2-048 17.12.045.

bJ

h e e

20-feet 8-feet 20-feet
texeept-street-side-yvards-must
be 20 -feety
Lot Configuration Front Setback | Side Setback Rear Setback

Page 3 of 4



Regular lot 20 feet § feet 20 feet l

Corner lot facing two 20 feet 20 feet street 20 feet

streets side; § feet [
non-street side |

17.20.050 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, manutaetured-bulding: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 33 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television, other
communication antenna, and wind energy turbine support structures are regulated by
chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.20.060 Signs
Signs associated with multi-family residential uses must comply with the regulations
under chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 4 of 4



Chapter 17.24

Agricultural Zone

Sections:

17.24.015 Purpose and intent

17.24.020 Allowed uses

17.24.020 Uses subject to special use permit
17.24.030 Minimal parcel arca

17.24.040 Setback requirements

17.24.050 Height of buildings and structures

17.24.015 Purpose and Intent

The =A™= A agricultural zone is intended to protect and preserve areas of prime
agricultural soils for continued agricultural and agriculturally oriented uses. These areas
consist of the most agriculturally productive soils. Their loss cannot be readily
compensated, since these soils are relatively scarce, particularly on the natural level, and
poorer soils require more capital energy and nutrients to provide equal productivity.

17.24.020 Allowed uses
The following uses are allowed in the A agricultural zone:

A. + One single-family detached dwelling of a permanent nature in a permanent
location.

B. General agricultural uses.

C. Agricultural animal production.

D. Custom animal processing.

. Agricultural entertainment and commercial uses.

F. The growing or production of trees, shrubs, bushes, sod, and other plants for
nursery stock, off-site milling and processing, off-site commercial sale, and
other uses.

G. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

H. Seasonal holiday sales and uses.

I. Harvesting, curing, processing, packaging and storage incidental to the principal
permitted uses on the premises and shipping of agricultural products produced
on the premises.

J. The keeping of bees for agricultural purposes when bechives are setback at
minimum of 200 feet from CR. E, and-R, and SPR zones and occupied
residential uses within the premises, and 50 feet from any shared access
casement or public right-of-way.

Page 1 of 4



K. Veterinary service and shelters for large and small animal.

L. Equestrian establishments, including stables and riding academies, rodeos and
equestrian events.

M. Farm machinery equipment sales and services.
N. Chifd-eare Childcare of 4 or less children,

0. Home oceupations enterprises are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General
provisions.

P. Two signs of 32 square feet each used only to advertise the agricultural products
produced or sold on the premises or identifying the premises or the occupants.

Q. Accessory use, buildings, and structures incidental o the-perntitted-use:
allowed agriculture uses, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a-permitted
the allowed agriculture uses, and compliant with the-regalationsunder section
1742048 17.12.045-046. A special use permit is required for accessory
structures-dwellings. Accessory dwellings may include those listed in section
17.12.046, and may include those used to house or provide boarding
accommodations to laborers and other persons directly associated with the
permitted agricultural use. A principal building is not required for accessory
structures incidental to allowed agriculture uses on the premises; however,
a principal single-family residential dwelling is required for an accessory
dwelling to be approved. The following uses are found to be customary to the
permitted-allowed agriculture uses. inthe-agricuturalzone:

1. Uses accessory to the principal residence, including private garages, garden
houses. playhouses, greenhouses, enclosed swimming pools, tool sheds,
storage sheds, well houses, hobby shops, and similar buildings.

2]

Uses accessory to the general agricultural use including barns, grain silos,
water towers, and storage facilities for products, machinery and cquipment
directly related to the agricultural uses taking place on the immediate
premises.,

3. Buildings used for the confinement or protection of animals, animal feed, and
agricultural commodities.

4. Private riding arenas and stables.

5. Temporary stands for selling goods and products produced on-site, provided
that the stands are elearhy temporary, tess-than 200 square feet Hrarea or
less, located on the premises in which the products sold were raised or
grown, no less than 20 feet from a public right-of-way, and are placed with
the premises no more than 15 days within a | year period.

17.24.025 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special usc permit
as provided for by chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.
A. Industrial agricultural uses including intensive agricultural uses, slaughter
houses, agricultural packing and processing. stockyards, and auction facilities. A

Page 2 of 4



minimum of 40 acres is required. Industrial agricultural uses may be located no
closer than 500 feet to a CR, R, or E zone and 50 feet from a parcel or lot
boundary.

B. Agricultural research.

C. Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlorss.

D. Dude or guest ranchess.

E. Accessory structures dwellings used to house or provide boarding
accommodations to laborers and other persons directly associated with the
agricultural use.

=, Golf courses, driving ranges, and-miniature-sol and country clubs.

G. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges.
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

H. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uses.

I-Recreational-vehiele parks-and-recreational resorts,

J. Residential and non-residential facilities for pediatric and adolescent
rehabilitation, family wellness, and therapy that is fully integrated with
agricultural, equestrian, and other similar type activities and uses.

K. Temporary (less than 1 vear) concrete and asphalt batch plants when incidental
1o an on-site construction project.

L. The keeping. maintenance, display, or possession of one or more wild animals.

M. Pet cemeteries.

N, Commercial kennels. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Q. Campgrounds, but not reereational vehicle parks.

P. Open storage.

PQ. Childcare Childeare facilitics where five 5 or more children will be cared

for. Child-eare Childeare must not exceed 15 children.

@-R. Watchman's dwelling, whether permanent or temporary regulated under

section 17.12.046.

S. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

—

17.24.030 Minimal Parcel Area

Parcels zoned “A™ agricultural must be re-less-than-at least 3 acres, and-must-not-be
alowed to-be reduced to-less-than-theminimum-grea-reqirred-by-this-chapter:

17.24.040 Setback Requirements

Required setbacks for the primary principal residential dwelling must-be are the
minimum setbacks of the abutting zone, but no less than 10 feet. Accessory strueties:
buildings, including laborer boarding accommodations, must have-a-ripimtim-setback
distance-of be sethack a minimum of 100 feet to-from any property line. The required
setback for other rooming and boarding accommodations, such as bed and breakfast inns
and dude ranches allowable by this chapter, must be are the minimum setbacks of the
abutting zone, but no less than 20 feet, unless more stringent setback requirements are
imposed as a condition of the special use permit.

Page 3 of 4



17.24.050 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, manwfactired-building: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of three stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television, other
communication antenna, and wind energy turbine support structures are regulated by
chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

Page 4 of 4



Chapter 17.28

C Commercial Zone
Sections:

17.28.010 Applicability

17.28.015 Purpose and intent

17.30.020 Allowed uses

17.28.030 Uses subject to special use permit
17.28.040 Height and width of buildings and structure
17.28.050 Setback requirements

17.28.010 Applicability

The provisions under this chapter apply to the C commercial zone. Uses in the CR
commercial-residential zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-residential zone
and uses in the IC Industrial-commercial zone are regulated by chapter 17.39
Industrial-commercial zone.

17.28.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the C commercial zone is to provide suitable areas within the county
where commercial uses and activities may be established and maintained to promote
efficiency by grouping compatible land uses, and to protect the residential areas from
adverse impacts that may be associated with commercial uses.

17.28.020 Allowed Uses

The following uses are allowed in the C commercial zone unless stated otherwise:
A. Retail sales and shopping centers including:
|. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and
shopping centers, and super regional stores and shopping centers.
2. Seasonal holiday sales and uses.
3. Seasonal farmers markets.
B. Commercial offices and financial institutions:

1. Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants,
insurance, employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer
representatives, newspapers, sccretarial services, associations and other
similar office uses and activities.

2. Building maintenance and services,

3. Business offices and professional buildings.

4. Convention and meeting facilities.

C. Personal services:

1. Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons,
tailors, massage establishments, and similar type uses.

2. Wedding chapels and travel agencies.

Child-eare Childcare where 4 or less children are cared for. A special use

el

Page 10f §



D.

Hi

permit is required for more than 4 children.
4. Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.
Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and break[ast
inns, time shares, and vacation rentals, and other transient commercial
lodging.

. Tourist and visitor services:

I. Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners,
fast-food, coffee shops, and coffee houses, and soda-fountains:; and saloons,
and-taverns, and-micro-breveries brew-pubs, micro-breweries, and micro-
wineries with on- and off-site sales. A special use permit is required for
micro-distilleries.

2. Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on
foot, gold panning, and museums.

3. Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony
rides, and carriage and stagecoach rides.

. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming

(when incidental to a primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or
video machines), golf driving ranges, miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs
and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and saunas, tennis courts,
permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, permanent indoor and seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and
other similar recreational uses and activitics.

. Civic uses:

I. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other wses purpose.

3. Crisis care use, temporary.

4. Libraries and cultural services. governmental offices, post offices,
community centers, and courts of law.

5. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required for education institutions and academies that
include student residential accommodations,

6. Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks,
walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and
information kiosks.

7. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers,
multi-modal transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail
infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

8. Indoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals.

General services:

I. Catering. equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general contractors

offices, heavy and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores. manufactured

Page 2 of 5



home sales and service, pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops,
upholstery shops, video rentals, and other similar general services uses and
activities.

2. Uses involving the indoor discharge of fircarms.

3. Uses involving indoor archery.

I. Automotive servicés including washing and detailing (manual hand-washing,
coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(but not body repair and painting), sales, and rental.

J. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

K. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

l.. Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

M. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a
permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in
conformance with section +7:42.648 17.12.045.

N. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board with action
by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses permitted within the
zZone.,

17.28.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

A= Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to

securing a special use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative

provisions.

LA, Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

2.B. Buildings and structures constructed for permitted uses as listed in section
17.28.020 that will exceed 45 feet in height, or that will be less than 25 feet
in width.

3. C Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total
floor area where slots and/or video machines are located. where there are
more than 15 slots and/or video machines, and where other forms of
gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other similar
activities may take place.

4:D. Manufactured home sales lots,

5., Propane sales and storage.

6:F. Firewood sales and storage.
7.G. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally,

uses under this subsection must comply with the regulations under title 5
Business licenses, and be located no closer than 1,000 feet from a public or
private school, religious institution, public building or facility. or another
permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and
300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

$-H. Public utility service yards, buildings, clectric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uses.

9.1. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

Page 3 of 5



HiJ. Billboards as regulated pursuant to Chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

K. The keeping of 7 § or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than
12 weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

42.L. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

+3.M. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational
vehicle, boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

14.N. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services,
convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum
of care facilities for seniors, and group care services.

45. 0. Crisis care uses and facilities, permanent,

+6-P. Open-air markets, flea-markets, and similar outdoor venues for the sale of
goods, not including farmers markets featuring exclusively the sale of edible
and items made from edible products.

}17.Q). Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry
manufacturing and refining, upholstery shops, monument works, and similar
usces.

1$.R. Outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for small and large animals.

19.8. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

20.T. Display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside
of a permanent building, except farmer’s markets pursuant to this chapter and
permitted temporary uses. The sale and display of merchandise and other
items, and business that is conducted on the public right-of-way and between
the public travelled way and the building is prohibited pursuant 17.12
General provisions.

21.U. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers,
and heavy cquipment associated with a commercial building contractor or
business when not directly associated with a construction project on the
premises.

22V, Uses involving the outdoor discharge of fircarms.

23:W, Uses involving outdoor archery.

24-X. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and
arcnas, and similar uses.

25Y. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as
thrill and theme rides, roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession
booths.

26.7. Facilitics and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development
and production of movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

27.AA. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors,
and other motorized vehicles.

28.BB. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities
and uses.

20.CC, Child care of more than 4 children.

30.DD. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding
accommodations.

34-EE. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permancnt

structure.

Page 4 of §



32.FF. Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and
funeral parlors.

33:GG. Permanent outdoor theatres and other uses involving the outdoor
discharge of firearms
HH. Micro-distilleries
I1, Open storage.

34.JJ. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance,
display, or possession of one or more wild animals.

15 KK. Retail establishments featuring “adult” material not exceeding 5 percent
or 200 square-feet, whichever is less, of the retail floor area of the business
that is identified for display, sale, lcase, or rental of books, merchandise.
periodicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded
video devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia which
are distinguished or characterized by the emphasis on matter depicting,
describing, or relating to “specific sexual activities™ and *“specific anatomical
arcas”. The merchandise must only be available for sale or lease for private
use by the purchaser or lessce off the premises of the business. The
merchandise must be located within a fully enclosed room which is entirely
segregated from the remaining floor area of the business and the room’s
entrance must be screened from view of the remaining floor area. Retail
establishments featuring the above material in excess of the allowable retail
floor area are prohibited.

LL. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

17.28.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manwfactured-buitding, manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of three stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television, other
communication antenna, and wind energy turbine support structures are regulated by
chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.28.050 Setback Requirements
A-front-setback-or-side-setback-s-notrequired-exceptwherevera-building-isfocated-on-a
lot-adiacentto-un-Ri-R2Z-orb-zone boundary-a-sidesethack-otnot Hess-than-ten-feeton
ten-foetis-reqtiired-behind-every-building: Front and side sethacks for commercial uses
are 0 (zero) feet unless the use abuts an E or R zone or a permitted detached single-
family residential use in other zones. When the commercial use or structure abuts
an I or R zone or a detached single-family residential use in other zoncs, the
abutting side minimum setback distance is 8 feet, and the front minimum sethback is
20 feet or a distance that equals that of the side setback of the abutting single-family
residential use, The minimum rear setback is 10 feet.

Page 50f 5



Chapter 17.30

CR Commercial Residential Zone
Sections:

17.30.010 Applicability

17.30.015 Purpose and intent

17.30.020 Allowed uses

17.30.030 Uses subject to special use permit

17.30.040 Height and width of buildings and structures
17.30.050 Setback requirements

17.30.060 Use density and parcel width

Appendix A — Virginia City Downtown District boundaries

17.30.010  Applicability

The provisions under this chapter apply to the CR commercial-residential zone. Uses in
the C commercial zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 commercial zone, and uses in the
IC industrial-commercial zone are regulated by chapter 17.39 industrial-
commercial zone.

17.30.015 Purpose and Intent

The commercial-residential zone is intended to serve as a community focal point and
provided-for a center of mixed uses including single-family and multi-family residences
which are integrated with commercial businesses, culture and entertainment amenities,
and uses related to tourism. It is also intended to become a transportation center in the
form of a destination for vehicular, public transit, and rail traffic supporting all allowable
uses. In general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and
provides an integrated and attractive environment for visitors and residents. It is intended
to be an area of high intensity uses in which a full range of public facilities (including
water, sewer, schools, law enforcement, fire protection, etc.) will generally be focused in
accordance with the county master plan and connected to the immediate surrounding
residential uses.

17.30.020 Allowed uses
The following uses are allowed in the CR commercial-residential zone unless stated
otherwise:
A. Retail uses and shopping centers:
1. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery
stores; and neighborhood stores and shopping centers.

2. Seasonal holiday sales and use.

. Seasonal farmers markets.

4. The display, sale, lease, or rental of “adult” material is prohibited. Adult
material includes books, merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks
including DVDs and other recorded video devices, computer disks,

el

Page 1 of 17



instruments, devices or paraphernalia which are distinguished or
characterized by the emphasis on matter depicting, describing, or relating (o
“specific sexual activities™ and “specific anatomical areas™.

B. Commercial offices and financial institutions:

Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants.
insurance, employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer
representatives, newspapers, secretarial services, associations and other
similar office uses and activities.

. Building maintenance and services.
. Business offices and professional buildings.

. Convention and meeting facilities.

C. Personal Services:

L.

b2

6.

Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons,
tailors, massage establishments, and similar type uses.

. Wedding chapels and travel agencies. A special use permit is required for
cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

Childeare Childeare where 4 or less children are cared for. A special use
permit is required for more than 4 children.

. Laundromats.

Laundry and dry cleaning pick-up service. A special use permit is required
for personal dry cleaning services.

Indoor veterinary service for small animals.

M&Mﬂmm&aﬂmﬂ%ﬁ&@ﬁﬁ%m%hm&%ﬂ%&ﬁ

commercial-transient-tses:

E. Tourist and visitor services:

1

b2

el

. Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners,

fast-food, coffee shops, and coffee houses, and soda-fountains:; and saloons,

and-taverns, and-micro-breweries brew-pubs, micro-breweries, and micro-

wineries with on- and off-site sales. A special use permit is required for

micro-distilleries.

Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on

foot, gold panning, and commercial-tHor-prehi-muscums.

. Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony
rides, and carriage and stagecoach rides.

F. Recreation including bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades,
gaming (when incidental to a primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot
and/or video machines), golf driving ranges, miniature golf, country clubs,

Page 2 of 17



H.

health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and saunas, tennis
courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, permanent indoor and scasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and
other similar recreational uses and activities.

. Civic uses:

1. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sherift. Jails are
prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other use-purpose.

. Crisis care uses, temporary.

fad

4. Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices,
community centers, and courts of law.

5. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required for education institutions and academies that
include student residential and boarding accommodations.

6. Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks,
walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and
information kiosks.

7. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers,
multi-modal transit hubs, transportation garages and storage, railroad and
light rail infrastructures, train tnnels, and railroad switchyards and
turntables.

General services:

1. Catering, equipment and appliance repair. gun repair, general contractors
offices, heavy and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, pawn brokers,
pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops. video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activitics. Businesses featuring “adult
material” are prohibited.

2. Uses involving the indoor discharge of firearms.

-

3. Uses involving indoor and outdoor archery.

I. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,

recreational and social clubs. labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the

permitted uses, Uses also include community gardens.

Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast
inns, short-term vacation rentals, time shares, apartment hotels, and other
commercial transient commercial lodging vses.

Page 3 of 17



L

L

Residential uses and buildings of permanent character and permanent
location asHetows: including the following.

I. One single-family dwelling. detached. The parcel containing this use must
be at least 5,000 square feet. of pesmanent-chiracter--periaient
fecation:

2. One or more single-family dwellings, attached. oFa-permanent-character-ti-a
permanenttocation-This use includes townhouses and, rowhouses,
twinhomes, and condominiums. There shall be no more than one
principal building per lot. There shall be no more than 1 dwelling unit
allowed for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area except as provided
by section 17.30.050.-but-rot tow-houses: provided-thatno more-than-—t-unit
is-aHowedHorevery 2000 squareteet ol eross-totarea:

Multi-family dwellings. such-as-low-rise-apartment-buildings-dupleses;
triplexes-and-fourplexes: This use includes apartment buildings,
apartment complexes, duplexes, triplexes, and other configurations of
multi-family uses except as provided by section 17.30.050. provided-that
no-more-thah--uni-s-alowed foe-every-2.000square-feet ef-gross-lotarea:

[PF]

4. Accessory uses, buildings, and structures if they are clearly incidental to a
permitted residential use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a
permitted use, and comply with the regulations of section +7-+2:6438
17.12.043-046.

5. Manufactured and mobile home parks are prohibited.

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board with action

by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses permitted within the
Zone.

17.30.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special
use permit as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions:

A. Buildings and structures exceeding 45 feet in height or less than 25 feet in

B.
C:

width.
Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

Regional stores and shopping centers and super regional stores and shopping
centers.

. Automotive washing and detailing using coin-operated and production line

methods.

I, Automotive services including service and fucling stations, repair, sales, and

rentals.

*, Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor

arca where slots and/or video machines are Jocated, where there are more than
15 slots or video machines, and where other forms of gambling such as poker,
craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other similar activitics may take place.

Page 4 of 17



G.
H.

Golf courses.

Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and
arenas, and similar uses,

1. Outdoor veterinary service for small animals.

J. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and

K.

theme rides, roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and
production of movies, film. television, and similar visual media.

. Fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry. Uses under this

subsection must comply with the requirements under title 5 Business licenses,
and be located no closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school,
religious institution, public building or facility, or another permitted fortune
teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and 300 feet from any
E, R, or SPR zone.

. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and

other motorized vehicles.

. Facilities for the use of radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and

aircraft,

. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, convalescent

services (but not civic convalescent and group care serviee), continuum of care
facilities for seniors, and group care services.

Crisis care uses and facilities, permanent.

Q. Education facilities which include student residential and boarding

W.

. Display, sale, barter, or trade of items associated with a business outside ofa

accommodations.

. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12

weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Commercial kennels when entirely indoors. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

" Mini-warchouses and storage facilities for rent, including recreational vehicle,

boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and

heavy equipment associated with a commercial building contractor or business
when not directly associated with a construction project on the premises.

. Open-air markets, flea-markets, and similar outdoor venues for the sale of

goods. A special use permit is not required for farmers markets featuring the
sale of edible and items made of edible products.

Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

permanent building, except farmer’s markets pursuant to this chapter and
permitted temporary uses. The sale and display of merchandise and other items,
and business that is conducted on the public right-of-way and between the

Page 5 of 17



public travelled way and the building is prohibited pursuant 17.12 General
provisions.

Y. Personal dry cleaning.
Z. Micro-distilleries.

ZAA. Child-care Childeare facilities where five 5 or more children will be cared
for. Chitd-eare Childeare must not exceed 15 children.,

AABB. Cemeteries, columbariums. crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and
funeral parlors.

BBCC. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent
structure.

€€DD. Uses involving the outdoor discharge of firearms.
EE. Open Storage.

BBFF. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display,
or possession of one or more wild animals.

GG. Multi-family and attached single-family dwellings with density exceeding
1 unit for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area (see Section 17.30.020).
HH. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

17.30.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building-manutactured-butding—manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 45 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys or flagpoles. The height of support structures (towers) for radio,
television, other communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is regulated under
chapter 17.12.044 Generalprevisions: Height of buildings and structures.

The reguired-distance betwoen-butktnesand-the-propertv-Hne-ds-as-folows:
r\,—ér'elm&lﬁetiﬂmkﬁ—.m\f%m—ymﬁ—m;ﬁide--;\q'ﬂ'htsetbac%%sm—»&—wquiwé—ikw«smﬁmial

HSE-OF-Strnetires-tHHessH-abuts-an-t-or Rzone-ora-permitted-detached-single-
4%&%%4!%‘“@5:-»rlhtql‘l}}e-ﬁﬂmwﬁwm
an-b-orRzone-or-a-detached sinale-fumihyresidential-use-the-abutting-side-yard
sethack-distance-must-be-po-tessthan-S-feet—and-the-front-yard sethack-nrust-be-Ro
less-than-20-feetor-a-distance-that equals that o the side-yard-abutting-detached
restdentialuse-When-the commercii buse-o1-Stiucty F&Mrd-d@hk—l%‘d-'ﬂﬂt‘%-
faberesidentialuse-en-2sides—the frontyard sethack-srea-must-be-no-tessthan-is
20-feer-or-the-average of the setback-distances-of-both side-vard-abutting-resident et
uses—A-variznceforreducedsetback reguirementsinay- be-granted pursuantio
chapter 1103 Administrative-provisions:

17.30.050 Setback Requirements

The following are the required setback distances for uses in the CR zone. For the

purposes of this section, the Virginia City Downtown District means all parcels

delineated in Appendix A. Setback distances must also comply with section

Page 6 of 17



17.12.050 Visibility at intersections.

A. Commercial uses

1.

2.

-

3

Virginia City Downtown District. Front and side setbacks for
commercial uses are 0 feet. However, if the use abuts an E or R zone, or
a permitted detached single-family residential use in other non-CR
zones, the abutting minimum side setback is 8 feet, and the front
minimum setback is 20 feet. The required rear sethack is 10 feet.

Other areas zoned CR. Front and side setbacks for commercial uses are
the same as for those shown in subsection (1) above (i.e., zero feet).
However, if the parcel in which a new commercial building is to be
developed abuts on one or both side(s) a parcel(s) containing an existing
permitted detached single-family dwelling, the front setback for the new
commercial building shall be 20 or more feet, or shall be the average
distance between the front outside wall (excluding porches and awnings)
of the existing detached single-family residential dwelling(s) and the
front property line (see Figure 30.1), or otherwise beyond that average
distance. If the existing neighboring single-family residential dwelling is
sethback more than 20 feet from the front property line, the required 20
foot setback, not the actual structure distance, shall be the determining
point for establishing the average for the new commercial structure.

Specialsetbaek-requirements-in-Gold-Hill: State Route 342 Setbacks in
Gold Hill. Except under the following circumstances, setback distances must
meet the requirements in subsections 1 and 2 above,

a. For buildings located between the Virginia City/Gold Hill city limits
line and Sky Lane in Gold Hill, the minimum setback distance
between the building and State Route 342 is 5 feet. This requirement
applies to all properties abutting State Route 342.

b. For buildings located between Sky Lane and the Storey/Lyon
County boundary, the minimum setback distance between the
building and State Route 342 is 20 feet. This requirement applies to
all properties abutting State Route 342.

B. Residential uses

1. Virginia City Downtown District

a. Single-Family Dwelling, Detached. Setbacks are: front, 0 feet;
side, 0 feet; and rear, 10 feet. There shall be no primary
emergency egress doors or windows placed on the building side
walls, unless the subject side walls, doors, and windows are
setback a minimum of 5 feet from the side lot line.*

b. Single-Family and Multi-Family Dwelling, Attached. Setback
distances are: front, 0 feet; side, 0 feet (between each dwelling
unit and between the building and property line); and rear, 10
feet. There shall be no primary emergency egress doors or
windows placed on the building side walls, unless the subject

Page 7 of 17



side walls, doors, and windows are sethack a minimum of 5 feet
from the side lot line.®

*Note: Primary emergency egress doors and windows are those which
provide the only required emergency egress pursuant to currently
adopted International Fire Codes (with amendments); National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA); or specific agencies having jurisdictional
requirements. Nothing in this ordinance may replace, amend, or
supersede the currently adopted fire codes.

2. Other areas zoned CR. Except for parcels deseribed in section (1) above,
the required setback distances for multi-family residential buildings
containing no commercial use, and single-family attached and detached
residential buildings are: front, 20 feet: side, 8 feet (except 0 feet between
cach attached dwelling unit); and rear, 20 feet. A corner lot abutting two
streets shall have a 10 foot side setback for the side abutting the street.

—Residentinl-usesetbaeks—Residentialsirtctures-and-tses-are-required-to-have-a-tront
yerd setback-distanceoino-less-than20-feet-u-side-vard-distance-oi-nodess-than-S-teek
and-a-rearvard-distance-oi no-less-than20-leet-between-the principal-butlding-and-the
property-tine—Fheside-vard-setback-distancerequirementisH-feet-when-abutting-a
pubhicriohi-alw i

| Parcel boundary
| Exismng residensal
| st
|
|
Esners reisgenna New comwsrtinl v
uar
Y
20
15 |
| |
i o B v L
! : T T i T 7 i T
RN S SN SN SRS SRS (SO, (R, — P b

Front Street

Figure 30.1: The figure shows the front setback distance for the new use abutting existing uses to be the
average of the front sctback distance of the existing uses.

Page 8 of 17



17.30.060 Use Density and Parcel Width
The density for commercial and residential uses is regulated as follows. Uses must also
comply with setback and minimum parking area requirements in this chapter and
chapter 17.12 General provisions,
A. Commercial use. Bachdotorparcelto-be-developed-exclusively-with-a

Ltm}iﬁeﬂ-ml-tﬁﬁ—mfh{*he-ﬂﬂ—k}%}hdﬂ 2.000-sguare-feet-in-area—Hhe-use-must
Hrirt-parking-arearequirements--chapter
4—7—1 2~€:eﬂem4—pm»+~rmns—'l‘hc parcel must be at least 2,000 square feet and
at least 25 feet in width (the side facing the street). There shall be at least
one parking space provided for cach transient commercial lodging unit.

B—Residentiakuse—EachotorparceHo-be developed-exclusiveh-with-a-single-
mrm%—re*ﬁélemm%—me—eaceeﬁl-nmmmumed home-parks-Hrst-conforr-to
M- otarea—setback-area—and-building size-requirements-in-chupter+7-+6
M#%MWH%MMHMM Hses-without combined-commerecial-usesust
comph-with-the requirementsunder chapter +7:20-R2- Multi-familyresidential
e

C-Commereialresidentialuse—+ach-lot-orparcel to-be-developed-vith-acombined
conrmercht-andresidential-use sinele-or-multi-ramih-musthave-a-mbrimum
area-of 2.000-squarefeet-per-dwelhing it or-suite-and the-commereial-tre-niust
encompuss-at-teast 000 square feet-orone-third-of-the-buHding s-gross Hoor
area—heminimumntot-or-parcel-area-must-be-potess-thar-2:000-square-teet-Hor
&H-\—addmm&akéwﬁm‘&wiﬁ suite—Fhe-maximem-pumber-af-units-aHowed

~determined-by-dividing-thetotaHotarea-by-2:000:

D-Manulactured- }kmw-pd%'nu% be-Jocated-on-a-tot-or parcel-havinga-minimum
area-of-Haere-ond-may-havea-maximum-densii-ofHspacefor each—+2:000
squire-feetoi-otared

B. Residential use. Commercinl-residential use:

1. Single-family dwelling, detached. The parcel containing this use must be
at least 5,000 square feet.

2

Single-family dwellings, attached. There shall be no more than 1 dwelling
unit allowed for every 2,000 square feet of gross lot area excepl as
provided in section 4 below.

Multi-family dwellings such as apartment buildings, duplexes, triplexes, and
fourplexes. There shall be no more than 1 dwelling unit allowed for every
2,000 square feet of gross lot area except as provided in section 4 below.
provided-thatne-merethan-+ unitis-aHowed-tor-every-2:000square-feet ot
grens-tot-drea:

e

4 Except for detached single-family residential uses, a special use permit
may be granted for inereased dwelling units per square feet of gross lot
area when the use is located within the Virginia City Downtown District
boundaries (see Appendix A). Findings for approval of the special usc
permit for increased density shall, at a minimum, cite no significant
adverse impacts to area vehicular parking, circulation, and egress, and
public health, safety, comfort, convenience, and general welfare.

Page 9 of 17



L1 10 p0) obeyd

BN IBIFE PUR 3B D  SI0IEIA DA

Yuou ‘wons3siann
wWang Hppoe g

(232 *s&aaansas ‘spaap ‘sdew jrpd ‘sdew 2u0z 221008 JANEILOYINE JO JUIWIIB[AIT B SE PINISUOD
3 10U PINOYS PUE HoLEIUIRP A244ns Juasdadal jou saop pue Arwixoadde St AAO[IG UMOYS UONBWIOJUI Y ] "PURO) 21k SISN-PIXIW PUE A)SUIP-IYB1Y
21403513 Jo usaed B YoM u1 “ao[aq umoys spdaed | sapnpul (A0[aq usoYs U] A1RpUnog MojaK apIsul BALE) LIDLUSIQ umojimoq K3 BB, 3 1)

SaLIEpuUNOg LIS umoumo( A1) eruisna 1y xipuaddy



L1 10 501 ebed

12302y

.

SIOUSLA D

A




L1 Jo 901 abed




L} 10 L0} ebed

eRUAPISIT O
b 1

j:3 5 al paAlofje 3 o} uw.ﬁam, i

7 u

uw.ﬁaww. SHIRQISS  FENUIPISIT OIIZ ONF

PR eﬁ:..wm 28
oy | dew | Anamopid

& [t l-n.. = X ey T L :
el uoiu)sa(ae pue “asnoy eladg s tadig ‘asnomano) punose mota dn-asoj).

P



L1 Jo 80} abed




L1 10 601 obed

[00Ydg AmjusiuR]q Ryde[e

HH




L1 Jo 011 8bed




L1 j0 L1} abed

b

. SUOL D




Sections:

17.32.015
17.32.020
17.22.025
17.32.030
17.32.040
17.32.041
17.32.050
17.32.060

17.32.015

Chapter 17.32

F Forestry Zone

Purpose and intent

Uses subject to special use permit
Accessory uses and structures
Minimum parcel area requirements
Off-street parking

Setback requirements

Height of buildings and structures
Generator restrictions

Purpose and Intent

The F forestry zone is established to protect areas having important environmental
qualities in the county from unnecessary degradation and to provide areas of very low
density residential and other uses.

17.32.020

Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

The following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit as provided
for in Chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

A. One single family detached dwelling of permanent character and location.

B. General agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, agricultural
entertainment, accessory structures related to the agricultural use, and custom
animal processing.

C. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

D. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

E. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 40 acres is required.

F. Civic uses including:

Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
Any other use is prohibited.

Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. Student
residential and boarding accommodations are prohibited.

Page 10f 3



4. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive
trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

G. Buildings for the sale and display of products grown or raised on-site.

H. Recreational uses and buildings, including dude or guest ranches, tennis, golf
courses, driving ranges, miniature golf, and country clubs.

I. Cemeteries.

J. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

K. Highway and public utility maintenance camps.

L. Home oceupations enterprises as regulated by chapter 17.12 General
provisions.

M. Mining and extraction as regulated by chapter 17.92 Mineral exploration,
mining, and extraction, and aggregate facilities.

N. Milling and processing related to mining.

O. Commercial energy production use types such as geothermal, hydrological,
solar, wind, and other similar low-impact renewable energy generation systems.
Commercial energy production from combustion of fossil fuels and other type
fuels or other similar power generation systems is prohibited.

P. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uses.

Q. Temporary (less than | year) concrete plants and asphalt batch plants when
clearly incidental to an on-site construction project.

R, Watershed protection-waler storase-reservois—pipelines—irigation-canaland

ditehes: Natural resources river restoration regulated under section
17.12.100.

S. Growing and preservation of trees and nursery stock.

T. Hunting, fishing and skiing lodges wildlife refuges, game farms and public
campgrounds.

U. The keeping of bees for agricultural purposes when beehives are setback at
minimum of 200 feet from CR. E, R, and SPR zones and occupied
residential uses within the premises, and 50 feet from any shared access
casement or public right-of-way.

17.32.025 Accessory Uses and Structures

Accessory uses, buildings, and structures are considered a permitted use if they are
clearly incidental to another permitted use, that being a use which has been approved by a
special use permit. The provisions of section +7+2:648 17.12,045-046 also apply to
accessory structures. A principal building is not required for an accessory structure

Page 2 of 3



incidental to the allowed uses on the premises; however, a principal single-family
residential dwelling is required for an accessory dwelling to be approved.

17.32.030 Minimum Parcel Area Requirements
A minimum area of 40 acres is required for a parcel of land.

17.32.040 Off-street parking
Off-street parking must be sufficient to handle the automobile and other vehicular
parking demands of the use.

17.32.041 Setback Requirements
A-structure-or-aceesson-buildina-may-not-bedoecated-closerthan 30-feet-to-the-From
properi-tne—di-feetto-therearpropertv-HneroH-feetto-thevide-property-Hae:
Minimum building setbacks in the F zone are: front, 30 feet; rear, 40 feet; and side,
30 feet,

17.32.050 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, manutactured-building: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of three stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television, other
communication antenna, and wind energy turbine support structures are regulated by
chapter 17.12,044, Height of buildings and structures.

7.32.060  Generator Restrictions

[nstallation of a generator as a power source is not permitted unless the generator is
muffled and installed in a sound-insulated building sufficient in design to maintain
compliance with noise regulations in chapter 8.04 of the county code. Generators that are
used solely for power in emergencies or power outages need not be muffled or in a
sound-insulated building.

Page 3 of 3



Chapter 17.34

I1 Light Industrial Zone

Sections:

17.34.015 Purpose and intent

17.34.020 Allowed uses

17.34.030 Uses subject to special use permit
17.34.040 Minimum parcel area

17.34.050 Setback requirements

17.34.060 Loading area

17.34.070 Height of buildings and structures

17.34.015 Purpose and Intent

The 11 light industrial zone is intended to provide areas for the development and .
operation of industrial uses that do not create or cause fumes, odor, smoke, gas, noise,
vibrations, or other impacts which are or may be detrimental to abutting propertics and
land uses.

17.34.020 Allowed Uses

The following uses are allowed in the 11 light industrial zone:
A. Ten percent of the total area in the light industrial zone as designated in the

B.

county master plan may be utilized for commercial use. A site plan must be
approved by the community-development-building department. No special use
permit is required for commercial uses in the [1 zone, but the provisions under
chapter 17.28 apply to commercial uses in an 1 zone.

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process
that uses already manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a
product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer
and electronic parts, but not including such operations as paper, sawmills,
milling, steel, iron or other metal works, rolling mills, or any manufacturing
uses involving primary production of commodities of raw material.

Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry,
manufacturing and refining, upholstery shops, monument works, welding shops,
and similar uses.

. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service

shops, carpet cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.
Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal
production, custom animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural
supplies sales, and agricultural entertainment and commercial uses.

F. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the

permitted uses. These uses also include community gardens.

G. Civic uses including:

1. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

Page 1 of 4



ZZ

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other use purpose.

3. Libraries, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and courts
of law.

4. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required for student residential and boarding
accommodations.

5. Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks,
walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and
information kiosks.

6. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers,
multi-modal transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail
infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

7. Veterinarian services and animal shelters.

. Warehouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale

distribution.

. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other

chemieals similar materials within a warchouse facility.
Storage and distribution of petroleum and-lguid-pewrolemn products within a
warchouse facility.

. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials (excluding concrete and

asphalt), vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment associated with a commercial
building contractor or business when not directly associated with a construction
project on the premises.

. Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when incidental

to an on-site construction project.

. Laundromats and personal dry-cleaning,

Laboratory and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing,
and experimentation is prohibited.

. Rerail sales and shopping centers including:

I. Stores; shopping centers; convenience stores: principal grocery stores;
neighborhood stores and shopping centers; regional stores and shopping
centers; super regional store and shopping centers; scasonal holiday sales and
use; and scasonal farmers markets.

. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle,

boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

. Gaming when incidental to a primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot or

video machines.

. Heavy equipment sales and service,
. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and

detailing (manual hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods),
service and fueling stations, repair (including painting and body repair), sales.
and rental.

. Accessory use, buildings and structures when incidental to a permitted use,

Page 2 of 4



placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and compliant with
section +7:42:048 17.12.045.

17.34.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

The fo
permit
A.

llowing additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use

as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

Casinos and gaming establishments over 5,000 square feet, where more than 13
slots or video machines are located and where other forms of gambling may
take place such as poker, craps. blackjack, sports book and other similar
activities.

. Watchman’s dwelling, permanent or temporary=as regulated by section

17.12.046.
Buildings and structures constructed for uses listed in sections 17.34.020 and
17.34.030 that will exceed 50 feet in height.

. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12

weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.
?, Health care facilities including hospital services, medical services, convalescent

services (but not civic convalescent and group care service), continuum of care
facilities for seniors, and group care services,

. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.
. Commercial energy production use types such as geothermal, hydrological,

solar, wind, and other similar low-impact renewable energy generation systems.
Commercial encrgy production from combustion of fossil fuels and other type
fuels or other similar power generation systems is prohibited.

I. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlifc refuges, and game

K
K.

farms.

Iruck stops.

Cemeteries. columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

. Solid waste recycling collection center.

. Solid waste recycling center.

. Solid waste transfer station.

. Solid waste collection center,

. Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not

incidental to an on-site construction project or located within 2,500 feet of a CR,
E. R, or SPR zone. Permanent batch plants are prohibited.

. Education facilitics which include student residential and boarding

accommodations.

NMetural - recaurcacteds
TYOTUIMmaT T aOnTrew oy =T

3 o - Feapad A paaeloer “H3} catland craatiedt
E F-y ndawatervw--restoration titHa-cHoatithn

water restoration-and-reeveling. Natural resources river restoration regulated
under section 17.12.100.

S. Open storage.

T. [

S

Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas tra nsmission
substations, and ancillary uses.

I Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board with action
by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special

Page 3 of 4



use permit within the zone.

17.34.040 Minimum Parcel Area
The minimum parcel area required in the [1 zone is 1 acre, except for commercial uses
in the 11 zone area for which there is a 15.000 square feet area minimum.

17.34.050 Setback Requirements

A-buildine oraecesson-butdine-mar-not-bedoctted closerthan20-feetto-ainv-property
line- The required distance between the building and the property line is 20 fect.
Setback requirements for accessory structures must comply with section 17.12.045.

17.34.060 Loading Area
A loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All
truck parking and docking areas must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled
ways are not impacted.

17.34.070 Height of Buildings and Structures
A building, manufactured-butlding: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of three stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allov ed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries,
cupolas, domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. Radio, television,
other communication antenna, and wind energy turbine support structures are
regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

Page 4 of 4



Chapter 17.35

12 Heavy Industrial Zone

Sections:

17.35.010  Purpose and intent

17.35.020 Allowed uses

17.35.030 Uses subject to special use permit
[7.35.040 Minimum parcel area

17.35.050 Setback requirements

17.35.060 Loading area

17.35.070 Height of buildings and structures

17.35.010 Purpose and Intent

The 12 heavy industrial zone is intended to provide areas for the development and
operation of industrial, distribution, and manufacturing uses that, by nature of their
intensity, may be incompatible with other types of land use activities.

17.35.020 Allowed Uses

The uses listed in this section are allowed in the 12 heavy industrial zone. They include
all uses allowed in the 11 light industrial zone if they are compatible with the surrounding
heavy industrial uses. I1 light industrial uses in the 12 zone are governed by the
provisions of chapter 17.34 Light industrial zone. except that a special use permit
pursuant to section 17.34.030 is not required unless the use is expressly listed in section
17.35.646030 as requiring a special use permit, The following heavy industrial uses are
allowed:

A. Ten percent of the total area in the heavy industrial zone as designated in the
county master plan may be utilized for commercial use. A site plan must be
approved by the ecommunity-development-departinent building department. No
special use permit is required for commercial uses, but the provisions under
chapter 17.28 apply to commercial uses in an 12 zone.

B. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already
manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth,
paper, plastic, leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and
manufacturing operations involving primary production of commodity of raw
materials, except those uses listed in section 17.35.040 as requiring a special use
permit,

Trade and crafisman industrics, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing
and refining, upholstery shops, blacksmithing, monument works, ornamental
ironworks, and similar uses.

0

D. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops,
carpet cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uscs.

5]

. Civic uses including:

Page 1 of 6



G.

I. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other tse-purpose.

3. Libraries, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and courts
of law.

4. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational education,
apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A special use permit
is required for student residential and boarding accommodations.

5. Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks,
walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and
information kiosks.

6. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-
modal transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail
infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal
production, custom animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies
sales, and agricultural entertainment and commercial uses.

Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses also include community gardens.

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratorystestings
and experimentation is prohibited.

1. Bottling and canning plants.

1.
K.
L:

M.

R.

Building material manufacturing.
Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warehouse complexes. distribution operations, and wholesale
distribution,

Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle,
boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other

chemicals-similar materials within a warehouse facility.

. Storage and distribution of petroleuni-and-liquid petroleum products within a

warchouse facility.

. Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and detailing

(manual hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and
fueling stations, repair (including painting and body repair), sales, and rental.

Truck stops.

Page 2 of 6



S. Indoor and outdoor archery uses.
T. Uses involving the indoor discharge of fircarms.

U. Recovery of methane and other combustible gasses emitted from a permitted solid
waste landfill and used for the gencration of energy.

V. Temporary (less than one year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when incidental
1o an on-site construction project.

W. Solid waste recycling collection center.

X. Solid waste recycling center.

Y. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, convalescent
services (but not civic convalescent and group care service), continuum of care
facilities for seniors, and group care services.

Z. Crisis care uses and facilities, permanent.

AA. Seasonal farmers markets.

BB. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uscs.

CC. Veterinary services for small and large animals.

DD. Accessory use, buildings and structures when incidental to a permitted use,

placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and compliant with the
regulations of section +7#+2:048 17.12.045-046.

EE. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board with action by
the planning commission to be consistent and compatible with the other uses
permitted within the zone.

17.35.0406030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions:

A. Industrial agricultural uses including intensive agricultural uses, slaughter
houses, agricultural packing and processing, stockyards and auction facilities.
Industrial agricultural uses must be located no closer than 500 feet to any CR, E,
or R zone and 50 feet from a parcel or lot boundary.

B. Manufacturing of paints, shellac. turpentine, varnishes, and etherchemicals:
similar materials.

C. Manufacturing, reclaiming, and refining of petrelewmn-and-liquid petroleum
products.

D. Storage and distribution of petrotenni-and-liquid petroleum products, except
from within a warchouse facility.

EPetroleuntand-Higuid-petreleum-products-mantiacturing rechmingand
retinine:

Page 3 of 6



B

G.

H.

Manufacturing, reclaiming, refining, storage, distribution, and use of eyanide
hazardous material. and-other hazardous-chemicals-and-materials

Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not
incidental to an on-site construction project or when located within 2,500 feet
from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone, and 1,000 feet of an 1C zone.

Permanent (1 year or more) concrete and asphalt batch plants.

I. Junk, salvage, reclamation, or auto wrecking and dismantling yards.

J. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing,

K.

Lon

Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

Congregational establishments, including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other
private clubs.

M. Uses involving the outdoor discharge of firearms.

Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles. trucks, motorcycles

(¢.g., motocross), tractors, and other motorized vehicles.

=

0.
P.

Q.

Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and
production of movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

Mining and extraction as regulated by chapter 17.92 Exploration, mining, and
extraction, and aggregate facilities.

. Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.
. Dry cleaning plants and laundry services.

. Naturalresourcestheluding Hver-and- waterwaytestoration wetland-creation:

water-restoration and reeveting. Natural resources river restoration regulated
under section 17,12,100.

. Paper manufacturing.

. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game

farms.

. Saw mills.
. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure

. Ammunition-orexplosive-manutacturing and-storage: Manufacturing,

reclaiming, refining, storage, distribution, and use of explosives or
propellants,

. Waste to energy type production and generation facilities involving use,

recovery or residue of petroleum and petroleum related wastes, biomass wastes,
bio-hazardous wastes, solid wastes. and other non-hazardous wastes and waslie
products.

Page 4 of 6



AA. Facilities and recycling facilities involving use, recovery, or residue of
hazardous materials and/or wastes.

BB. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more potbelly pigs more than 12
weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

CC. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

DD. Recycling facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of
hazardous materials and/or wastes.

EE. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing,
treatment, or storagc.

FF. Blast furnaces and incinerators, of any type and used for any purpose.
GG. Crisis care facility, permanent.

HH. Watchman's dwelling, svhether permanent or temporary=-as regulated by
section 17.12.046.

[l. Commercial energy production from coal, petroleum, natural gas, propane,
other fossil fuels, and other non-renewable energy generation.

JJ. Commercial energy production use types such as geothermal, hydrological,
solar, wind, and other similar low-impact renewable energy generation systems.

KK. Education facilities which include student residential and boarding
accommodations.

LL. Outdoor-Open storage or-maintensnce-of butlding-materialsyehicles-traters:
and-heavy-equipmentassochatedwith-a-conmmerciab-butiding-comtraciorof
business-when not directly associated with a construction project on the
premises.

MM-—Other-uses-simtilar-to-the-above that are determined-by-the-board-with-aetion
hvlheﬁmmgummﬁmﬂwM}&wqwm@%hﬂ
Hse-periti-withi-the2one:

NN-MM. Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities.
These uses are only allowable within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center which is zoned 12 Heavy Industrial. They are prohibited within
1,500 feet of a public or private school or religious institution, and another
permitted tattoo, permanent cosmetics, o and invasive piercing facility.

OO:NN. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

PROO. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board with
action by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a
special use permit within the zone.

17.35.056040 Minimum Parcel Area

The minimum parcel areas required in the 12 zone is 3 acres, except for commercial uses
in a heavy industrial zone area for which there is a 15,000 square foot minimum. For 1l
light industrial uses in a heavy industrial zone area, there is a 1 acre minimum.

Page 5 of 6



17.35.068050 Setback Requirements
Buildines-may-npot-be-located-closer-than-30-feetto-any-property-tine-The required
distance between the building and the property line is 30 feet. Setback requirements
for accessory structures must comply with section 17.12.045.

17.35.670060 Loading Area

[oading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck
parking and docking areas must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are
not adversely impacted,

17.35.080070 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building—manufactured-building: or structure may not exceed 6 stories or 75 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. These requirements do not
apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or
flagpoles. The height of support structures (towers) for radio, television, other
communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is regulated under chapter 17.12
General provisions.

Page 6 of 6



Chapter 17.36

I3 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL ZONE

Sections:

17.36.010 Purpose and intent.

17.36.020 Permitted uses.

17.36.030 Minimum parcel area,

17.36.040 Required criteria for permitted uses.

17.36.050 Special zoning limitations to assure separation of incompatible uses.
17.36.060 Height of buildings and structures.

17.36.010 Purpose and Intent.
The 13 heavy industrial zone is intended to provide areas for the development and
operation of industrial, distribution, and manufacturing uses which, by nature of their
intensity, may be incompatible with other types of land uses. Permitted uses in the 13
zone may be more intensive than those allowable in the [1 and 12 zone. The remote
location of the I3 zone is suitable for the allowable uses under this chapter.

17.36.020 Permitted Uses.
The following uses are permitted in the 13 zone and include all uses allowed in the 11
light industrial zone if they are compatible with the surrounding heavy industrial uses.
[1 light industrial uses in the 13 zone are governed by the provisions in17.34, except
that a special use permit pursuant to section 17.34.030 is not required. The following
uses are permitted in the 13 zone:

A,

B.

D.

Manufacturing and assembly opcrations which create a finished or partially
assembled product for sale or distribution.

Commercial uses listed as permitted under chapter 17.28 Commercial zone.
Uses listed as requiring a special use permit under section 17.28.040 are
permitted in the 13 zone without a special use permit. The provisions under
17.28 otherwise apply to the regulation of commercial uses in the 13 zone.

. Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal

production, custom animal processing. agricultural research, agricultural
supplics sales, and agricultural entertainment and commercial uses.

Industrial agricultural uses including intensive agricultural uses, slaughter
houses, agricultural packing and processing, stockyards and auction facilities.

. Waste to energy type production and generation facilitics involving use,

recovery or residue of petroleum and petroleum related wastes, biomass wastes,
bio-hazardous wastes, solid wastes, and other non-hazardous wastes and waste
products.

. Ammunition and explosives manufacturing, reclaiming, refining, storage,

distribution, and use.

G. Paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes. and other chemical manufacturing.

. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other

chemicals within a warehouse facility.

Page 10of §



. Petroleum and liquid petroleum products manufacturing, reclaiming, and
refining.

J. Storage and distribution of petroleum and liquid petroleum products.

K. Fertilizer products storage, distribution, manufacturing, reclaiming, and
refining.

L. Air bag and other supplementary restraint system manufacturing, testing,
storage, and use.

M. Explosive, propellant, and pyrotechnic manufacturing, testing, storage, and use.

N, Lithium and other volatile or unstable fuels and materials manufacturing,
testing, storage, and use.

0. Hazardous waste management facilities involving the use, recovery, recycling,
storage, treatment, and management of hazardous materials for hazardous
materials produced or use on the site.

. Rocket fuel manufacturing, testing, and storage.

Q. Blast furnaces and incinerators of any type and for any purpose.

R. Rock and gravel excavating, crushing, processing, and distribution.

Mineral exploration, mining, and extraction. A special use permit for large
operations is required pursuant to chapter 17.92 Exploration and mining.

. Environmental testing facilities such as simulation of temperature, vibration,
fire, explosion, or high-altitude conditions.

U. Open air testing of materials developed for any of the uses described in this
section, including testing to obtain design criteria for building construction,
personnel safety, shipping requircments, and anything useful for those purposes.

V. Igniter and ignition systems manufacturing, testing and storage and use.

W. Public utility service yards, buildings, clectric substations, gas transmission

X

Y

-

w

substations, and ancillary uses.

. Recycling facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of
hazardous materials and/or wastes.

. Cyanide and other hazardous chemicals and materials manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, distribution, and use.

Z. Commercial energy production use types such as geothermal, hydrological,
solar, wind, and other similar low-impact renewable energy generation systems.

AA. Commercial energy production from coal, petroleum, natural gas, propane,
other fossil fuels, and other non-renewable energy generation.

BB. Uses that include the testing, manufacturing, research, development, and
storage of lasers, pharmaceuticals, drones, military and civilian devices,
chemicals, and products that require special treatment, buffering, and high
levels of security.

CC. Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

DD. Civic uses including:

1. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other use purpose.

3. Governmental offices and courts of law.

Page 20f §



4. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers,
multi-modal transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail
infrastructures, train tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

EE. Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory,
testing, and experimentation is prohibited.

FE. Bottling plants.

GG. Building material manufacturing.

HH, Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

[I. Warehouses, warchouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale
distribution.

J1. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle,
boat, utility trailer, horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

KK. Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

LL. Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and
detailing (manual hand-washing. coin-operated, and production line methods),
service and fueling stations, repair (including painting and body repair), sales,
and rental.

MM. Manufacturing of signs and billboards.

NN. Dumps and refuse disposal areas. (These uses are subject to existing franchisc
agreement(s) in Storey County).

0O0O. Truck stops.

PP. Truck terminals.

QQ. Uses involving the indoor discharge of fircarms.

RR. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission
substations, and ancillary uses,

SS. Veterinary services for small and large animals.

TT. Accessory use, buildings and structures when incidental to a permitted use,
placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and compliant with the
regulations of section 47422048 17,12.045.

UU. Temporary (less than 1 year) and permanent (1 year or more) concrete and
asphalt batch plants.

VV, Cement and lime manufacturing.

WW. Building materials sales and storage yards,

XX. Junk, salvage, reclamation, or auto wrecking and dismantling yards.

YY. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing.

77. Cemeteries, columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, and funeral
parlors.

AAA. Uses involving the outdoor discharge of fircarms.

BBB. Mining, extraction, and mineral exploration as regulated by chapter 17.92
Exploration, mining, and extraction. A special use permit is required for large
operations as defined under chapter 17.92.

CCC. Dry cleaning plants and laundry services.

DDD. Natural resources ineluding river and-waterway restoration—wethand
creation. water restoration-and reeyeling: Natural resources restoration
regulated under section 17.12.100.

Page 3 of §



EEE. Paper manufacturing.

FFF. Saw mills.

GGG. Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

HHH. The keeping of 7 § or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks of age.

[1I. Commercial kennel.

JJ1. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing,

treatment, or storage.

KKK. Watchman's dwelling, whethe-permanent or temporary—as regulated by

section 17.12.046.

LLL. Research and development activities related to any of the uses described in

this section.

MMM. Other commercial and industrial uses that are not specifically listed but are

similar to the existing permitted uses when they are found by the board of
commissioners with action by the planning commission to be compatible with
abutting land uses and other uses in the zone and consistent with the county
master plan,

17.36.030 Minimum Parcel Area.
The minimum parcel areas required in the 13 zone is 3 acres, except for commercial
uses in the 13 zone area for which there is a 13,000 square foot minimum. For 1 light
industrial uses in the I3 zone area, there is a | acre minimum.

17.36.040 Required Criteria for Permitted Uses.
Any use listed in section 17.38.036020 which can be demonstrated by the applicant to
meet the following criteria is a permitted use in the 13 zone. Any usc listed in section
17.36.020 which does not meet all of the following criteria may be permitted by
special use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.
A. No use or building except structures used for office or employee service

facilities may be located closer than 500 feet from the boundary of the site
unless the applicant can demonstrate that the distance from the boundary of the
site is adequate to protect surrounding uses.

. In licu of subsection A, the boundaries of the site may be surrounded by a

buffer area of the same distance. The buffer area may not contain any uses or
buildings except that a use or building permitted in the 13 zone may be allowed
provided such use or building is not less than 500 feet from the boundaries of
the property making the application unless the applicant can demonstrate that
the distance from the boundary of the site is adequate to protect surrounding
uses. The buffer arca may consist of property restricted by fee ownership, lease,
casement, license or other manner which the applicant demonstrates will assure
the existence of the buffer area for as long as the permitted use remains. The
buffer arca may be provided by open space areas, wilderness land or land
restricted in use by a governmental agency or private entity, if the applicant
demonstrates that the buffer area requirements will be met and retained for the
life of the permitted use,

Page 4 of 5



C. The boundaries of the property may not be located closer than | mile to
property which permits a residential use, except for those boundaries permitting
a residential use at the time of the passage of this title.

D. The boundaries of the property may not be closer than 2 miles from a permitted
city or town.

E. Posting, marking and fencing of the property must comply with the
requirements of agencies having regulatory jurisdiction of the activity.

F. Weaponry, ammunition or explosives testing may not include the intentional
flight of any missile, aircraft or projectile outside of the area zoned I3 heavy
industrial or [-S special industrial owned or leased by the applicant.

17.36.050 Special Zoning Limitations to Assure Separation of Incompatible Uses.
The purpose of these special limitations is o prohibit the encroachment of
incompatible uses into areas adjacent to lands zoned for I3 heavy industrial use. Such
limitations are intended to preserve the continued usability of those areas zoned I3 for
permitted uses and to protect other uses from the impacts and hazards which could
result if such uses were established near areas zoned 13.

All properties zoned within 1 mile of any area zoned I3 must be zoned and maintained
in onc or more of the following zones: I, forestry; 13 heavy industrial; I-4 heavy
industrial; or IS special industrial.

In addition, no high explosives structures may be constructed on the property within
one 1,320 feet of the boundary of the 13 zone, except for portions abutting an 1S
special industrial zone owned or leased by the applicant.

17.36.060 Height of Buildings and Structures,
No building—manufactred-building: or structure may exceed 6 stories or 75 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. These requirements do
not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys, grain silos, water
towers, or flagpoles. The height of support structures (towers) for radio, television,
other communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is regulated under chapter
17.12 General provisions.

Page 50f &



Chapter 17.38
IS Special Industrial Zone

Sections:

17.38.010 Purpose and intent

17.38.030 Allowed uses

17.38.040 Required criteria for allowed uses and special use permits
17.38.050 Special zoning limitations to assure separation of incompatible uses
17.38.060 Building requirements

17.38.070 Parcel size and width requirements

17.38.010 Purpose and Intent

The IS special industrial zone is intended to provide areas for special industrial and
manufacturing uses characterized by activities that require distance separation from
other less intensive uses. These uses are necessary and appropriate for the planned
development of the county and must be protected from encroachment through proper
land use controls and buffering. The provisions of the IS special industrial zone are
designed to allow safe operation of uses within the zone while providing protection
from encroachment on other uses that may be impacted by special industrial and
manufacturing activities,

17.38.030 Allowed Uses

The following uses are allowed in the IS special industrial zoned provided that there is

full compliance with this chapter.

A. Ammunition and artillery manufacturing, testing, storage, and use.
B. Chemical manufacturing, testing, storage, and use.

C.

Air bag and other supplementary restraint system manufacturing, testing,
storage, and use.

D. Explosive, propellant, and pyrotechnic manufacturing, testing. storage and use.

Igniter and ignition systems manufacturing, testing, storage, and use.
Iithium and other volatile or unstable fuels and materials manufacturing,
testing, storage, and use.

. Hazardous materials, treatment, storage, disposal, and use, including refuse

disposal sites for hazardous materials produced or used on the site in connection
with the uses permitted by this section.

. Waste to energy type production and generation facilities involving use.

recovery or residue of petroleum and petroleum related wastes, biomass wastes,
bio-hazardous wastes, solid wastes, and other non-hazardous wastes and waste
products.

Commercial energy production from coal, petroleum, natural gas, propanc,
other fossil fuels, and other non-renewable energy generation.

Commercial energy production use types such as geothermal, hydrological,
solar, wind, and other similar low-impact renewable energy generation systems.

. Temporary (less than 1 year) and permanent (1 year or longer) concrete and

asphalt batch plants.

Page 1 of 3



Q.

R.

Hazardous waste management facilities involving use, recovery, recycling,
storage, treatment, and management of hazardous materials for hazardous
materials produced or used on the site.

. Environmental testing facilities such as simulation of temperature, vibration,

fire, explosion, high altitude, etc.

Employee service facilities, operated in connection with, and on the same
property as, a use permitied by this section. These facilitics must be for the
exclusive use of the property owner’s invitees and invitees’ employees and must
not be open to the public.

Training and educational facilities that use explosives, ammunition, lasers, light,
sound, radio waves, and other weapons systems and non-weapons systems
applications for military and private entities,

Blast furnaces and incinerators of any type and for any purpose.

Office, security and related functions operated in connection with, and on the
same property as, any of the uses permitted by this section.

Watchman’s dwelling, temporary or permanent, as regulated by section
17.12.046 (use requires a special use permit).

R-SRadio. television, and other commercial and non-commercial communication

antenna support structures of any height.

$:TOpen air testing of materials developed for any of the uses described in this

section, including testing to obtain design criteria for building construction,
personnel safety, shipping requirements and anything useful for those purposes.

U Research and development activities related to any of the uses described in

this section.

1V Other uses which are consistent with or related to the uses described in this

section,

17.38.040 Required Criteria for Allowed Uses and Special Use Permits
Any use listed in section 17.38.030 that is demonstrated by the applicant to the
satisfaction of the director to meet the following criteria is an allowed use in the IS
special industrial zone. Any use listed in section 17.38.030 that does not meet all of
the following criteria may be permitted by special use permit pursuant to chapter 17.03
Administrative provisions. Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, a special
use permit is required for laboratory, testing, and experimentation involving the use of
live animals.

A.

No use or building except structures used for office or employee service
facilities may be located closer than 500 feet from the boundary of the site
unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the community
development director that the distance from the boundary of the site is adequate
1o protect surrounding uses.

In licu of subsection A, the boundaries of the site may be surrounded by a buffer
area of the 500 feet. The buffer area must not contain any uses or buildings,
except that a use or building permitted in the 1S special industrial zone may be
allowed provided that the use or building is not less than 500 fect from the
boundaries of the property making the application, unless the applicant
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the director that the distance from the
boundary of the site is adequate to protect surrounding uses. The buffer area

Page 2 of 3



may consist of property restricted by fee ownership, lease, easement, license, or
other manner that the applicant demonstrates will assure the existence of the
buffer area for as long as the permitted use remains on the property. The buffer
area may be provided by open space arcas. wilderness land, or land restricted in
use by a governmental agency or private entity, if the applicant demonstrates
that the buffer area requirements will be met and retained for the life of the
permitted use.

C. The boundaries of the property zoned 1S may be located no closer than 1 mile to
any property in which a residential use is an allowed use, except for those
boundaries allowing a residential usc at the time of the passage of this chapter.

D. The boundaries of the property zoned IS may not be closer than 2 miles from an
incorporated or unincorporated city or town.

E. Posting, marking and fencing of the property must comply with the
requirements of agencies having regulatory jurisdiction of the activity.

F. Weaponry, ammunition or explosives testing may not include the intentional
flight of any missile, aircraft, or projectile outside of the area zoned IS special
industrial.

17.38.050 Special Zoning Limitations to Assure Separation of Incompatible Uses
The purpose of these special limitations is to prohibit the encroachment of
incompatible uses into areas adjacent to lands zoned for IS special industrial use.
These limitations are intended to preserve the continued usability of those areas zoned
IS special industrial for the allowed uses and to protect other uses from the impacts
and hazards which may result if the uses were established near areas zoned IS special
industrial zone.

All properties zoned within 1 mile of any area zoned IS special industrial must be
zoned and maintained in one or more of the following zoning classifications: F
forestry; IS special industrial; 12 heavy industrial; or I3 heavy industrial. Additionally,
no high explosive structures may be constructed on the property within 1,320 feet of
the boundary of the IS special industrial zoned property.

17.38.060 Building Requirements

Building sites and construction must conform with applicable federal, state and county
health, fire and safety codes applicable to the allowed or permitted use.

17.38.070 Parcel Size and Width Requirements
Each property must meet the required criteria of scetion 17.38.040, The minimum
width of any property is 5,280 fect.

Page 3 of 3



Sections:

Chapter 17.40

E Estate Zone

17.40.010 Purpose and intent

17.40.020 Allowed uses

17.40.025 Uses subject to special use permit
17.40.030 Minimum lot size

17.40.040 Lot dimensions

17.40.045 Height of buildings and structures
17.40.050 Setback requirements

17.40.060 Home veeupution-enterprises
17.40.070 Generator restrictions

17.40.080 Eascments and rights-of-way
17.40.090 Effect of covenants, conditions, and restrictions

17.40.010 Purpose and Intent.

The E es
residenti

tates zone is established for areas particularly suited for low density
al use, to further enhance the quality of life for residents, to prohibit the

development of uses which are incompatible and detrimental to a rural residential
environment, and 1o allow for the keeping of a limited number of large domestic
animals for non-commercial purposcs.

17.40.020  Allowed Uses.

The following uses are allowed in the E estates zone:

A,

E:

+ One single-family detached dwelling of permanent character in a permanent
location.-The minimum floor area requirement for residences is 800 square feet
for a one bedroom structure, 1,000 square feet for a two bedroom structure, and
1,200 square feet for a three bedroom structure.

. Accessory uses customarily incidental to a permitted use, located on the same

lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in compliance with the provisions under
section 17.12.048.

. Storage parking for recreational vehicles, boats, utility trailers, horse trailers

and similar equipment owned by the occupant of the permitted principal use,
provided that such items are stored entirely within the private property.

. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the

permitted uses. Use also includes community gardens.
Chitd-care Childeare where 4 or less children are cared for.

*. The keeping of large domestic animals such as sheep. bovine, swine, [lamas,

horses, goats. and other similar domestic farm animals under the ownership of
the resident occupant of the lot, provided that any combination of such animals
on any one lot does not exceed the following:

Page 1 of 4



See section 17.40.030 for minimum lot size requirements.

-1 No-more-than 4 or less large domestic animals
E-2.5 No-meorethan-4 or less large domestic animals
E-5-6 No-mere-than 6 or less large domestic animals
E-10 No-more-than 8 or less large domestic animals |
k-40 No-more-than 16 or less large domestic animals
E-1-VCH Nea-more-than 4 or less large domestic animals
E-10-HR No-iorethan 8 or less large domestic animals
5-40-VR Neo-more-than 16 or less large domestic animals |

I. A special use permit is required to exceed the above maximums for large
domestic animals.

2. Sanitary conditions must be maintained at all times in order to prevent a

nuisance or health hazard from occurring.

There must be a minimum of 400 square feet per penned land area per large

domestic animal, which must be on less than 10 percent slope grade.

17.40.025 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit,
The following additional uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.
A. Child care facilities where more than 4 children are cared for. Child care must
not exceed 15 children.
B. The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks old, but not a commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.
C. The keeping of large domestic animals exceeding the maximum number

allowed pursuant to section 17.40.020.

D. The keeping, maintenance, display, or possession of | or more wild animals.
E. Civic uscs including:

1. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are

prohibited.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
Am-other-use-is-prohibited: These uses are prohibited for any other
purpose.

Crisis care use, temporary.
Libraries, governmental offices, post offices, and community centers.
Education including Elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. Student
residential and boarding accommodations are prohibited.
6. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive
trails, restroom facilities, and information Kiosks.

F. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

.G 4+ One detached-family-suesthomeLalso-known-as-motherin-law-guarters)
attached or detached accessory dwelling unit (i.e., mother-in-law quarters) as
regulated by section 17.12.046, Accessory dwelling, location and placement.~
MH&L&&—G—M&!&W&—M@H}}_&%Hgﬁf%ﬂeﬁe&&m‘j—ﬁﬁ&h#ﬂ%m—&4ﬁ-ﬂﬂé~uﬁeﬁlﬁw

(¥3]

e o

Page 2 of 4



for-housine-members-of the-immediate family-of thosetiving-within-the prineipat
residence-or theirnoapaving suests-subjectto-a speetab-use-permit.-Fhe-aecessory
F—A-famib-suest-home-must-be-a-complete-dweting-and-include-a-kitchen-and
Batheaon
2 A-family-guest-home-may-be-no-tess-than-300-squarefeet-in-area-hor-greater
than 000 sqprefeet-i-area.
3—H-a-tamily-suest-home-s-oceupied-on-a-permanent-basts—a-si
mustbe-tHed-with-the-comm tuﬁl—ydwekfpmem—chpuﬂnwﬂ%—ﬁmtm& who-is
oecupyina-the suest-home—Adfidavit-witl-be-reviewed-annuakly:
4 Septic-and-domestic-water-use-requirements-comph-with-the-appticable
Nevada-Revised Sttties:

17.40.030 Minimum Lot Size.

Each E estate zone must have a minimum acreage limit. The minimum acreage limit
number must be the suffix for the respective zone (e.g., “E-17 represents the E estate zone
with 1 acre minimum parcel area),Ne-b-estate zone may-alow-a-parcet-to-be-below+
aere-t-area: A parcel zoned E must be at least 1 acre. The area contained within the E
estate parcel must be inclusive of all easements, including easements for access to an
adjacent parcel. The acreage in cach E estate zone is shown in the following table:

Zone and Suffix Minimum Acreage

E-1 1 acre

E-2.5 2.5 acres

E-5 S acres

LE-10 10 acres o

E-40 40 acres B

E-1-VCI 1 acre located in Virginia City Highlands

E-10-HR 10 acres located in Highland Ranches

E-40-VR 40 acres located in Virginia Ranches

Other suffix E estate zones with minimum acreage between the above numbers
or larger than 40 acres may be permitted so long as the minimum
acreage limitation in the zone existing at the time of adoption of
this title is met.

17.40.040 Lot Dimensions
The average dimension of a lot in one direction (front to rear or side 1o side) may not
exceed 4 times the average dimension in the other direction,

17.40.045 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactired-bading: manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance, The reqmrcmcms of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. The height of support structures
(towers) for radio, television, other communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is

regulated under chapter 17.12 General provisions.

Page 3 of 4



17.40.050 Setback Requirements

Unless stated otherwise in this section, the distance between the building and the property
line must be as shown in the following table. Setback requirements for accessory
structures-buildings must comply with section 47:42:048 17.12.045. The front yard
setback in the E-1-VCH; E-10-HR: and E-40-VR zones is from the front parcel line
except when an encroaching right-of-way easement for access to an adjacent parcel
exists, In such instance, the front yard setback is from that easement boundary (see
section 17.12.090). Percentages are a percentage of the average lot width; where a
percentage and a dimension are indicated, the larger applies.

Estates Zone Front Setback Rear Setback Side Setback

E-1 20 fi. 12 fl. 12 fi,

E-2.5 30 ft. 50 ft. 30 ft.

E-5 30 ft. 50 ft. 30 fi.

E-10 50 fi. 80 ft. 30 fi. ,
E-40 80 . 150 ft. goft. |
E-I-VCH 30 fl. 40 ft. 15 fi. |
F-10-HR 30 ft. 40 ft. 15 fl. _J
E-40-VR 30 ft. 40 ft. 15 fi. |

17.40.060 Home eecuputions enterprises

Home eceupations enterprises are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General
provisions.

17.40.070 Generator Restrictions.

Installation of a generator as a power source is not permitted unless the generator is
muffled and installed in a sound-insulated building sufficient in design to maintain
compliance with noise regulations in chapter 8.04 Health and safety. Generators that are
used solely for power in emergencies or power outages need not be muffled or in a
sound-insulated building.

17.40.080 Easements and Rights-of-Ways.

All land zoned E estate is subject to existing easements and right-of-ways, including
those described in chapter 17.12 General provisions.

17.40.090 Effect of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions.

Where covenants conditions, and restrictions (CC and R’s) have been, or will be filed in
the official records of the county as a condition of approval for the subdivision of a parcel
of land within an E estate zone classification, the more restrictive of the two documents
(this title or the CC and R’s) will apply in all cases pertaining to use or development of
the subject property.

Page 4 of 4



Sections:

17.44.010
17.44.020
17.44.030
17.44.040
17.44.050
17.44.060
17.44.065
17.44.070
17.44.080

Chapter 17.44

SPR Special Planning Review Zone

Purpose and intent

Allowed uses

Uses subject to special use permit

Minimum floor area

Minimum parcel area and width requirements
Setback requirements

Building height

Home occupations

Distance between buildings on the same lot

17.44.010 Purpose and Intent

The SPR special planning review zone is intended to provide protections to current
mining and milling and the historical remnants within American Flat, Gold Hill, and
Virginia City. It provides mechanisms by which remnants of historical mining and
milling are preserved. It provides for an environment that remains suitable for current
and future mining and milling practices when findings of fact show no substantial
impact to surrounding uses and the community. Preserving remnants of historical
mining and milling extends to permanent historic structures, cemeteries, mine dumps,
and other artifacts existing at or predating the year 1942, and remaining cultural
landscapes that are identified in the county master plan as needing special attention
when land use are proposed.

17.44.020 Allowed Uses

All allowed uses in the SPR special planning review zone must comply with the
applicable provisions of chapter 17.12 General provisions, and must be reviewed and
approved by the board with action by the planning commission. The allowed uses are
as follows:

A. 4 One single-family dwelling of permanent character in a permanent location.

B. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a
permitted use, placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in
compliance with section +7:42:048 17.12.045-046.

C. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses included community gardens.

D. Private and commercial equestrian facilities and uses, including riding arenas,
rodeos and equestrian events, stables, horse and pony rides, and carriage and
stagecoach rides.

I, Child-care Childeare where 4 or less children are cared for,

F. Storage parking for recreational vehicles, boats. utility trailers. horse trailers and
similar equipment owned by the occupant of the permitted principal use,
provided that such items are stored entirely on private property.

Page 1 of 4



G.

H.

L.
b

K.

Museums including those related to history, natural resources, mining, milling,
trains, railroads, and other subjects,

Library and cultural services.
Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Any material or site improvement to enhance and promote the V&T Railroad
and/or V&T Railway.

Civic uses including:

I. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are
prohibited.

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other use purpose.
Crisis care use, temporary.

Libraries, governmental offices, post offices, and community centers.
Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private, or parochial. A
special use permit is required student residential and boarding
accommodations.
6. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive
trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

{30}

wno a2

17.44.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

A special use permit will be required for following uses or development which is
determined by the board with action by the planning commission to be potentially
incompatible or detrimental to the purpose and intent of the SPR special planning review

Zone.

A.

B.
C.

G.

H.

Mining and extraction as regulated by chapter 17.92 Exploration, mining, and
extraction,

Milling and processing associated with mining and extraction,

Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not
incidental to an on-site construction project or when located within 2,500 feet of
aCR, E, R, or SPR zone.

. Bed and breakfast inns offering accommodations for up to 8 guests, subject to

providing one off-street parking space for each additional 10,000 square feet of
lot area.

. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding

accommodations.

. Indoor and outdoor archery clubs and indoor gun club for the sport of shooting

at moving or stationary targets or education related to the use and safety of
fircarms and archery.

The keeping of 7 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Cemeteries, but not columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, or
funeral parlors.

Congregational establishments, including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other

Page 2 of 4



private clubs.

K. Maintenance, display, or possession of one or more wild animals.

L. Open storage.

M. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

}-N. Other similar uses to the above which are determined by the board with
action by the planning commission to be consistent with the uses permitted
within the zone.

17.44.050 Minimum Parcel Area and Width Requirements

The SPR special planning review zone must have a minimum acreage limit. The
minimum acreage limit number is the suffix for the respective zone (¢.g., “"SPR-5"is an
SPR Zone with 5,000 square feet minimum parcel area). No-SPR-zone-may-atow-a
parcelto-be below-5.000-square feet-in-area- A parcel zoned SPR must be at least 5,000
square feet, The area contained within the SPR zoned parcel includes all casements,
including easements for access to an adjacent parcel. SPR zones have the following
designated minimum parcel area and minimum parcel width: The minimum area and
width for each SPR zone is indicated in the following table:

Minimum Lot Area Minimum Width From

Zone and Suffix (square feet) Street (feet) |

SPR-5 5,000 square feet 50 feet l

SPR-6 6,000 square teet 50 feet ]

SPR-8 8,000 square-feet 60 teet |

SPR10 10,000 square-fest 60 feet

SPRI15 15,000 sguarefeet 80 feet

SPR20 20,000 square feet 100 feet |

FHie-trea-ed et foctive ditte-of-this-tide must-not-bedess-than-the
mHH%HMe&-P&W&%MMﬂ%MHMW%H%GMWﬂd
was-recorded-prior 1o the date-of the-adeption-of-this title- the-lot may-be-oceupied-by-not
et ian—tresidentiad-dhaeHing:

17.44.060 Setback Requirements

The required distance between the building and the property line is indicated in the
following table. Setback requirements for accessory structures must comply with section
42048 17.12.045.

Page 3of 4



non-strect
side

Zone and Suffix and Lot Front Setback | Side Setback | Rear Setback
Configuration
| SPR-5, SPR-6, SPR-8, and SPR10 20 feet 8 feet 20 feet
SPR135 30 feet 8 feet 20 feet
SPR20 40 feet 8 feet 20 feet
Corner lot facing two streets Same as 10 feet street Same as
above side; 8 feet above

17.44.065 Height of Buildings and Structures
A building, manufactured-buttding: manufactured home, or structure may not
exceed a height of 3 stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be
allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church
spires, belfries, cupolas, domes. chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles.

The height of support structures (towers) for radio, television, other

communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is regulated under chapter

17.12, General provisions.

17.44.070 Home Oeeunpations Enterprises
Home occupations enterprises are regulated pursuant-to under chapter 17.12 General

provisions.

17.44.080 Distance Between Buildings on the Same Lot
A minimum distance of +8 6 feet is required between a-butlding-used-for-residential

dweling purposes-and-an-accessory buildings. A-minimum-distance-of-sixfeetisrequired

between-aceessorv-buildings-Setbacks and distances for accessory structures is regulated

by section 17.12.0445.

Page 4 of 4




(RS {M)—Appl K:d:h-il—ﬂ“r of ‘;ﬁi{'e-ﬁﬂ%lﬁi Oy

F7A48-070-Buildingsostractures- and-exterions
1748080 Variance

17:48:.010 —Adoption-of-State Provisions

Fhe provisions-of NRS-384-establishing the Comstock-Historie-DistricHogetherwith-any
ru{e%egﬁﬁmmadep&&ﬁ%}ﬂ%i&hﬁm&a—%ﬁﬂe%ﬂhm%%m
everav-Aone:

48020 Apphienbifity-of- ChapterProvisions

l—ht‘—h{-}t v aries x - .-.‘ #4

Comstack-historic district

1748040 —Applicabiic-ofStde Provisions
Fhe-provisions-of NRS-384-and-any-rules-orresuhations-adopled-pursuant-thereto-are
appHed-io-thiv-overlay—reone:

17.48.050— Limitations; Uses-and-Conditions Generally

inhiiRe-it

H!af)ili"ime “: ‘h i A ?
17.48.060—Construction-of Commercinl Buildings - Abutting State-Route-342-in-Gold
Hﬂmmmm

g : his-overtay-zone-abutting State-Rowe 342-n
&Wmnwme&am#-\hrﬁnm Ay e ere&h&wmmdmﬁmwhﬁiwa—{hﬂep
eym%wmm%eﬁ@m*wmmmw

satve-tr-pranted-by-the-bodrd-with-aetion-by-the
ﬁl»mmmu—eam bt -distaneestor-commercial-and-commercial-residential
hm%wm—wﬂh«ﬁwﬁﬁ—}m&amﬂmwﬂ sone-and-chapter-17-30
Commercial-residential zonerespeetively. A-variance to-the requirements-of this-section
At foteon et with-the provisions of NS 384

Page 1 of 2



17.48.070— Buildinss—S L Ekteriors
Hmkhﬂe«-%rmw-and—e*wﬁemmmmml awith-the wqmwﬂmw-w—&hw%w

FHhiedoHowingstandardsapph—to-at-buildingsstroctures—at :
ﬁemm«w&h&(-ﬁmﬁm%M%eﬂeMl—wMHMMWW\MM@&MM'L
SeHexteriorin steonsist-ofasubstance shown-to-have-existed-priorte
MH{&(H}HH{MM«H&—*&HH&Hef\me s-must be appropriate-in-design-for-that

' sing-devices-must-comphy-with-the-provisions-ot

uhﬁawr—il&l—&.mn -and-biltbeaii
C—Fightingwithin2.000-feet-of the- Comstock Historie-Distriet-botndarios5

limited-to-incandescent-lishting-or-indirect {coneealed Hhiorescent-Compaet
Florescent WiMer—Hu%Hm&wLHKWMH»mw}W—H#
and-HD-Hehtemitinedevieeswhich-are madeto-looktke- Hcandescent-haht
“hidby—are permitted-to-be-plainh-visible:-No neon-or-blinking-Hashing:
chasing—or-motion-Hehts-are-permitted—Fheregulations-of this-provision-shak
including other-Hehtemitiing-devices-which-appear-simitar-to-neon signs-such
as-these-which-emplov-LEDs-similar-in-hue to-neen-and-contigurationto-show-4
continvons-strea-of Heht

1748080 arinnee

Wmﬂymwwwwﬁmﬁm%&%wﬂww}l
Administrative-provisions—he varianee-must notconthet-with-the-provisions-of NRS
B

Page 2 of 2



Sections:

17.56.010
17.56.020
17.56.030
17.56.040
17.56.050
17.56.060
17.56.070
17.56.080
17.56.090
17.56.110
17.56.120
17.56.130
17.56.140
17.56.150

17.56.010

Chapter 17.56

PUD Planned Unit Development

Purpose

General provisions

Procedure for application, noticing, hearing, and decision
Required findings for application and approval
Development plan components

Minimum development standards

Density and intensity standards

Increase in density

Common area requirements

Common area organization of ownership
Failure of an organization to act

Action by the county

Maintenance for succeeding years

Expense and maintenance

Purpose.

A planned unit development (PUD) is intended to further the public health, safety,
morals, and general welfare when considering residential and non-residential
subdivisions. A PUD provides for diversified housing types and design; provides for
necessary commercial and industrial facilities conveniently located to that housing;
encourages a more efficient use of land. public services or private services; better
conforms to the local geography and topography; reflects changes in the technology of
land development so that resulting economies may be made available to those who
need homes; to insure that increased flexibility of substantive regulations over land
development authorized in this chapter is administered in such a way as to encourage
the disposition of proposals for land development without undue delay, and create a
mixture of uses in the adopted ordinances.

17.56.020

General Provisions

A. The board with action by the planning commission may only approve the level

of intensity or density that is appropriate for a particular location as allowable
by the provisions of this chapter. The body is not obligated to approve a PUD or
the level of development intensity or density requested for a PUD. The board
with action by the planning commission may require as a condition of approval,
any condition, limitation, or design factor that will promote proper development
and the use of effective land uses transitioning.

B. The entire property proposed for development as a PUD must be under common

ownership or unified control to ensure unified development.

An application for a PUD may be accepted for any land in the county except for

land described in subsections (D) and (E) below.

0

Page 1 of 14



D.

E.

G.

H.

The overall site of a proposed PUD must be at least 5 acres in area. A PUD
application for areas of less than 5 acres may be considered by the director if the
applicant shows that the waiver of this requirement is in the public interest and
that at lcast | of the following conditions exists:

I. Unusual physical features of the site or the surrounding neighborhood are
such that development under the standard zoning provisions would not
conserve the unique physical features of the site or would not allow
functional or environmental compatibility with the surrounding
neighborhood; or

The site is adjacent to an area which has been developed under the provisions
of a PUD and will contribute to the amenity and functionality of the
neighborhood.

PUDs are prohibited in the “NR” Natural Resources zone and “P” Public zone.

(5]

. PUDs are prohibited within the Virginia City township boundaries in order to

retain the historically appropriate grid pattern development of the town.
Historical development patterns and historically compatible site design must be
considered by the board and planning commission when reviewing and
approving PUDs in Gold Hill and other land in the Comstock Historic District.
The PUD tentative map must show zones existing before the PUD (“existing
zones™) and proposed zones within the PUD (“new zones”). Existing zones and
land uses within 1,000 feet of the proposed PUD boundary must also be shown
on the tentative map. New zone classifications and uses may only be those
included in this title.

The PUD development plan must show the proposed new zones and land uses
and provide development standards that will regulate those uses in conformance
with this chapter and title. The development plan must comply with or surpass
the standards established in the zones of similar uses in the county.

I. Commercial and industrial PUDs and those uses in residential mixed-use PUDs

are not allowed 1o abut existing E or R zones.

J. The density, intensity, and allowable uses in the PUD are regulated pursuant to

K.

L.

section 17.56.070 Density and intensity standards.

Residential PUDs must comply with the requirements of NRS 116 Common
Interest Ownerships.

Except as prohibited by the provisions of this chapter, the board with action by
the planning commission has the authority. in connection with the granting of a
PUD, to change, alter, vary, or modify one or more of the provisions of this title
as they deem appropriate, provided that the PUD complies with the required
findings for approval in subsection 17.03.230(D) and the use under this title is
not expressly prohibited in the zone.

. The PUD project must be inaugurated within the time-frame as established by a

development schedule pursuant to subsection 17.03.230(G) (development
schedule).

17.56.030 Procedure for Application, Noticing, Hearing, and Decision

Page 2 of 14



The procedure for a pre-application conference, application submitial and review,
noticing, hearing, and action of the board and planning commission is regulated
pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

17.56.040 Required Findings for Application and Approval
The PUD application must show that the required findings of fact pursuant to
subsection 17.03.230 (D) are met. The board and planning commission must, at a
minimum, include those findings in its approval of the PUD.

17.56.050 Development Plan Components
The application for a PUD must include a development plan that meets the
requirements in this section and chapter. The community development department
may require additional information in the application it deems necessary to evaluate
the proposed development.

A.
B.

S RESRLSST

Subdivision layout and lot design.

Existing and proposed public and private street, sidewalk, other right-of-way
improvements, including vehicular parking, interior traffic flows, and
development ingress and egress points. The plan must also include existing area
road and highway improvements (including necessary expansions and
improvements) that will connect the PUD with the surrounding communities
and roadway systems.

. Areas proposed to be dedicated or reserved for any public use including, but not

limited to, public utilities and easements, public buildings and facilities, and
public right-of-ways.

. Arcas proposed to be reserved for required common area pursuant to section

17.56.090.

. Existing land uses and zone classifications within 1,000 feet of the external

boundary of the proposed development.

. Proposed land use and zone classifications within the PUD.
. A minimum of 3 house model plans and 3 elevations for cach house model for

single-family dwellings, and a minimum of 2 building model plans and 2
clevations for each multi-family building. Portions of a PUD for which only
custom homes are proposed or when lots are | acre or greater in area are exempt
from this requirement.

. Maximum building heights.

Maximum coverage of lot areas.
Minimum distance between structures.

. Minimum setbacks from interior lot lines.

Minimum setbacks from street rights-of-ways.

. Landscaping, screening, and outdoor lighting.
. Projected population and population densities within the development,

including estimated population during cach anticipated phase of development.

. Projected vehicular traffic generation, including for different parts of the day

such as morning and afternoon commuting times.
Development schedule as described in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

. Detailed written narrative discussing how the findings for approval in

subsection 17.03.230(D) will be met.

Page 3 of 14



17.56.060 Minimum PUD Development Standards

A,

The PUD’s development standards will be those which are established by NRS,
this chapter and title, the approved development plans and tentative map, and
other requirements of the board with action by the planning commission.

. The PUD must conform to all applicable county codes, including building and

fire codes. A PUD must comply with this title and Title 16 with respect to site
development standards, including parking, landscaping, screening,
environmental standards, signs, and maintaining a minimum 10 foot building
setback from project parameters. Variance or waiver applications to reduce
requirements will not be accepted uniess expressly allowed within the
respective regulations of this title.

. All infrastructure and right-of-way improvements, whether public or private,

are required to meet full county standards pursuant to NRS 278.230 through
278.320 inclusive. The board with action by the planning commission may
consider dedication of roads and other right-of-ways. Private use and
management of roads and right-of-ways may be permitted upon approval by the
board.

1. If determined by the board to be necessary for proper traffic circulation, the
applicant may be required to provide improved ingress and egress to the
development, including acceleration and deceleration lanes, traffic control
devices, including channelization and signalization, These improvements
must be offered for dedication to the county or state, whichever has
jurisdiction.

. Additional density than that allowed by the existing zone. except in E and R

zones in which increased density is prohibited, may be allowed as provided for
in sections 17.56.070 and 17.56.080, if the board with action by the planning
commission determines the increase in density is justified by the provisions of
required common area and other design amenities that contribute positively to
the beneficial effects of the development for the community and its existing
surrounding zones and uses.

Transition requirements from adjacent properties.

1. A proposed development must incorporate height and density transitioning
considerations along its perimeter to achieve an orderly transition between it
and existing residential developments and residential zones on adjacent
propertics. Unless determined otherwise for good reason by the board with
action by the planning commission, buildings and units proposed to be
located along the perimeter of the proposed development must maintain
setback distances and stay within 50 percent tolerance range of the height and
density of residential development and residential zones that are adjacent 10,
or across the street from, the proposed development’s perimeter.
Transitioning considerations include a range of design features related to
existing and proposed development. These include, but are not limited to.
height, mass, density, appropriate buffers, architecture, landscaping, loss of
privacy, unsightly views, pedestrian and vehicular traffic circulation, parking
concerns, and environmental impacts,

2

Page 4 of 14



F. Development proposed on hillsides and other steep topography, and along
ridgelines, must meet the minimum requirements of this subsection. The board
and planning commission may consider alternatives proposed by the applicant
to allow necessary development in these areas when the development plan
shows that the purpose and intent of this section is met.

1. Grading and development of roads, structures, and building sites must be
minimized within slopes of 13 percent or steeper grade; canyons and ravines;
prominent rock outeroppings. and other significant geographic features, in
order to retain ground stability and visual value and scenic character of the
surrounding natural landscape.

2. Building design and overall development must be of innovative techniques
and building design that responds to the natural topographic contours and
pronounced ridgelines. This is achieved by “clustering”™ development into
areas having lesser or no slope; applying shapes and colors to structures that
reasonably blends into the backdrop hillside environment; increasing setback
distances between perimeter structures which may encroach into a ridgeline’s
sky backdrop; allowing only one-story buildings boarding the natural
ridgeline; and configuring roofs so that only roof face slopes (no gables) are
visible.

3. Landscaping must be designed and placed to mitigate soil erosion, lessen
visual impact of grading and other development, reduce water consumption,
and lessen risk of fire to the development and surrounding area.

G. Unless provided otherwise in this chapter, setback distances, building heights,
distances between buildings, lot size and dimension, parking, and lot coverage
must conform to the regulations in the respective zones in which the buildings
are located within the PUD.

H. The following minimum standards apply to all single-family residential
development creating parcels less than one-half acre in size and all multi-family
residential developments within the proposed development.

1. Garages and garage fronts.

a. At least 25 percent of the garages along a street must have setbacks which
are 5 feet greater than the minimum front-yard setback and setback a
minimum of 5 feet behind the building’s main residence. Garages on
interior lots which are accessed from the side and incorporate architectural
features, such as windows, along the street frontage may also be
considered for meeting this requirement.

b. A garage may be of any size provided that the overall structure con forms
to the design requirements of this chapter, the provisions of this title, and
the requirements listed in subsections 1) and 2) below. The following
garage door opening limitations do not apply when the garage is accessed
from the rear of the property or an alley.

1) The combined car door width may not exceed 28 feet on lots 5,000
square feet or less. One car door must be recessed or otherwise off-set.

Page 5 of 14



2) The combined car door width may not exceed 32 feet on lots between
5,000 and 7,000 square feet. One or more doors must be recessed or
otherwise off-set.

Except for PUD projects for which only custom homes are proposed, there

must be a minimum of 3 house model plans and 3 elevations for cach house

model for single-family dwellings and a minimum of 2 house model plans
and 2 elevations for each multi-family development. The same elevations
must not be repeated on either adjacent side of a single-family or multi-
family dwelling. A mixture of one-story and two-story houses, front porches,
bays, and balconies are encouraged as ways of achieving variety.

Windows, doors, and garage doors (except recessed garage doors) on the

front elevation must have raised trim in order to provide visual interest and

relief.

4. Windows and door fenestration on all sides of units located along the
development's perimeter, except for side elevation located less than 20 feet
from another residential side elevation, must be applied to buildings.

5. Contrasting color schemes used to create visual depth around windows,
doors, and corners must be applied to buildings.

6. There must be a minimum of | principal window treatment on every
elevation (front, side, or rear) that faces the street (public or private) or
required common area that may include, but is not limited to, pop-outs,
decorative wrought iron, wood trim, shutters, plant shelves, and other
features or embellishments to vary and soften the visual exterior,

7. The body will consider the relationship of second-story windows, doors, and
balconies with the privacy of neighbors, and may require that these features
be redesigned or omitted from second-story rear and side walls. The body
may also prohibit two-story structures from parcels along the exterior
boundary of the development and within the transition area described in
subsection 17.56.060 (E).

8. At least 3 of the following design features must also be applied.

a. Enhanced corners (pop-outs, embellishments, etc.).

b. Deep recessed or off-set garages.

¢. One or more low roofs (one story roofs).

d. Second story stacked at greater setback than first floor to facilitate first

floor roof features, especially when located immediately above the garage.

. Roof overhangs.

Porch or courtyard on every elevation (pony walls and/or decorative
wrought iron) may be used for courtyard enclosures.
g. Enhanced window fenestration on all front elevations and all second story
windows facing a street or required common area.
f. Deck, patio, or balcony options.

I. Single-family residential front yards must be landscaped with trees, appropriate
groundcover, shrubbery, and irrigation systems. The landscaping must be
installed prior to occupancy, or a private agreement (i.c. CC&R’s) must be
recorded establishing that a homeowners association or other private

(80]

L8]

-0

Page 6 of 14



J.

organization will require completion of front-yard landscaping within 1 year of
occupancy and maintenance thereafier.

Multi-family residential developments must be landscaped with trees,

appropriate groundcover, shrubbery. and irrigation systems. The landscaping
must be installed prior to occupancy. A private agreement (i.e., CC&Rs must be
recorded establishing that a homeowners association or other private
organization will require maintenance of the landscaping.

. The perimeter areas of the PUD that are adjacent to public roads and right-of-

ways must be landscaped with trees, appropriate groundcover, shrubbery, and
irrigation systems. The required landscaping area does not count toward the
required common area pursuant to section 17.56.090. Perimeter landscaping
must be irrigated with reclaimed “gray” water.

. Streets, highways, alleys, sidewalks, and pedestrian ways must conform to the

requirements in title 16 Subdivisions. Collector and local roads in residential
PUDs, except in E zones, must be designed to avoid long, straight expanses
which encourage high speed vehicular travel and are not aesthetically appealing.
Providing a minimum 25 foot lateral deviation from a straight course for every
350 feet of street length or other design measures may be used to achieve this
goal.

. Pedestrian travel. Provision for bicycle and pedestrian pathway systems,

especially to designated potential common area or park areas, trails, scenic sites,
viewpoints, and public transit access to the site must be provided. Any required
landscaping may be within a trail dedication; however, it may not obstruct the
intended use of the trail. Landscaping along trail systems must be irrigated with
reclaimed “gray™ water.

. Parking. Parking for commercial and industrial PUDs is pursuant to Title 16

Subdivisions and the provisions of this title. Parking for a single-family or
multi-family residential development must be provided as follows. Reduction to
these standards may only be permitted with an approval of a waiver of
development standards by the board with action by the planning commission.

1. 2 spaces per dwelling unit must be provided. Both spaces must be on-site
unless an alternative is specifically approved per subscction (3) below.

2. 1 additional space must be provided for every 5 residential units which may
be off-site or designated visitor parking.

3. Exception. Where the on-strect parking is legally allowed and functionally
feasible in terms of a PUD’s overall design, each on-street parking space may
be substituted for a one-for-one basis for each unit requirement provided that
a detailed parking analysis and plan that satisfied functional and safety
standards is submitted and approved.

. Optional amenities. In addition to the requirements of this section, the

following optional amenities are encouraged (but not required) for all PUDs.

1. Enhanced paving and design features at intersections, courtyards, driveways.
ete.

Staggered setbacks for all adjacent homes.

L-curbs to prevent parking on sidewalks.

Recessed or rear-entry garages.

Lo

Page 7 of 14



5. Energy-conserving permeable pavement on private streets, drives, and
sidewalks.

6. Renewable energy systems for heating and cooling.

7. Renewable energy features such as preservation of solar access with selective
window orientation and added glazing to maximize heating and cooling
efficiency.

8. Use of landscaping. natural topography, and energy-efficient building layouts
for natural windbreaks and shade.

9. Higher insulation levels.

10. Resource conserving designs and use of recycled construction materials.

I1. Preservation of unique historical cultural features, including natural
topography, air, sunlight, and scenic resources.

. Flood control and drainage must conform to the regulations under title 16

Subdivisions, title 15 Flood Damage Prevention, and other provisions of the
code.

. The board with action by the planning commission may impose additional

requirements deemed necessary for consistency with the findings required by
subsection 17.56.230(D). These may include but are not limited to amenities,
such as recreation or play areas and common area, to compensate for any
deviations that may be permitted.

. Arrangement of light industrial uses in a residential PUD. Light industrial uscs

listed in section 17.34.020 Permitted uses, when allowed by this chapter within
a residential PUD, must be developed in a park-like surroundings, utilizing
landscaping, common area, and the existing natural environment as buffers to
screen lighting, parking areas, loading areas or docks, and/or outdoor storage of
raw materials or products. Light industrial use with the residential PUD must
provide for the harmony of buildings and a compact grouping in order to
cconomize in the provision of such utility services required. Thoroughfares
must be kept to a minimum throughout the planned industrial area in order to
reduce through traffic. At least 100 feet of setback distance must separate light
industrial and residential uses within the PUD. All intervening spaces between
the right-of-way line and project building line and intervening spaces between
buildings, drives, parking areas, and improved arcas must be landscaped with
trees and plantings and properly maintained at all times.

. Arrangement of commercial uses in a residential PUD. Commercial and

commercial-residential mixed-use buildings and establishments must be planned
as groups having common parking areas and common ingress and egress points
in order to reduce the number of potential accident locations at intersections
with thoroughfares. Planting screens or fences must be provided on the sides of
the commercial development abutting existing and proposed single-family
residential uses within the PUD. For integrated commercial-residential mixed-
uses, this screening is not needed when it complies with the overall site design
requirements of this subsection. The development plan must provide for the
integrated and harmonious design of buildings, and for adequate and properly
arranged facilities for internal traffic circulation, landscaping, and such other
features and facilities as may be necessary to make the project attractive and

Page 8 of 14



efficient from the standpoint of the adjoining, surrounding existing and potential
developments. All areas designed for future expansion or not intended for
immediate improvement or development must be landscaped or otherwise
maintained in a neat and orderly manner as required by the county code.

17.56.070 Density, Intensity, and Use Standards

A. For purpose of calculating residential density, the plan must separately
designate a development envelope by phase of development for each type of
residential use and each area to be developed for non-residential use.

B. Except as provided for in subsections (1) thru (3) below, the uses allowed in the
zones existing prior to the PUD are those allowed in the PUD, including uses
listed as permitted and accessory. Special use permit requirements for uses in
existing zones will also be required in the respective new PUD zones.

1. A special use permit pursuant to chapter 17.32 (forestry zone) is not required
for residential uses as part of the approved PUD in the F zone.

2. Up to 25 percent of a residential PUD (minus common area) proposed within
existing A, F, and SPR zones may also include commercial, commercial-
residential, and light industrial uses in order to create a mixed-use residential
type environment. Allowed light industrial uses are those listed as permitted
uses (not requiring a special use permit) under chapter 17.34 11 Light
industrial zone. Light industrial uses requiring a special use permit, heavy
industrial uses, and special industrial uses are prohibited in residential PUDs.

3. An additional 10 percent of commercial and light industrial uses, inclusive,
may be added to the residential PUD if at least 75 percent of the arca devoted
to the uses pursuant to subsection (2) above includes combined commercial-
residential mixed-use.

C. The following are the allowed densities within a PUD:

1. Unless stated otherwise in subsections (2) and (3) below, the density allowed
in the zone existing before the PUD is the density allowed in the PUD.

2. Where the PUD is located over existing A and F zones, the density of each
new zone in the PUD may be increased to the level allowed in the approved
tentative map. The minimum common area requirements in section 17.56.090
still apply.

3. Density bonuses may be granted pursuant to section 17.56.080 (increased
density) for PUDs applicable to subsection (2) above. The minimum
common area requirements in section 17.56.090 still apply.

D. The density of residential development within the PUD is calculated by
dividing the acreage of the residential development envelope by the minimum
parcels size authorized within the existing zone. The following steps ar¢ used to
calculate the total number of residential units allowable within the PUD.

I. Deduct areas devoted to non-residential uses, such as commercial,
commercial-residential, and industrial uses from the total PUD site area.
Common area is not deducted from the total PUD site area.

2. Determine the number of residential units allowed under the existing zone by
dividing the net residential development envelope size determined in step (1)
above by the minimum parcel size permitted by the existing zone. Round

Page 9 of 14



17.56.080
A.

B.

down any fraction to the next lowest whole number to obtain the number of
allowable units.

3. The residential development envelope may bridge existing zone boundaries
and may be subdivided into phases provided that the density ol any given
phase does not exceed that allowed under the provisions of this chapter
within that phase of the PUD.

4. The average lot size or the lot size for particular tracts within the PUD may

be increased above or decreased below the average for the development

envelopes in order to ensure compatibility and appropriate transitioning with
adjacent development within or outside the PUD (see section 17.56.060(E).

Increases in Density

The allowed density may be increased as provided in section 17.56.070(F) in

order to enhance development compatibility and appropriate transitioning

between the proposed PUD and existing E and R zones and their uses.

A density bonus of one-half percent for every 1 percent of the PUD that is

reserved for common area beyond the minimum requirements of this chapter, or

agricultural easement area, may be granted in the PUD approval. The common
area must meet the requirements of this chapter and the agricultural area must
meet the requirements of chapter 17.24 Agriculture zone. Agricultural uses
requiring a special use permit pursuant to section 17.24.025 are prohibited in

PUDs.

. The density bonus described in subsection (B) above may be increased from

one-half percent to 1 percent when at least 10 percent of the PUD includes
integrated commercial, light industrial, and commercial-residential mixed uses.

17.56.090 Common Area Requirements
All planned unit developments with 10 or more lots or units and at 6 or more units per
acre, regardless of how many lots or units, must have common arcas reserved as
provided in this section. The location of any common area is determined individually
for each PUD and will be based upon geographic and topographic characteristics of
the site or other factors to meet the objectives of this chapter. Common area within the
PUD must meet the requirements of this section.

A.

In order to conform to the purpose and intent of the existing zone, and to make
PUDs compatible with existing surrounding uses and zones, the PUD must
include common area as required in the existing zone and shown in Table A.
Each building envelope in the PUD must include the required common area for
that new zone. This common area requirement applies to residential,
commercial, and industrial PUDs.

Zone Required Zone Required
common area common area
A 65 percent I 35 percent
C 25 percent g 0 percent
CR 25 percent R 33 percent
E 60 percent SPR 35 percent
4 60 percent

Page 10 of 14




Table A

B

G.

K

. Minimum common area requirements

. Common area in résidential PUDs may not include streets or alleys
(public or private), sidewalks adjacent to streets, driveways, parking
areas, storage, laundry or utility facilities, RV and boat storage areas, or
arcas covered by residential, commercial, or industrial structures, or their
accessory structures. Common area may include the area between the
curb and detached sidewalk, excluding driveways. when that area is
landscaped with trees and appropriate groundcover.

. Common area in residential PUDs may include the grounds of public K-
12 schools, including recreation areas, athletic fields and playgrounds,
and other arcas not listed as excluded in subsection (B) above.

. Up to 20 percent of common area in commercial and industrial PUDs
may include parking arcas, utility facilities, and open drainage ways.

. Common area within multi-family residential developments may include

landscaping, walking trails, swimming pools, and outdoor recreation
facilities.

. Common area may include golf courses (public or private), including

fairways and other recreation areas and facilities, provided that the

cumulative area does not account for no more than 50 percent of the

required common area. Golf courses must be irrigated with reclaimed

“gray” water.

Common area may include equestrian trails and uses when open to the

residents of the PUD.

. At least 25 percent of the required common area must have a slope of 15
percent or less. At least 50 percent of the required common area having a
slope of 15 percent or less must be landscaped with trees, shrubs, grass,
or xeriscape landscaping, and have appropriate irrigation systems. A
minimum of 100 square feet per residential unit must be designed for
recreation. which may include, but not be limited to, picnic areas, sports
courts, a soft-scape surface covered with turf, sand, or similar materials
acceptable for safe use by young children, including play equipment and
trees, with a slope of 5 percent or less and no dimension less than 25 feet,
inclusive of the required landscaped area. The use of existing, native
vegetation may be used in conjunction with trails or other amenities not
listed in this subsection to satisfy the requirement for improved
recreational areas.

At least 50 percent of the required common area must consist of
connected, contiguous area that are greater than or equal to 200 square
feet with widths no smaller than 10 feet.

Common areas must be accessible to all property owners within the PUD
and connected by a comprehensive on-site pedestrian circulation system.
Common areas must enhance circulation within the site, promote
pedestrian use and safety, and improve a site’s aesthetic qualities.

. Common areas that are conveniently located, accessible, and visible for
the occupants of the PUD must be provided as required and may contain

Page 11 of 14



such elements as public parks, pools, tennis courts, ball fields, and
various buildings or structures intended for recreational use.

. Common area, including plazas and courtyards, should (but are not

required to) be designed, located, and landscaped to take advantage of
solar orientation, maximize water conservation measures, and afford
summer shade and winter sunshine.

. Where possible, on-site recreation areas should (but are not required to)

be linked with any appropriate transportation, bicycling, common area,
trails, or other similar approved plan. When the property is on a trail
designated by an adopted plan, the trail must be provided and that area
developed for the trail may be counted as part of the required common
area, even if the trail is dedicated. Similarly, if the identified trail is
planned for a natural drainage way adjacent to or bisecting the
development, the area of the drainage way developed as a trail or with
other recreational amenities may be counted as part of the common area
as well,

. Allocation of common areas must be made to each development

envelope and for each phase of the PUD. The board with action by the
planning commission may require common area beyond the requirements
of this chapter for particular development envelopes or phases of the
PUD. In the event that common area is not to be provided proportionally
by phase, the developer must exccute a reservation of common area by
grant of easement or covenant in favor of the county authorizing the
county to reserve all or a portion of the reserved arca to common area in
the event that the development is not completed.

17.56.110 Common Area Organization of Ownership
Common area will not be accepted for dedication to the county. The developer
must provide for and establish an organization such as a homeowners
association for the ownership and maintenance for any and all common arcas
and other common property which includes the following:

A.

B.

The form of document or covenant that will legally create an automatic
membership, nonprofit homeowners, or occupants association.

The style of ownership in the common area and other common
properties.

. Restrictions on the use of the common area and other common properties.
. System for the operation and maintenance of the common area and other

common property.

.. System of charges or assessments on each PUD owner or occupant to

assure sufficient funds for maintenance of the common area and other
common property, and payment of county assessed property taxes for the
common area and other common property.

. Residents or occupants of PUDs may, to the extent and in the manner

expressly authorized by the provisions of their conditions, covenants, and
restrictions modify or remove their rights to enforce the provisions or
their conditions, covenants, and restrictions, but no such action may
affect the right of the county to enforce the provisions of this chapter.

Page 12 of 14



G. The documents or forms must be reviewed by the district attorney and
community development department prior to tentative approval. All
documents required by the county must be in a form that may be enforced
by the county.

17.56.120 Failure of an Organization to Act

A. Prior to establishing an organization that will provide for the ultimate
ownership and maintenance of any common area and other common property,
the landowner will be responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of
such properties. Proper operation and maintenance must constitute full
compliance of the plans and schedules for such areas as approved by the board.
The landowner must remain responsible for the ownership, operation, and
maintenance of the common area and other common property until a minimum
of 40 percent of the total PUD units have been sold to individual buyers and the
responsibility of the common areas has been transferred to the organization.

B. If an organization established by a landowner to provide for the ownership and
maintenance of any common areas and other common property, at any time
after the reestablishment of a PUD, fails to maintain the common areas and
other common property in reasonable order and condition in accordance with
the development plan, the county may serve written notice upon such
organization or upon the residents of the PUD, setting forth the manner in which
the organization has failed to maintain the common area or other common
property in reasonable condition. The notice must include a demand that the
deficiencics of maintenance be cured within 30 days of the receipt of the notice
and must state the date and place of a hearing before the board, which must be
within 14 days after the expiration of the 30 day notice. At the hearing, the
board may modify the terms of the original notice as to the deficiencies and may
give an extension of time within which they must be cured.

17.56,130 Action by the County
If the deficiencies set forth in the original notice or in the modification thereof are not
cured within the 30 day period, or any extension, the board, in order to preserve the
taxable values of the properties within the PUD and to prevent a common area and
other common property from becoming a public nuisance, may direct county
departments or their designee to enter the common area or other common properties
and maintain it for a period of 1 year or less. This, however, does not release the
organization, residents, or occupants of the PUD from any liability which they would
otherwise have.

17.56.140 Maintenance for Succceding Years

Before the expiration of the period of maintenance the board must upon its own
initiative, call a show cause public hearing upon notice to the organization or to the
residents of the PUD. At this hearing, the organization, residents, or occupants of a
planned unit development must show cause why maintenance by the organization or
residents of the PUD cannot be continued for the succeeding years. If the board
determines that the organization is ready and able to maintain the common arca or
other common property in a reasonable condition, the county must cease its
maintenance at the end of the year. If the board determines that the organization is not

Page 13 of 14



ready and able to maintain the common area or other common properties in a
reasonable condition, the county may, al its discretion, continue the maintenance of the
common area or other common property during the succeeding years.

17.56.150 Expense of Maintenance

The cost of any and all maintenance and operations undertaken by the county must be
assessed proratably against all properties in the PUD and it must be a tax lien upon the
properties.

Page 14 of 14



Sections:

17.76.010
17.76.030
17.76.040
17.76.050
17.76.060
17.76.070
17.76.080

17.76.010

The purpose of this chapter is to promote the preservation of land to conserve and
enhance natural and scenic resources, archacological, and cultural sites, primitive areas,

Chapter 17.76

NR Natural Resources Zone

Purpase

Uses subject to a special use permit
Accessory uses and structures
Minimum parcel area requirements
Setback requirements

Height of buildings and structures
Generator restrictions

Purpose

watersheds, flood-prone areas from unreasonable impairment.

17.76.020

The following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit as provided

Uses Subject to a Special Use Permit

for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions:

A. One single-family detached dwelling of permanent character and location. A
minimum of 40 acres is required.

B. General agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, agricultural
entertainment, accessory structures related to the agricultural use, and custom
animal processing.

C. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses include community gardens.

D. The keeping of 7 3 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12
weeks of age. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

i Commerciab-kennel-A-minimum-of 40-acres-is-required:

F. The keeping of bees for agricultural purposes when beehives are setback at
minimum of 200 feet from CR, E, R, and SPR zones and occupied
residential uses within the premises, and 50 feet from any shared access
casement or public right-of-way.

+:G. Civic uses including:

1. Public facilities and offices for fire, natural resource protection or restoration,
and emergency services.

2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
These uses are prohibited for any other s~ purpose.



Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and
academies, colleges and higher education, technical and vocational
education, apprentice training, whether public, private. or parochial, Student
residential and boarding accommodations are prohibited.

L5

4. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking, hiking, and bicycle trails,
interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information Kiosks.

&:H. Cemeteries.

LI Watershed-protection-and-restoration-witer slorage-feserveirs—pipetines:
irriaation-conals-and-ditchesserving watershed protection-and-restoration:
Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

LJ. Archeological discovery and research sites.

LK. Growing and preservation of trees and nursery stock.

K-L. Hunting, fishing and skiing lodges wildlife refuges, game farms and public
campgrounds.

M. Accessory use, buildings, and structures incidental to allowed uses in this
section, placed upon the same lot or parcel with the allowed uses, and
compliant with section 17.12.045. Accessory dwelling units must conform to
section 17.12,046. A principal building may not be required for an accessory
structure incidental to the allowed uses on the premises; however, a principal
single-family residential dwelling is required for an accessory dwelling to be
approved.

17.76.030 Accessory Uses and Structures

Accessory uses, buildings, and structures are considered a permitied use il they are

clearly incidental to another permitted use listed in section 17.76.020. The provisions of
section 442048 17.12.045 also apply to accessory structures.

17.76.040 Minimum Parcel Area Requirements

No parcel may be less than | acre. A minimum of 40 acres is required for a residential
use.

17.76.050 Sctback Requirements

A-structire oF-aecessorv-buildinemar-pot-bedocated-closer-than30-feet-to-thefront
property-linesH-feetto thereaspropettyv- Hiecop 15 feetto-the-side-propertv-tine
Minimum building setbacks in the NR zone are: front, 30 feet; rear, 40 feet; and
side, 15 feet,

17.76.060 Height of Buildings and Structures

A building, mamHactured-butding; manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of 3 stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance. The requirements of this section do not apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas,
domes, chimneys, grain silos, water towers, or flagpoles. The height of support structures
(towers) for radio. television, other communication antennas, and wind energy turbines is
regulated under chapter 17,12 General provisions.

Page 2 of 3



17.76.070 Generator Restrictions

Installation of a generator as a power source is not permitted unless the generator is
muffled and installed in a sound-insulated building sufficient in design to maintain
compliance with noise regulations in chapter 8.04 Health and safety. Generators that are
used solely for power in emergencies or power outages need not be muffled or in a

sound-insulated building.

Page 3 of 3



Chapter 17.84

Chapter 17.84
Signs and Billboards
Sections:

17.84.010 Purpose and findings

17.84.020 Applicability

17.84.040 Comstock Historic District applicability
17.84.050 Permit & fees required

17.84.060 Permit numbering

17.84.070 Permit validity

17.84.080 General requirements

17.84.090 Comstock Historic District sign requircments
17.84.110 Exempt signs

17.84.120 Temporary signs & banners

17.84.130 Prohibited signs

17.84.140 Billboards

17.84.150 Variances

17.84 160 Violation—report

17.84.170 Complaint by state personnel

17.84.180 Nuisance declared

17.84.260 Violation—liability

17.84.270 Violation—remedies not exclusive

17.84.010 Purpose and Findings.

The purpose of these regulations is to promote the wellbeing of the community by
establishing standards that assure the provision of signs adequate to meet essential
communication needs while safeguarding First Amendment rights and providing for a
safe, healthy, and visually attractive and appropriate environment. Within this overall
framework, it is the intent of these regulations to:
A. Protect the right to the use and display of signs for the identification of
activities and any related products, services, and events;
. Protect the right of individuals to privacy and freedom from nuisances;
. Protect the value of property and improvements thereon;
. Permit signs that are appropriate for their surroundings;
Assure that signs are constructed and maintained in a safe condition;
Assure that signs conform to applicable county, state, and federal codes and
regulations;
G. Prevent signs from interfering with traffic regulatory devices or otherwise
obstructing motorists or pedestrian vision;
1. Reduce traffic hazards and eliminate obsolete signs; and
I. Provide an efficient and effective means of administration and enforcement.

17.84.020 Applicability.

This chapter does not apply to the owner or occupant of any land who may place or
erect on the land or on the outbuildings thereon any sign or notice or advertisement,

Page 1 of 24

oo x

T3 13



Chapter 17.84

where otherwise permitted by this title, intended to benefit the land or improvements
thereon and advertise the business conducted in the building on the land, or advertise
or identify the project in which the land is located. This chapter applics to outdoor
temporary and permanent signs including, but not limited to: writing or text (including
letter, word, or numeral); pictorial representations (including illustration or
decoration); emblem (including device, symbol, or trademark); flag (including banner,
streamer, or pennant), and lights and other things or combination thereof that are
designed, intended, or used to advertise, attract special attention to, or otherwise
inform when any part of the advertising or information content is visible from any
public place within an outdoor area.

It is recognized that these standards arc neither exclusive, nor exhaustive. In instances
where a health or safety concern is identified with regard to any proposed sign,
billboard, or advertising device, additional or more restrictive conditions may be
imposed. Ifany part of this chapter is in conflict with regulations of any federal, state,
or county agency, other political subdivision (e.g., homeowner’s association) the more
stringent limitation or requirement will prevail to the extent of the conflict.

17.84.040 Comstock Historic District Applicability.
In addition to the requirements set forth by this chapter, all signs located within the
Comstock Historic District must comply with the regulations set forth by ehapter
1748 section 17.12.049 of this title and NRS Chapter 384: the regulations set forth
supersede this chapter in the event of a conflict.

17.84.050 Permit and Fees Required.
Any person, firm, association or corporation personally or by agent is required to
obtain a sign permit from the community development department director prior to
erecting, installing, or moditying a sign or billboard.

A. No fee is required for a temporary or exempt sign or banner pursuant to sections
17.84.100 and 17.84.110.

B. The required fee for each of the following types of advertising devices is 25
dollars unless different fees are established by resolution approved by the board.
|. Permanent sign measuring 32 square-feet or less in total area.

2. Permanent sign measuring between 32 and 128 square-feet in total area.

3. Permanent sign measuring 128 square-feet or more in area. Signs of this size
or larger are reclassified as billboards.

4. Directional sign regulated pursuant to subsection 17.84.080(K ).

5. Directional sign regulated pursuant to subsection 17.84.080(L) when a
resolution is approved by the board. The approved resolution may include
initial and reoccurring fees associated with installation and maintenance of
each directional sign. Subsection D applies county-wide in the absence of an
approved resolution applicable hereto.

C. In addition to the required sign fce, the special use permit application fee
applies to each proposed billboard.

17.84.060 Permit Numbering.

On granting a sign permit, the director will assign a permit number which must be
legibly painted or printed by the owner onto the front face of each sign or billboard.

Page 2 of 24



Chapler 17.84

17.84,070 Permit Validity.
The permit remains valid until the sign no longer complies with the provisions set
forth by this chapter or the business or attraction for which the sign represents changes
physical location, no longer operates, or fails to maintain a valid Storey County
Business License. All signs must be immediately removed at the time the business or
attraction is no longer operating or when the sign’s license or permit is no longer valid.
Notice, violation, abatement, and hearing must follow the applicable provisions of this
chapter.

17.84.080 General Requirements,

All signs, whether temporary or permanent, located in any regulatory zone are regulated
as follows:

A. Non-conforming sign. Non-conforming signs and their supporting structures

are regulated by the applicable provisions set forth by chapter 17.12 General
provisions. When a business license is transferred 1o new ownership, the new
business owner must bring all existing on-site and off-site advertising devices
into compliance with the provisions of this chapter and NRS 384, when
applicable, at the time of application for the business license. Before the new
business license may be granted. the applicant must furnish proof that all signs
have been removed or brought into compliance with the provisions of this
chapter.

Number and addition of signs.

1. No more than 3-4 signs permitted per business license, excluding secondary
signs as defined and regulated puisuant-to by subsection 17.84.090(G)(3) and
window signs that are painted directly to their interior surface. No more than 8
signs permitted per building, regardless of the number of associated
business licenses.

When the building in which a business is located abuts a public street to
both its front and rear (i.¢., a building that runs the full distance from *C”
Street to “D” Street, excluding required setbacks), an additional sign (in
addition to the allowed 4 or 8 per business license and building,
respectively) may be placed directly upon the building facing the rear
abutting street. The rear facing sign must conform to the design and
placement regulations for other building signs.

The addition of signs to buildings and businesses that already have signs not
conforming to the county code in any zone will not be permitted unless all
existing on-site and off-site signs are brought into compliance with the
standards set forth by this chapter and NRS 384, when applicable.

Maintenance. All signs must be maintained so that they remain free of graftiti
and cracking, separation, splitting, ripping. chipping. and fading of exposed
surfaces including, but not limited to, faces, lettering, and all structural supports
(Sec examples in Figure 8.1). Signs must be maintained so that they remain
safe, fully upright and level, and firmly sccured to their place of attachment.
Guy wires, tie-downs, and lean-to support apparatuses are prohibited unless it

Page 3 of 24



Chapter 17 .84

can be demonstrated to the satistaction of the director that the supports arc
crucial to the structural integrity of the advertising device and that design
alternatives are impracticable.

P ™
F USEUM CLOSE]
Until May Ist
Gioup Tours,/Rewtals by Appf.
CT78Y BATOD7S "

‘ Wil thwas val ko o Gl.a

Figure 8.1: The free standing signs retain their upright position with neat and professior{al designs. The

tether at the bottom right sign prevents sign face swinging due to wind forces; this device exhibits an

appropriate and attractive method of mitigating this effect. The signs are maintained appropriately in order
to preserve their structural integrity and visual appearance.

D. Historic design. Signs located within the Comstock Historie District must
comply with applicable provisions under this chapter, chapter+-7#-42: section
17.12.049 and NRS 384.

Lighted and illuminated signs. Signs and billboards which are lighted,

illuminated, or otherwise employ the use of direct or indirect lighting, lights, or

other forms of illumination, must comply with applicable regulations set forth
by this chapter, chapter 8.02 Dark skies, and NRS 384, when applicable.

Lighted or illuminated signs located in or within 2,000 feet of the Comstock

Historic District or a CR, E, or R zone must be Compact Florescent Lighting

(CFL), or Light Emitting Diode (LED) type lighting. CFL and LED light

emitting devices which are made to look like incandescent light “bulbs™ are

permitted to be plainly visible. No neon (see Section 7.84.090(H)) or blinking,
flashing, chasing, or motion lighting is permitted.

F. Changeable copy or variable image signs. These types of signs are prohibited
within 2,000 feet of CR, E, and R zones and the Comstock Historic District. A
special use permit is required in other zones. A special use permit is not
required for changeable copy or variable image signs displaying only the time
and temperature when located beyond 2,000 feet of CR, E, and R zones and the
Comstock Historic District.

G. Off-Site Location. Signs and billboards located off-site are only allowed where
permitted by section 17.84.140 Billboards, or by the allowable provisions for a
variance under chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

:!_'n

Page 4 of 24



Chapter 17.84

H. Murals. A special use permit is required for the application or placement of a
mural. Murals proposed within the Comstock Historic District must also comply
with NRS 384, this chapter, and chapter-17-48-Historie-Overlav-Distriet section
17.12.049. The definition and intent of murals is provided for in Figure 8.2
below.

b VY - e i -
Figure 8.2: Murals are non-commercial images such as paintings or enlarged photographs applied directly to
walls, ceilings, or other exterior surfaces. They are typically large in size. Murals typically exhibit few or no
words and are not intended to advertise or otherwise bring attention to any attraction. Non-commercial
images, such as those illustrated above, are intended to enhance the beauty, highlight the social or historical
character, or otherwise depict a message or theme that is common to the immediate community in which the
mural is displayed. The themes depicted above, for example, are as follows: (top left) Ely, Nevada - diversity
and unity of the ever-changing mining community; (bottom left) Carson City, Nevada - celebration of the
history of the Virginia and Truckee Railroad; (right) Virginia City, Nevada — painted wall intended to continue
the historic storefront fagade to the side of a normally unattractive stucco and brick wall,

I. Outdoor advertising adjacent to interstate/primary highways. As regulated
pursuant to NRS 410.320, outdoor advertising may not be crected or maintained
within 660 feet from the nearest edge of the right-of-way of the interstate and
primary highway systems which is visible and placed with the purpose of
having its message read from the main-traveled way of the interstate and
primary highway systems, except the following:

I. Directional, warning, landmark, informational and other official signs and
notices including. but not limited to, signs and notices pertaining to natural
wonders, scenic, and historic attractions. Only signs which are required or
authorized by law or by federal, state or Storey County authority, and which
conform to national standards promulgated by the U.S. Secretary of
Transportation pursuant to 23 U.S.C. § 131, are permitted;

2. Signs, displays, and devices which advertise the sale or lease of the property
upon which they are located;

3. Signs, displays, and devices which advertise the activities conducted or
services rendered or the goods produced or sold upon the property upon
which the advertising sign, display, or device is erected;

Page 5 of 24



Chapter 17.84

4,

3,

Signs, displays, and devices located in zoned commercial or industrial arcas,
when located within 660 feet of the nearest edge of the right-of-way and
visible from the main-traveled way of the interstate and primary highway
systems. This exemption shall not apply in the CR zone;

Nonconforming signs in defined hardship areas which provide directional
information about goods and services in the interest of the traveling public
and are approved by the Secretary of Transportation pursuant to 23 U.S.C. §
131(0) and the board.

J. Right-of-way visibility. Signs located near property lines and intersecting
driveways and public right-of-ways are allowed outside of the vision clearance
triangle as demonstrated in Figure 8.3. Any sign, with exception of traffic
regulatory signs installed by a government agency, located within the vision
clearance triangle must have a base that is higher than 8 feet above strect/grade
level or a total height not exceeding 2 feet above street/grade level. In instances
where a safety or traffic hazard is identified with regard to these requirements,
additional or more restrictive conditions may be imposed. Otherwise, setback
requirements apply as follows:

L.
2.

Residential regulatory zone setbacks

C, CR, E, and R zones — 7 foot clearance setback;
All other zones — 25 foot ¢learance setback.

N,

Setbacks in other zones

ROADWAY/DRIVEWAY INTERSECTION

Figure 8.3; Setback requirements for devices installed within the Vision Clearance Trnangle maintain clear
visibility for vehicular and pedestrian traffic. In some instances more restrictive requirements may be
necessary to maintain a safe travel envirenment. Regulations pertaining to the Vision Clearance Triangle are
also found in section 17.12.050.

K. Directional signs general. Directional signs display a type of service or
attraction which is located away from local arterial or collector roadways as
defined in the Functional Classifications of the U.S. Department of
Transportation Federal Highway Administration.

15

With exception of traffic regulatory devices installed by a government
agency, directional signs may only be placed at the location where the
traveler must change direction from one public right-of-way to another in
order to reach the destination. The sign must display a directional element,
such as an arrow, pointing to the associated attraction.

. Directional signs located within 100 feet of CR, E, or R zones must not

exceed 2 square feet in area and those located in other zones must not exceed
32 square-feet in area.

Page 6 of 24



Chapter 17.84

3. Directional signs are determined for approval by the director, subject to
review by the board with action by the planning commission.

4. A special use permit is required for sandwich-board directional signs.

5. The director may issue a sign permit if it is determined that there is a need to
guide the traveling public, to avoid confusion, or to reduce or eliminate a
safety risk. The permit is subject to approval by the board with action by the
planning commission.

6. Ifthe director determines that there is no need or that a safety or traffic
hazard may be created, the sign permit application may be denied. The denial
may be appealed to the board pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative
provisions,

. Directional signs in Virginia City by resolution. It is recognized that Virginia

City tourism-based businesses and attractions located away from the “C” Street
corridor may benefit from centrally placed and consolidated directional signage
installed in and around primary pedestrian corridors, Implementing a
consolidated community-wide design for directional signage in this area may
better communicate key attractions in the area and contribute to the
enhancement of a pedestrian-oriented downtown environment.

1. The designated boundaries of this area and the design and placement of
directional signs therein will be regulated as defined and established by
resolution approved by the board with action by the planning commission.

2. The boundaries applicable to this section include Gold Hill and Virginia City.

3. The regulations established by section 17.84.080(K) apply in the absence of
an approved resolution and completed consolidated directional sign devices
associated therewith.

4. Approval of the resolution and completion of all consolidated directional sign
devices may as provided for in the resolution to nullify the regulations under
section 17.84.080(K) within the established geographic boundaries thereof.

5. Directional signs existing within the established boundaries under resolution
are considered non-conforming and must be removed within 12 months of
completion of all consolidated directional sign devices.

In addition to the regulations of this chapter, signs located in C (not including

CR), E, or R zones are limited to the following:

I. All home occupations are subject to a special use permit, and no sign larger

than 2 square feet in connection is allowed therewith.

Signs are limited to the place of business.

Only 1 sign is allowed except for an opposing face of exactly the same color,

shape, size, and configuration applied thereto in order to convey its message

to opposing pedestrian or vehicular traffic.

4. No billboards, bulletin boards, blackboards, whiteboards, or banners are
permitted, except for on-site exempt signs and banners pursuant to section
17.84.100,

5. A variance is required for any lighting or illumination of signs. No neon,
blinking, flashing, chasing, or lighting which is otherwise in motion, reader
boards and variable image displays, including those which display time and
date, or translucent lighted signs are permitted.

Page 7 of 24

2 tJ



Chapter 17.84

N.

Signs located in A, F, I, P, and SPR zones. and where allowable by the
applicable provisions of this chapier, are limited to the following sizes and
measurements:

I. Signs located in the F zone may not exceed 32 square-feet in size and 6 feet
above grade level.

2. Sign faces which are 32 square-feet or less in total area may not exceed 6 feet
above grade level.

3. Sign faces between 32 square-feet and 128 square feet in total arca may not
exceed 10 feet in total height with a base no higher than 2 feet above grade
level.

4. Sign faces from 128 square-feet but less than 288 square feet in total area are
limited to 18 feet in total height with a base no higher than 2 feet above grade
level. A special use permit is required.

5. A special use permit is required for sign faces at or exceeding 288 square-feet
in total area.

17.84.090 Comstock Historic District Sign Requirements,

Visible materials for signs and supporting structures within the Comstock Historic
District must be or appear to be of substance that can be shown to have existed for
advertising purposes up to and including the year 1942, and must be appropriate in
design for that time period. A Certificate of Historical Appropriateness from the
Comstock Historic District Commission must be submitted to the director prior to
approval of any sign within the Comstock Historic District. The following standards
apply exclusively to all signs located on buildings as established pursuant to the terms
of NRS 384. Location, size, and number of signs in C and CR zones are as follows:

A.

Signs are not permitted on sides or rear of buildings unless there is direct public
access from an abutting legal public right-of-way. If such public access exists,
signs must conform to regulations for building fronts.

. Signs are not permitted to extend from buildings or from porches over streets

with any overhang over streets, curbs, or shoulders.

. Signs are not permitted on porch posts or other porch-supporting apparatus

unless the signs are traffic or informational signs installed by a government
agency.

. Signs are not permitted when installed on a building where any window, door,

or opening has been altered, blocked, or removed for the purpose of installing or
displaying the sign, with exception of an advertisement or other display which is
painted or otherwise applied dircctly to the interior surface of a window pane.

. Signs placed upon buildings and porches are regulated as follows:

1. Signs above ground floor windows must comply with the following
limitations:

a. Onlv-t One sign permitted between floors;

b. Signs must may have a maximum dimension of 15 inches in width height
times the length of the building when installed on the face of a porch.
Signs may be 36 inches in width height times the length of the building
when installed on the face of the building.

Page 8 of 24



Chapter 17.84

H.

2

Lad

¢. Signs must be of rectangular shape. Signs may be placed cither on the
building face or the face of the porch;

d. Any number of business activities may be advertised on a sign;

e. The base of a sign must be at least 8 feet above sidewalk/boardwalk.

. Signs between ground floor windows and doors are regulated as follows:

a. Signs may be of any shape:
b. The cumulative area of all signs must not exceed 5 square feet per
business license.

Building titles. names, dates, and other messages, including advertisements
that were painted directly to the exterior walls, parapet walls, and between
the windows of the upper floors of the building at or prior to the year 1942
may be reapplied therete exactly as they existed at that time. Photographic
proof of messages existing at that time must be submitted to the director with
a Certificate of Historical Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic
District Commission before the sign may be applied. These applications do
not count toward the maximum allowed signs per business license.

. Signs on ends of porches are prohibited.
G.

Signs perpendicular to building face on building with or without porches are
regulated as follows:

4.

Maximum size of 12 inches times the width of sidewalk, or equivalent in
square feet;

Minimum height of lower edge of sign must be no lower than 8 feet above
sidewalk or boardwalk;

A secondary sign which is securely attached to or suspended from the base of
a primary hanging sign (together known as a double-hanging sign) is allowed
when the secondary sign is equal in length to the primary sign and is no more
than 6 inches in total in width as illustrated in Figure 9.2 below. The space
between the primary and sccondary sign may not exceed 2 inches. Secondary
signs as defined in this chapter are considered part of the primary sign and do
not count toward maximum allowed signs per business license. Only |1
secondary sign for each primary sign applicable to this subsection is
permitted.

One sign is allowed for every 25 feet of sidewalk or boardwalk.

Neon signs. Neon signs are prohibited outside of buildings or within windows
or openings visible from a public place. This limitation includes lighted signs
that appear similar to neon signs, such as those which employ light emitting
diodes (LLED) that are configured so that they appear as continuous streams of
light. (See examples in Figure 9.1.)

[. No more than 3 signs per business license are allowed, excluding secondary
signs as defined by this chapter and described above and window signs in
accordance with subsection D.

Page 9 of 24



Chapter 17.84

Figure 9.1: The top two light emitting diode (LED) signs appear similar in character to the bottom
neon sign.

R
o
G040

¢ Secondary Sign ¢ 1 )
6"
a
Grade-level 1
(sidewalk/boardwalk)

Figure 9.2: The above diagram illustrates the manner in which two signs may be suspended over the
sidewalk or boardwalk within the Comstock Historic District. All signs must be secured taut

Page 10 of 24



Chapter 17.84

BN a0 g 37 il
uSe Jo afpa Jamoy j6
M3y W gy

FOPULA
o pojy g

N\

Jremopre

.u-uhqﬁ.w.:smhf
9 61zfig oy ©

Araepo-ndu
auygnd ooy e
51 24y sopun
Je38 0 apis
w0 ufis oy

i aung e 01 2002d 10 12 patsing Koy seAporxa opaaig parpddesn aq {et 7pa 1 eat gt o1 tonid snopiim _

e 3001 2ddn 241 daoqe Sipiny A JO 202 2 o1 Appanp paruted 232w YA SARD 0 ‘s Fwipping sEd

PUISIC] DLIOISIH ¥00ISWa))
Y URpIM PRIEIO] sTUIP[ING Jo JouIXD oy wodn paseid sudis 10} suowannbal sajensn{jt mopoq WeISeIp Ay, 1g76 2ANSy|

Page 11 of 24



Chapler 17 .84

17.84.110 Exempt Signs.

The following signs and devices are exempt from the provision of
this chapter and required sign fees. The regulations under chapter
17.12 General provisions apply to exempt signs. Exempt signs do
not count toward the maximum allowed signs per business license.
All signs located within the Comstock Historic District must
comply with the regulations under this chapter and NRS 384. The
provisions set forth supersede this section in the event of a conflict.
Any display or types of signs not listed in this section and not in
conflict with the provisions of this chapter are subject to approval
of the director.

A. Two signs with a maximum area of 32 square-feet cach,
located within an A zone, used only to advertise the
agricultural products produced or sold on the premises or identifying the
premises or its occupants.

B. Customary holiday decorations and signs in the nature of decorations which are
seasonal, clearly incidental, and customarily associated with any national, local,
or religious holiday and removed within 30 days of the official recognized date
of the associated holiday.

C. Religious symbols located on a building or otherwise on-site which are used for
organized religious worship and related services.

D. Scoreboards related to and located within established athletic fields and arenas.

E. Commercial and non-commercial advertisement and sponsor signs which are
attached to the interior portion of fencing which surrounds a designated athletic
field or arena. Signs must not be plainly visible from any public place outside of
the premises.

F. “Vacancy,” “no vacancy,” “open,” “closed,” “yes,” *no,” “full,” “sorry,” and
similar type signs associated with commercial uses provided that the area of the
sign does not exceed 2.5 square feet in area.

G. Motor vehicle for-sale signs provided that:

I. The message of each sign is directly related to the sale of the motor vehicle
on or in which it is located;
2. There are no more than 3 signs per vehicle, including posters, stickers, and
other advertising devices allowed by this chapter;
3. The sign is attached to or located within the vehicle. Stickers may be placed
directly onto the exterior surfaces of the vehicle or its windows;
4. The sign or combination thereof does not exceed 3 square-feet in total area;
The vehicle is located in either an approved sales lot or on private property
with the owner’s consent; and
6. The sale of the vehicle or vehicles and location and placement thereof is not
in violation of any federal, state, or county regulations.
H. Advertising on vending machines, such as that shown in the illustration to the
right, which depicts the product contained therein.
. The official flag of a government, governmental agency, nation, public
institution, religious corporation or similar entity, or flags flown on a temporary
basis for the purpose of honoring declared national or civic holidays.

wn

Page 12 of 24



Chapter 17.84

J. House and property addresses, familial name signs, and devices that are similar

in nature and clearly do not facilitate the purpose of advertising a commercial or
non-commercial business, service, or altraction,

. Traffic and pedestrian control and information signs which are installed by a

government agency.

Traffic and pedestrian control and information signs which are installed by a
private property owner in A, C, and | zones when the sign is located on the
property at which the associated business, service, or attraction is located. The
signs are limited to 15 square-feet in total area and shall not conflict with a
vision clearance triangle as regulated by subsection 17.84.080(J).

. Temporary or permanent signs erected to warn of danger or hazardous

conditions so long as the hazards may exist, including signs indicating the
presence of underground cables, gas lines, and other potentially dangerous
conditions.

. Political signs and posters not exceeding 2 square feet in the CR, E, or R zones

and 32 square feet in all other zones. Signs may not be displayed before 60 days
of the primary election or caucus or for more than 30 days following the
election. Unsuccessful primary candidates must remove, or cause o be
removed, their signs or posters no later than 10 days after the primary election.
Political signs may not be affixed or placed on the public domain. The public
domain placement restriction does not apply to political signs placed on the
county-owned property located at the north and south intersections of *B” and
“C™ Streets in Virginia City as shown in Appendices A and B, The sign owner
is responsible for knowing or contacting the community development
department about the location of the abutting state right-of-way and for
complying with state regulations therein. The county is not responsible for state
right-of-way non-compliance or penalties imposed against the sign owner for
violation of those regulations.

. Real estate for-sale and open-house signs not exceeding § square-feet in CR, B

R, and SPR zones and 32 squarc-feet in all other zones. Signs must be removed
within 14 days following the sale of the property for which the sign represents.
Commercial advertisement signs indicating the presence or existence of a real
estate office. business, or service are not considered real estate for-sale signs
and are not exempt signs pursuant to this section.

Yard, rummage, and garage sale signs not exceeding 6 square-feet in area that
are removed within 12 hours after the sale and not displayed in public view
before 12 hours of the sale and are in public view for no more than 2
consecutive or non-consecutive days within a 12 month period.

. On-site temporary signs and banners displaying a non-commercial message

related to household or familial celebrations (e.g., “birthday.” “newborn baby,”
“anniversary,” “welcome back,” etc.).

. *No trespassing,” “no hunting.” “no fishing,” *no loitering,” and like signs not

exceeding 2 square-feet in C, CR, E, and R zones and 16 square-feet in all other
zones.

Signs such as building contractor signs not exceeding 4 square-feet in total area
within C, CR, E, and R zones and 32 square-feet in total arca in all other zones

Page 13 of 24



Chapter 17.84

and which are placed upon the property at which the associated project is
located. These signs must be removed within 14 days afier the associated
project has been completed.

T. Commemorative or historical non-advertisement plaques and tablets installed by
a government or non-profit entity,

U. One on-site barber pole of traditional design (i.e., red, white,
and/or blue rotating swirl absent of text), such as that
illustrated to the right, not exceeding 12 inches in width and 48
inches in length and directly attached to the associated building
in which the barber service is provided. The device may rotate
during the hours that the associated barber is open for business.
Lighting placed on or within the device is permitted when in
accordance with the applicable provisions of this chapter and
chapter 8.02 Dark skies.

V. Displays of string lights outside of a seasonal and/or
customary nature, local, or religious holiday, provided that:

1. They are not placed on the public domain:

2. They are decorative displays which only outline or highlight landscaping or

architectural features of a building;

They are steady burning, clear/white, and do not blink, flash, or exhibit

intermittent changes in intensity, animation, or rotating characteristics;

4. They comply with the regulations of chapter 8.02 Dark skies;

They are no greater in intensity than 5 watts for each bulb, or equivalent to

the lumen intensity produced by a 5 watt incandescent bulb (approximately

73 lumens);

6. They are not placed on or used to outline any type of sign, billboard, or
advertising device or their support structures unless otherwise allowed by the
provisions of this chapter and chapter 8.02 Dark skies:

7. They are not assembled or arranged to convey messages, words, commercial
advertisements, slogans, and/or logos;

8. They are commercial grade UL Listed for long-term outdoor use and do not
otherwise create a safety hazard with respect to placement and connection to
power supply as determined by applicable codes and regulations. The power
supply must be a dedicated weather-protected and GFCI protected receptacle.
The use of extension cords shall not be permitted:

9. They are maintained and repaired so that no individual light bulb is
inoperative for more than a period of 30 consccutive days. In the event that
the bulbs are not maintained or repaired for a period exceeding 30 days, the
string lights must be removed.

W. Points of entry and public interest signs. In addition to the regulations of this
chapter, non-commercial point of entry and public interest signs (See examples
in Figure 10.1.) that are owned, leased, or otherwise managed by any federal,
state, or county agency, or a political subdivision thereof (e.g., homeowner’s
association or general improvement district), are permitted provided that they
comply with the regulations below and the provisions under sections 17.84.040,
17.84.050, 17.84.060, and 17.84.080. Changeable copy and variable image

fad

i

Page 14 of 24



Chapter 17.84

signs are prohibited. Point of entry signs installed at the entrance(s) of a planned

unit development or subdivision; multi-family dwelling complex; industrial,

shopping, or other commercial center; education facility or campus; or other

building complex are permitted when they arc managed and maintained by a

federal, state, or county agency, or a political subdivision thereof, or the

management of the property. All signs under this subsection are subject to

approval of the director and comply with the following regulations:

I. The sign must conform to the purpose and intent of this chapter and NRS

384, where applicable:

The owner or political subdivision is responsible for sign placement,

maintenance, and compliance with all applicable regulations;

Encroachment permits must be obtained, where applicable;

The sign must have proper access and maintenance casements;

No more than | sign may be erected at any given location, with exception of

| similar sign that may be placed at both sides of a point of entry. The

maximum sign face area, excluding supporting structures, may not exceed 32

square-feet;

6. The sign and all parts thereof must be non-commercial and relate directly to
the point of entry or public interest.

t-J

LII:&-“&J

Page 15 of 24



Chapter 17.84

Figure 10.1: The point of entry signs (left and bottom) and place of interest sign (top right) are
owned and managed by public entities and their message is non-commercial. The message in
each devise relates directly to the point of entry or public interest for the viewer,

17.84.110 Temporary Signs and Banners.
Any sign or banner, except those listed in sections 17.84.100 and 17.84.120 displayed
for a period of time not exceeding 30 consecutive or non-consecutive days inal2
month period of time is considered a temporary sign or banner.
A. The following are considered temporary signs:

I. Banners, posters, pennants, sandwich-board signs; fliers; blackboards and
whiteboards; signs attached to temporary structures directly associated with
operating special events, fairs, carnivals, and concessions; and devices which
are supported, worn, or otherwise displayed on and by human or animal
subjects (otherwise known as “human signs”).

B. The following are not considered a temporary signs or banners:

1. Tethered balloons, streamers, inflatable devices, and similar devices.

2. Any sign which is in any way attached, painted to, or otherwise attached to a
vehicle, trailer, or other mobile device, as defined in section 17.84.120(C).

C. In addition to all other applicable provisions of this chapter, all temporary signs
and banners must comply with the following regulations:

I. They must be professionally painted or printed. Those which become
tattered, torn, or otherwise fall into disrepair must be immediately removed
or replaced with a similar size and type sign.

2. They may not exceed 12 square-feet in total area, with exception of banners
which may not exceed the allowable limitations set forth by subscction (D);

D. Banners that are mounted to a wall or canopy must be secured taut and not
placed over any permanent sign. A temporary banner mounted in such a manner
that it becomes suspended between two points (e.g., between buildings, poles,
trees, etc.) must comply with the following regulations:

I. They may not exceed 2 feet in height;

2. They may not be closer than 5 feet to the objects from which it is suspended,
and;

3. They must be mounted no less than 18 fect over a public right-of-way.

Page 16 of 24



Chapter 17.84

- m

H.

I

K.

No more than 1 banner may be attached to any two points.

. Any banner which is suspended over a right-of-way is subject to approval of the

director.

. A second sign or banner of exactly the same color, shape, size, and

configuration may be applied to the opposite side of the sign in order to convey
its message to opposing pedestrian or vehicular traffic.

Temporary signs and banners may not be publically displayed more than 30
consecutive or non-consecutive days in a 12 month period.

Sandwich-board directional signs may be displayed for extended periods with a
special use permit. These directional signs must comply with the regulations
under subsections 17.84.080(K) and 17.84.080(L.). The time in each twenty-four
hour period that the directional sandwich board sign must be removed and not
displayed must be stipulated in the approved special use permit. No sign may be
placed on the public domain.

. No more than 4 temporary signs or banners may be displayed for any |

household, business, firm, or non-governmental entity within a 12 month
period.

Only 1 temporary sign or banner may be displayed at any given time. In a
multi-tenant shopping center, two temporary signs or banners may be displayed.

17.84.120 Prohibited Signs.
The following signs and advertising devices are prohibited in any zone:

A.

Within, attached to, or hanging over a public right-of-way or on the public
domain, with exception of permitted signs regulated pursuant to sections
17.84.090, 17.84.100, and temporary banners.

Located on private property without the expressed permission of the property
owner.

. Mobile signs that are affixed to a frame or chassis having wheels and capable of

being carried, or otherwise portable and designed to stand free from a building
or other structure and fulfill the purpose of advertising. Mere removal of wheels
or temporary securing of the mobile sign to the surface of real estate does not
classify it as a free-standing sign. Ordinary identification of a business or
service on an associated utility vehicle (e.g., construction contractor’s vehicle or
equipment such as those illustrated in Figure 20,1 below) is not considered a
mobile sign and is thus exempt from the restrictions of this subsection. When
uncertainty exists regarding the provisions of this subsection, the advertising
device will be subject to the review and approval of the board with action by the
planning commission.

Page 17 of 24



Chapter 17.84

i L‘sc__o_r‘r A. COLE

~pgmeng

e ST P

DriyeYory, |
S UVTL

3 i
- B e e e M 1Y

Figure 20.1: The images shown on the top two vehicles (allowable) contrast with those below (prohibited) in
that they clearly relate to the service provided in association with the vehicle. The bottom vehicles depicted
are examples of mobile signs which facilitate off-site advertising.

D. Inflatable signs, including those which are made of Mylar, vinyl, plastic,
rubber, or any other material which is supported by gasses contained therewith,
or its parts, at pressure which is equal to or greater than the surrounding natural
atmospheric pressure.

E. Paper signs and fliers displayed on the exterior of buildings, trees, and other
structures lasting more than 12 hours in a one year period.

F. Bulletin boards, including blackboards and whiteboards, where other signs of
similar size or structure are prohibited.

G. Portraying sexual, sexually-related, or other “adult” material in a provocative or
otherwise obscene manner within or in view of a public place.

H. Located in such a place that they negatively impact visual corridors and view
sheds from public places, or obscure a view of the road, or other vehicular and
pedestrian right-of-ways ahead, or curves, grades, or interstate highways or
railways. The integrity of location, setting, feeling, and association of properties
to their surrounding environment and view sheds (The Comstock Historic
District and natural and largely undisturbed environment surrounding many
rural properties county-wide are considered sensitive for the purposes herein
and should be protected against visual impacts caused by signs and billboards).

I. Emit noise. flames, smoke, steam, or other matter.

J. Employ movement including, but not limited to, pennants, flags of non-national
origin, banners, streamers, balloons, disks, searchlights, and lasers.

K. Employ direct, indirect, internal flashing, or other illumination with light source
or reflectivity of such brightness that it constitutes a hazard to ground or air
traffic or a nuisance as determined by the Designee or any federal or Nevada
State agency.

L.. Obstruct or impair the display of any permanent regulatory or advisory traffic
sign or parking sign or traffic signal.

M. Obstruct, obscure, or impair the safe passage of pedestrians, cyclists, or persons
with disabilities.

N. Placed on the roof of buildings unless a special use permit is granted.

Page 18 of 24



Chapter 17 84

O. Painted or attached to trees, fences, utility poles, rocks when located in their
current natural place or state, or similar natural and man-made structures and
objects.

P. Installed on a building such that any window, door, or opening will be altered,
blocked, or removed for the purpose of installing or displaying the sign. An
advertisement or other display which is painted directly onto the interior surface
of a window is permitted.

Q. Placed on a wall of a building exceeding an area equal to 25 percent of the wall
arca. (See figure 20.2 below.)

R. Placed on a wall so as to extend beyond the outer edge of any wall of the
building on which it is located. (The sign must remain entirely within the visual
profile of the building. See figure 20.2 below).

S. Placed more than 6 inches and less than 10 feet parallel to the face of any
building or structure to which it is attached. (See figure 20.2 below.)

T. Attached or placed adjacent to any utility pole, traffic sign post, traffic signal,
historical marker or any other official traffic control device.

Rooftop Signs, inc. ™

<] Joe’s Diner

]
-.( '\ (Q)

Dally Special

el |

Figure 20.2: The mark "X" in the above diagram demonstrates a sign that is out of compliance with one or
more provisions of this section. Signs absent of said mark indicate compliance with the applicable
regulations as follows; (Q) sign covers or otherwise alters a door, window, or opening; (Q) sign extends
beyond the outer edge of the wall of the building: (R) sign is more than 6 inches and less than & feet from
the building wall; (P) sign exceeds 25 percent of the wall; (N) sign is painted directly onto the roof unless a
special use permit is granted.

17.84.140 Billboards.
Any sign face measuring 128 square feet or more in total area is classified as a
billboard and must comply with federal, state, and county regulations, including this
section and section 17.84.080.

A. Special use permit required. The regulations of this section and title are
considered the minimum requirements for billboards. A special use permit is
required before erecting or displaying a billboard. The special use permit may
impose conditions as deemed appropriate by the board with action by the
planning commission.

B. Other permits & requirements. No billboard or its supporting devices may be
erected until plans developed by a licensed engineer for the proposed project
have been reviewed by the fire and community development departments and a

Page 19 of 24



Chapter 17.84

F.

building permit has been issued. A building permit may not be issued until the
special use permit has been granted and all requirements of the county have
been satisfied. The issuance of a building permit or any other authorizations
prior to approval of the special use permit must not be construed as an approval
to commence construction of a billboard.

. Transfer of entitlement. The owner(s) of a billboard may not sell, transfer,

ground lease, or assign a billboard or property on which a billboard is located in
whole or in part to any person, partnership, joint venture, firm, company, or
corporation without a minimum of 90 days notification to the director prior to
closing.

. Best management practices. Preparation and construction within a billboard

site including, but not limited to, the development, operation, and reclamation of

all roads, access corridors, foundation pads, equipment storage and staging

areas, and all related facilities must conform to grading and slope stability
requirements, fire codes, and all Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

(NDEP) best management practices.

Distances limitations. No billboard may be permitted or otherwise erected or

displayed:

I. Less than 660 feet from federal aid right-of-ways and primary highway
systems (e.g., Interstate 80).

2. Within 2,000 fect of?:

a. Roadway intersections and interchanges, interstate highway rest areas, or
on any public right-of-way where there will be a line-of-sight obstruction
to a roadway corner, bend, interchange, or intersection, including
vehicular, pedestrian, or railroad crossing;

b. Another billboard:

Any public or private school, church. hospital, health carc facility,

residential care facility, public park, or government office building;

d. Any CR, E, P, or R zone, the Comstock Historic District, and within 1,000
feet of the following public right-of-ways: Six Mile Canyon Road, Seven
Mile Canyon Road, State Route 341, and State Route 342 for billboards
exceeding 128 square feet. Billboards measuring 128 square feet or less
which are owned and managed by the county or an entity thereof may be
allowed with a special use permit adjacent to State Route 341 and 342 in
the Comstock Historic District when they are located ina C, CR, I, or P
zone and no closer than 200 feet of any occupied structure, unless the
owner of that structure provides written consent to the county.

Within 200 feet of any occupied structure.

4. With more than 1 display face. with exception of a second billboard face of
the exact same shape, size, and configuration which is applied to the
billboard’s opposite side as to convey the device's message o opposing
pedestrian and/or vehicular traffic, and not more than 20 inches apart.

5. When | or more signs or billboards already exist on the wall of a building.

Support structures. Structures supporting billboards must con form to the local
building code and be unobtrusive and recessive in their appearance. -Billboards
must be supported by a single monopole structure unless they are painted

Page 20 of 24

I

Led



Chapler 17.84

directly onto a permitted building, wall, or other permitted structure not
specifically intended to support the billboard.

. Billboard support structures must be coated with a non-reflective beige or gray-

colored finish. Other colors and finishes may be permitted or required as part of
the special use permit.

. Lighting. All direct and indirect lighting of a billboard must conform to the

regulations under section 17.84.080(E) and chapter 8.02 Dark skies. If any
proposed billboard will employ use or display of variable images or changeable
copies, will be placed within 2,000 feet of any traffic signals or traflic signs, or
will be located within a road boundary, the billboard owner must provide the
county a traffic engineering report created by a licensed traffic engincer. The
report must confirm that the advertising devise and its placement will be safe for
vehicular and pedestrian traffic. The report must consider all factors relevant to
traffic safety including applicable criteria contained in this title. The report will
be completed at the cost of the applicant. The county may require an
independent review of the report by a qualified person at the expense of the
applicant.

I Facility closure. Any billboard not meeting the standards of this this chapter and

the applicable federal, state, and county regulations will be considered closed.
The process of removing the billboard and its supporting structures and
reclaiming the site to the condition existing prior to its development must
commence immediately and must be completed within 180 days of closure.
Further specifications pertaining to site reclamation will be determined by the
conditions of the special use permit.

J. Reclamation extension. If necessary, such as during times of Force Majeure, a

request for a reasonable extension of the completion of removal and reclamation
may be submitted to the director for approval. The application for extension
must include all applicable documentation necessary to demonstrate that final
removal and reclamation will take longer than the time allowed under the
provisions of this chapter and that reasonable steps have been taken by the
owner to conform to the requirements set forth by this chapter.

. Reclamation surety bond. A surety bond must be posted by the applicant of any

billboard of or exceeding 288 square feet in arca. The surcty bond assures that a
closed billboard and the land in which it is located is restored to a condition
existing prior to installation of the billboard. The surety bond must be posted
prior to disturbance of the land. The amount of the surety bond necessary to
remove the structure and reclaim the land will be determined by a qualified
licensed engineer or environmental manager at the expanse of the applicant and
will be subject to third-party review as determined appropriate by the county.
Additionally, the following requirements will apply:

|. The applicant must submit to the director proof that a cash deposit, certified
check, irrevocable bank letter of credit, or surety bond has been deposited to
ensure completion of reclamation work that is consistent with the
requirements for reclamation under the special use permit, including
estimated costs associated with removal of each billboard and all associated

Page 21 of 24



Chapter 17 84

equipment and accessory structures and restoration of the site to a natural
state.

The surety bond will be released after the county has determined that the land
has been returned to a state existing prior the facility’s existence.

The required certification must include all applicable documentation
necessary for certification of closure.

Before the bond is released, the county will reserve the right to retain the
service of an independent, qualified person, at the expense of the permit
holder to verify that final reclamation has been completed in a manner which
is determined by the director to be satisfactory.

L. Liability insurance and indemnification. The permit holder and his or her
assigns, heirs, or successors:

1,

Must provide proof of liability insurance to the county and maintain
satisfactory insurance for all aspects of the facility in the amount of at least
one million dollars ($1,000,000). The county may require additional liability
insurance coverage as needed. “Storey County” must be named as the
“additional insured™.

Must agree to the extent not prohibited by law, to indemnify, defend. and
hold harmless Storey County from any costs, damages, claims, causes for
action, penalties, fines, liabilities, and judgments of any kind or nature to the
extent such liability arises from or in connection with the permit holder’s and
operator’s negligent use, operation, management, or maintenance of the
premises.

17.84.150 Variances.

A. Applications for a variance may be made pursuant to this chapter and chapter
17.03 Administrative provisions, and may be allowed where, in the opinion of
the board with action by the planning commission, the same is necessary and is
not in violation of the letter and spirit of the standards set forth in this title.

A variance may not be granted where a violation of the provisions set forth by
NRS 384 or any provision of this chapter applicable to the Comstock Historic
District would take place.

B.

. Variances may include application for signs installed off-site where it can be

shown that failure to allow such signs will work a hardship on the respective

business or attraction, and is necessary to the conduct thereof.

17.84.160
All sheriff, public works, fire, community development, and community services
department employees must report any violation of this chapter to the director.

17.84.170 Complaint by State Personnel.

Should the State Highway Engineer file a complaint with Storey County showing that
any sign erected is a hazard to traffic, the director must immediately order the removal
of the sign.

Violation Report,

Page 22 of 24



Chapler 17.84

17.84.180 Nuisance Declared.

All signs not in compliance with the provisions of this chapter are declared to be
nuisances and detrimental to the health, safety, economics, and general welfare of the
people of this county and may be abated under the provisions of section 17.03.045.

17.84.260 Violation Liability.

Any person who violates any provision of this chapter is liable to Storey County for
any expense, loss or damage incurred by Storey County by reason of the violation.

17.84.270 Violation Remedies Not Exclusive,

Nothing in this chapter may be construed to limit or prohibit the prosecution of the
owner(s). or others, for a violation of this chapter by criminal complaint or by a civil
action provided for by law.

Page 23 of 24



Chapter 17.84

Appendix A: Political sign county public domain exemption (south location).

Page 24 of 24



Proposed on

by Commissioner

, 2015.

Passed on
Vote: Ayes Commissioners
Nays Commissioners

, 2015.

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: (O~ 20 -5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_x__ Departmen d Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
_—

Agenda Item No. | 5



To:

Storey County Community Bebelopment
Licenging

Business ol

P Ly
i
713
st
gt

' A

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office October 12, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the October 20, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS
A. ROCK RAT ADVENTURES, LLC -- General / 160 South A Street (guided UTV tours) VC
B. MAVERICK TECHNOLOGIES, LLC — Contractor / 265 Admiral Trost Drive ~ Columbia, IL (eng)
C. PAPA FRED’S FOOD (DBA) — General / 1575 Linda Way ~ Sparks (mobile food truck)
D. PRECISION CONCRETE ~ Contractor / 1640 West Brooks Avenue ~ N. Las Vegas (concrete cont.)
E. JET.COM - General / 2777 USA Parkway (fulfillment center) TRI
F. RELIABLE PLUMBING - Contractor / 4075 Desatoya ~ Reno (plumbing contractor)
G. DUKE’S PLUMBING - Contractor / 1424 Industrial Way ~ Gardnerville (plumbing contractor)
H. FAMILY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 330 River Road ~ Dayton
I. NEVADA COMMERCIAL COATINGS, LLC - Contractor / 4890 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno (painting cont.)
J. FARWEST INSULATION - Contractor / 1220 South Sherman St., ~ Anaheim, CA (insulation contractor)
K. MIDWEST RECYCLEING SERVICE & SALES, INC. — Contractor / 855 Rowland Springs Rd ~

ROWOZZ L

cC.

Cartersville, GA (install recycling equipment)

TILE ALLIANCE, INC. - Contractor / 4615 Aircenter Cir ~ Reno (tile contractor)

. PETRO SOLUTIONS — General / 2511 Edgerock Road ~ Reno (truck storage @ 3033 Waltham)
PLATINUM SCAFFOLDING SERVICES — Contractor / 14950 Heathrow Forest ~ Houston (scaffolding)
M G & H CONSULTING, LTD — Home Business / 21570 Dortort Drive ~ VC Highlands (consultant)

BI NUTRACEUTICALS, INC. — General / 625 Waltham Way #101 (milling botanicals) TRI
A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RY — General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

Inspection Required

Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office



